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Report on the Standalone Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying Standalone Financial Statements 
of AKSH OPTIFIBRE LIMITED (‘the Company’), which comprise the 
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2016, Statement of Profit and Loss 
and Cash Flow Statement for the year than ended and a summary of 
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Management’s responsibility for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters in 
section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect 
to the preparation & presentation of these Standalone Financial 
Statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, 
financial performance and cash flows of the Company in accordance 
with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including 
the Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act 
as applicable. This responsibility also includes the maintenance of 
adequate accounting records in accordance with the provision of the 
Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing 
and detecting the frauds and other irregularities; selection and 
application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and 
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation 
and maintenance of internal financial control, that were operating 
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the 
accounting records,   relevant to the preparation and presentation of 
the Financial Statements that give a true and fair view and are free 
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these Standalone 
Financial Statements based on our audit. We have taken into account 
the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards and 
matter’s which are required to be included in the audit report under 
the provisions of the Act and the Rules made there under.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing 
specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Those Standards require 
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the 
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Financial 
Statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about 
the amounts and the disclosures in the standalone financial statements. 
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including 
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the standalone 
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk 
assessments, the auditor considers internal financial control relevant 
to the Company’s preparation of the standalone financial statements 
that give true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances, An audit also includes evaluating the 
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness 
of the accounting estimates made by Company’s Directors, as well as 
evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and 
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the standalone 
financial statements.

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the 
explanations given to us, the aforesaid standalone financial statements, 
give the information required by the Act in the manner so required and 
give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles 
generally accepted in India:

a)	 in the case of the Balance Sheet, of the state of affairs of the 
Company as at March 31, 2016;

b)	 in the case of Statement of Profit and Loss, of the Profit for the 
year ended on that date; and

c)	 in the case of the Cash Flow Statement, of the cash flows for the 
year ended on that date.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

1.	  As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 
(“the Order”) issued by the Central Government of India in terms 
of section 143(11) of the Act, we give in the “Annexure A” a 
statement on the matters specified in the paragraph 3 and 4 of 
the Order. 

2.	 As required by section 143(3) of the Act, we report that :

	 a)	 We have sought and obtained all the information and 
explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief 
were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

	 b)	 In our opinion proper books of account as required by law 
relating to preparation of the standalone financial statements 
have been kept by the Company so far as it appears from our 
examination of those books;

	 c)	 The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss and Cash 
Flow Statement dealt with by this report are in agreement 
with the books of account;

	 d)	I n our opinion, the aforesaid Standalone Financial Statements 
comply with the Accounting Standards specified under 
Section 133 of the Act as applicable;

	 e)	 On the basis of written representations received from the 
directors as on March 31, 2016, taken on record by the Board 
of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 
31, 2016, from being appointed as a director in terms of 
Section 164(2) of the Act;

	 f)	 With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial 
controls over financial reporting of the Company and the 
operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate 
Report in “Annexure B”. Our report expresses an unmodified 
opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the 
company’s internal financial controls over financial reporting.

	 g)	 with respect to the other matters to be included in the 
Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies 
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(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the 
best of our information and according to the explanations 
given to us: 

		  i.	 The Company has disclosed the impact of pending 
litigations on its financial position in its Standalone 
Financial Statements – Refer Note 33 to the Standalone 
Financial Statements; 

		  ii.	 The Company did not have any long term contracts 
including derivative contracts for which there were any 
material foreseeable losses;

		  iii.	 There has been no delay in transferring amounts, 
required to be transferred, to the Investor Education and 
Protection Fund by the Company.

For P.C. Bindal & Co.
Firm Registration Number: 003824N

Chartered Accountants

CA K.C. Gupta
	 Partner
Date: May 28, 2016	 Membership No 088638
Place: New Delhi
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Referred to in paragraph 1 under the heading ‘Report on Other Legal 
& Regulatory Requirement’ of our report of even date to the financial 
statements of AKSH Optifibre Limited (“the Company”) for the year 
ended March 31, 2016:

i.	 (a)	 The Company has maintained proper records showing full 
particulars including quantitative details and situation of 
fixed assets.

	 (b)	 According to the information and explanation given to us, 
fixed assets except the assets installed at customer premises 
have been physically verified by the management during the 
year. No material discrepancies were noticed on such verifi-
cation. In our opinion, frequency of physical verification of 
fixed assets is reasonable.

	 (c)	 According to the information and explanations given to us 
and on the basis of our examination of the records of the 
Company, the title deeds of immovable properties are held in 
the name of the Company.

ii.		  According to the information & explanation given to us, phys-
ical verification of inventory has been conducted at reason-
able intervals by the management. The discrepancies noticed 
on verification between the physical stocks and the book re-
cords were not material and have been properly dealt with in 
the book of accounts.

iii.		  According to the information & explanation given to us, the 
Company has granted unsecured loans to its wholly owned 
subsidiary, covered in the register maintained under Section 
189 of Companies Act 2013.

	 (a)	I n our opinion, the rate of interest and other terms and con-
ditions on which the loan has been granted to its subsidiary, 
covered in the register maintained under Section 189 of the 
Act was not, prima facie, prejudicial to the interest of the 
Company.

	 (b)	I n respect of loans granted to subsidiary covered under sec-
tion 189 of the Act, the terms of arrangement for payment of 
principal and interest are payable on demand. Accordingly, 
the provisions of paragraph 3 (iii) (b) of the Order are not ap-
plicable to the Company.

	 (c)	 In respect of the aforesaid advances, as per the information 
made available to us, there is no overdue amount as at year 
end.

iv.	 According to the information & explanation given to us, in respect 
of loans, investments, guarantees and security, the Company 
has complied with the provisions of section 185 and I86 of the 
Companies Act, 2013,to the extent applicable.

v.	 According to the information and explanations given to us, 
the Company has not accepted any deposits from the public 
as mentioned in the directives issued by Reserve Bank of India 
and provisions of sections 73 to 76 of the Companies Act, 2013 
or any other relevant provisions of the Act and the rules framed 
thereunder.

vi.	 We have broadly reviewed the books of account relating to 
materials, labour and other items of cost maintained by the 
Company pursuant to the Rules made by the Central Government 
for the maintenance of cost records under sub section (1) of 
section 148 the Companies, 2013 and we are of the opinion that 
prima facie the prescribed accounts and records have been made 
and maintained.

vii.	 (a) 	 According to the information and explanations given to us 
and according to the books and records produced before us, 
the Company is regular in depositing with appropriate au-
thorities undisputed statutory dues including provident fund, 
investor education protection fund, employees’ state insur-
ance, income tax, sales tax, wealth tax, service tax, custom 
duty, excise duty, Cess and other material statutory dues ap-
plicable to it.

		  According to the information and explanations given to us, 
no undisputed amounts payable in respect of income tax, 
wealth tax, Service Tax, sales tax, custom duty, excise duty 
and Cess were in arrears, as at March 31, 2016 for a period of 
more than six months from the date they became payable.

	 (b)	 According to the information and explanations given to us, 
there are no dues of income tax or sales tax or wealth tax 
or service tax or duty of customs or duty of excise or value 
added tax or cess which have not been deposited on account 
of any dispute except of the following amounts:-

“Annexure A” to the Independent Auditors’ Report

Standalone.....
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Name of the Statute Nature of Dues Disputed amount 
(Rs.In Lacs)

Period to which mount 
relates

Forum where dispute is pending

SALES TAX
Sales Tax Act Sales Tax Demand 41.12 2001-02 Hon'ble High Court Jaipur
Sales Tax Act MVAT Demand 7.85 2007-08 Joint Commissioner of Sales Tax 

(Appeals), Mumbai
COUSTOM
Customs Act, 1962 Duty, Interest & 

Penalty
416.36 2000-01, 2005-06,

2008-09 & 2013-14
CESTAT, New Delhi

EXCISE

Central Excise Act, 1944 Excise duty, Interest 
& Penalty

84.38 2003-05 CESTAT, New Delhi

Central Excise Act, 1944 Excise duty 32.79 2011-12 Assistant Commissioner, Bhiwadi

Central Excise Act, 1944 Excise duty 22.35 2010-11 Assistant Commissioner, Bhiwadi
SERVICE TAX
Finance Act, 1994 Service tax 7.50 2004-05 Hon'ble High Court, Jaipur
Finance Act, 1994 Service tax 0.54 2005-06 Commissioner of Central Excise  

(Appeals), Jaipur
Finance Act, 1994 Service tax 0.42 2005-06 Deputy Commissioner
Finance Act, 1994 Service tax & 

Interest
219.70 2004-06,

2009-10 & 
2011-12

CESTAT, New Delhi

Finance Act, 1994 Service tax 0.91 2010-11 Assistant Commissioner, Bhiwadi
Finance Act, 1994 Service tax 1.94 2014-15 Commissioner (Appeals), Jaipur
INCOME TAX
Income Tax Act, 1961 Income Tax 91.01 2010-11 CIT (Appeals), Alwar (Rajasthan)
PROVIDENT FUND
Provident Fund Act Provident Fund 7.60 2004-05 Hon'ble High Court, Jaipur

viii.		  In our opinion and according to the information and explana-
tions given to us, the Company has not defaulted in repay-
ment of dues to a financial institution, bank, Government or 
debenture holders.

ix.		  According to the information and explanations given to us 
and our examination of the records of the Company, the 
term loans have been applied for the purposes for which they 
were obtained. The Company has not raised any moneys by 
way of initial public offer or further public offer (including 
debt instruments).

x.		  According to the information and explanations given to us, 
no fraud by the Company or on the Company by its officers or 
employees has been noticed or reported during the course of 
our audit.

xi.		  According to the information and explanations given to us, 
the managerial remuneration has been paid or provided in 
accordance with the requisite approvals mandated by the 
provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V to the Com-
panies Act.

xii.		  According to the information and explanations given to us, 
the Company is not a Nidhi Company. Therefore, the provi-
sions of paragraph 3 (xii) of the Order are not applicable to 
the Company.

xiii.		  According to the information and explanations given to 
us and our examination of the records of the Company, all 
transactions with the related parties are in compliance with 

section 177 and 188 of Companies Act, 2013 and the details 
have been disclosed in the Financial Statements as required 
by the applicable accounting standards.

xiv.		  According to the information and explanations given to us, 
the Company has not made any preferential allotment or pri-
vate placement of shares or fully or partly convertible deben-
tures during the year under audit. However, Company has 
issued 11,125,381 share in pursuant to conversion of FCCBs 
during the year.

xv.		  According to the information and explanations given to us 
and based on our examination of the records, the Company 
has not entered into any non-cash transactions with directors 
or persons connected with him. Accordingly, the provisions 
of paragraph 3 (xv) of the Order are not applicable to the 
Company.

xvi.		  According to the information and explanations given to us, 
the Company is not required to be registered under section 
45 IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.

For P.C. Bindal & Co.
Firm Registration Number: 003824N

Chartered Accountants

CA K.C. Gupta
	 Partner
Date: May 28, 2016	 Membership No 088638
Place: New Delhi
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Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-
section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) 

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting 
of AKSH OPTIFIBRE LIMITED (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2016 in 
conjunction with our audit of the standalone financial statements of 
the Company for the year ended on that date. 

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and 
maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal control 
over financial reporting criteria established by the Company 
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the 
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial 
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India 
(the ‘Guidance Note’). These responsibilities include the design, 
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial 
controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and 
efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s 
policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection 
of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting 
records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as 
required under the Companies Act, 2013. 

Auditors’ Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal 
financial controls over financial reporting based on our audit. We 
conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit 
of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance 
Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to 
be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to 
the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both 
applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by 
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and 
the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements 
and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about 
whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting 
was established and maintained and if such controls operated 
effectively in all material respects. 

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence 
about the adequacy of the internal financial controls system over 
financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of 
internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining 
an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, 
assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and 
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control 
based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the 
auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material 
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or 
error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and 
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s 
internal financial controls system over financial reporting. 

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 

A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a 
process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the 
reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial 
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally 
accepted accounting principles. A Company’s internal financial control 
over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that 
(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, 
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of 
the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that 
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of 
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are 
being made only in accordance with authorizations of management 
and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance 
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, 
use, or disposition of the Company’s assets that could have a material 
effect on the financial statements. 

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial 
Reporting 

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over 
financial reporting, including the possibility of collusion or improper 
management override of controls, material misstatements due to 
error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any 
evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to 
future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control 
over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes 
in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or 
procedures may deteriorate. 

Opinion 

In our opinion to the best of our information and according to 
the the explanations given to us, the Company has, in all material 
respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial 
reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting 
were operating effectively as at March 31, 2016, based on internal 
control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company 
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the 
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial 
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For P.C. Bindal & Co.
Firm Registration Number: 003824N

Chartered Accountants

CA K.C. Gupta
	 Partner
Date: May 28, 2016	 Membership No 088638
Place: New Delhi

“Annexure B” to the Independent Auditor’s Report
(Referred to in paragraph 2(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our report of even date)

Standalone.....
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Balance Sheet
as at March 31, 2016

Rs. in Lacs
Particulars  Note 31-Mar-16 31-Mar-15

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Shareholders’ funds
Share capital 3 8,133.25 7,576.98
Reserves and surplus 4 36,433.87 31,773.65

44,567.12 39,350.63
Non-current liabilities
Long-term borrowings 5  2,650.93 5,978.04

Deferred tax liabilities (net) 6  234.00  -   
Other non current liabilities 7  644.25 798.95
Long-term provisions 8 275.93 223.77

3,805.11 7,000.76
Current liabilities
Short-term borrowings 9 4,018.78 4,149.98
Trade payables 10

- Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises  4.85  -   
- Others 6,970.28 5,944.30

Other current liabilities 11 3,387.21 3,312.51
Short-term provisions 12 472.14 638.60

14,853.26 14,045.39
TOTAL 63,225.49 60,396.78
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Fixed assets
Property, Plant and Equipment 13 7,400.82 8,609.35
Intangible assets 14  621.83  747.78 
Capital work-in-progress including intangible assets  200.94  107.95 

Non-current investments 15 26,033.73 26,033.73
Long-term loans and advances 16 415.13 141.91
Other non-current assets 17 2,171.55 1,561.05

36,844.00 37,201.77
Current assets
Inventories 18 2,402.05 2,842.91
Trade receivables 19 14,150.86 12,695.54
Cash and cash equivalents 20  316.86 393.67
Short-term loans and advances 21 9,304.79 7,114.95
Other current assets 22 206.93 147.94

26,381.49 23,195.01
TOTAL 63,225.49 60,396.78
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
See accompanying Notes forming part of the Financial Statements

2.1
1-51

As per our report of even date		  For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 
For P. C. Bindal & Co.			 
Firm Registration Number: 003824N	 Satyendra Gupta	 Dr. Kailash S. Choudhari	
Chartered Accountants	 Deputy Managing Director	C hairman & Managing Director
	 DIN : 00035141	 DIN : 00023824
CA K. C. Gupta	
Partner		
Membership No.: 088638	 Gaurav Mehta  	 Pawan Kumar Gambhir
	 Chief - Corporate Affairs & Company Secretary	 Chief Financial Officer
Date: May 28, 2016
Place: New Delhi
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Rs.in Lacs

Particulars Note 31-Mar-16 31-Mar-15

Income

Revenue from operations (gross) 23  46,169.07  37,392.34 
Less: excise duty  2,692.60  2,562.42 
Revenue from operations (net)  43,476.47  34,829.92 
Other income 24  354.99  583.54 
Total revenue (I)  43,831.46  35,413.46 
Expenses
Cost of raw material and components consumed 25  25,081.32  20,883.01 
Purchase of traded goods 26  355.64  584.61 
(Increase)/ decrease in inventories of finished goods,
work-in-progress and traded goods

27  525.98  209.63 

Employee benefits expense 28  2,109.75  1,836.50 
Other expense 29  8,394.26  6,396.44 
Total expense (II)  36,466.95  29,910.19 
Earnings before interest ,depreciation &  amortization, 
exceptional items and tax (EBITDA), (I) – (II)

 7,364.51  5,503.27 

Depreciation and amortization expense 30  1,872.44  1,630.88 
Finance costs 31  1,040.12  705.80 
Profit before exceptional items and tax  4,451.95  3,166.59 
Exceptional Item's income / (expense) 32  (729.26)  115.51 
Profit before tax  3,722.69  3,282.10 
Tax expenses
Income Tax  794.48  687.95 
Earlier Year Taxes  -    71.18 
Deferred Tax expense  234.00  -   
MAT Credit Entitlement  657.67  687.95 
Total tax expense  370.81  71.18 
Profit for the year 3,351.88  3,210.92
Earnings per equity share
[nominal value of share Rs.5/- (March 31, 2015: Rs.5/-)]

40

Basic  2.14  2.13 
Diluted  2.14  1.98 
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
See accompanying Notes forming part of the Financial Statements

2.1
1-51

Statement of Profit and Loss
For the Year Ended March 31, 2016

As per our report of even date		  For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 
For P. C. Bindal & Co.			 
Firm Registration Number: 003824N	 Satyendra Gupta	 Dr. Kailash S. Choudhari	
Chartered Accountants	 Deputy Managing Director	C hairman & Managing Director
	 DIN : 00035141	 DIN : 00023824
CA K. C. Gupta	
Partner		
Membership No.: 088638	 Gaurav Mehta  	 Pawan Kumar Gambhir
	 Chief - Corporate Affairs & Company Secretary	 Chief Financial Officer
Date: May 28, 2016
Place: New Delhi

Standalone.....



62 Annual Report 2015-16

TM

Live Smart AKSH OPTIFIBRE LIMITED

Rs.in Lacs

Particulars 31-Mar-16 31-Mar-15
A. Cash flow from operating activities

Profit before tax  3,722.69  3,282.10 
Profit before tax  3,722.69  3,282.10 
Non-cash adjustment to reconcile profit before tax to net cash flows
      Depreciation/ amortization on continuing operation  1,872.44  1,630.88 
      Profit on sale of Investment  -    (11.45)
      Loss on sale of fixed Assets  1.16  0.62 
Finance costs  1,040.12  705.80 
Interest (income)  (354.99)  (404.21)
Operating profit before working capital changes  6,281.42  5,203.74 
Movements in working capital :
      Increase in trade and other payables  1,373.33  3,843.09 
      (Increase) in trade receivables  (1,455.32)  (5,910.00)
      Decrease / (increase) in inventories  440.86  (386.65)
      (Increase) in other receivables  (2,986.03)  (1,509.72)
Cash generated from operations  3,654.26  1,240.46 
Direct taxes paid (net of refunds)  (962.79)  (531.52)
Net cash flow from operating activities (A)  2,691.47  708.94 

B. Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of fixed assets, including CWIP  (635.89)  (113.24)
Proceeds from sale of fixed assets  3.78  0.66 
Proceeds from sale of non-current investments  -    13.22 
Interest income  71.66  242.85 
Net cash flow (used in) / from  investing activities (B)  (560.45)  143.49 

C. Cash flows from financing activities
Repayment of long-term borrowings  (1,036.51)  (922.09)
(Repayment) / Proceeds of Short-term borrowings  (131.20)  1,558.18 
Dividend paid including tax  -    (443.23)
Finance costs  (1,040.12)  (705.80)
Net cash flow (used in) in financing activities (C)  (2,207.83)  (512.94)
Net (decrease) / increase in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C)  (76.81)  339.49 
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year  393.67  54.18 
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year  316.86  393.67 
Components of cash and cash equivalents
Cash on hand  7.91  6.41 
With banks- on current account  146.49  64.77 
Deposits with original maturity of less than 12 months  161.00  320.00 
Unpaid dividend accounts  1.46  2.49 
Total cash and cash equivalents (refer note no. 20)  316.86  393.67 
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
The accompanying Notes (1-51) are an integral part of the Financial Statements

As per our report of even date		  For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 
For P. C. Bindal & Co.			 
Firm Registration Number: 003824N	 Satyendra Gupta	 Dr. Kailash S. Choudhari	
Chartered Accountants	 Deputy Managing Director	C hairman & Managing Director
	 DIN : 00035141	 DIN : 00023824
CA K. C. Gupta	
Partner		
Membership No.: 088638	 Gaurav Mehta  	 Pawan Kumar Gambhir
	 Chief - Corporate Affairs & Company Secretary	 Chief Financial Officer
Date: May 28, 2016
Place: New Delhi

Cash Flow Statement 
For the year ended March 31, 2016
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1	 CORPORATE INFORMATION	

	 Aksh Optifibre Limited is a public Company domiciled in India and 
incorporated under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. 
Its shares are listed at The Bombay Stock Exchange Limited and 
The National Stock Exchange Limited in India. The Company is 
engaged in the manufacturing and selling of Optical Fibre, Optical 
Fibre Cable, Fibre Reinforced Plastic Rods and Impregnated Glass 
Roving Reinforcement, The Company caters to both domestic 
and international markets. The Company also provides the E 
Governance services,FTTH and Internet Protocol Television (IPTV) 
services in North India.	

2	 BASIS OF PREPARATION	

	 The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in 
accordance with the Generally Accepted Accounting Principles 
in India (Indian GAAP) to comply with the Accounting Standards 
notified under Companies Act, 2013.Additional disclosures 
specified in the Accounting Standards shall be made in the notes 
to accounts or by way of additional statement unless required to 
be disclosed on the face of the Financial Statements. Similarly, all 
other disclosures as required by the Companies Act, 2013 shall be 
made in the notes to accounts in addition to the requirements set 
out in this Schedule.	

2.1	 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 	

	 a)	 Use of Estimates	

		  The preparation of the financial statements is in conformity 
with the generally accepted accounting principles requires 
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect 
the reported amount of assets and liabilities and disclosure 
of contingent liabilities at the date of the financial statements 
and the reported amount of revenues and expenses during 
the reporting year. Difference between the actual result and 
estimates are recognized in the year in which the results are 
known/ materialized. 	

	 b)		 Fixed Assets	

		  i)	 Fixed Assets are stated at cost of acquisition less accu-
mulated depreciation and impairment. Cost includes 
any borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisi-
tion/ construction of fixed assets and bringing the assets 
to its working condition for its intended use. 	

		  ii)	 Exchange difference arising on account of liabilities in-
curred for acquisition or construction of Fixed Assets 
is adjusted in the carrying amount of related Fixed As-
sets. 	

	 c)	 Capital Work-in-Progress	

		  Advances paid towards the acquisition of fixed assets, costs 
of assets not ready for use before the year-end and expendi-
ture during construction period that is directly or indirectly 
related to construction, including borrowing costs are includ-
ed under Capital Work-in-Progress.	

	 d)		 Depreciation

		  “Depreciable amount for assets is the cost of an asset, or other 
amount substituted for cost, less its estimated residual value.  

Depreciation on tangible fixed assets has been provided on 
the straight-line method as per the useful life prescribed in 
Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013 except in respect of 
the following categories of assets, in whose case the life of 
the assets has been assessed as under based on technical 
advice, taking into account the nature of the asset, the es-
timated usage of the asset, the operating conditions of the 
asset, past history of replacement, anticipated technological 
changes, manufacturers warranties and maintenance sup-
port, etc.:”	

Particulars Useful life in 
years

Factory Buildings 28

Plant and equipment including Telecom 
Networking, Testing instrument, 
electriclal equipemtnts, Fork lift  and 
office equipment

20

Furniture and fixtures 15

Data Processing System 5

		  Leasehold land is amortized over the duration of the lease.

		  Intangible assets are amortized over their estimated useful 
life on straight line method.	

	 e)		I mpairment of Assets	

		  i)	T he carrying amounts of assets are reviewed at each bal-
ance sheet date if there is any indication of impairment 
based on internal/external factors. An impairment loss is 
recognized wherever the carrying amount of an asset ex-
ceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount 
is the greater of the asset’s net selling price and value 
in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future 
cash flows are discounted at their present value at the 
weighted average cost of capital.  	

		  ii)	 After impairment, depreciation is provided on the re-
vised carrying amount of the asset over its remaining 
useful life. 	

		  iii)	A  previously recognized impairment loss is increased or 
reversed depending on changes in circumstances. How-
ever, the carrying value after reversal is not increased 
beyond the carrying value that would have prevailed 
by charging usual depreciation if there was no impair-
ment.	

	 f)		I nvestments	

			I  nvestments that are readily realizable and intended to be 
held for not more than a year are classified as current invest-
ments. All other investments are classified as long-term in-
vestments. Long Term investments are stated at cost. Provi-
sion for diminution in the value of long- term investments 
is made only if such diminution is other than temporary. 
Current Investments are carried at the lower of cost and fair 
value and provisions are made to recognize the decline in the 
carrying value.	

Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2016
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	 g)		I nventories	

		  i)	 Raw materials, work-in-process, finished goods, trading 
stock, packing material and stores and spares parts are 
valued at the lower of cost and net realizable value ex-
cept scrap which is valued at net realizable value.	

		  ii)	 Cost of inventories of items that are not ordinarily inter-
changeable or are meant for specific projects is assigned 
by specific identification of their individual cost. Cost 
of other inventories is ascertained on the FIFO basis. In 
determining the cost of work-in-process and finished 
goods, fixed production overheads are allocated on the 
basis of normal capacity of production facilities.	

		  iii)	T he comparison of cost and realizable value is made on 
an item-by-item basis.	

		  iv)	 Net realizable value of work-in- process is determined 
on the basis of selling prices of related finished prod-
ucts.	

		  v)	R aw Material and other supplies held for use in produc-
tion of inventories are not written down below cost un-
less their prices have declined and it is estimated that 
the cost of related finished goods will exceed their net 
realizable value.	

	 h)	 Foreign Currency Transactions	

		  i)	 Foreign currency transactions are recorded in the report-
ing currency, by applying to the foreign currency amount 
the exchange rate between the reporting currency and 
the foreign currency at the date of transaction.	

		  ii)	 Foreign currency monetary items are reported using the 
closing rate. Non-monetary items which are carried in 
terms of historical cost denominated in a foreign curren-
cy are reported using the exchange rate at the date of 
the transaction; and non-monetary items which are car-
ried at fair value or other similar valuation denominated 
in a foreign currency are reported using the exchange 
rates that existed when the values were determined.  	

		  iii)	 Exchange differences arising on the settlement of mon-
etary items or on reporting Company’s monetary items 
at rates different from those at which they were initially 
recorded during the year, or reported in previous finan-
cial statements, are recognized as income or as expense 
in the year in which they arise.	

		  iv)	 The premium or discount arising at the inception of for-
ward exchange contracts is amortized as expense or in-
come over the life of the contract. Exchange differences 
on such contracts are recognized in the statement of 
profit & loss in the year in which exchange rate changes. 
Any profit or loss arising on cancellation or renewal of 
forward exchange contracts is recognized as income or 
expense for the year. None of the forward exchange con-
tracts are taken for trading or speculation purpose.	

	 i)		 Borrowing Costs	

		  Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, con-
struction or production of an asset that necessarily takes a 
substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or 
sale are capitalized as part of the cost of the respective asset. 

All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period they oc-
cur. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that 
Company incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds.	

	 j)		 Revenue Recognition	

		  Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that 
the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the rev-
enue can be readily measured.	

		  Sales of Goods and Services	

		  Revenue is recognized when the significant risks and rewards 
of ownership of the goods have been passed to the buyer 
(usually at the point of dispatch to customers).  Sales include 
excise duty, sale of scrap and net of sale tax and quantity dis-
count.  	

		  Income from services is recognized on the completion of 
services. Period based services are accounted for proportion-
ately over the period of service.	

		I  ncome from Interest 	

			  Revenue is recognized on a time proportion basis taking into 
account the amount outstanding and the rate applicable.	

			  Other Incomes 	

			  Other Incomes are accrued as earned except where the re-
ceipt of income is uncertain.	

	 k)		 Retirement and other Employee Benefits	

		  i)	 Retirement benefits in the form of Provident Fund are a 
defined contribution scheme and the contributions are 
charged to the statement of Profit and Loss for the year 
when the contributions to the respective funds are due. 
The Company has no other obligation other than the 
contribution payable.	

		  ii)	 Gratuity liability is a defined benefit obligation and is 
provided for on the basis of an actuarial valuation on 
Projected Unit Credit Method calculated at the end of 
each financial year.  The liability with regard to gratu-
ity in respect of any employee not covered under group 
gratuity scheme is provided on the basis of amount pay-
able to such employees as if they were to retire on the 
last day of financial year.	

		  iii)	 Compensated Absences liability is provided for based 
on actuarial valuation done as per Projected Unit Credit 
Method calculated at the end of each financial year. 	

		  iv)	 Actuarial gains/losses are immediately taken to profit 
and loss account and are not deferred. 	

	 l)		 Export Incentives	

			  Export Incentive in the form of advance licenses / credit 
earned under duty entitlement pass book scheme are treat-
ed as income in the year of export at the estimated realiz-
able value / actual credit earned on exports made during the 
year. 	

	 m)		T axes on Income   	

		  Tax expense comprises of current and deferred tax. Current 
income tax is determined as the amount of tax payable in 
respect of taxable income for the year based on provisions 
of Income Tax Act, 1961. Deferred income tax reflects the 
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impact of current year timing differences between taxable 
income and accounting income for the year and reversal of 
timing differences of earlier years.	

		  Deferred tax is measured based on the tax rates and the tax 
laws enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet 
date. Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are off-
set, if legally and enforceable right exist to set off current tax 
asset against current tax liabilities and the deferred tax as-
sets and deferred tax liabilities relate to the taxes on income 
levied by same governing taxation laws. Deferred tax assets 
are recognized only to the extent that there is reasonable 
certainty that sufficient future taxable income will be avail-
able against which such deferred tax assets can be realized. 
In case of unabsorbed depreciation and carry forward tax 
losses, all deferred tax assets are recognized only if there is 
virtual certainty supported by convincing evidence that they 
can be realized against future taxable profits.	

		A  t each balance sheet date the Company re-assesses unrec-
ognized deferred tax assets. It recognizes unrecognized de-
ferred tax assets to the extent that it has become reasonably 
certain or virtually certain, as the case may be that sufficient 
future taxable income will be available against which such 
deferred tax assets can be realized.	

		  The carrying amount of deferred tax assets are reviewed at 
each balance sheet date. The Company writes-down the car-
rying amount of a deferred tax asset to the extent that it is 
no longer reasonably certain or virtually certain, as the case 
may be, that sufficient future taxable income will be available 
against which deferred tax asset can be realized. Any such 
write-down is reversed to the extent that it becomes reason-
ably certain or virtually certain, as the case may be, that suf-
ficient future taxable income will be available.	

		  Minimum Alternative Tax (MAT) credit is recognized as an 
asset only when and to the extent there is convincing evi-
dence that the Company will pay normal income tax during 
the specified period. In the year in which the MAT credit be-
comes eligible to be recognized as an asset in accordance 
with the recommendations contained in Guidance Note is-
sued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India, the 
said asset is created by way of a credit to the statement of 
profit and loss and shown as MAT. The Company reviews the 
same at each balance sheet date and writes down the car-
rying amount of MAT Credit Entitlement to the extent there 
is no longer convincing evidence to the effect that Company 
will pay normal Income Tax during the specified period.	

	 n)		 Operating Leases 	

		  Assets given on operating leases are included in fixed as-
sets. Lease income is recognized in the statement of Profit 
and Loss on a straight-line basis over the lease term. Costs, 
including depreciation are recognized as an expense in the 
statement of Profit and Loss. Initial direct costs such as legal 
costs, brokerage costs, etc. are recognized immediately in the 
Profit and Loss Account.	

	 o)	E arnings Per Share	

		T  he Company reports basic and diluted earnings per share 
in accordance with Notified AS 20 under the Companies (Ac-

counting Standards) Rules, 2006 issued by The Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of India on ‘Earnings Per Share’. Basic 
earnings per share is computed by dividing the net profit or 
loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders after 
deducting attributable taxes by the weighted average num-
ber of equity shares outstanding during the period. Diluted 
earnings per share are computed by dividing the net profit or 
loss for the period by the weighted average number of equity 
shares outstanding during the period. Both profit for the year 
and weighted average numbers of shares are adjusted for the 
effects of all diluted potential equity shares except where the 
results are anti-dilutive.	

	 p)	 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets	

		  As per Notified AS 29 under the Companies (Accounting 
Standards) Rules, 2006, Provisions, Contingent Liabilities 
and Contingent Assets, issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India, the Company recognizes provisions 
(without discounting to its present value) only when it has 
a present obligation as a result of a past event, it is probable 
that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits 
will be required to settle the obligation as and when a reliable 
estimate of the amount of the obligation can be made.	

			  No provision is recognized for–

		  Any possible obligation that arises from past events and the 
existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence 
or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events 
not wholly within the control of the Company; or	

		  Any present obligation that arises from past events but is not 
recognized because –     	

		  • 	 It is not probable that an outflow of resources embody-
ing economic benefits will be required to settle the obli-
gation; or	

		  • 	 A reliable estimate of the amount of obligation cannot 
be made.	

		  Such obligations are disclosed as Contingent Liabilities. These 
are assessed continually and only that part of the obligation 
for which an outflow of resources embodying economic ben-
efits is probable, is provided for, except in the extremely rare 
circumstances where no reliable estimate can be made.	

	 q)	M iscellaneous Expenditure	

		  Expenditure on issue of shares / foreign currency convertible 
bonds (FCCBs) / Global Depository Receipts (GDRs) / shares 
under Qualified Institutional Placements (QIP) and premium 
on redemption of FCCBs are adjusted against Securities Pre-
mium account.	

	 r)	M easurement of EBITDA	

		  As permitted by the Guidance Note on the Revised Schedule 
III to the Companies Act, 2013, the Company has elected to 
present earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and amor-
tization (EBITDA) as a separate line item on the face of the 
statement of profit and loss. The Company measures EBITDA 
on the basis of profit/ (loss) from continuing operations. In its 
measurement, the Company does not include depreciation 
and amortization expense, finance costs and tax expense.	

Standalone.....
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Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2016
3.  Share capital	 Rs.in Lacs

Particulars 31-Mar-16 31-Mar-15

Authorized shares (No.)
170,100,000 (March 31, 2015:  170,100,000) Equity Shares of Rs.5/- each  8,505.00  8,505.00 
Issued, subscribed and fully paid-up shares (No.)
162,665,070 (March 31, 2015: 151,539,689) Equity Shares of Rs.5/- each fully paid up  8,133.25  7,576.98 

 8,133.25  7,576.98 

(a) Reconciliation of the shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period

Equity shares

Particulars As at 31-Mar-16 As at 31-Mar-15 

 No. of shares Rs.in Lacs  No. of shares Rs.in Lacs 

At the beginning of the year  151,539,689  7,576.98  148,564,989  7,428.25 
Add: 
  - Issued pursuant to conversion of FCCBs  11,125,381  556.27  2,974,700  148.73 
Outstanding at the end of the year  162,665,070  8,133.25  151,539,689  7,576.98 

Terms/ rights attached to equity shares

The Company has only one class of equity shares having par value of  Rs.5/- per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per 
share. The Company declares and pays dividends in Indian Rupees. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of 
the shareholders in ensuing Annual General Meeting.						    

In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company, after 
distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.	

(b)	 During the period of five years immediately preceeding to reporting date, the Company has not

	 (i) 	 issued any bonus shares						    

	 (ii) 	 issued shares for consideration other than cash						    

	 (iii) 	 Bought back any shares

(c) 	 Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company						    

Name of the shareholder
As at 31-Mar-16 As at 31-Mar-15 

 No. of shares %holding No. of shares %holding 

Dr Kailash S Choudhari  22,301,918 13.7%  25,842,700 17.1%
Usha Jain  20,451,606 12.6%  17,425,000 11.5%
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4.  Reserves and Surplus	 Rs.in Lacs

Particulars 31-Mar-16 31-Mar-15

Capital reserve  15.00  15.00 
Securities premium account
Balance as per the last financial statements  31,755.77  31,405.95 
Add/(Less) :
- Premium on conversion of FCCBs into Shares  1,308.34  349.82 
Closing Balance  33,064.11  31,755.77 
Surplus/ (deficit) in the statement of profit and loss
Balance as per the last financial statements  2.88  (3,199.34)
Profit for the year  3,351.88  3,210.92 
Proposed Dividend  -    (7.44)
Tax on Dividend  -    (1.26)
Net Surplus in the statement of profit and loss  3,354.76  2.88 

 36,433.87  31,773.65 

5.  Long-term borrowings	 Rs.in Lacs

Particulars Non-current Current

31-Mar-16 31-Mar-15 31-Mar-16 31-Mar-15

Term Loans
Secured Loans
External Commercial Borrowings 2,207.78  3,868.12  1,892.39  1,487.74 
USD 6.188 Mn (March 31, 2015 : USD 8.568 Mn)
Term Loan from Bank 405.68  166.67  193.71  166.67 
Term Loan from Others 1.51  9.66  8.15  8.25 
Unsecured Loans
Foreign Currency Convertible Bonds (FCCBs)
USD Nil Mn (March 31, 2015: USD 2.992 Mn) 0% FCCBs 
due on February, 2019 of  USD 1,000 each (unsecured)

-  1,870.30  -    -   

Term Loan from Others 35.96  63.29  57.48  63.08 
2,650.93  5,978.04  2,151.73  1,725.74 

The above amount includes
Secured borrowings 2,614.97  4,044.45  2,094.25  1,662.66 
Unsecured borrowings 35.96  1,933.59  57.48  63.08 
Amount disclosed under the head “other current liabilities” 
(refer note no. 11)

 (2,151.73)  (1,725.74)

2,650.93 5,978.04  -   -

1. 	 External Commercial Borrowings are secured by way of first pari- passu charge on the fixed assets of the Company and personal guarantee 
of Dr. Kailash S Choudhari.						    

2. 	 Term Loan from Punjab National Bank are secured by way of exclusive charge on Plant and Machinery installed under the project, second 
pari-passu charge on current assets, third pari-passu charge on fixed assets of the Company and further secured by personal guarantee of 
Dr. Kailash S Choudhari.						    

3. 	 Term Loan from HDFC Bank are secured by way of first pari-passu charge on fixed assets, second pari-passu charge on current assets of the 
Company and further secured by personal guarantee of Dr. Kailash S Choudhari.						    

4. 	 Term Loan from others are secured by way of exclusive charge on Fixed assets installed under the subject project.

5. 	 Issue of Foreign Currency Convertible Bonds (FCCBs) convertible into ordinary shares, the particulars, terms of issue and the status of 
conversion as at March 31, 2016 are given below:-	

Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2016

Standalone.....
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Issue 0% FCCBs (due February 2019)

Issued on February 10,2014

Issue Amount USD 3.792 Mn

Face Value USD 1000

Fixed Exchange Rate for conversion USD 1 = INR 62.32

Redeemable on February 10,2019

Redemption Percentage of the principal amount 120%

FCCBs converted USD 3.792 Million

Shares issued on conversion of FCCBs 14,100,081 shares

FCCBs outstanding as on March 31, 2016 Nil

Shares that could be issued on conversion of outstanding FCCBs Nil
					   

6. Deferred Tax Liabilities (net)	 Rs.in Lacs

Particulars 31-Mar-16 31-Mar-15

Deferred tax liability

Fixed assets: Impact of difference between tax depreciation and 
depreciation/ amortization charged for the financial reporting

 283.00  -   

Gross deferred tax liability  283.00  -   
Deferred tax asset
Disallowances under the Income Tax Act, 1961  49.00 

Gross deferred tax asset  49.00  -   

Deferred Tax Liabilities (net)  234.00  -   

7. Other non current liabilities	 Rs.in Lacs

Particulars 31-Mar-16 31-Mar-15

Trade payable  540.35  798.95 

(refer note no. 43 for details of dues to micro and small enterprises)

Interest accrued but not due on borrowings  103.90  -   
 644.25  798.95 

8. Long Term Provisions 	 Rs.in Lacs

Particulars 31-Mar-16 31-Mar-15

Provision for Gratuity and Compensated Absences  275.93  223.77 

 275.93  223.77 

Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2016
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9. Short-term borrowings 	 Rs.in Lacs

Particulars 31-Mar-16 31-Mar-15

Secured Loans

- Working Capital Facilities  2,821.44  2,870.85 
- Buyers Credit from Banks  521.73  632.81 
Unsecured Loans
Deposits
15% Inter Corporate Deposit from others repayable on demand   200.00  200.00 
Security Deposits  475.61  446.32 

 4,018.78  4,149.98 

The above amount includes:
Secured borrowings  3,343.17  3,503.66 
Unsecured Loans  675.61  646.32 

1. 	 Working capital facilities from banks are  secured  by  way  of  first pari-passu charge on Current Assets both present and future and second 
pari-passu charge on the fixed assets of the Company. These facilities are further secured by way of first pari-passu charge on the immovable 
properties of the Company and personal guarantee of Dr. Kailash S. Choudhari. The cash credit is repayable on demand. The cash credit 
carries interest in the range of 11.55% to 12.40 % p.a.		  				  

2. 	 Non fund based limits are secured by first pari-passu charge on immovable properties of the Company and personal guarantee of Dr. Kailash 
S. Choudhari.		  				  

10. Trade Payable	 Rs.in Lacs

Particulars 31-Mar-16 31-Mar-15

Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises  4.85  -   
Others  6,970.28  5,944.30 
(refer note no. 43 for details of dues to micro and small enterprises)

 6,975.13 5,944.30

11.  Other current liabilities 	 Rs.in Lacs

Particulars 31-Mar-16 31-Mar-15

Current maturities of long term debt (refer note no. 5)  2,151.73  1,725.74 
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 143.37  106.77 
Advance from Customers  114.07  70.20 
Unearned revenue  38.58  6.64 
Unclaimed Dividend #
Dividend 2006-07  -    1.01 
Dividend 2013-14  1.46  1.48 
Retention Money & Security Deposit  2.80  2.80 
Other current liabilities  935.20  1,397.87 

 3,387.21  3,312.51 

# Unclaimed dividend will be deposited in Investor Education and Protection Fund as and when due.

12. Short Term Provisions 	 Rs.in Lacs

Particulars 31-Mar-16 31-Mar-15

Provision for Gratuity and Compensated Absences  10.38  8.53 
Provision for Income Tax (net of Prepaid Taxes)  461.76  630.07 

 472.14  638.60 

Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2016

Standalone.....
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15. Non-current investments   	 Rs.in Lacs

Particulars 31-Mar-16 31-Mar-15

Trade investments (valued at cost unless stated otherwise)
Investment in subsidiaries
Unquoted equity instruments
586 (March 31, 2015: 586) equity share of Arab Emirates Dhiram 
(AED) 150,000 each fully paid-up in AOL FZE (Dubai)

 14,736.18  14,736.18 

225,950,000 (March 31, 2015: 225,950,000) Equity Shares of 
Rs.5/- each fully paid-up in APAKSH Broadband Limited 

 11,297.50  11,297.50 

26,033.68  26,033.68 
Non-trade investments (valued at cost unless stated otherwise)

Government and trust securities (unquoted) 0.05 0.05 
National Saving Certificates (Deposited with Government Department as Security)

0.05 0.05 
26,033.73 26,033.73 

Aggregate amount of unquoted investments  26,033.73  26,033.73 

16. Long Term loans and advances  (Unsecured, considered good unless stated otherwise)	 Rs.in Lacs

Particulars 31-Mar-16 31-Mar-15

Capital advances  254.18  1.76 
Security deposit  108.14  86.52 
Income Tax Refund Due  52.81  53.63 

 415.13  141.91 

17.  Other non current assets  (Unsecured, considered good unless stated otherwise)	 Rs.in Lacs

Particulars 31-Mar-16 31-Mar-15

Non-Current Bank Balances (refer note no. 20) 2,171.55 1,561.05 
2,171.55 1,561.05 

18.  Inventories (valued at lower of cost and net realizable value) 	 Rs.in Lacs

Particulars 31-Mar-16 31-Mar-15

      i)    Finished Goods and Traded Goods  91.70  22.54 
      ii)    Raw Material  1,738.75  1,635.84 
     iii)    Semi Finished Goods  383.38  978.52 
     iv)   Stores, Spares and others  188.22  206.01 

 2,402.05  2,842.91 

19. Trade receivables (Unsecured, considered good unless stated otherwise)	 Rs.in Lacs

Particulars 31-Mar-16 31-Mar-15

Outstanding for a period exceeding six months from the date they are due for payment  2,648.35  2,163.60 
Other receivables  11,502.51  10,531.94 

 14,150.86  12,695.54 
Trade receivables includes :
Dues from subsidiaries (refer note no. 36)  1,709.87  1,589.83 

Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2016
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20. Cash and cash equivalents 	 Rs.in Lacs

Particulars 31-Mar-16 31-Mar-15

Cash and cash equivalents
Balances with banks:
– On current accounts  146.49  64.77 
– Deposits with original maturity of less than 12 months  161.00  320.00 
– On unpaid dividend account  1.46  2.49 
Cash on hand  7.91  6.41 

 316.86  393.67 
Other bank balances
 – Deposits with original maturity for more than 12 months  20.00  25.00 
 – Margin money deposit #  2,151.55  1,536.05 

 2,171.55  1,561.05 
Less : Amount disclosed under other non current assets (refer note no. 17)  2,171.55  1,561.05 

 -    -   
 316.86  393.67 

Cash and cash equivalents includes deposit maintained by the Company with banks which can be withdrawn by the Company at any point of time 
without prior notice or penalty of principal						    

# Margin money deposits with a carrying amount of Rs.2,151.55 (March 31, 2015: Rs.1,536.05 Lacs) are pledged with Banks for various Facilities.

21. Short term loans and advances  (Unsecured, considered good unless stated otherwise)	 Rs.in Lacs

Particulars 31-Mar-16 31-Mar-15

Security deposit  45.43  43.00 
Loan and advances to related parties  4,258.02  2,291.65 
Advances recoverable in cash or kind  1,025.56  1,585.26 
Other loans and advances

MAT Credit Entitlement  2,126.42  1,468.75 
Prepaid expenses  273.24  212.96 
Balances with statutory / government authorities  1,576.12  1,513.33 

 9,304.79  7,114.95 

22. Other current assets (Unsecured, considered good unless stated otherwise)	 Rs.in Lacs

Particulars 31-Mar-16 31-Mar-15

Interest accrued on fixed deposits  75.03  65.29 
Interest accrued on other deposits  131.90  82.65 

 206.93  147.94 

Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2016



Corporate Overview Statutory Reports Financial Statements

73We smarten up your life..
TM

23. Revenue from operations 	 Rs.in Lacs

Particulars 31-Mar-16 31-Mar-15

Revenue from operations
Sale of products
  - Finished goods  41,315.86  34,683.01 
  - Traded goods  380.56  762.03 
Sale of services  3,487.93  1,365.71 
Other operating revenue
  - Scrap sales  41.57  27.64 
  - Export Incentives  458.92  382.60 
  - Exchange Fluctuation  310.95  160.39 
  - Other operating revenue  173.28  10.96 
Revenue from operations (gross)  46,169.07  37,392.34 
Less: Excise duty #  2,692.60  2,562.42 
Revenue from Operations (net)  43,476.47  34,829.92 

# Excise duty on sales amounting to Rs.2,692.60 Lacs (March 31, 2015 : Rs.2,562.42 Lacs)  has been reduced from sales in statement of profit 
and loss and excise duty on increase/(decrease) in stock amounting to Rs.5.33 Lacs (March 31, 2015 : Rs.(38.72) Lacs) has been considered as 
(income)/expense in note no. 29 of financial statements.

Detail of products sold 	 Rs.in Lacs

Particulars 31-Mar-16 31-Mar-15

Finished goods
Optical Fibre and Optical Fibre Cables  30,566.61  23,358.96 
Fibre Reinforced Plastic Rod and Impregnated Glass Roving Reinforcement  10,749.25  11,324.05 

 41,315.86  34,683.01 
Traded goods
Telecom and electronic items  380.56  762.03 

 380.56  762.03 
Detail of services rendered
E-Governance activities 3038.41  1,227.16 
Network Errection, Installation and Commissioning 385.28  52.77 
Other (IPTV) 64.24  85.78 

 3,487.93  1,365.71 

24. Other income	 Rs.in Lacs

Particulars 31-Mar-16 31-Mar-15

Interest income 

  - on deposits  211.35 188.60
  - on advances to Related parties  69.70 161.35

  - on other advances  73.94 54.26
Other non-operating income  -   179.33

 354.99  583.54 

Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2016
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25. Cost of raw material and components consumed	 Rs.in Lacs

Particulars 31-Mar-16 31-Mar-15

Inventory at the beginning of the year  1,635.84  1,030.87 
Add: Purchases  25,184.23  21,487.98 

 26,820.07  22,518.85 

Less: inventory at the end of the year  1,738.75  1,635.84 
 Cost of raw material and components consumed  25,081.32  20,883.01 

Details of raw material and components consumed	 Rs.in Lacs

Particulars 31-Mar-16 31-Mar-15

Glass Fibre and Glass Preforms  13,139.51  9,983.94 
Resin such as (PVC, HDPE, Nylon, MB, LSZH, PBT, Nucrel, UV resin and Polyster)  6,891.47  7,740.96 
Others  5,050.34  3,158.11 

 25,081.32  20,883.01 

26. Purchase of traded goods	 Rs.in Lacs

Particulars 31-Mar-16 31-Mar-15

Telecom and electronic items  355.64  584.61 
 355.64  584.61 

27. (Increase)/ decrease in inventories	 Rs.in Lacs

Particulars 31-Mar-16 31-Mar-15

Inventories at the end of the year
Finished/Traded goods  91.70  22.54 
Semi Finished goods  383.38  978.52 

 475.08  1,001.06 
Inventories at the beginning of the year

Finished/traded goods  22.54  376.19 
Semi finished goods  978.52  834.50 

 1,001.06  1,210.69 
  (Increase)/decrease in inventories  525.98  209.63 

28. Employee benefits expense	 Rs.in Lacs

Particulars 31-Mar-16 31-Mar-15

Salaries, wages and bonus  1,796.56  1,458.51 
Contribution to provident and other funds  111.32  92.98 
Gratuity  57.67  38.15 
Staff welfare expenses  109.78  95.27 
Directors' Remuneration  34.42  151.59 

 2,109.75  1,836.50 
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29. Other expenses	 Rs.in Lacs

Particulars 31-Mar-16 31-Mar-15

Consumption of stores and spares  550.41  451.20 
Increase/(Decrease) in Excise Duty Provision on Stock  5.33  (38.72)
Power and Fuel  810.45  714.66 
Packing Material Consumed  1,771.17  1,899.96 
Repair and Maintenance

  -  Plant and Machinery  45.41  52.18 
  -  Buildings  35.98  21.35 
  -  Others  57.27  71.61 
Sub-contracting expenses  2,249.67  802.37 
Marketing  and Service Charges  423.67  578.60 
Freight and Cartage (Outward)  197.74  217.68 
Travelling and Conveyance  288.82  270.29 
CSR Expenditure  53.43  33.80 
Postage and Telephone  66.21  38.89 
Insurance  40.24  55.35 
Rent  111.85  100.46 
Professional and Legal Expenses  364.73  305.44 
Auditors' Remuneration  42.98  36.38 
Bank Charges (other than financing)  320.37  320.30 
Other Expenses  1,011.88  474.19 

 8,447.61  6,405.99 

Less : Transfer to Capital Asset/ Capital Work in Progress  53.35  9.55 
 8,394.26  6,396.44 

Detail of payment to auditor	 Rs.in Lacs

Particulars 31-Mar-16 31-Mar-15

As auditor:
Audit fee  30.00  26.00 
Tax audit fee  4.00  4.00 
In other capacity:
Taxation matters  1.50  3.50 
Other services (certification fees)  5.46  1.20 
Reimbursement of expenses  2.02  1.68 

 42.98  36.38 

30. Depreciation and amortization expense	 Rs.in Lacs

Particulars 31-Mar-16 31-Mar-15

Depreciation of Property, Plant and Equipment  1,632.93  1,444.47 
Amortization of intangible assets  239.51  186.41 

 1,872.44  1,630.88 

31. Finance costs	 Rs.in Lacs

Particulars 31-Mar-16 31-Mar-15

Interest on Cash Credit  360.54  358.33 
Interest Others  679.58  347.47 

 1,040.12  705.80 

Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2016
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32. Exceptional Item’s income / (expense)	 Rs.in Lacs

Particulars 31-Mar-16 31-Mar-15

Foreign Exchange Fluctuations  (267.55)  104.68 
Profit/(Loss) on sale of Investments  -    11.45 
Profit/(Loss) on sale of fixed assets  (1.16)  (0.62)
Balances written off  (460.55)  -   

 (729.26)  115.51 

33. Contingent Liabilities:					   

	 Liabilities through contingent are provided for, if there are reasonable prospects of their maturity. Other contingent liabilities except 
frivolous claims are disclosed.

a)	 Claims not acknowledged as debts	

Rs.in Lacs

S. No. Particulars 31-Mar-16 31-Mar-15

1 Sales Tax Matters  124.88  69.11 
2 Service Tax  232.89  231.17 
3 Excise / Custom Duty  555.08  559.63 
4 Stamp Duty  -    28.50 
5 Income Tax Matters  91.01  -   
6 Others  177.03  166.61 

b)	 Bank Guarantees, letters of credit  (Net of margin) issued by banks and outstanding as on the reporting date is Rs.2,965.83 Lacs (March 31, 
2015: Rs.1,940.99 Lacs)					   

c)	 Estimated amounts of contracts remaining to be executed on Capital Account (net of advances) is Rs.2,276.93 Lacs (March 31, 2015 : 
Rs.28.00 Lacs)					   

d)	 Corporate guarantee given by the Company in respect of Loans outstanding as on the reporting date is Rs.2,033.12 Lacs (March 31, 2015: 
Rs.2,376.07 Lacs).					   

e)	 Liabilities of Letter of credit bill discounted with bank of Rs.4,055.19 Lacs (March 31, 2015 : Rs.344.21 Lacs) has been netted off from trade 
receivables.					   

34. Employee Benefits:				  

	 The disclosures as per the Notified AS 15 under the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006 on “Employee Benefits”, are as 
follows:					   

	 a)	 The Company has classified various benefits provided to employees as under:

		  Defined Contribution Plans and amount recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss.

Rs.in Lacs

Particulars 31-Mar-16 31-Mar-15

Employer's Contribution to Provident Fund 108.38 89.20
Employer's Contribution to ESI 2.94 3.78

111.32 92.98
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b)	 Defined Benefit Plans

	 Gratuity and Compensated Absences – actuarial valuation done in accordance with the Accounting Standard -15 (Revised), details of the 
same are given:			   		

	 i)	 Summary of results					  
	 		  Change in present value of obligation	 Rs.in Lacs

S. No. Particulars

Year Ended 31-Mar-16 Year Ended 31-Mar-15

Gratuity Compensated 
Absences

Gratuity Compensated 
Absences

a) Present value of obligation as  at the beginning of the period                               170.89  61.41  148.16  54.86 
b) Acquisition adjustment                           -    -    -    -   
c) Interest cost                     13.24  4.76  12.59  4.66 
d) Past service cost  -    -    -    -   
e) Current service cost  25.41  12.39  20.21  10.22 
f) Curtailment cost/(Credit)  -    -    -    -   
g) Settlement cost/(Credit)  -    -    -    -   
h) Benefits paid  (15.38)  (18.30)  (20.51)  (8.94)
i) Actuarial (gain)/loss on obligation  24.24  7.65  10.44  0.61 
j) Present value of obligation as at the end of period  218.40  67.91  170.89  61.41 

Changes in the fair value of plan assets	 Rs.in Lacs

S. No. Particulars

Year Ended 31-Mar-16 Year Ended 31-Mar-15

Gratuity Compensated 
Absences

Gratuity Compensated 
Absences

a) Fair value of plan assets at  the beginning of the period                61.75  -    56.65  -   
b) Acquisition adjustment                           -    -    -    -   
c) Expected return on plan assets                     5.56  -    5.10  -   
d) Employer Contributions  2.13  -    -    -   
e) Benefits paid  -    -    -    -   
f) Actuarial gain/(loss) on plan  assets  (0.34)  -    -    -   
g) Fair value of plan assets at the end of the period  69.10  -    61.75  -   

Net liability recognized in balance sheet                   218.40  67.91  170.89  61.41 

Expense recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss	 Rs.in Lacs

S. No. Particulars

Year Ended 31-Mar-16 Year Ended 31-Mar-15

Gratuity Compensated 
Absences

Gratuity Compensated 
Absences

a) Current service cost                   25.41  12.39  20.21  10.22 
b) Past service cost                        - -  -    -   
c) Interest cost                     13.24  4.76  12.59  4.66 
d) Expected return on plan assets  (5.56)  -    (5.10)  -   
e) Curtailment cost / (Credit) - -  -    -   
f) Settlement cost / (Credit) - -  -    -   
g) Net actuarial (gain)/ loss recognized in the period  24.58  7.65  10.44  0.60 
h) Expenses recognized in the Statement of Profit and Losses  57.67  24.80  38.15  15.48 

Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2016
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	 ii)     Actuarial Assumptions	

S. No. Particulars

Year Ended 31-Mar-16 Year Ended 31-Mar-15

Gratuity 
(Funded)

Compensated 
Absences

Gratuity 
(Funded)

Compensated 
Absences

a) Discounting Rate 8.00% 8.00% 7.75% 7.75%
b) Future salary Increase 5.50% 5.50% 5.25% 5.25%
c) Expected Rate of return on plan assets 8.35% 0.00% 9.00% 0.00%

35.	 Detail of loans given, Investment made and guarantee given covered U/s 186 (4) of the Companies Act, 2013	

	 Investment made are given under respective head ( refer note no. 15)				  

	 Loans given by the Company at March 31, 2016
		  Rs.in Lacs

Particulars 31-Mar-16 31-Mar-15
Max. Balance 

during the year

AOL FZE (Dubai) 4,258.02 2,291.65 4,258.02

Corporate guarantee given by the Company in respect of Loans as at March 31, 2016		  Rs.in Lacs

Name of the Company 31-Mar-16 31-Mar-15

APAKSH Broadband Limited 582.03 582.03
AOL FZE (Dubai) 1,451.09 1,794.04

36	 Related Party Disclosures						    

	 Related party disclosures as required under Accounting Standard-18 on “Related Party Disclosures” issued by The Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India are as given below as on March 31, 2016:		 			 

a)	 Subsidiary Companies :					  

	  - APAKSH Broadband Limited					   

	  - AOL FZE (Dubai)					   

	  - AOL PROJECTS DMCC (Fellow Subsidiary)			   		

b)	 Individuals exercising significant influence and their relatives:					  

	  -  Dr. Kailash S. Choudhari					   

	  -  Dr. Rohan Choudhari (related till March 09, 2015)					   

c)	 Key Management personnel and their relatives:					   

	    - Mr. Chetan Choudhari (related till June 01, 2015)					   

	    - Mr. Satyendra Gupta (related w.e.f August 02, 2014)				  

	    - Mr. Gaurav Mehta (related w.e.f August 02, 2014)					   

d)	 Enterprise over which personnel referred in (b) and ( c) aforementioned exercise significant influence :-				  
   - Mangal Chand Tubes Private Limited (related till June 01, 2015)
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	 Related Party Transactions	 Rs.in Lacs

S. No. Particulars
Subsidiaries Key 

Management 
Personnel

Others Total

1 Re-imbursement of expenses  89.17  -    -    89.17 
 44.94  -    -    44.94 

2 Interest income on Loan  69.70  -    -    69.70 
 161.35  -    -    161.35 

3 Remuneration Paid *  -    167.60  -    167.60 
 -    275.40  5.08  280.49 

4  Purchase / Services Received  53.16  -    3.39  56.55 
 165.34  -    25.48  190.82 

5  Sale  168.46  -    -    168.46 
 31.65  -    -    31.65 

6  Advance Given  1,912.03  -    -    1,912.03 

 720.69  -    -    720.69 

7  Repayment of Advances  205.00  -    -    205.00 

 -    -    -    -   

8 Loan Taken  -    -    -    -   

 -    -    15.00  15.00 

9 Repayment of Loan  -    -    -    -   

 -    -    15.00  15.00 

10 Sitting Fees  -    -    1.80  1.80 

 -    -    0.95  0.95 

11 Conversion of Loan into Investments  -    -    -    -   

 7,133.37  -    -    7,133.37 

Balance due to/(from) as at March 31, 2016

1 Trade Receivables  (1,709.87)  -    -    (1,709.87)

 (1,589.83)  -    -    (1,589.83)

2 Loan and advances  (4,258.02)  -    -    (4,258.02)

 (2,291.65)  -    -    (2,291.65)

3 Trade and other Payables  -    6.27  -    6.27 

 -    7.34  1.56  8.90 

Figures in italic represents Previous Year 

*Not comparable with previous year

37.	 The Company has taken assets on cancellable operating lease, the future minimum lease payments in respect of which are as 
follows:-	 				  

Rs.in Lacs

Name of the Company 31-Mar-16 31-Mar-15

Not later than 1 year  54.01  81.91 
Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years  16.97  70.98 
Later than 5 years  -    -   

	 The Lease agreements provide for an option to the Company to renew the lease period. There are no exceptional/restrictive covenants 
in the lease agreements.					   

	 Lease rental expense in respect of operating leases is Rs.111.85 Lacs (March 31, 2015 : Rs.100.46 Lacs)	

Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2016

Standalone.....
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Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2016

38.	 Expenditure relating to corporate social responsibility as per section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with schedule VII	

Rs.in Lacs

Name of the Company 31-Mar-16 31-Mar-15

(a) Gross amount required to be spent during the year  52.89  40.17 

(b)	 Amount spent during the year ending March 31, 2016:		  Rs.in Lacs

Particulars
In cash

Yet to be paid in 
cash

Total

(i) Construction/Acquisition of any asset  -    -    -   
(ii) Purpose other than (i) above  53.43  -    53.43 

(c)	 Amount spent during the year ending March 31, 2015:			   Rs.in Lacs

Particulars
In cash

Yet to be paid in 
cash

Total

(i) Construction/Acquisition of any asset  -    -    -   
(ii) Purpose other than (i) above  33.80  -    33.80 

39.	 Exceptional items represents net foreign exchange gain / (loss) on translation of Foreign Exchange assets and liabilities other than 
operational of Rs.(267.55) Lacs (March 31, 2015: Rs.104.68 Lacs), profit/(loss) on sale of fixed assets and Investments of Rs.(1.16) Lacs 
(March 31, 2015: Rs.10.83 Lacs) and balances written of Rs.(460.55) Lacs (March 31, 2015 : Nil).

40.	 Basic and diluted earnings per share

S. No. Particulars 31-Mar-16 31-Mar-15

a. Net Profit for the year (Rs.in Lacs)  3,351.88  3,210.92 
b. Weighted Average  No of Equity   Shares used in computing 

Basic-Earning per Share (Nos.)
 156,916,562  150,685,485 

c. Impact of diluted instruments on Net Profit/(Loss) for the year  -    -   
d. Net Profit used for the computation of diluted earning per share (Rs.in Lacs)  3,351.88  3,210.92 
e. Weighted average number of equity shares from dilutive instruments (Nos.)  -    11,125,384 
f. Weighted Average  No of Equity Shares used in computing 

Diluted Earning per Share (Nos.)
 156,916,562  161,810,869 

g. Nominal Value of Equity Shares (Rs.)  5.00  5.00 
h. Basic-Earning Per Shares (Rs.)  2.14  2.13 
i. Diluted -Earning Per Share (Rs.)  2.14  1.98 

41.	 The Company has an investment of Rs.11,297.50 Lacs (March 31, 2015 : Rs.11,297.50 Lacs) in the equity shares and has outstanding dues 
of Rs.1,539.10 Lacs (March 31, 2015 : Rs.1,576.55 Lacs) (net of advances) from APAKSH Broadband Limited (APAKSH), subsidiary acquired as 
a result of the amalgamation of erstwhile Aksh Broadband Limited with the Company. APAKSH’s operations got suspended due to litigation 
by one of the shareholder of APAKSH. The Board of Directors has approved the merger of its subsidiary APAKSH with the Company subject 
to necessary statutory approvals and process to be finalised in due course with requisite agencies. Post merger synergies of APAKSH would 
be utilised to augment business domain of the Company. In view of this, no provision has been considered necessary in respect of the 
outstanding dues and investment at this stage.
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42	 Derivative Instruments:						    

	 Forward contracts outstanding as at the reporting date:	 Amount in Lacs

Particulars Currency 31-Mar-16 31-Mar-15

Forward contracts to sell USD  34.25  41.10 
EURO  1.00  2.50 

Forward contracts to buy USD  3.33  -   

Particulars of foreign currency receivable as at the reporting date:	 Amount in Lacs

S.No Particulars Currency 31-Mar-16 31-Mar-15

1 Export of goods USD  89.46  47.73 
EURO  6.65  5.35 

GBP  0.02  0.02 
RINGGIT  22.10  14.11 

2 Advance to Vendor USD  4.02  8.27 
EURO  1.71  0.30 

JPY  -    3.98 
GBP  0.94  0.01 

RINGGIT  0.89  0.20 
3 Loan and advances to related party USD  37.80  11.25 
4 Interest receivable on advances USD  26.46  25.41 

Particulars of foreign currency payable as at the reporting date:	 Amount in Lacs

S.No Particulars Currency 31-Mar-16 31-Mar-15

1 Import of goods and services USD  22.50  25.18 
EURO  9.81  11.49 

GBP  -    0.05 
2 Advance from customers USD  1.11  0.50 

EURO  0.71  -   

3 Buyer's Credit USD  7.87  10.12 
4 External Commercial Borrowing USD  61.88  85.68 
5 Foreign currency convertible bonds USD  -    29.92 

43	 There are no Micro and Small Enterprises, to whom the Company owes, which are outstanding for more than 45 days as at March 31, 
2016. This information as required to be disclosed under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 has been 
determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of information available with the Company.		

44	 During the year, Hon’ble High Court of Jaipur, Rajasthan admitted a winding up petition against the Company, being Corporate Guarantor 
for Rs.540.00 Lacs, for the alleged /disputed liability of its subsidiary, i.e. M/s APAksh Broadband Limited. Consequently, Company filed 
an appeal in Double Bench of Hon’ble High Court of Jaipur, Rajasthan, which has been admitted by Court and pending for adjudication. 

Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2016

Standalone.....
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45	 Segmental Reporting for the year ended March 31, 2016

	 Based on the guiding principles given in Accounting Standard AS-17, “Segment Reporting” issued by The Institute of Chartered Accountants 
of India, the Company’s business segments are Manufacturing, Services and Trading of goods. The information about business segments 
are given below:

Rs.in Lacs
Particulars Manufacturing Services Trading Total

2015-2016 2014-2015 2015-2016 2014-2015 2015-2016 2014-2015 2015-2016 2014-2015

1 Segment Revenue

External Turnover  39,605.80  32,708.51  3,490.11  1,359.38  380.56  762.03  43,476.47  34,829.92 

Inter Segment Turnover  83.90  9.55  -    -    -    -    -    -   

Total Revenue  39,689.70  32,718.06  3,490.11  1,359.38  380.56  762.03  43,476.47  34,829.92 

2 Segment Results before Interest and Taxes  5,691.11  4,207.12  (574.33)  (920.14)  20.30  181.20  5,137.08  3,468.18 

Less : Finance Cost  1,040.12  705.80 

Add : Interest Income  354.99  404.21 

Add : Exceptional Items  (729.26)  115.51 

Add/(Less): Unallocated (Expenses)/ Income  -    -   

Profit before Tax  3,722.69  3,282.10 

3 Other Information

Segment Assets  20,177.82  18,823.53  12,755.97  13,247.91  -    -    32,933.79  32,071.44 

Unallocated Assets  30,291.70  28,325.34 

Total Assets  20,177.82  18,823.53  12,755.97  13,247.91  -    -    63,225.49  60,396.78 

Segment Liabilities  11,392.91  11,531.48  7,031.46  9,514.67  -    -    18,424.37  21,046.15 

Share Capital and reserves  44,801.12  39,350.63 

Total Liabilities  11,392.91  11,531.48  7,031.46  9,514.67  -    -    63,225.49  60,396.78 

Capital Expenditure  390.20  39.41  245.69  73.83  -    -    635.89  113.24 

Depreciation and Amortization  462.64  380.43  1,409.80  1,250.45  -    -    1,872.44  1,630.88 

Note: Total Revenue is after elimination of inter segment turnover of Rs.83.90 Lacs  (March 31, 2015 : Rs.9.55 Lacs)

Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2016
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Particulars
31-Mar-16 31-Mar-15

Rs.In Lacs % Rs.In Lacs %

46 Value and percentage of Imported/Indigenous
Raw - Material Consumed
Imported  11,213.02 45%  8,732.33 42%
Indigenous  13,868.30 55%  12,150.68 58%

 25,081.32 100%  20,883.01 100%
47 Spare Parts and components Consumed

Imported 204.15 37%  127.55 28%
Indigenous 346.26 63%  323.65 72%

 550.41 100%  451.20 100%

48 Value of Imports on CIF Basis

Raw Material  10,715.92  9,144.23 

Spare Parts, Consumable and Packing Material  199.36  156.12 

Accessories  9.55  53.02 

Capital Goods  80.75  98.55 

49 Earning in Foreign Exchange on FOB Basis

Export of Goods and Services  17,465.46  11,792.40 

Interest  69.70  161.35 

50 Expenditure in foreign currency

Travelling Expense  17.27  38.98 

Sales Commission  293.71  153.47 

Interest and Bank Charges  424.61  239.98 

Dubai Branch Office Expenses  99.98  139.98 

Other Charges  54.34  58.22 

51 Previous year's figures have been regrouped, rearranged and reclassified to conform to those of current year's figures wherever 
necessary.
The accompanying notes (1-51) are an integral part of the financial statements

As per our report of even date		  For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 
For P. C. Bindal & Co.			 
Firm Registration Number: 003824N	 Satyendra Gupta	 Dr. Kailash S. Choudhari	
Chartered Accountants	 Deputy Managing Director	C hairman & Managing Director
	 DIN : 00035141	 DIN : 00023824
CA K. C. Gupta	
Partner		
Membership No.: 088638	 Gaurav Mehta  	 Pawan Kumar Gambhir
	 Chief - Corporate Affairs & Company Secretary	 Chief Financial Officer
Date: May 28, 2016
Place: New Delhi

Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2016

Standalone.....
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Report on the Consolidated Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements 
of AKSH OPTIFIBRE LIMITED (hereinafter referred to as “the  Company”)
and its subsidiaries (the Company and its subsidiaries together referred 
to as “the Aksh Group”) , which comprise of the Consolidated Balance 
Sheet as at March 31, 2016, the Consolidated Statement of Profit 
and Loss, the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement for the year then 
ended, and a summary of the significant accounting policies and other 
explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “the consolidated 
financial statements”).

Management’s Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial 
Statements.

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the 
preparation of these consolidated financial statements in terms of the 
requirements of the Companies Act, 2013 (hereinafter referred to as 
“the Act”)that give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial 
position, consolidated financial performance and consolidated cash 
flows of the Group in accordance with the accounting principles 
generally accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards 
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the 
Company(Accounts) Rules, 2014.  The respective Board of Directors of 
the Company included in the Group are responsible for maintenance 
of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of 
the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Group and for preventing and 
detecting frauds and other irregularities; the selection and application 
of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates 
that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation 
and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were 
operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of 
the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation 
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view 
and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error, which have been used for the purpose of preparation of these 
consolidated financial statements by the Board of Director of the 
Company.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated 
financial statements based on our audit. While conducting the audit, 
we have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting 
and auditing standards and matters which are required to be included 
in the audit report under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made 
there under. 

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing 
specified under Section 143(10) of the Act. Those Standards require 
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the 
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated 
financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence 
about the amounts and the disclosures in the consolidated financial 
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, 
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the 
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In 

making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal financial 
control relevant to the Company’s preparation of the consolidated 
financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design 
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances.  An audit 
also includes evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting policies 
used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by the 
Company’s Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of 
the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us and the audit 
evidence obtained by the other auditors referred to in the ‘Other 
Matters’ paragraph below, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for our audit opinion on the consolidated financial statements.

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the 
explanations given to us and based on the consideration of reports 
of other auditors’ on separate financial statement of the subsidiary, 
the aforesaid consolidated financial statements give the information 
required by the Act in the manner so required and give a true and fair 
view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted 
in India

i.	 in the case of the Consolidated Balance sheet, of the state of 
affairs of the Group as at March 31, 2016;

ii.	 in the case of the Consolidated Profit and Loss, of the Profit of the 
Group for the year ended on that date; and

iii.	 in the case of the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement, of the cash 
flow of the Group for the year ended on that date.

Other Matters

We did not audit the financial statements of one foreign subsidiary 
Company, whose financial statements reflect total assets of 
Rs.21,244.55 Lacs as at March 31, 2016, total revenues of Rs.1,623.17 
Lacs and net cash inflows/(outflows) amounting to Rs.(33.15) Lacs 
for the year ended on that date, as considered in the consolidated 
financial statements. These financial statements have been audited by 
other auditors’ whose report has been furnished by the management 
and our opinion of consolidated financial statements, in so far as it 
relates to the amounts and disclosure included in respect of subsidiary 
is based solely on the reports of the other auditor.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, and our report 
on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements below, is not modified in 
respect of the above matters with respect to our reliance on the work 
done and the reports of the other auditor.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report, to the extent 
applicable, that: 

(a) 	 We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations 
which to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for 
the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid consolidated financial 
statements.

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
TO THE MEMBERS OF AKSH OPTIFIBRE LIMITED
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(b)	 In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating 
to preparation of the consolidated financial statements have been 
kept so far as it appears from our examination of those books and 
the reports of the other auditors.

(c) 	T he consolidated balance sheet, the consolidated statement of 
profit and loss, and the consolidated cash flow statement dealt 
with by this Report are in agreement with the relevant books 
of account maintained for the purpose of preparation of the 
consolidated financial statements.

(d)	 In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements comply with 
the Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act 
as applicable.

(e)	 On the basis of the written representations received from the 
directors of the Company as on March 31, 2016 taken on record 
by the Board of Directors of the Company and the report of the 
statutory auditors of its subsidiary Companies incorporated in 
India, none of the Directors of the Group Companies incorporated 
in India is disqualified as on March 31, 2016 from being appointed 
as a Director of that Company in terms of Section 164(2) of the 
Act.

(f)	 With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls 
over financial reporting and the operating effectiveness of such 

controls; refer to our report in “Annexure A”, which is based on the 
Auditors’ Reports of the Company and its subsidiary Companies 
incorporated in India. Our report expresses an unmodified 
opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the 
internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company 
and its subsidiary Companies incorporated in India; and 

(g)	 With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditors’ 
Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit 
and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our 
information and according to the explanations given to us :

	 i.	 The consolidated financial statements disclose the impact of 
pending litigations on the consolidated financial position of 
the Group – Refer Note 27 to the consolidated financial state-
ments.

	 ii.	 The Company has made provisions in its consolidated finan-
cial statements, as required under the applicable law or ac-
counting standards, for material foreseeable losses on long 
term contracts including derivative contracts.: and

	 iii.	 There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required 
to be transferred, to the Investor Education and Protection 
Fund by the Holding Company and its subsidiary Company 
incorporated in India. 

For P.C. Bindal & Co.
Firm Registration Number: 003824N

Chartered Accountants

CA K.C. Gupta
	 Partner
Date: May 28, 2016	 Membership No 088638
Place: New Delhi

Consolidated.....
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Report on the Internal Financial Controls over financial reporting 
under Clause (i) of sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies 
Act, 2013 (‘the Act’)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial 
reporting of AKSH OPTIFIBRE LIMITED (‘the Holding Company’) 
and its subsidiary companies which incorporated in India as at 
March 31, 2016 , as of that date. In conjunction with our audit of 
the consolidated financial statements of the Company for the year 
ended and as on that date. 

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Respective Board of Directors of the Company and its 
subsidiary companies incorporated in India, are responsible for 
establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on 
the internal control over financial reporting criteria established 
by the Company and its subsidiary companies incorporated in 
India considering the essential components of internal control 
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls 
over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India (the ‘Guidance Note’). These responsibilities 
include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate 
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for 
ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including 
adherence to respective Company’s policies, the safeguarding of 
its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the 
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the 
timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required 
under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal 
financial controls over financial reporting based on our audit. We 
conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on 
Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the 
‘Guidance Note’) issued by ICAI and the Standards on Auditing, 
issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under Section 143(10) 
of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of 
internal financial controls, both issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note 
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and 
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether 
adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting 
was established and maintained and if such controls operated 
effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence 
about the adequacy of the internal financial controls system over 

financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit 
of internal financial controls over financial reporting included 
obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over 
financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness 
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating 
effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The 
procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, including 
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the 
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained and the 
audit evidence obtained by the other auditors of the subsidiary 
companies incorporated in India, in terms of their reports referred 
to in the Other Matter paragraph below, is sufficient and appropriate 
to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal 
financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a 
process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the 
reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial 
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally 
accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal financial 
control over financial reporting includes those policies and 
procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, 
in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions 
and dispositions of the assets of the Company; (2) provide 
reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary 
to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with 
generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and 
expenditures of the Company are being made only in accordance 
with authorizations of management and directors of the Company; 
and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or 
timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition 
of the Company’s assets that could have a material effect on the 
financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial 
Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over 
financial reporting, including the possibility of collusion or improper 
management override of controls, material misstatements due to 
error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections 
of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial 
reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal 
financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate 
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance 
with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

ANNEXURE”A” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
(Referred to in paragraph (f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our report of even date)
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Opinion

In our opinion to the best of our information and according to 
the explanations given to us, the Company and its subsidiary 
companies, incorporated in India, have, in all material respects, 
an adequate internal financial controls system over financial 
reporting and such internal financial controls over financial 

reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2016, based 
on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established 
by the Company and its subsidiary companies incorporated in India 
considering the essential components of internal control stated in 
the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over 
Financial Reporting issued by the ICAI.

For P.C. Bindal & Co.
Firm Registration Number: 003824N

Chartered Accountants

CA K.C. Gupta
	 Partner
Date: May 28, 2016	 Membership No 088638
Place: New Delhi

Consolidated.....
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Consolidated Balance Sheet
as at March 31, 2016

Rs.in Lacs

Particulars  Note 31-Mar-16 31-Mar-15
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Shareholders’ funds
Share capital 3 10,347.78 9,791.51
Reserves and surplus 4 35,674.25 31,062.32

46,022.03 40,853.83
Minority Interest 10.47 10.47
Non-current liabilities
Long-term borrowings 5 3,670.88 7,372.36

Deferred tax liabilities (net) 6 234.00  -   
Other non current liabilities 7 644.25 856.72
Long-term provisions 8 411.76 325.28

4,960.89 8,554.36
Current liabilities
Short-term borrowings 9 4,566.71 4,697.91
Trade payables 10

- Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises  4.85  -   
- Others 7,288.28 6,097.80

Other current liabilities 10 3,971.84 4,064.20
Short-term provisions 8 472.14 638.60

16,303.82 15,498.51
TOTAL 67,297.21 64,917.17
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Fixed assets
Property, Plant and Equipment 11  10,154.04  11,546.93 
Intangible assets 12  621.82  747.77 
Capital work-in-progress including intangible assets  15,077.86  14,653.71 

Non-current investments 13  0.05  0.05 
Long-term loans and advances 14  682.70  94.10 
Other non-current assets 15.2  2,174.74  1,582.19 

 28,711.21  28,624.75 
Current assets
Inventories 16  2,486.04  2,905.76 

Trade receivables 15.1  16,567.80  14,951.68 
Cash and cash equivalents 17  328.28  435.27 
Short-term loans and advances 14  18,996.95  17,851.77 
Other current assets 15.2  206.93  147.94 

 38,586.00  36,292.42 
TOTAL  67,297.21  64,917.17 
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
See accompanying Notes forming part of the Financial Statements

2.1
1-38

As per our report of even date		  For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 
For P. C. Bindal & Co.			 
Firm Registration Number: 003824N	 Satyendra Gupta	 Dr. Kailash S. Choudhari	
Chartered Accountants	 Deputy Managing Director	C hairman & Managing Director
	 DIN : 00035141	 DIN : 00023824
CA K. C. Gupta	
Partner		
Membership No.: 088638	 Gaurav Mehta  	 Pawan Kumar Gambhir
	 Chief - Corporate Affairs & Company Secretary	 Chief Financial Officer
Date: May 28, 2016
Place: New Delhi
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Rs.in Lacs

Particulars Note 31-Mar-16 31-Mar-15

Income

Revenue from operations (gross) 18  47,571.29  38,167.06 
Less: excise duty  2,692.60  2,562.42 
Revenue from operations (net)  44,878.69  35,604.64 
Other income 19  286.85  422.18 
Total revenue (I)  45,165.54  36,026.82 
Expenses
Cost of raw material and components consumed 20  25,769.41  21,112.85 
Purchase of traded goods 21  355.64  658.41 
(Increase)/ decrease in inventories of finished goods,
work-in-progress and traded goods

22  534.86  210.58 

Employee benefits expense 23  2,797.54  2,344.73 
Other expense 24  8,830.58  6,696.75 
Total expense (II)  38,288.03  31,023.32 
Earnings before interest ,depreciation &  amortization, 
exceptional items and tax (EBITDA), (I) – (II)

 6,877.51 5,003.50

Depreciation and amortization expense 25  2,061.20  1,721.14 
Finance costs 26  1,155.88  793.75 
Profit before exceptional items and tax  3,660.43  2,488.61 
Exceptional Item's income / (expense) 32  (729.26)  115.51 
Profit before tax 2,931.17  2,604.12 
Tax expenses
Income Tax  794.48  687.95 
Earlier Year Taxes  -    71.18 
Deferred Tax expense  234.00  -   
MAT Credit Entitlement  657.67  687.95 
Total tax expense  370.81  71.18 
Profit for the year  2,560.36  2,532.94 
Earnings per equity share
[nominal value of share Rs.5/- (March 31, 2015: Rs.5/-)]

34

Basic  1.63  1.68 
Diluted  1.63  1.57 
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
See accompanying Notes forming part of the Financial Statements

2.1
1-38

Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss
For the Year Ended March 31, 2016

As per our report of even date		  For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 
For P. C. Bindal & Co.			 
Firm Registration Number: 003824N	 Satyendra Gupta	 Dr. Kailash S. Choudhari	
Chartered Accountants	 Deputy Managing Director	C hairman & Managing Director
	 DIN : 00035141	 DIN : 00023824
CA K. C. Gupta	
Partner		
Membership No.: 088638	 Gaurav Mehta  	 Pawan Kumar Gambhir
	 Chief - Corporate Affairs & Company Secretary	 Chief Financial Officer
Date: May 28, 2016
Place: New Delhi
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Rs.in Lacs
Particulars 31-Mar-16 31-Mar-15
A. Cash flow from operating activities

Profit before tax  2,931.17  2,604.12 
Profit before tax  2,931.17  2,604.12 
Non-cash adjustment to reconcile profit before tax to net cash flows
      Depreciation/ amortization on continuing operation  2,061.20  1,721.14 
      Loss/ (profit) on sale of investments  -    (11.45)
      Loss/ (profit) on sale of fixed assets  1.16  0.62 
Foreign Currency Translation Reserve  743.23  298.82 
Finance costs  1,155.88  793.75 
Interest (income)  (285.29)  (242.85)
Operating profit before working capital changes  6,607.35  5,164.15 
Movements in working capital :
      Increase in trade and other payables  1,319.15  3,707.99 
      (Increase) in trade receivables  (1,616.00)  (5,804.69)
      Decrease / (increase) in inventories  419.72  (416.57)
      (Increase) in other receivables  (2,463.14)  804.96 
Cash generated from operations  4,267.08  3,455.84 
Direct taxes paid (net of refunds)  (962.79)  (531.52)
Net cash flow from operating activities (A)  3,304.29  2,924.32 

B. Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of fixed assets, including CWIP  (971.44)  (2,780.38)
Proceeds from sale of fixed assets  3.78  0.66 
Proceeds from sale of non-current investments  -    13.22 
Interest income  226.30  242.85 
Net cash flow (used in) / from  investing activities (B)  (741.36)  (2,523.65)

C. Cash flows from financing activities
(Repayment) of Long-term borrowings  (1,382.84)  (364.06)
Proceeds/(Repayment) of Short-term borrowings  (131.20)  1,558.18 
Proposed Dividend  -    (443.23)
Finance costs  (1,155.88)  (793.75)
Net cash flow (used in) in financing activities (C)  (2,669.92)  (42.86)
Net (decrease) / increase in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C)  (106.99)  357.81 
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year  435.27  77.46 
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year  328.28  435.27 
Components of cash and cash equivalents
Cash on hand  7.91  6.41 
With banks- on current account  157.91  106.37 
Deposits with original maturity of less than 12 months  161.00  320.00 
Unpaid dividend accounts  1.46  2.49 
Total cash and cash equivalents (refer note no. 17)  328.28  435.27 
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
The accompanying Notes (1-38) are an integral part of the Financial Statements

As per our report of even date		  For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 
For P. C. Bindal & Co.			 
Firm Registration Number: 003824N	 Satyendra Gupta	 Dr. Kailash S. Choudhari	
Chartered Accountants	 Deputy Managing Director	C hairman & Managing Director
	 DIN : 00035141	 DIN : 00023824
CA K. C. Gupta	
Partner		
Membership No.: 088638	 Gaurav Mehta  	 Pawan Kumar Gambhir
	 Chief - Corporate Affairs & Company Secretary	 Chief Financial Officer
Date: May 28, 2016
Place: New Delhi

Consolidated Cash Flow Statement 
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1	 CORPORATE INFORMATION		  		

	 Aksh Optifibre Limited is a public Company domiciled in India and 
incorporated under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. 
Its shares are listed at The Bombay Stock Exchange Limited and 
The National Stock Exchange Limited in India. The Company is 
engaged in the manufacturing and selling of Optical Fibre, Optical 
Fibre Cable, Fibre Reinforced Plastic Rods and Impregnated Glass 
Roving Reinforcement, The Company caters to both domestic and 
international markets. The Company also provides the E Governance 
services,FTTH and Internet Protocol Television (IPTV) services in 
North India.

2	 STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES TO THE 
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

	 The significant accounting policies adopted by Aksh Optifibre 
Limited (the Company) and its subsidiaries (hereinafter referred 
to as the “Group”) in respect of these Consolidated Financial 
Statements, are set out below. 

2.1	 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

	 a)	 BASIS OF PREPARATION				  

		  These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in 
accordance with the Generally Accepted Accounting Principles 
in India (Indian GAAP) to comply with the Accounting Standards 
notified under the Companies Act, 2013. Additional disclosures 
specified in the Accounting Standards shall be made in 
the notes to accounts or by way of additional statement 
unless required to be disclosed on the face of the Financial 
Statements. Similarly, all other disclosures as required by the 
Companies Act, 2013 shall be made in the notes to accounts 
in addition to the requirements set out in this Schedule. These 
consolidated financial statements are prepared under the 
historical cost convention on the accrual basis of accounting 
and in accordance with the reporting requirements of 
Accounting Standard - 21 ‘Consolidated Financial Statements’ 
issued by the ICAI.

	 b)	 Principles of Consolidation

		  These accounts represent consolidated accounts of the Group 
and its majority owned subsidiaries as follows:

Entity Country of 
Incorporation

Shareholding 
as at March 

31, 2016
APAKSH Broadband 
Limited (APAKSH)

India 99.92%

AOL FZE UAE 100%
AOL Projects DMCC 
subsidiary of AOL FZE

UAE 100%

	 c)	 Use of Estimates				  

		  The preparation of the financial statements in conformity 
with the generally accepted accounting principles requires 
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect 
the reported amount of assets and liabilities and disclosure 
of contingent liabilities at the date of the financial statements 
and the reported amount of revenues and expenses during 
the reporting year. Difference between the actual result and 
estimates are recognized in the year in which the results are 
known/materialized. 				  

	 d)		 Fixed Assets

		  i)	 Fixed Assets are stated at cost of acquisition less 
accumulated depreciation and impairment. Cost 
includes any borrowing costs directly attributable to the 
acquisition/ construction of fixed assets and bringing the 
assets to its working condition for its intended use.

		  ii)	 Exchange difference arising on account of liabilities 
incurred for acquisition or construction of Fixed Assets is 
adjusted in the carrying amount of related Fixed Assets.

	 e)	 Capital Work-in-Progress	 			 

		  Advances paid towards the acquisition of fixed assets, costs of 
assets not ready for use before the year-end and expenditure 
during construction period that is directly or indirectly related 
to construction, including borrowing costs are included under 
Capital Work-in-Progress.

	 f)	 Depreciation	 			 

		  Depreciable amount for assets is the cost of an asset, or other 
amount substituted for cost, less its estimated residual value.  
Depreciation on tangible fixed assets has been provided on 
the straight-line method as per the useful life prescribed in 
Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013 except in respect of 
the following categories of assets, in whose case the life of the 
assets has been assessed as under based on technical advice, 
taking into account the nature of the asset, the estimated 
usage of the asset, the operating conditions of the asset, past 
history of replacement, anticipated technological changes, 
manufacturers warranties and maintenance support, etc.:	

Particulars Useful life in 
years

Factory Buildings 28

Plant and equipment including Telecom 
Networking, Testing instrument, 
electriclal equipemtnts, Fork lift  and 
office equipment

20

Furniture and fixtures 15

Data Processing System 5

		  Leasehold land is amortized over the duration of the lease.

		  Intangible assets are amortized over their estimated useful life 
on straight line method.

	 g)	I mpairment of Assets				  

		  i)	T he carrying amounts of assets are reviewed at each 
balance sheet date if there is any indication of impairment 
based on internal/external factors. An impairment loss 
is recognized wherever the carrying amount of an asset 
exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount 
is the greater of the asset’s net selling price and value 
in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future 
cash flows are discounted at their present value at the 
weighted average cost of capital.

		  ii)	 After impairment, depreciation is provided on the revised 
carrying amount of the asset over its remaining useful 
life. 				  

		  iii)	A  previously recognized impairment loss is increased 
or reversed depending on changes in circumstances. 
However, the carrying value after reversal is not increased 
beyond the carrying value that would have prevailed by 
charging usual depreciation if there was no impairment.

	 h)	I nvestments

		I  nvestments that are readily realizable and intended to be held 
for not more than a year are classified as current investments. 
All other investments are classified as long-term investments. 
Long Term investments are stated at cost. Provision for 
diminution in the value of long-term investments is made 
only if such diminution is other than temporary. Current 
Investments are carried at the lower of cost and fair value and 
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provisions are made to recognize the decline in the carrying 
value.				  

	 i)	I nventories

		  i)	 Raw materials, work-in-process, finished goods, trading 
stock, packing material and stores and spares parts are 
valued at the lower of cost and net realizable value except 
scrap which is valued at net realizable value.

		  ii)	 Cost of inventories of items that are not ordinarily 
interchangeable or are meant for specific projects is 
assigned by specific identification of their individual cost. 
Cost of other inventories is ascertained on the FIFO basis. 
In determining the cost of work-in-process and finished 
goods, fixed production overheads are allocated on the 
basis of normal capacity of production facilities.

		  iii)	T he comparison of cost and realizable value is made on an 
item-by-item basis.

		  iv)	 Net realizable value of work-in-process is determined on 
the basis of selling prices of related finished products.

		  v)	 Raw Material and other supplies held for use in production 
of inventories are not written down below cost unless 
their prices have declined and it is estimated that cost 
of related finished goods will exceed their net realizable 
value.

	 j)	 Foreign Currency Transactions

		  i)	 Foreign currency transactions are recorded in the reporting 
currency, by applying to the foreign currency amount the 
exchange rate between the reporting currency and the 
foreign currency at the date of transaction.

		  ii)	 Foreign currency monetary items are reported using the 
closing rate. Non-monetary items which are carried in 
terms of historical cost denominated in a foreign currency 
are reported using the exchange rate at the date of the 
transaction; and non-monetary items which are carried 
at fair value or other similar valuation denominated in a 
foreign currency are reported using the exchange rates 
that existed when the values were determined.

		  iii)	 Exchange differences arising on the settlement of 
monetary items or on reporting Company’s monetary 
items at rates different from those at which they were 
initially recorded during the year, or reported in previous 
financial statements, are recognized as income or as 
expense in the year in which they arise.

		  iv)	 The premium or discount arising at the inception of 
forward exchange contracts is amortized as expense or 
income over the life of the contract. Exchange differences 
on such contracts are recognized in the statement of profit 
and loss in the year in which exchange rate changes. Any 
profit or loss arising on cancellation or renewal of forward 
exchange contracts is recognized as income or expense 
for the year. None of the forward exchange contracts are 
taken for trading or speculation purpose.

	 k)	 Borrowing Costs				  

		  Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, 
construction or production of an asset that necessarily takes a 
substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or 
sale are capitalized as part of the cost of the respective asset. 
All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period they 
occur. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that 
company incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds.

	 l)	 Revenue Recognition				  

		  Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the 

economic benefits will flow to the Company and the revenue 
can be readily measured.

		  Sales of Goods and Services				  

		  Revenue is recognized when the significant risks and rewards of 
ownership of the goods have been passed to the buyer (usually 
at the point of dispatch to customers).  Sales include excise 
duty, sale of scrap and net of sale tax and quantity discount.

		  Income from services is recognized on the completion 
of services. Period based services are accounted for 
proportionately over the period of service.

		I  ncome from Interest 				  

		  Revenue is recognized on a time proportion basis taking into 
account the amount outstanding and the rate applicable.

		  Other Incomes 				  

			  Other Incomes are accrued as earned except where the receipt 
of income is uncertain.

	 m)	 Retirement and other Employee Benefits

		  i)	 Retirement benefits in the form of Provident Fund are 
a defined contribution scheme and the contributions 
are charged to the Profit and Loss for the year when 
the contributions to the respective funds are due. 
The company has no other obligation other than the 
contribution payable.				  

		  ii)	 Gratuity liability is a defined benefit obligation and is 
provided for on the basis of an actuarial valuation on 
Projected Unit Credit Method calculated at the end of 
each financial year.  The liability with regard to gratuity in 
respect of any employee not covered under group gratuity 
scheme is provided on the basis of amount payable to 
such employees as if they were to retire on the last day of 
financial year.

		  iii)	 Leave Encashment liability is provided for based on 
actuarial valuation done as per Projected Unit Credit 
Method calculated at the end of each financial year.

		  iv)	 Actuarial gains/losses are immediately taken to the 
statement of profit and loss and are not deferred.

	 n)	 Export Incentives				  

		  Export Incentive in the form of advance licenses / credit earned 
under duty entitlement pass book scheme are treated as 
income in the year of export at the estimated realizable value / 
actual credit earned on exports made during the year.

	 o)	T axes on Income   				  
		  Income taxes are computed using the tax effect accounting 

method where taxes are accrued in the same period, as 
the related revenue and expenses to which they relate. The 
differences that result between profit offered for income 
tax and the profit before tax as per financial statements are 
identified and deferred tax assets or deferred tax liabilities 
are recorded for timing differences, namely differences that 
originate in one accounting period and are capable of reversal 
in future. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using 
tax rates and tax laws enacted or substantively enacted by the 
balance sheet date.				  

		  Deferred tax assets are recognized only if there is reasonable 
certainty that they will be realized. However, where the 
Company has unabsorbed depreciation or carried forward 
losses under taxation laws, a much stricter test, viz, virtual 
certainty of realization, is applied for recognition of deferred 
tax assets. Deferred tax assets are reviewed for the continuing 
appropriateness of their respective carrying values at each 
balance sheet date and written down or written up to reflect 
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the amount that is reasonably/ virtually certain (as the case 
may be) of realization.				  

		  Minimum Alternative Tax (MAT) credit is recognized as an 
asset only when and to the extent there is convincing evidence 
that the Company will pay normal income tax during the 
specified period. In the year in which the MAT credit becomes 
eligible to be recognized as an asset in accordance with the 
recommendations contained in Guidance Note issued by the 
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India, the said asset is 
created by way of a credit to the statement of profit and loss 
and shown as MAT Credit Entitlement. The Company reviews 
the same at each balance sheet date and writes down the 
carrying amount of MAT Credit Entitlement to the extent there 
is no longer convincing evidence to the effect that Company 
will pay normal Income Tax during the specified period.

	 p)	 Operating Leases 				  

		  Assets given on operating leases are included in fixed assets. 
Lease income is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss 
on a straight-line basis over the lease term. Costs, including 
depreciation are recognized as an expense in the Statement of 
Profit and Loss. Initial direct costs such as legal costs, brokerage 
costs, etc. are recognized immediately in the Statement of 
Profit and Loss.

	 q)	E arnings Per Share				  

		  The Group reports basic and diluted earnings per share 
in accordance with Notified AS 20 under the Companies 
(Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006 issued by The Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of India on ‘Earnings Per Share’. Basic 
earnings per share is computed by dividing the net profit or 
loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders after 
deducting attributable taxes by the weighted average number 
of equity shares outstanding during the period. Diluted 
earnings per share are computed by dividing the net profit or 
loss for the period by the weighted aver-age number of equity 
shares outstanding during the period. Both profit for the year 
and weighted average numbers of shares are adjusted for the 
effects of all diluted potential equity shares except where the 
results are anti-dilutive.

	 r)	 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

		  As per Notified AS 29 under the Companies (Accounting 
Standards) Rules, 2006, Provisions, Contingent Liabilities 
and Contingent Assets, issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India, the Company recognizes provisions 
(without discounting to its present value) only when it has a 
present obligation as a result of a past event, it is probable 
that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits 
will be required to settle the obligation as and when a reliable 
estimate of the amount of the obligation can be made.

		  No provision is recognized for:		

		  Any possible obligation that arises from past events and the 
existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence 
or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not 
wholly within the control of the Company; or

		  Any present obligation that arises from past events but is not 
recognized because –

		  • 	 It is not probable that an outflow of resources embodying 
economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation; 
or

		  • 	 A reliable estimate of the amount of obligation cannot be 
made.

		  Such obligations are disclosed as Contingent Liabilities. These 
are assessed continually and only that part of the obligation for 
which an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits 
is probable, is provided for, except in the extremely rare 
circumstances where no reliable estimate can be made.

	 s)	 Project Development Expenditure

		  Expenses incurred relating to project prior to commencement 
of commercial production / start of the project is classified as 
Project Development Expenditure net of income earned during 
the project development stage.

	 t)	M iscellaneous Expenditure

		  Expenditure on issue of shares / foreign currency convertible 
bonds (FCCBs) / Global Depository Receipts (GDRs) / shares 
under Qualified Institutional Placements (QIP) and premium on 
redemption of FCCBs are adjusted against Securities Premium 
account.

	 u)	 Translation of Foreign Subsidiary

		  In case of foreign subsidiary, the revenue and expense 
transactions at the year end reflected in the Statement of 
Profit and Loss have been translated at the average exchange 
rates for the period to which the financial statements relate. 
The assets and liabilities, both monetary and non-monetary, 
have been translated at the closing exchange rate prevailing on 
the date of the Balance Sheet.

		  Exchange difference arising on the Company’s net investment 
in foreign subsidiary are accumulated in a foreign currency 
translation reserve until the disposal of such investment, at 
which time they are recognized as income and expense.

	 v)	M easurement of EBITDA				  

		  As permitted by the Guidance Note on the Revised Schedule 
VI to the Companies Act, 1956, the Company has elected 
to present earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and 
amortization (EBITDA) as a separate line item on the face of the 
Statement of Profit and Loss. The Company measures EBITDA 
on the basis of profit/ (loss) from continuing operations. In its 
measurement, the Company does not include depreciation 
and amortization expense, finance costs and tax expense.

	 w)	 Additional information, as required under Schedule III to the 
Companies Act 2013, “General instructions for the preparation 
of consoilidated financial statements” for financial year 2015-
16

S. 
No.

Name of the 
Enterprise

Net Assets, i.e., total 
assets minus total 

liabilities

Share in Profit or Loss

As % of con-
solidated 
net assets 

Amount  
(Rs.in 
Lacs)

As % of 
consolidated 
profit or loss 

Amount  
(Rs.in 
Lacs)

Parent
1 Aksh Optifibre 

Limited 
 96.84  44,567.12  130.91 3,351.58 

Subsidiaries
Indian

2 Apaksh Broadband 
Limited

 3.12  1,437.51  -   

Foreign
3 AOL FZE  (2.61)  (1,201.46)  (30.34)  (776.72)
4 AOL Projects DMCC  2.67  1,229.33  (0.57)  (14.50)

Minority Interests in 
subsidiaries

 (0.02)  (10.47)  -    -   

Total  100.00  46,022.03  100.00 2,560.36 
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3.  Share capital	 Rs.in Lacs

Particulars 31-Mar-16 31-Mar-15

Authorized shares (No.)
170,100,000 (March 31, 2015:  170,100,000) Equity Shares of Rs.5/- each  8,505.00  8,505.00 
Issued, subscribed and fully paid-up shares (No.)
162,665,070 (March 31, 2015:  151,539,689) Equity Shares of Rs.5/- each fully paid up  8,133.25  7,576.98 
Forfeited Shares in case of APAKSH Broadband Ltd.  2,214.53  2,214.53 
Total issued, subscribed and fully paid-up share capital  10,347.78  9,791.51 

(a) Reconciliation of the shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period

Equity shares

Particulars 31-Mar-016 31-Mar-15

 No. of shares Rs.in Lacs No. of shares Rs.in Lacs 

At the beginning of the year  151,539,689  7,576.98  148,564,989  7,428.25 
Add: 
  - Issued pursuant to conversion of FCCBs  11,125,381  556.27  2,974,700  148.73 
Outstanding at the end of the year  162,665,070  8,133.25  151,539,689  7,576.98 

Terms/ rights attached to equity shares

The Company has only one class of equity shares having par value of  Rs.5/- per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per 
share. The Company declares and pays dividends in Indian Rupees. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of 
the shareholders in ensuing Annual General Meeting.				  

In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company, after 
distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

(b)	 During the period of five years immediately preceeding to reporting date, the Company has not

	 (i) 	 issued any bonus shares						    

	 (ii) 	 issued shares for consideration other than cash						    

	 (iii) 	 Bought back any shares

(c) 	 Details of shareholders (as per register of shareholders) holding more than 5% shares in the Company

Name of the shareholder

31-Mar-16 31-Mar-15 

 No. of shares %holding  No. of shares %holding

Dr Kailash S Choudhari  22,301,918 13.7%  25,842,700 17.1%
Usha Jain  20,451,606 12.6%  17,425,000 11.5%

Notes to Consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2016
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4.  Reserves and Surplus	 Rs.in Lacs

31-Mar-16 31-Mar-15

Capital reserve  15.00  15.00 

Securities premium account
Balance as per the last financial statements  31,755.77  31,405.95 
Add :
- Premium on conversion of FCCB into Shares  1,308.34  349.82 
Closing Balance  33,064.11  31,755.77 
Foreign Currency Translation Reserve
Balance as per the last financial statements  155.07  (143.77)
Add: Created on translation and incorporation of non integral foreign subsidiaries  743.23  298.84 
Closing Balance  898.30  155.07 
Surplus/ (deficit) in the statement of profit and loss
Balance as per last financial statements  (863.52)  (3,387.76)
Profit for the year  2,560.36  2,532.94 
Proposed Dividend  -    (7.44)
Tax on dividend  -    (1.26)
Net Surplus / (Deficit) in the statement of profit and loss  1,696.84  (863.52)
Total reserves and surplus  35,674.25  31,062.32 

5.  Long-term borrowings	 Rs.in Lacs

Particulars Non-current Current

31-Mar-16 31-Mar-15 31-Mar-16 31-Mar-15

Secured Loans
Term Loans
External Commercial Borrowings  2,207.78  3,868.12  1,892.39  1,487.74 
6.188 Mn USD (March 31, 2015 : 8.568 Mn USD)  
Term Loan from Bank  1,404.85  1,529.68  643.67  589.92 
Term Loan from Others  1.51  9.66  8.15  8.25 
Car Loan from Banks  20.78  31.31  12.50  11.17 
Unsecured Loans
Foreign Currency Convertible Bonds (FCCBs)
Nil (March 31, 2015: 2.992 Mn USD)  0% FCCBs due on 
February, 2019 of  $ 1,000 each

 -    1,870.30  -    -   

Term Loan from Others  35.96  63.29  57.48  63.08 
 3,670.88  7,372.36  2,614.19  2,160.16 

The above amount includes
Secured borrowings  3,634.92  5,438.77  2,556.71  2,097.08 
Unsecured borrowings  35.96  1,933.59  57.48  63.08 
Amount disclosed under the head “other current liabilities” 
(refer note no. 10)

 -    -    (2,614.19)  (2,160.16)

Net amount  3,670.88  7,372.36  -    -   

1.	 External Commercial Borrowings are secured by way of first pari- passu charge on fixed assets of the Company and personal guarantee of 
Dr. Kailash S Choudhari				  

2. 	 Term Loan from Punjab National Bank are secured by way of exclusive charge on Plant and Machinery installed under the project, second 
pari-passu charge on current assets, third pari-passu charge on fixed assets of the Company and further secured by personal guarantee of 
Dr. Kailash S Choudhari.				  

3. 	 Term Loan from HDFC Bank are secured by way of first pari-passu charge on fixed assets, second pari-passu charge on current assets of the 
Company and further secured by personal guarantee of Dr. Kailash S Choudhari.				  

4. 	 Term loan from Bank of Baroda are secured by way of charge on fixed assets of AOL FZE, personal guarantee of Dr. Kailash S Choudhari and 
Corporate guarantee of the Company.				  

Notes to Consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2016
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5. 	 Car loan from Banks are secured against the hypothecation of Car.				  

6. 	 Term Loan from others are secured by way of exclusive charge on Fixed assets installed under the subject Project.

7. 	 Issue of Foreign Currency Convertible Bonds (FCCBs) convertible into ordinary shares, the particulars, terms of issue and the status of 
conversion as at March 31, 2016 are given below :-	

Issue 0% FCCBs (due February 2019)

Issued on February 10,2014

Issue Amount USD 3.792 Mn

Face Value USD 1000

Fixed Exchange Rate for conversion USD 1 = INR 62.32

Redeemable on February 10,2019

Redemption Percentage of the principal amount 120%

FCCBs converted USD 3.792 Mn

Shares issued on conversion of FCCBs 14,100,081 shares

FCCBs outstanding as on March 31, 2016 Nil

Shares that could be issued on conversion of outstanding FCCBs Nil
					   

6. Deferred Tax Liabilities (net)	 Rs.in Lacs

Particulars 31-Mar-16 31-Mar-15

Deferred tax liability

Fixed assets: Impact of difference between tax depreciation and depreciation/ amortization 
charged for the financial reporting

 283.00 -

Gross deferred tax liability  283.00  -   
Deferred tax asset
Disallowances under the Income Tax Act, 1961  49.00 -

Gross deferred tax asset  49.00  -   
Deferred Tax Liabilities (net)  234.00  -   

7. Other non current liabilities	 Rs.in Lacs

Particulars 31-Mar-16 31-Mar-15

Trade payable  540.35  856.72 

(refer note no. 35 for details of dues to micro and small enterprises)

Interest accrued but not due on borrowings  103.90  -   
 644.25  856.72 

8. Provisions	 Rs.in Lacs

Particulars Non-current Current

31-Mar-16 31-Mar-15 31-Mar-16 31-Mar-15

Provision for Gratuity and Compensated Absences  411.76  325.28  10.38  8.53 
Provision for Income Tax (net of Prepaid Taxes)  -    -    461.76  630.07 

411.76  325.28 472.14 638.60

Notes to Consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2016
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9. Short-term borrowings 	 Rs.in Lacs

Particulars 31-Mar-16 31-Mar-15

Secured Loans

      Working Capital Facilities from Banks

      -  Working Capital Facilities  2,821.44  2,870.85 
      -  Buyers Credit  521.73  632.81 
      Other Loans

      Cisco Systems Capital India Private Limited  497.93  497.93 
Unsecured Loans

         Deposits

         Inter Corporate Deposit repayable on demand   50.00  50.00 
         15% Inter Corporate Deposit from others repayable on demand   200.00  200.00 
         Security Deposits  475.61  446.32 

 4,566.71  4,697.91 

The above amount includes :

      Secured borrowings  3,841.10  4,001.59 
      Unsecured borrowings  725.61  696.32 

1. 	 Working capital facilities from banks are  secured  by  way  of  first pari-passu charge on Current Assets both present and future and second 
pari-passu charge on the fixed assets of the Company. These facilities are further secured by way of first pari-passu charge on the immovable 
properties of the Company and personal guarantee of Dr. Kailash S. Choudhari. The cash credit is repayable on demand. The cash credit 
carries interest in the range of 11.55% to 12.40 % p.a.				  

2. 	 Non fund based limits are secured by first pari-passu charge on immovable properties of the Company and personal guarantee of Dr. Kailash 
S. Choudhari.				  

3. 	 Loan from Cisco Systems Capital India Private Limited is secured against first and exclusive charge on plant and machinery of APAKSH 
Broadband Limited covered under loan agreement and corpoarte guarantee of Aksh Optifibre Limited.	

10. Other Current Liabilities	 Rs.in Lacs

Particulars 31-Mar-16 31-Mar-15

Trade payables (including acceptances)
Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises 4.85  -   
Others 7,288.28 6,097.80
(refer note no. 35 for details of dues to micro and small enterprises) 7,293.13 6,097.80
Other liabilities
Current maturities of long term debt (refer note no. 5) 2,614.19 2,160.16
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 149.04 112.45
Advance from Customers 114.07 70.20
Unearned revenue 38.58 6.64
Unclaimed Dividend #
      Dividend 2013-14 1.46 1.48
      Dividend 2006-07  -   1.01
Other current liabilities 1,054.50 1,712.26

3,971.84 4,064.20
11,264.97 10,162.00

 # Unclaimed dividend will be deposited in Investor Education and Protection Fund as and when due.

Notes to Consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2016

Consolidated.....
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13. Non-current investments	 Rs.in Lacs

Particulars 31-Mar-16 31-Mar-15

Trade investments (valued at cost unless stated otherwise)
Non-trade investments (valued at cost unless stated otherwise)
*Investment in equity instruments (Unquoted)
1 (March 31, 2015: 1) equity shares of  AED 3.67 (rounded off to AED 4) 
each fully paid-up in Eminent One Ventures Limited

 -   -

Government and trust securities (unquoted)
National Saving Certificates (Deposited with Government Department as Security) 0.05 0.05

 0.05  0.05 

Aggregate amount of unquoted investments  0.05  0.05 

* Investment made in Eminent One Ventures Limited by Rs.68 equivalent to 4 AED (March 31, 2015: Rs.68).	

14. Loans and advances  (Unsecured, considered good unless stated otherwise)	 Rs.in Lacs

Particulars Non-current Current

31-Mar-16 31-Mar-15 31-Mar-16 31-Mar-15

Capital advances  574.56  7.58  -    -   
Security deposit  108.14  86.52  45.70  63.47 
Advances recoverable in cash or kind  -    -    14,921.97  14,480.76 
Other loans and advances
Income Tax Refund  -    -    52.81  57.41 
Mat Credit Entitlement  -    -    2,126.42  1,468.75 
Prepaid expenses  -    -    273.93  215.04 
Balances with statutory / government authorities  -    -    1,576.12  1,566.34 

 -    -    4,029.28  3,307.55 
 682.70  94.10  18,996.95  17,851.77 

15.1. Trade receivables (Unsecured, considered good unless stated otherwise)	 Rs.in Lacs

Particulars 31-Mar-16 31-Mar-15

Outstanding for a period exceeding six months from the date they are due for payment  4,778.83  4,061.72 
Other receivables  11,788.97  10,889.96 

 16,567.80  14,951.68 

15.2. Other current assets (Unsecured, considered good unless stated otherwise)	 Rs.in Lacs

Particulars Non-current Current

31-Mar-16 31-Mar-15 31-Mar-16 31-Mar-15

Other bank balances (refer note no. 17)  2,174.74  1,582.19  -    -   
Interest accrued on fixed deposits  -    -    75.03  65.29 
Interest accrued on other deposits  -    -    131.90  82.65 

 -    -    206.93  147.94 
 2,174.74  1,582.19  206.93  147.94 

16. Inventories (valued at lower of cost and net realizable value)	 Rs.in Lacs

Particulars 31-Mar-16 31-Mar-15

       i)   Finished Goods and Traded Goods 91.70 22.54
      ii)   Raw Material 1,775.80 1,666.71
      iii)  Semi Finished Goods 406.48 1,010.50
      iv)  Stores, Spares and others 212.06 206.01

2,486.04 2,905.76

Consolidated.....
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17. Cash and cash equivalents	 Rs.in Lacs

Particulars Non-current Current

31-Mar-16 31-Mar-15 31-Mar-16 31-Mar-15

Cash and cash equivalents
Balances with banks:
– On current accounts  -   - 157.91 106.37
– Deposits with original maturity of less than 12 months  -   - 161.00  320.00 
– On unpaid dividend account  -   - 1.46 2.49
Cash on hand  -   - 7.91 6.41

 -    -   328.28 435.27
Other bank balances
 – Deposits with original maturity for more than 12 months  20.00  25.00 - -
 – Margin money deposit #  2,154.74  1,557.19  -    -   

 2,174.74  1,582.19  -    -   
Amount disclosed under non-current assets (refer note 15.2)  (2,174.74)  (1,582.19)  -    -   

 -    -    328.28  435.27 

Cash and cash equivalents includes deposits maintained by the Company with banks, which can be withdrawn by the Company at any point of 
time without prior notice or penalty on the principal.

# Margin money deposits with a carrying amount of Rs.2,154.74 Lacs  (March 31, 2015: Rs.1,557.19 Lacs) are pledged with Banks for various 
Facilities.

18. Revenue from operations	 Rs.in Lacs

Particulars 31-Mar-16 31-Mar-15

Revenue from operations
Sale of products
  - Finished goods  42,710.74  35,149.86 
  - Traded goods  380.56  927.76 
Sale of services  3,487.93  1,501.96 
Other operating revenue
  - Scrap sales  49.21  28.85 
  - Export Incentives  458.92  382.60 
  - Exchange Fluctuation  310.95  165.37 
  - Other operating revenue  172.98  10.66 
Revenue from operations (gross)  47,571.29  38,167.06 
Less: Excise duty #  2,692.60  2,562.42 
Revenue from operations (net)  44,878.69  35,604.64 

# Excise duty on sales amounting to Rs.2,692.60 Lacs (March 31, 2015 : Rs.2,562.42 Lacs)  has been reduced from sales in statement of profit 
and loss  and excise duty on increase/(decrease) in stock amounting to Rs.5.33 Lacs (March 31, 2015 : Rs.(38.72) Lacs) has been considered as 
(income)/expense in note 24 of financial statements.				  

Notes to Consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2016
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Detail of products sold 		  Rs.in Lacs 

Particulars 31-Mar-16 31-Mar-15

Finished goods
Optical Fibre and Optical Fibre Cables 30,566.61 23,358.96
Fibre Reinforced Plastic Rod and Impregnated Glass Roving Reinforcement 12,144.13 11,790.90

 42,710.74  35,149.86 
Traded goods
Telecom and electronic items 380.56 927.76

380.56 927.76
Detail of services rendered
E-Governance activities 3,038.41 1,227.17
Network Erection, Installation and Commissioning 385.28 52.76
other (IPTV ) 64.24 85.78
Consultancy Income  -   136.25

3,487.93 1,501.96

19. Other income 	 Rs.in Lacs

Particulars 31-Mar-16 31-Mar-15

Interest income

on deposits  211.35  188.60 
on other advances  73.94  54.25 
Other non-operating income  1.56  179.33 

 286.85  422.18 

20. Cost of raw material and components consumed	 Rs.in Lacs

Particulars 31-Mar-16 31-Mar-15

Inventory at the beginning of the year  1,666.71  1,030.87 
Add: Purchases  25,878.50  21,748.69 

 27,545.21  22,779.56 
Less: inventory at the end of the year  1,775.80  1,666.71 
Cost of raw material and components consumed  25,769.41  21,112.85 

Details of raw material and components consumed Rs.in Lacs

Particulars 31-Mar-16 31-Mar-15

Glass Fibre and Glass Preforms 13,827.60 10,393.66
Resin such as (PVC, HDPE, Nylon, MB, LSZH, PBT, Nucrel, UV resin and Polyester) 6,891.47 7,740.96
Others 5,050.34 2,978.23

25,769.41 21,112.85

21. Purchase of traded goods	 Rs.in Lacs

Particulars 31-Mar-16 31-Mar-15

Telecom and electronic items  355.64  658.41 
 355.64  658.41 

Notes to Consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2016

Consolidated.....
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22. (Increase)/ decrease in inventories	 Rs.in Lacs

Particulars 31-Mar-16 31-Mar-15

Inventories at the end of the year
Finished/Traded Goods  91.70  22.54 
Semi Finished Goods  406.48  1,010.50 

 498.18  1,033.04 
Inventories at the beginning of the year

Finished/Traded Goods  22.54  409.12 
Semi Finished Goods  1,010.50  834.50 

 1,033.04  1,243.62 
(Increase)/Decrease in Inventories 534.86 210.58

23. Employee benefits expense	 Rs.in Lacs

Particulars 31-Mar-16 31-Mar-15

Salaries, wages and bonus  2,384.33  1,942.94 
Contribution to provident and other funds  111.32  92.98 
Gratuity  83.43  40.36 
Staff welfare expenses  184.04  116.86 
Directors' Remuneration  34.42  151.59 

 2,797.54  2,344.73 

24. Other expenses		  Rs.in Lacs

Particulars 31-Mar-16 31-Mar-15

Consumption of stores and spares  572.75  474.58 
Increase/(Decrease) in Excise Duty Provision on Stock  5.33  (38.72)
Power and Fuel  886.74  748.16 
Packing Material Consumed  1,873.24  1,958.51 
Repair and Maintenance

  -  Plant and Machinery  49.92  53.93 
  -  Buildings  35.98  21.35 
  -  Others  70.87  79.11 
Sub-contracting expenses  2,249.67  802.37 
Marketing  and Service Charges  476.79  596.03 
Freight and Cartage (Outward)  225.37  237.67 
Travelling and Conveyance  298.38  303.89 
CSR Expenditure  53.43  33.80 
Postage and Telephone  72.31  42.56 
Insurance  47.39  61.27 
Rent  167.98  136.00 
Professional and Legal Expenses  368.81  315.75 
Auditors' Remuneration  46.01  39.21 
Bank Charges  344.94  328.18 
Other Expenses  1,038.02  512.65 

 8,883.93  6,706.30 

Less : Transfer to Capital Asset/ Capital Work in Progress  53.35  9.55 
 8,830.58  6,696.75 

Notes to Consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2016
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Detail of payment to auditor	 Rs.in Lacs

Particulars 31-Mar-16 31-Mar-15

As auditor:
Audit fee  33.03  28.83 
Tax audit fee  4.00  4.00 
In other capacity:
Taxation matters  1.50  3.50 
Other services (certification fees)  5.46  1.20 
Reimbursement of expenses  2.02  1.68 

 46.01  39.21 

25. Depreciation and amortization expense	 Rs.in Lacs

Particulars 31-Mar-16 31-Mar-15

Depreciation of Property, Plant and Equipment  1,821.69  1,534.73 
Amortization of intangible assets  239.51  186.41 

 2,061.20  1,721.14 

26. Finance costs	 Rs.in Lacs

Particulars 31-Mar-16 31-Mar-15

Interest on Cash Credit  360.54  358.32 
Interest  795.34  435.43 

 1,155.88  793.75 

27.  Contingent Liabilities:

	 Liabilities through contingent are provided for, if there are reasonable prospects of their maturity. Other contingent liabilities except 
frivolous claims are disclosed.		  			 

a)	 Claims not acknowledged as debts	 Rs.in Lacs

S. No. Particulars 31-Mar-16 31-Mar-15

1 VAT/Sales Tax Matters  124.88  387.78 
2 Service Tax  232.89  231.17 
3 Excise / Custom Duty  555.08  559.63 
4 Stamp Duty  -    28.50 
5 Income Tax matters  91.01  - 
6 Others  177.03  166.61 

	 b)	 Bank Guarantees, letters of credit  (Net of margin) issued by banks and outstanding as on the reporting date is Rs.2,965.83 Lacs (March 
31, 2015 : Rs.1,940.99 Lacs).					   

	 c)	 Estimated amounts of contracts remaining to be executed on Capital Account (net of advances) is Rs.5,673.64 Lacs (March 31, 2015 : 
Rs.30,291.28 Lacs).					   

	 d)	 Rs.350 Lacs (March 31, 2015 : Rs.350 Lacs) were demanded by M/s. Andhra Pradesh Technology Services Limited towards liquidated 
damages, not acknowledged as debt.					   

	 e)	 Rs.23.75 Lacs (March 31, 2015 : Rs.23.75 Lacs) claimed by M/s Broadband Net Inc towards supply of equipments, which were not 
approved and returned to the supplier. Case is under sub judice.					   

	 f)	 Liabilities of Letter of credit bill discounted with bank of Rs.4,055.19 Lacs (March 31, 2015 : Rs.344.21 Lacs) has been netted off from 
trade receivables.					   

28.	 With a view to have a global presence in telecom, the Company has incorporated a wholly owned subsidiary in Dubai, viz. “AOL FZE” 
for expansion of Companies businesses. The subsidiary Company has signed an agreement with Africa One, a Company which has been 
mandated to provide majority stake in Company, holding GSM licenses with spectrum in African continent for Broadband, IPTV and FTTH 
projects. In Compliance of the terms of the agreement, the subsidiary Company has advanced towards part consideration an amount 
aggregating Rs.11,900.82 Lacs ( equivalent to AED 660.06 Lacs)  (March 31, 2015 : 11,194.56 Lacs (equivalent to AED 660.06 Lacs)).

Notes to Consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2016
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29	 Related Party Disclosures					   
	 Related party disclosures as required under Accounting Standard - 18 on “Related Party Disclosures” issued by The Institute of Chartered 

Accountants of India are as given below as on March 31, 2016:					   

a)	 Individuals exercising significant influence and their relatives:					   
	  -  Dr. Kailash S. Choudhari					   
	  -  Dr. Rohan Choudhari (related till March 09, 2015)					   

b)	 Key Management personnel:					   
	    - Mr. Chetan Choudhari (related till June 01, 2015)					   
	    - Mr. Satyendra Gupta (related w.e.f August 02, 2014)					   
	    - Mr. Gaurav Mehta (related w.e.f August 02, 2014)						    

c)	 Enterprise over which personnel referred in (b) and (C) aforementioned exercise significant influence:-				  
   - Mangal Chand Tubes Private Limited (related till June 01, 2015)

	 Related Party Transactions	 Rs.in Lacs 

S. No. Particulars
Key Management 

Personnel
Others Total

1 Remuneration Paid* 661.67 - 661.67
710.83 - 710.83

2 Purchase - 3.39 3.39
- 25.48 25.48

3 Loan taken - - -
- 15.00 15.00

4 Repayment of loan - - -
- 15.00 15.00

5 Sitting Fees - 1.80 1.80
- 0.95 0.95

Balance due to/(from) as at March 31, 2016

Trade and other Payables  47.74  -    47.74 

 46.35  1.56  47.91 

Figures in italic represents Previous Year 

*Not comparable with previous year

30	 The Company has taken assets on cancellable operating lease, the future minimum lease payments in respect of which are as follows:

Rs.in Lacs

Name of the Company 31-Mar-16 31-Mar-15

Not later than 1 year  54.01  81.91 
Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years  16.97  70.98 
Later than 5 years  -    -   

The Lease agreements provide for an option to the Company to renew the lease period. There are no exceptional/restrictive 
covenants in the lease agreements.					  

Lease rental expense in respect of operating leases is Rs.167.98 Lacs (March 31, 2015 : Rs.136.00 Lacs)	

Notes to Consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2016
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31	 Expenditure relating to Corporate Social Responsibility as per Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Schedule VII:

Rs.in Lacs

Name of the Company 31-Mar-16 31-Mar-15

(a) Gross amount required to be spent during the year  52.89  40.17 

(b)	A mount spent during the year ending March 31, 2016:	 Rs.in Lacs

Particulars In cash Yet to be paid 
in cash

Total

(i) Construction/Acquisition of any asset  -    -    -   
(ii) On purpose other than (i) above  53.43  -    53.43 

(c)	A mount spent during the year ending March 31, 2015:	 Rs.in Lacs

Particulars
In cash

Yet to be paid 
in cash

Total

(i) Construction/Acquisition of any asset  -    -    -   
(ii) Purpose other than (i) above  33.80  -    33.80 

32	 Exceptional items represents net foreign exchange gain on translation of Foreign Exchange assets and liabilities other than operational of 
Rs.(267.55) Lacs (March 31, 2015: Rs.104.68 Lacs), profit/(loss) on sale of fixed assets & Investments of Rs.(1.16) Lacs (March 31, 2015: 
Rs.10.83 Lacs), balances written off of Rs.(460.55) Lacs (March 31, 2015: Nil).

33	 Segmental Reporting									       
	 Based on the guiding principles given in Accounting Standard AS-17, “Segment Reporting” issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants 

of India, the Company’s business segments are Manufacturing, Services and Trading of goods. The information about business segments 
are given below: 	

Rs.in Lacs
Particulars Manufacturing Services Trading Total

2015-2016 2014-2015 2015-2016 2014-2015 2015-2016 2014-2015 2015-2016 2014-2015

1 Segment Revenue

External Turnover  40,997.34  33,158.68  3,500.80  1,512.27  380.55  933.69  44,878.69  35,604.64 

Inter Segment Turnover  83.90  9.55  -    -    -    -    -    -   

Total Revenue  41,081.24  33,168.23  3,500.80  1,512.27  380.55  933.69  44,878.69  35,604.64 

2 Segment Results before Interest and Taxes  5,634.32  4,077.09  (1,109.10)  (829.48)  5.80  222.26  4,531.02  3,469.87 

Less : Finance Cost  1,155.88  793.75 

Add : Interest Income  285.29  242.85 

Add : Exceptional Items  (729.26)  115.51 

Add/(Less): Unallocated (Expenses)/ Income  -    (430.36)

Profit before Tax  2,931.17  2,604.12 

3 Other Information

Segment Assets  23,683.02  22,123.77  27,354.96  27,284.94  4,358.39  3,753.89  55,396.37  53,162.60 

Unallocated Assets  -    -    -    -    -    -    11,900.84  11,754.57 

Total Assets  23,683.02  22,123.77  27,354.96  27,284.94  4,358.39  3,753.89  67,297.21  64,917.17 

Segment Liabilities  13,228.27  13,487.57  7,612.06  10,155.59  190.38  409.71  21,030.71  24,052.87 

Share Capital & reserves  -    -    -    -    -    -    46,266.50  40,864.30 

Total Liabilities  13,228.27  13,487.57  7,612.06  10,155.59  190.38  409.71  67,297.21  64,917.17 

Capital Expenditure  456.92  2,669.02  514.52  73.82  -    37.54  971.44  2,780.38 

Depreciation and Amortization  646.66  469.44  1,409.89  1,250.53  4.65  1.17  2,061.20  1,721.14 

	N ote: Total Revenue is after elimination of inter segment turnover of Rs.83.90 Lacs (March 31, 2015 : Rs.9.55 Lacs)

Notes to Consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2016
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34   Basic and diluted earnings per share		

S. No. Particulars 31-Mar-16 31-Mar-15

a. Net Profit for the year (Rs.in Lacs)  2,560.36  2,532.94 
b. Weighted Average  No of Equity   Shares used in computing Basic-Earning per Share 

(Nos.)
 156,916,562  150,658,485 

c. Impact of diluted instruments on Net Profit for the year (Rs.in Lacs)  -    -   
d. Net Profit used for the computation of diluted earning per share (Rs.in Lacs)  2,560.36  2,532.94 
e. Weighted average number of equity shares from dilutive instruments (Nos.)  -    11,125,384 
f. Weighted Average  No of Equity   Shares used in computing Diluted Earning per 

Share (Nos.)
 156,916,562  161,783,869 

g. Nominal Value of Equity Shares (Rs.)  5.00  5.00 
h. Basic-Earning Per Shares (Rs.)  1.63  1.68 
i. Diluted -Earning Per Share (Rs.)  1.63  1.57 

35	 There are no Micro and Small Enterprises, to whom the Group owes any sum, which are outstanding for more than 45 days as at March 
31, 2016. This information as required to be disclosed under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 has been 
determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of information received from vendors. There are no Micro and Small 
Enterprises, to whom the Group owes any sum, which are outstanding for more than 45 days as at March 31, 2013. This information as 
required to be disclosed under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 has been determined to the extent such 
parties have been identified on the basis of information received from vendors.

36	 APAKSH is setting up a Broadband Project in the state of Andhra Pradesh. No Statement of Profit and Loss has been prepared in respect of 
the said project since the Company has not commenced revenue operations. The expenditure incurred during the period are classified as 
“Project Development Expenses” pending capitalization and will be apportioned to the assets on the completion of the project.

37	 During the year, Hon’ble High Court of Jaipur, Rajasthan admitted a winding up petition against the Company, being Corporate Guarantor 
for Rs.540.00 Lacs, for the alleged /disputed liability of its subsidiary, i.e. M/s APAKSH Broadband Limited. Consequently, Company filed an 
appeal in Double Bench of Hon’ble High Court of Jaipur, Rajasthan, which has been admitted by Court and pending for adjudication.

38	 Previous year’s figures have been reworked, regrouped, rearranged and reclassified to conform to those of current year’s figures wherever 
necessary. Previous year’s figures have been reworked, regrouped, rearranged and reclassified to conform to those of current year’s figures 
wherever necessary.						    

The accompanying Notes (1-38) are an integral part of the Consolidated Financial Statements.

As per our report of even date		  For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 
For P. C. Bindal & Co.			 
Firm Registration Number: 003824N	 Satyendra Gupta	 Dr. Kailash S. Choudhari	
Chartered Accountants	 Deputy Managing Director	C hairman & Managing Director
	 DIN : 00035141	 DIN : 00023824
CA K. C. Gupta	
Partner		
Membership No.: 088638	 Gaurav Mehta  	 Pawan Kumar Gambhir
	 Chief - Corporate Affairs & Company Secretary	 Chief Financial Officer
Date: May 28, 2016
Place: New Delhi
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Report on the Standalone Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying Standalone Financial 
Statements of AKSH OPTIFIBRE LIMITED (“the 
Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at  
March 31, 2015, the Statement of Profit and Loss, the 
Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended, and a 
summary of significant accounting policies and other 
explanatory information.

Management's Responsibility for the Standalone 
Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the 
matters in section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the 
Act”) with respect to the preparation of these Standalone 
Financial Statements that give a true and fair view of the 
financial position, financial performance and cash flows of 
the Company in accordance with the accounting principles 
generally accepted in India, including the Accounting 
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read 
with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. This 
responsibility also includes the maintenance of adequate 
accounting records in accordance with the provision of the 
Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for 
preventing and detecting the frauds and other 
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate 
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that 
are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation 
and maintenance of internal financial control, that were 
operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and 
completeness of the accounting records,  relevant to the 
preparation and presentation of the Financial Statements 
that give a true and fair view and are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these 
Standalone Financial Statements based on our audit. We 
have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the 
accounting and auditing standards and matter's which are 
required to be included in the audit report under the 
provisions of the Act and the Rules made there under.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards 
on Auditing specified under section 143(10) of the Act. 
Those Standards require that we comply with ethical 
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether the Financial 
Statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit 
evidence about the amounts and the disclosures in the 
Standalone Financial Statements. The procedures 
selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the 
Standalone Financial Statements, whether due to fraud or 
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor 
considers internal financial control relevant to the 
Company's preparation of the Standalone Financial 
Statements that give true and fair view in order to design 
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, 
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on whether 
the Company has in place an adequate internal financial 
controls system over financial reporting and the operating 
effectiveness of such controls. An audit also includes 
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used 
and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made 
by Company's Directors, as well as evaluating the overall 
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is 
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinion on the Standalone Financial Statements.

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and 
according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid 
Standalone Financial Statements, give the information 
required by the Act in the manner so required and give a 
true and fair view in conformity with the accounting 
principles generally accepted in India;

i) in the case of the Balance Sheet, of the state of 
affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2015;

ii) in the case of the Statement of Profit and Loss, of 
the profit for the year ended on that date; and

iii) in the case of the Cash Flow Statement, of the 
cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Report on other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) 
Order, 2015 (“the Order”) issued by the Central 
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of 
section 143 of the Act, we give in the Annexure a 
statement on the matters specified in the paragraph 3 
and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable. 

2. Further, as required by section 143(3) of the Act, we 
report that:

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF AKSH OPTIFIBRE LIMITED
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for P.C. BINDAL & CO. 
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No. 003824 N

CA .K.C. GUPTA
Partner

Membership No: 088638
Place : New Delhi
Date : May 30, 2015

a) We have sought and obtained all the information 
and explanations which to the best of our 
knowledge and belief were necessary for the 
purposes of our audit.

b) In our opinion proper books of account as 
required by law have been kept by the Company 
so far as appears from our examination of those 
books 

c)   The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and 
Loss, and Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this 
Report are in agreement with the books of 
account.

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Standalone 
Financial Statements comply with the Accounting 
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, 
read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) 
Rules, 2014.

e) On the basis of written representations received 
from the directors as on 31st March, 2015, taken 
on record by the Board of Directors, none of the 
directors is disqualified as on 31st March, 2015, 

from being appointed as a director in terms of 
Section 164(2) of the Act.

f) with respect to the other matters to be included in 
the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of 
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, 
in our opinion and to the best of our information 
and according to the explanations given to us: 

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of 
pending litigations on its financial position in 
its Standalone Financial Statements – Refer 
Note 25 to the Standalone Financial 
Statements.

ii. The Company did not have any long term 
contracts including derivative contracts for 
which there were any material foreseeable 
losses.

iii. There has been no delay in transferring 
amounts, required to be transferred, to the 
Investor Education and Protection Fund by 
the Company.
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As stated in Para 1 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory 
Requirements' in Our Auditors' report on even date, the 
following statement is based on the comment in the 
Auditors report on Standalone Financial Statement.

1 (a) The Company has maintained proper records 
showing full particulars including quantitative 
details and situation of fixed assets.

(b) According to the information and explanation 
given to us fixed assets except the assets 
installed at customer premises have been 
physically verified by the management during the 
year. No material discrepancies were noticed on 
such verification. In our opinion, frequency of 
physical verification of fixed assets is reasonable.

2 (a) During the year, The Inventory has been 
physically verified during the year by the 
management. In our opinion, the frequency of 
verification is reasonable.

(b) In our opinion and according to the information 
and explanation given to us. the procedures of 
physical verification of inventories followed by the 
management are reasonable and adequate in 
relation to the size of the Company and the nature 
of its business.

(c ) In our opinion and according to the information 
and explanation given to us and on the basis of 
our examination of the records, we are of the 
opinion that the Company is maintaining proper 
records of inventory. The discrepancies noticed 
on verification between the physical stocks and 
the book records were not material and have 
been properly dealt with in the book of accounts.

3 (a) The Company has granted unsecured loan to its 
subsidiaries, covered in the register maintained 
under Section 189 of Companies Act, 2013 (‘the 
Act’).

(b) In respect of loans granted to subsidiaries 
covered under section 189 of the Act, the terms of 
arrangement for payment of principal and interest 
are payable on demand. Accordingly, paragraph 
3(iii)(a) is not applicable to the Company.

(c) In respect of the aforesaid advances, as per the 

information made available to us, there is no 
overdue amount exceeding Rupees One Lac as 
at year end. 

4 In our opinion and according to the information and 
explanation given to us, there are adequate internal 
control procedures commensurate with the size of the 
Company and the nature of its business with regard to 
purchases of inventory, fixed assets and with regard to 
the sale of goods and services. During the course of 
our audit, we have not observed any major weakness 
in internal controls. 

5 In our opinion and according to the information and 
explanations given to us, the Company has not 
accepted any deposits from public to which the 
directives issued by Reserve Bank of India and 
provisions of sections 73 to 76 of the Companies Act, 
2013, including rules framed there under, apply. 
Further, no order has been passed by the Company 
Law Board or National Company Law Tribunal or 
Reserve Bank of India or any other tribunal.

6 We have broadly reviewed the books of account 
relating to materials, labour and other items of cost 
maintained by the Company pursuant to the Rules 
made by the Central Government for the maintenance 
of cost records under sub section (1) of section 148 the 
Companies, 2013 and we are of the opinion that prima 
facie the prescribed accounts and records have been 
made and maintained.

7  (a) According to the information and explanations 
given to us and according to the books and 
records produced before us, the Company is 
regular in depositing with appropriate authorities 
undisputed statutory dues including Provident 
Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income-Tax, 
Sales-Tax, Wealth Tax, Service Tax, Duty of 
Customs, Duty of Excise, Value Added Tax, Cess 
and Any Other Statutory Dues with the 
Appropriate Authority, as Applicable to it.

(b) According to the information and explanations 
given to us, there are no dues of Income Tax or 
Sales Tax or Wealth Tax or Service Tax or Duty of 
Customs or Duty of Excise or Value Added Tax or 
Cess which have not been deposited on account 
of any dispute except of the following amounts:-

ANNEXURE REFERRED TO IN OUR REPORT OF EVEN DATE
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(c) According to information and explanation 
given to us, Company has transferred to 
investor education and protection fund in 
accordance with the relevant provisions of 
the Companies Act, 1956 (1 of 1956) and 
rules made there under has been transferred 
to such fund within time

8 In our opinion, the accumulated losses of the 
Company are not equal to or more than fifty 

percent of its net worth as at year end and also 
the Company has neither incurred cash losses 
during the financial year covered by our audit nor 
in the immediately preceding financial year.

9 In our opinion and according to the information 
and explanations given to us, the Company has 
not defaulted in repayment of dues to a financial 
institution, bank or debenture holders.

10 According to the information and explanations 
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Name of the Statute Nature of Dues Disputed
amount amount is pending

(Rs. In lacs) relates
SALES TAX
Sales Tax Act Sales Tax Demand 41.63 2000-01 & Hon'ble High Court

Jaipur

Sales Tax Act MVAT Demand 7.85 2007-08 Joint Commissioner of Sales
Tax (Appeals), Mumbai

CUSTOM
Customs Act, 1962 Duty, Interest & 408.97 2005-06 & CESTAT

Penalty 2008-09

EXCISE
Central Excise Excise Duty, 84.38 2003-05 & CESTAT
Act, 1944 Interest & Penalty 2000-01

Central Excise Excise Duty 32.79 2011-12 Assistant Commissioner,
Act, 1944  Bhiwadi

Central Excise Excise Duty 22.35 2010-11 Commissioner (Appeals)
Act, 1944

SERVICE TAX
Finance Act, 1994 Service Tax 7.50 2004-05 Hon'ble High Court, Jaipur

Finance Act, 1994 Service Tax 0.54 2005-06 Commissioner of Central
Excise  (Appeals), Jaipur

Finance Act, 1994 Service Tax 0.42 2005-06 Deputy Commissioner

Finance Act, 1994 Service Tax 219.85 2004-06, CESTAT
& Interest  2009-10 &

2011-12

Finance Act, 1994 Service Tax 0.91 2010-11 Assistant Commissioner,
Bhiwadi

Finance Act, 1994 Service Tax 1.94 2014-15 Commissioner (Appeals)

PROVIDENT FUND
Provident Fund Act Provident Fund 7.60 2004-05 Hon'ble High Court, Jaipur

Period to which Forum where dispute 

2001-02



for P.C. BINDAL & CO. 
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No. 003824 N

CA .K.C. GUPTA
Partner

Membership No: 088638
Place : New Delhi
Date : May 30, 2015

given to us, the terms and condition on which 
Company has given the guarantee for loans 
taken by subsidiary from banks and financial 
institutions are not prejudicial to the interest of the 
Company.

11 In our opinion, and according to the information 
and explanations given to us, the term loans have 

been applied for the purposes for which they 
were raised.

12 According to the information and explanations 
given to us, no fraud on or by the Company has 
been noticed or reported during the course of our 
audit.
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BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2015
Notes 31-Mar-15 31-Mar-14

Rs. in lacs Rs. in lacs
Equity and liabilities
Shareholders' funds
Share capital 3 7,576.98  7,428.25 
Reserves and surplus 4 31,773.65  28,221.61 

39,350.63  35,649.86 
Non-current liabilities
Long-term borrowings 5 5,978.04  7,791.41 
Long-term provisions 6 223.77  197.49 

6,201.81  7,988.90 
Current liabilities
Short-term borrowings 7 4,149.98  2,591.80 
Trade payables 8 6,743.25  3,740.53 
Other current liabilities 8 3,312.51  2,796.64 
Short-term provisions 6 638.60  842.53 

14,844.34  9,971.50 
TOTAL 60,396.78  53,610.26 
Assets
Non-current assets
Fixed assets
Tangible assets 9 8,609.35 8,668.86
Intangible assets 10 747.78 765.39
Capital work-in-progress 107.95 1,549.77
Non-current investments 11 26,033.73 18,672.33
Long-term loans and advances 12 88.28 80.18
Other non-current assets 13.2 1,561.05 1,455.73

37,148.14 31,192.26
Current assets
Inventories 14 2,842.91 2,456.26
Trade receivables 13.1 12,695.54 6,785.54
Cash and cash equivalents 15 393.67 54.18
Short-term loans and advances 12 7,168.58 13,046.06
Other current assets 13.2 147.94 75.96

23,248.64 22,418.00
TOTAL 60,396.78 53,610.26
Summary of significant accounting policies 2.1
The accompanying notes (1-42) are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Dr. Kailash S. Choudhari

Chairman
 DIN. : 00023824 

Satyendra Gupta 
Executive Director

(Finance) & CFO 

Pawan Kumar Gambhir
Process Leader ( F & A) 



STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2015

Notes 31-Mar-15 31-Mar-14
Rs. in lacs Rs. in lacs

Income
Revenue from operations (gross) 16  37,392.34  22,882.34 
Less: excise duty  2,562.42  875.94 
Revenue from operations (net)  34,829.92  22,006.40 
Other income 17  583.54  742.06 
Total Revenue (I)  35,413.46  22,748.46 
Expenses
Cost of raw material and components consumed 18  20,883.01  13,261.21 
Purchase of traded goods 19  584.61  213.60 
(Increase)/ decrease in inventories of finished goods, 20  209.63  (652.73)
work-in-progress and traded goods
Employee benefits expense 21  1,836.50  1,519.47 
Other expense 22  6,076.14  4,306.68 
Total Expense (II)  29,589.89  18,648.23 
Earnings before interest , tax, depreciation & Amortization 5,823.57  4,100.23 
and exceptional items (EBITDA)  (I) – (II)  
Depreciation and amortization expense 23  1,630.88  1,499.38 
Finance costs 24  1,026.10  705.90 
Profit before exceptional items and tax  3,166.59  1,894.95 
Exceptional Items 31  115.51  706.60 
Profit before tax  3,282.10  2,601.55 
Tax expenses
Income Tax  687.95  520.51 
Earlier Year Taxes  71.18  -   
MAT Credit Entitlement  687.95  520.51 
Total tax expense  71.18  -   
Profit for the year  3,210.92  2,601.55 

Earnings per equity share  32
[nominal value of share Rs 5/- (March 31, 2014: Rs 5/-)]
Basic  2.18  1.75 
Diluted  2.03  1.60 
Summary of significant accounting policies 2.1
The accompanying notes (1-42) are an integral part of the financial statements.
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR 2014-15
31-Mar-15 31-Mar-14
Rs. in lacs  Rs. in lacs

A. Cash flow from operating activities
Profit before tax  3,282.10  2,601.55
Profit before tax  3,282.10  2,601.55
Non-cash adjustment to reconcile profit before tax to net cash flows

Depreciation/ amortization on continuing operation  1,630.88  1,499.38
Loss/ (profit) on sale of Investment  (11.45)  -
Loss/ (profit) on sale of fixed Assets  0.62  20.76  

Finance costs  1,026.10  705.90
Interest (income)  (404.21)  (739.00)
Operating profit before working capital changes  5,524.04  4,088.59
Movements in working capital :

Increase/ (decrease) in trade and other payables  3,843.09  338.42
Decrease / (increase) in trade receivables  (5,910.00)  (584.99)
Decrease / (increase) in inventories  (386.65)  (948.39)
Decrease / (increase) in other receivables  (1,509.72)  (1,427.55)

Cash generated from /(used in) operations  1,560.76  1,466.08
Direct taxes paid (net of TDS)  (531.52)  (150.08)
Net cash flow from/ (used in) operating activities (A)  1,029.24  1,316.00

B. Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of fixed assets, including CWIP  (113.24)  (1,497.78)
Net Proceeds from sale of fixed assets  0.66  18.26
Net Proceeds from sale of non-current investments  13.22  -  
Interest (income)  242.85  217.37
Net cash flow from/ (used in) investing activities (B)  143.49  (1,262.15)

C. Cash flows from financing activities
Expense on issue of FCCBs  -    (69.15)
Proceeds/(Repayment) of long-term borrowings  (922.09)  (834.57)
Proceeds/(Repayment) of Short-term borrowings  1,558.18  1,416.89
Dividend paid including tax  (443.23)  -
Finance costs  (1,026.10)  (705.90)
Net cash flow from/ (used in) in financing activities (C)  (833.24)  (192.73)
Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) 339.49 (138.88)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year  54.18  193.06
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year  393.67  54.18
Components of cash and cash equivalents
Cash on hand  6.41  5.38
With banks- on current account  64.77  47.79
Deposits with original maturity of less than 12 months  320.00  -
Unpaid dividend accounts  2.49  1.01
Total cash and cash equivalents (note 15)  393.67  54.18
Summary of significant accounting policies 2.1
The accompanying notes (1-42) are an integral part of the financial statements.
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1 CORPORATE INFORMATION

Aksh Optifibre Limited is a public Company domiciled 
in India and incorporated under the provisions of the 
Companies Act, 2013. Its shares are listed at The 
Bombay Stock Exchange Limited, The National Stock 
Exchange Limited in India and GDRs are listed at 
Luxembourg Stock Exchange. The Company is 
engaged in the manufacturing and selling of Optical 
Fibre, Optical Fibre Cable, Fibre Reinforced Plastic 
Rods and Impregnated Glass Roving Reinforcement, 
The Company caters to both domestic and 
international markets. The Company also provides the 
E Governance services,FTTH and Internet Protocol 
Television (IPTV) services in North India.

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION

The Financial Statements of the Company have been 
prepared in accordance with the Generally Accepted 
Accounting Principles in India (Indian GAAP) to 
comply with the Accounting Standards notified under 
Companies Act, 2013. Additional disclosures specified 
in the Accounting Standards shall be made in the 
notes to accounts or by way of additional statement 
unless required to be disclosed on the face of the 
Financial Statements. Similarly, all other disclosures 
as required by the Companies Act, 2013 shall be made 
in the notes to accounts in addition to the requirements 
set out in this Schedule.

2.1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

a) Use of Estimates

The preparation of the Financial Statements is in 
conformity with the generally accepted accounting 
principles requires management to make estimates 
and assumptions that affect the reported amount of 
assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent 
liabilities at the date of the Financial Statements and 
the reported amount of revenues and expenses during 
the reporting year. Difference between the actual 
result and estimates are recognized in the year in 
which the results are known/ materialized. 

b) Fixed Assets

i) Fixed Assets are stated at cost of acquisition less 
accumulated depreciation and impairment. Cost 
includes any borrowing costs directly attributable 
to the acquisition/ construction of fixed assets 
and bringing the assets to its working condition 
for its intended use. 

ii) Exchange difference arising on account of 
liabilities incurred for acquisition or construction 
of Fixed Assets is adjusted in the carrying amount 
of related Fixed Assets. 

c) Capital Work-in-Progress

Advances paid towards the acquisition of fixed assets, 
costs of assets not ready for use before the year-end 
and expenditure during construction period that is 
directly or indirectly related to construction, including 
borrowing costs are included under Capital Work-in-
Progress.

d) Depreciation

Depreciable amount for assets is the cost of an asset, 
or other amount substituted for cost, less its estimated 
residual value. 

Depreciation on tangible fixed assets has been 
provided on the straight-line method as per the useful 
life prescribed in Schedule II to the Companies Act, 
2013 except in respect of the following categories of 
assets, in whose case the life of the assets has been 
assessed as under based on technical advice, taking 
into account the nature of the asset, the estimated 
usage of the asset, the operating conditions of the 
asset, past history of replacement, anticipated 
technological changes, manufacturers warranties and 
maintenance support, etc.:

  Particulars Useful life
in years

  Factory Buildings 28

 20

  Furniture and Fixtures 15

  Data Processing System 5

Leasehold land is amortized over the duration of the lease.

Intangible Assets are amortized over their estimated 
useful life on straight line method.

e) Impairment of Assets

i) The carrying amounts of assets are reviewed at 
each balance sheet date if there is any indication 
of impairment based on internal/external factors. 
An impairment loss is recognized wherever the 
carrying amount of an asset exceeds its 
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is 
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the greater of the asset's net selling price and value 
in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated 
future cash flows are discounted at their present 
value at the weighted average cost of capital.

ii) After impairment, depreciation is provided on the 
revised carrying amount of the asset over its 
remaining useful life. 

iii) A previously recognized impairment loss is 
increased or reversed depending on changes in 
circumstances. However, the carrying value after 
reversal is not increased beyond the carrying 
value that would have prevailed by charging usual 
depreciation if there was no impairment.

f) Investments

Investments that are readily realizable and intended to 
be held for not more than a year are classified as 
current investments. All other investments are 
classified as long-term investments. Long Term 
investments are stated at cost. Provision for 
diminution in the value of long- term investments is 
made only if such diminution is other than temporary. 
Current Investments are carried at the lower of cost 
and fair value and provisions are made to recognize 
the decline in the carrying value.

g) Inventories

i) Raw materials, work-in-progress, finished goods, 
trading stock, packing material and stores and 
spares parts are valued at the lower of cost and 
net realizable value except scrap which is valued 
at net realizable value.

ii) Cost of inventories of items that are not ordinarily 
interchangeable or are meant for specific projects 
is assigned by specific identification of their 
individual cost. Cost of other inventories is 
ascertained on the FIFO basis. In determining the 
cost of work-in-progress and finished goods, 
fixed production overheads are allocated on the 
basis of normal capacity of production 
facilities.

iii) The comparison of cost and realizable value is 
made on an item-by-item basis.

iv) Net realizable value of work-in-progress is 
determined on the basis of selling prices of 
related finished products.

v) Raw Material and other supplies held for use in 

production of inventories are not written down 
below cost unless their prices have declined and it 
is estimated that the cost of related finished goods 
will exceed their net realizable value.

h) Foreign Currency Transactions

i) Foreign currency transactions are recorded in the 
reporting currency, by applying to the foreign 
currency amount the exchange rate between the 
reporting currency and the foreign currency at the 
date of transaction.

ii) Foreign currency monetary items are reported 
using the closing rate. Non-monetary items which 
are carried in terms of historical cost 
denominated in a foreign currency are reported 
using the exchange rate at the date of the 
transaction; and non-monetary items which are 
carried at fair value or other similar valuation 
denominated in a foreign currency are reported 
using the exchange rates that existed when the 
values were determined.  

iii) Exchange differences arising on the settlement of 
monetary items or on reporting Company's 
monetary items at rates different from those at 
which they were initially recorded during the year, 
or reported in previous financial statements, are 
recognized as income or as expense in the year in 
which they arise.

iv) The premium or discount arising at the inception 
of forward exchange contracts is amortized as 
expense or income over the life of the contract. 
Exchange differences on such contracts are 
recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss in 
the year in which exchange rate changes. Any 
profit or loss arising on cancellation or renewal of 
forward exchange contracts is recognized as 
income or expense for the year. None of the 
forward exchange contracts are taken for trading 
or speculation purpose.

i) Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, 
construction or production of an asset that necessarily 
takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its 
intended use or sale are capitalized as part of the cost of 
the respective asset. All other borrowing costs are 
expensed in the period they occur. Borrowing costs 
consist of interest and other costs that Company incurs 
in connection with the borrowing of funds.
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j) Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable 
that the economic benefits will flow to the Company 
and the revenue can be readily measured.

Sale of Goods and Services

Revenue is recognized when the significant risks and 
rewards of ownership of the goods have been passed 
to the buyer (usually at the point of dispatch to 
customers).  Sales include excise duty, sale of scrap 
and net of sale tax and quantity discount.  

Income from services is recognized on the completion 
of services. Period based services are accounted for 
proportionately over the period of service.

Income from Interest 

Revenue is recognized on a time proportion basis 
taking into account the amount outstanding and the 
rate applicable.

Other Incomes 

Other Incomes are accrued as earned except where 
the receipt of income is uncertain.

k) Retirement and other Employee Benefits

i) Retirement benefits in the form of Provident Fund 
are a defined contribution scheme and the 
contributions are charged to the Statement of 
Profit and Loss for the year when the 
contributions to the respective funds are due. The 
Company has no other obligation other than the 
contribution payable.

ii) Gratuity liability is a defined benefit obligation and 
is provided for on the basis of an actuarial 
valuation on Projected Unit Credit Method 
calculated at the end of each financial year.  The 
liability with regard to gratuity in respect of any 
employee not covered under group gratuity 
scheme is provided on the basis of amount 
payable to such employees as if they were to 
retire on the last day of financial year.

iii) Compensated Absences liability is provided for 
based on actuarial valuation done as per 
Projected Unit Credit Method calculated at the 
end of each financial year. 

iv) Actuarial gains/losses are immediately taken to 
Statement of Profit and Loss and are not 
deferred. 

l) Export Incentives

Export Incentive in the form of advance licenses / 
credit earned under duty entitlement pass book 
scheme are treated as income in the year of export at 
the estimated realizable value / actual credit earned on 
exports made during the year. 

m) Taxes on Income   

Tax expense comprises of current and Deferred Tax. 
Current Income Tax is determined as the amount of tax 
payable in respect of taxable income for the year 
based on provisions of Income Tax Act, 1961. 
Deferred Income Tax reflects the impact of current 
year timing differences between taxable income and 
accounting income for the year and reversal of timing 
differences of earlier years.

Deferred Tax is measured based on the tax rates and 
the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the 
balance sheet date. Deferred Tax Assets and Deferred 
Tax Liabilities are offset, if legally and enforceable right 
exist to set off Current Tax Asset against Current Tax 
Liabilities and the Deferred Tax Assets and Deferred 
Tax Liabilities relate to the taxes on income levied by 
same governing taxation laws. Deferred Tax Assets 
are recognized only to the extent that there is 
reasonable certainty that sufficient future taxable 
income will be available against which such deferred 
tax assets can be realized. In case of unabsorbed 
depreciation and carry forward tax losses, all deferred 
tax assets are recognized only if there is virtual 
certainty supported by convincing evidence that they 
can be realized against future taxable profits.

At each balance sheet date the Company re-assesses 
unrecognized Deferred Tax Assets. It recognizes 
unrecognized Deferred Tax Assets to the extent that it 
has become reasonably certain or virtually certain, as 
the case may be that sufficient future taxable income 
will be available against which such Deferred Tax 
Assets can be realized.

The carrying amount of Deferred Tax Assets are 
reviewed at each balance sheet date. The Company 
writes-down the carrying amount of a Deferred Tax 
Asset to the extent that it is no longer reasonably 
certain or virtually certain, as the case may be, that 
sufficient future taxable income will be available 
against which Deferred Tax Asset can be realized. Any 
such write-down is reversed to the extent that it 
becomes reasonably certain or virtually certain, as the 
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case may be, that sufficient future taxable income will 
be available.

Minimum Alternative Tax (MAT) credit is recognized as 
an asset only when and to the extent there is 
convincing evidence that the Company will pay 
Normal Income Tax during the specified period. In the 
year in which the MAT credit becomes eligible to be 
recognized as an asset in accordance with the 
recommendations contained in Guidance Note issued 
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India, the 
said asset is created by way of a credit to the 
Statement of Profit and Loss and shown as MAT. The 
Company reviews the same at each balance sheet 
date and writes down the carrying amount of MAT 
Credit Entitlement to the extent there is no longer 
convincing evidence to the effect that Company will 
pay Normal Income Tax during the specified period.

n) Operating Leases 

Assets given on operating leases are included in fixed 
assets. Lease income is recognized in the Statement 
of Profit and Loss on a straight-line basis over the 
lease term. Costs, including depreciation are 
recognized as an expense in the Statement of Profit 
and Loss. Initial direct costs such as legal costs, 
brokerage costs, etc. are recognized immediately in 
the Statement of Profit and Loss.

o) Earnings Per Share

The Company reports basic and diluted earnings per 
share in accordance with Notified AS 20 under the 
Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006 
issued by The Institute of Chartered Accountants of 
India on 'Earnings Per Share'. Basic earnings per 
share is computed by dividing the net profit or loss for 
the period attributable to equity shareholders after 
deducting attributable taxes by the weighted average 
number of equity shares outstanding during the 
period. Diluted earnings per share are computed by 
dividing the net profit or loss for the period by the 
weighted average number of equity shares 
outstanding during the period. Both profit for the year 
and weighted average numbers of shares are 
adjusted for the effects of all diluted potential equity 
shares except where the results are anti-dilutive.

p) Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and 
Contingent Assets

As per Notified AS 29 under the Companies 

(Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006, Provisions, 
Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets, issued 
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India, the 
Company recognizes provisions (without discounting to 
its present value) only when it has a present obligation 
as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of 
resources embodying economic benefits will be 
required to settle the obligation as and when a reliable 
estimate of the amount of the obligation can be made.

No provision is recognized for –

Any possible obligation that arises from past events 
and the existence of which will be confirmed only by 
the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more 
uncertain future events not wholly within the control of 
the Company; or

Any present obligation that arises from past events but 
is not recognized because –     

• It is not probable that an outflow of resources 
embodying economic benefits will be required to settle 
the obligation; or

• A reliable estimate of the amount of obligation cannot 
be made.

Such obligations are disclosed as Contingent Liabilities. 
These are assessed continually and only that part of the 
obligation for which an outflow of resources embodying 
economic benefits is probable, is provided for, except in 
the extremely rare circumstances where no reliable 
estimate can be made.

q) Miscellaneous Expenditure

Expenditure on issue of shares / Foreign Currency 
Convertible Bonds (FCCBs) / Global Depository Receipts 
(GDRs) / shares under Qualified Institutional Placements 
(QIP) and premium on redemption of FCCBs are adjusted 
against Securities Premium Account.

r) Measurement of EBITDA

As permitted by the Guidance Note on the Revised 
Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013, the 
Company has elected to present earnings before 
interest, tax, depreciation and amortization (EBITDA) 
as a separate line item on the face of the Statement of 
Profit and Loss. The Company measures EBITDA on 
the basis of profit/ (loss) from continuing operations. In 
its measurement, the Company does not include 
depreciation and amortization expense, finance costs 
and tax expense.
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Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2015

3. Share capital 

31-Mar-15 31-Mar-14
Rs. in lacs Rs. in lacs

Authorized shares (No.)
170,100,000 (31st March 2014:  170,100,000) Equity Shares of Rs.5/- each 8,505.00  8,505.00

Issued, subscribed and fully paid-up shares (No.)
151,539,689 (31st March 2014: 148,564,989) Equity 7,576.98  7,428.25 
Shares of Rs.5/- each fully paid up
Total issued, subscribed and fully paid-up share capital 7,576.98  7,428.25 

(a) Reconciliation of the shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period year.

Equity shares

31-Mar-15 31-Mar-14
No. Rs. in lacs No. Rs. in lacs

At the beginning of the year  148,564,989  7,428.25  148,564,989  7,428.25 
Add: 
  - Issued pursuant to conversion of FCCBs  2,974,700  148.73  -    -   
    Outstanding at the end of the year  151,539,689  7,576.98  148,564,989  7,428.25 

Terms/ rights attached to equity shares
The Company has only one class of equity shares having par value of  Rs 5/- per share. Each holder of equity shares is 
entitled to one vote per share. The Company declares and pays dividends in Indian Rupees. The dividend proposed by the 
Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in ensuing Annual General Meeting.

In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the 
Company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares 
held by the shareholders.

(b) During the period of five years immediately preceeding to reporting date, the Company has not
           (i) issued any bonus shares
           (ii) issued shares for consideration other than cash
           (iii) Bought back any shares

(c) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company

Name of the shareholder 31-Mar-15 31-Mar-14
No. %holding No.    %holding

Dr. Kailash S. Choudhari  25,842,700 17.05%  25,842,700 17.39%
Usha Jain  17,425,000 11.50%  -    -   
Sunidhi Capital Private Limited  7,338,671 4.84%  9,005,250 6.06%
Seema Choudhari  7,000,000 4.62%  7,809,341 5.26%
The Bank of New York, Mellon  1,375,000 0.91%  9,065,850 6.10%
Religare Finvest Limited  69,000 0.05%  20,851,807 14.04%
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4.  Reserves and surplus 

31-Mar-15 31-Mar-14
Rs. in lacs Rs. in lacs

Capital reserve 15.00  15.00 

Securities Premium Account
Balance as per the last Financial Statements 31,405.95  33,830.69 
Add/(Less) :
- Issue expenses on issue of FCCBs (USD 3.792 Million) -    (69.15)
- Premium On Redemption of FCCBs  -    (2,355.59)
- Premium on conversion of FCCBs into Shares 349.82  -   
Closing Balance 31,755.77  31,405.95 

Surplus/ (deficit) in the Statement of Profit and Loss
Balance as per last Financial Statements (3,199.34)  (5,366.36)
Profit for the year 3,210.92  2,601.55
Proposed Dividend (7.44)  (371.41)
Tax on Dividend (1.26)  (63.12)
Net Surplus/(Deficit) in the Statement of Profit and Loss 2.88  (3,199.34)
Total reserves and surplus 31,773.65  28,221.61 

5. Long-term borrowings

Non-current Current
31-Mar-15 31-Mar-14 31-Mar-15 31-Mar-14
Rs. in lacs Rs. in lacs Rs. in lacs Rs. in lacs

Term Loans
Secured Loans
External Commercial Borrowings  3,868.12  5,133.95  1,487.74  1,140.88 
USD 8.568 Million (31st March 2014 : USD 10.472 Million)
Term Loan from Bank  166.67  333.33  166.67  166.67 
Term Loan from Others  9.66  -    8.25  -   
Unsecured Loans
Foreign Currency Convertible Bonds (FCCBs)
USD 2.992 Mn (March 31, 2014: USD 3.792 Mn)  0% 1,870.30  2,272.17  -    -  
FCCBs due on Feb-2019  of  USD 1,000 each (unsecured)   
Term Loan from Others  63.29  51.96  63.08  25.47 

 5,978.04  7,791.41  1,725.74  1,333.02 
The above amount includes
Secured borrowings  4,044.45  5,467.28  1,662.66  1,307.55 
Unsecured borrowings  1,933.59  2,324.13  63.08  25.47 
Amount disclosed under the head “other current -    -    (1,725.74)  (1,333.02)
liabilities” (note 8)  

 5,978.04  7,791.41  -    -   
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a. External Commercial Borrowings are secured by way of first pari- passu charge on the fixed assets of the Company 
and personal guarantee of Dr. Kailash S. Choudhari.

b. Term Loan from Bank are secured by way of exclusive charge on Plant and Machinery installed under the project, 
second pari-passu charge on current assets, third pari-passu charge on fixed assets of the Company and further 
secured by personal guarantee of Dr. Kailash S. Choudhari.

c. Term Loan from others are secured by way of exclusive charge on Fixed assets installed under the subject project.
d. Issue of Foreign Currency Convertible Bonds (FCCBs) convertible into ordinary shares, the particulars, terms of issue 

and the status of conversion as at March 31, 2015 are given below :-

Issue 0% FCCBs (due February 2019)
Issued on February 10,2014
Issue Amount USD 3.792 Million
Face Value USD 1000
Fixed Exchange Rate for conversion USD 1= INR 62.32
Redeemable on February 10,2019
Redemption Percentage of the principal amount 120%
FCCBs converted USD 0.80 Million
Shares issued on conversion of FCCBs 2,974,700 shares
FCCBs outstanding as on March 31, 2015 USD 2.992 Million
Shares that could be issued on conversion of outstanding FCCBs 11,125,384 shares

6. Provisions 

Long-term Short-term
31-Mar-15 31-Mar-14 31-Mar-15 31-Mar-14
Rs. in lacs Rs. in lacs Rs. in lacs Rs. in lacs

Provision for Gratuity and Compensated Absences  223.77  197.49  8.53  5.53
Provision for Income Tax (net of Prepaid Taxes)  -    -    630.07  402.47
Proposed Dividend  -    -    -    371.41
Provision for Tax on Dividend  -    -    -    63.12

223.77  197.49  638.60  842.53

7.Short-term borrowings 

31-Mar-15 31-Mar-14
Rs. in lacs Rs. in lacs

Secured Loans
- Working Capital Facilities 2,870.85  1,511.03 
- Buyers Credit from Banks 632.81  488.58 

Unsecured Loans
Deposits (unsecured)
  15% Inter Corporate Deposit from others repayable on demand 200.00  200.00 
    0 % Security Deposits 446.32  392.19 

 4,149.98  2,591.80
The above amount includes
Secured borrowings 3,503.66  1,999.61 
Unsecured borrowings 646.32  592.19 

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2015
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a. Working capital facilities from banks are  secured  by  way  of  first pari-passu charge on Current Assets both present 
and future and second pari-passu charge on the fixed assets of the Company. These facilities are further secured by 
way of first pari-passu charge on the immovable properties of the Company and personal guarantee of Dr. Kailash S. 
Choudhari. The cash credit is repayable on demand. The interest payable on cash credit is 14.00% p.a.

b. Non fund based limits are secured by first pari-passu charge on immovable properties of the Company and personal 
guarantee of Dr. Kailash S. Choudhari.

8.Other current liabilities 

31-Mar-15 31-Mar-14
Rs. in lacs Rs. in lacs

Trade payables (including acceptances) 6,743.25 3,740.53

Other liabilities
Current maturities of long term debt (Refer Note No 5) 1,725.74  1,333.02 
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 106.77 120.03
Advance from Customers 70.20 93.40
Unearned revenue 6.64 6.06
Unclaimed Dividend #
Dividend 2006-07 1.01 1.01
Dividend 2013-14 1.48  -   
Retention Money & Security Deposit 2.80 2.30
Other current liabilities 1,397.87 1,240.82

3,312.51 2,796.64
 10,055.76 6,537.17

 # Unclaimed dividend will be deposited in Investor Education and Protection Fund as and when due.

Annual Report 2014-2015
74



N
o

te
s 

to
 F

in
an

ci
al

 S
ta

te
m

en
ts

 f
o

r 
th

e 
ye

ar
 e

n
d

ed
 M

ar
ch

 3
1,

 2
01

5

Annual Report 2014-2015
75



11.Non-current investments 

31-Mar-15 31-Mar-14
Rs. in lacs Rs. in lacs

Trade investments (valued at cost unless stated otherwise)

Investment in subsidiaries
Unquoted equity instruments
586 (31st March 2014: 295) equity share of Arab Emirates 14,736.18  7,373.01 
Dirham (AED) 150,000 each fully paid-up in AOL FZE (Dubai)

225,950,000 (31st March 2014: 225,950,000) Equity Shares of Rs.5/- each 11,297.50  11,297.50 
fully paid-up in APAKSH Broadband Limited

26,033.68  18,670.51 
Non-trade investments (valued at cost unless stated otherwise)
Investment in equity instruments (quoted)
Nil (31st March 2014: 22,300) equity shares of  Rs. 10/- -    0.45 
each fully paid-up in CMI Limited  

Government and trust securities (unquoted)
National Saving Certificates (Deposited with 0.05  0.87 
Government Department as Security)
Kisan Vikas Patra  -    0.50 

 0.05  1.82 
 26,033.73  18,672.33 

Aggregate amount of quoted investments (Market
value: Nil (31.03. 2014: Rs 3.04 lacs)  -    0.45 
Aggregate amount of unquoted investments 26,033.73  18,671.88 

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2015
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12. Loans and advances  (Unsecured, considered good unless stated otherwise)
Non-current Current

31-Mar-15 31-Mar-14 31-Mar-15 31-Mar-14
Rs. in lacs Rs. in lacs Rs. in lacs Rs. in lacs

Capital advances  1.76  -    -    -   
Security deposit 86.52 80.18 43.00 44.32
Loan and advances to related parties - - 2,291.65 8,501.07
Advances recoverable in cash or kind  -    -   2,122.56 2,175.62

Other loans and advances
Income Tax Refund Due  -    - 53.63 57.64
MAT Credit Entitlement - - 1,468.75 756.02
Prepaid expenses  -    -   212.96 222.29
Balances with Statutory / Government Authorities  -    -   976.03 1,289.10

-    -   2,711.37 2,325.05
88.28 80.18 7,168.58 13,046.06
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13.Trade receivables and other assets 
13.1. Trade receivables

 Current
31-Mar-15 31-Mar-14
Rs. in lacs Rs. in lacs

Unsecured, considered good unless stated otherwise
Outstanding for a period exceeding six months from
the date they are due for payment

Other receivables 10,531.94  4,918.19 

 12,695.54  6,785.54 
13.2. Other assets

Non-current Current
31-Mar-15 31-Mar-14 31-Mar-15 31-Mar-14
Rs. in lacs Rs. in lacs Rs. in lacs Rs. in lacs

Unsecured, considered good unless stated otherwise
Non Current bank balances (note15)  1,561.05  1,455.73  -    -   

Interest accrued on fixed deposits  -    -    65.29  36.94 
Interest accrued on other deposits  -    -    82.65  39.02 

 -    -    147.94  75.96 
 1,561.05  1,455.73  147.94  75.96 

14.Inventories (valued at lower of cost and net realizable value) 

31-Mar-15 31-Mar-14
Rs. in lacs Rs. in lacs

i)    Finished Goods and Traded Goods 22.54 376.19
 ii)   Raw Material 1,635.84 1,030.87
iii)   Semi Finished Goods 978.52 834.50
iv)   Stores, Spares and others 206.01 214.70

2,842.91 2,456.26

2,163.60  1,867.35 
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15.Cash and cash equivalents

Non-current Current
31-Mar-15 31-Mar-14 31-Mar-15 31-Mar-14
Rs. in lacs Rs. in lacs Rs. in lacs Rs. in lacs

Cash and cash equivalents
Balances with banks:
– On current accounts  -    -    64.77  47.79 
– Deposits with original maturity of less than 12 months  -    -    320.00  -   
– On unpaid dividend account  -    -    2.49  1.01 
Cash on hand  -    -    6.41  5.38 

 -    -    393.67  54.18 
Other bank balances
 – Deposits with original maturity for more than 12 months  25.00  0.10  -    -   
 – Margin money deposit #  1,536.05  1,455.63  -    -   

 1,561.05  1,455.73  -    -   
Amount disclosed under other assets (note 13.2)  (1,561.05)  (1,455.73)  -    -   

 -    -    393.67  54.18 

Cash and cash equivalents includes deposit maintained by the Company with banks which can be withdrawn by the 
Company at any point of time without prior notice or penalty of principal.

# Margin money deposits with a carrying amount of Rs.1,536.05 lacs  (31.03.2014 Rs.1,455.63 lacs) are pledged with 
Banks for various Facilities.
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16. Revenue from operations 
31-Mar-15 31-Mar-14
Rs. in lacs Rs. in lacs

Revenue from operations
Sale of products

  - Finished goods  34,683.01  20,979.03 
  - Traded goods  762.03  301.32 

Sale of services  1,365.71  813.35 
Other operating revenue

  - Scrap sales  27.64  22.26 
  - Export Incentives  382.60  696.88 
  - Exchange Fluctuation  160.39  43.91 
  - Other operating revenue  10.96  25.59 

Revenue from operations (gross)  37,392.34  22,882.34 
Less: Excise duty #  2,562.42  875.94 
Revenue from operations (net)  34,829.92  22,006.40 

# Excise duty on sales amounting to Rs.2,562.42 lacs (31.03.2014 : Rs.875.94 lacs) has been reduced from sales in 
Statement of Profit and loss and Excise duty on increase/(decrease) in stock amounting to (Rs. 38.72) lacs (31.03.2014 : 
Rs.25.65 lacs) has been considered as (income)/expense in note 22 of financial statements.

Detail of products sold 
31-Mar-15 31-Mar-14
Rs. in lacs Rs. in lacs

Finished goods sold
Optical Fibre and Optical Fibre Cables  23,358.96  11,639.49 
Fibre Reinforced Plastic Rod and Impregnated Glass Roving Reinforcement  11,324.05  9,339.54 

 34,683.01  20,979.03 

Traded goods sold
Telecom and Electronic items  762.03  301.32 

 762.03  301.32 
Detail of services rendered

E-Governance activities 1227.16  447.11 
IPTV and VoIP 85.78  147.44 
Network Errection, Installation and Commissioning 52.77  218.80 

 1,365.71  813.35 
17.Other income

31-Mar-15 31-Mar-14
Rs. in lacs Rs. in lacs

Interest income 
-on deposits  188.60  170.13
-on advances to Related parties  161.35  521.63
-on other advances  54.26  47.24

Other non-operating income  179.33  3.06
 583.54  742.06
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18. Cost of raw material and components consumed

31-Mar-15 31-Mar-14
Rs. in lacs Rs. in lacs

Inventory at the beginning of the year  1,030.87  742.16 
Add: Purchases  21,487.98  13,549.92 

 22,518.85  14,292.08 
Less: inventory at the end of the year  1,635.84  1,030.87 
Cost of raw material and components consumed  20,883.01  13,261.21

Details of raw material and components consumed

31-Mar-15 31-Mar-14
Rs. in lacs Rs. in lacs

Glass Fibre and Glass Preforms  9,983.94  6,655.84 
Resin such as (PVC, HDPE, Nylon, MB, LSZH, PBT, Nucrel, UV resin and Polyster)  7,740.96  4,577.70 
Others  3,158.11  2,027.67 

 20,883.01  13,261.21 

19.Details of purchase of traded goods

31-Mar-15 31-Mar-14
Rs. in lacs Rs. in lacs

Telecom and electronic items  584.61  213.60 
 584.61  213.60 

20.(Increase)/ decrease in inventories

(Increase)/ 31-Mar-15 31-Mar-14
Decrease
Rs. in lacs Rs. in lacs Rs. in lacs

Inventories at the end of the year 31-Mar-15
Finished/Traded goods  353.65  22.54  376.19 
Semi Finished goods  (144.02)  978.52  834.50 

 209.63  1,001.06  1,210.69 

Inventories at the beginning of the year 31-Mar-14
Finished/Traded goods  (209.04)  376.19  167.15 
Semi Finished goods  (443.69)  834.50  390.81 

 (652.73)  1,210.69  557.96 

21.Employee benefits expense
31-Mar-15 31-Mar-14
Rs. in lacs Rs. in lacs

Salaries, wages and bonus  1,458.51  1,202.40 
Contribution to provident and other funds  92.98  86.72 
Gratuity  38.15  30.56 
Staff welfare expenses  95.27  84.20 
Directors' Remuneration  151.59  115.59 

 1,836.50  1,519.47
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22.Other expenses

31-Mar-15 31-Mar-14
Rs. in lacs Rs. in lacs

Consumption of stores and spares  451.20  358.71 
Sub-contracting expenses  802.37  508.14 
CSR Expenditure  33.80  -
Packing Material Consumed  1,899.96  1,058.97 
Increase/(Decrease) in Excise Duty Provision on Stock  (38.72)  25.65 
Power and Fuel  714.66  555.89 
Travelling and Conveyance  270.29  239.92 
Postage and Telephone  38.89  34.30 
Insurance  55.35  50.50 
Rent  100.46  99.13 
Professional and Legal Expenses  305.44  304.76 
Repair and Maintenance     
 -  Plant and Machinery  52.18  56.82 
 -  Buildings  21.35  51.98 
 -  Others  71.61  71.95 
Marketing and Service Charges  578.60  220.00 
Freight and Cartage (Outward)  217.68  267.66 
Auditors' Remuneration  36.38  28.30 
Other Expenses  474.19  392.60 

 6,085.69  4,325.28 
Less : Transfer to Capital Asset/ Capital Work in Progress  9.55  18.60 

 6,076.14  4,306.68 
Detail of payment to Auditor

31-Mar-15 31-Mar-14
Rs. in lacs Rs. in lacs

As auditor:
- Audit fee  26.00  20.00 
- Tax Audit fee 4.00  4.00 

In other capacity:
- Taxation matters  3.50  2.11 
- Other services (certification fees)  1.20  1.20 
- Reimbursement of expenses  1.68  0.99 

 36.38  28.30 
23.Depreciation and amortization expense

31-Mar-15 31-Mar-14
Rs. in lacs Rs. in lacs

Depreciation of tangible assets  1,444.47  1,316.52 
Amortization of intangible assets  186.41  182.86 

 1,630.88  1,499.38 
24.Finance costs

31-Mar-15 31-Mar-14
Rs. in lacs Rs. in lacs

Interest on Cash Credit  358.33  139.05 
Interest Others  347.47  268.44 
Bank Charges  320.30  298.41 

 1,026.10  705.90
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25   Contingent Liabilities:
a) Claims not acknowledged as debts (Rs. in lacs)

S. No. Particulars 31-Mar-15 31-Mar-14
1. Sales Tax Matters  69.11  185.77 
2. Service Tax  231.17  304.76 
3. Excise / Custom Duty  559.63  552.18 
4. Stamp Duty  28.50  28.50 
5. Others  166.61  78.91 

b) Bank Guarantees, letters of credit  (Net of margin) issued by banks and outstanding as on the reporting date is Rs. 
1,940.99 lacs (31.03.2014 : Rs.2,163.96 lacs).

c) The Company had imported plant and machinery in previous years under EPCG scheme. An export obligation ('EO') 
amounting to Rs.10,699.43 lacs  was placed on the Company which was to be fulfilled in a period of 8 years starting 
from August 2001. Subsequently, the said EO was refixed by DGFT vide its letter dated Jan 2011 upto August 2011 in 
terms of the Chapter VI of EXIM Policy and Procedure (Vol-1) 1997-2002. The Company has fulfilled the entire EO and 
final redumption is awaited.

d) Estimated amounts of contracts remaining to be executed on Capital Account (net of advances) is Rs.28.00 lacs 
(31.03.2014 : Rs. 18.03 lacs).

26 Employee Benefits:
The disclosures as per the Notified AS 15 under the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006 on “Employee 
Benefits”, are as follows:

a) The Company has classified various benefits provided to employees as under :
Defined Contribution Plans and amount recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss.

(Rs. in lacs)
Particulars 31-Mar-15 31-Mar-14
Employer's Contribution to Provident Fund 89.20 81.67
Employer's Contribution to ESI 3.78 5.03

92.98 86.70
b) Defined Benefit Plans

Gratuity and Compensated Absences – actuarial valuation done in accordance with the Accounting Standard -15 
(Revised), details of the same are given :

i)   Summary of results
Change in present value of obligation     (Rs. in lacs)

S. No. Particulars Year Ended March 31, 2015 Year Ended March 31, 2014
Gratuity Compensated Gratuity  Compensated

Absences Absences
a) Present value of obligation as  at the 148.16  54.86  132.71  56.09 

beginning of the period                               
b) Acquisition adjustment                           -    -    -    -   
c) Interest cost                     12.59 4.66  10.62  4.49 
d) Past service cost  -    -    -    -   
e) Current service cost  20.21  10.22  18.70  10.10 
f) Curtailment cost/(Credit)  -    -    -    -   
g) Settlement cost/(Credit)  -    -    -    -   
h) Benefits paid  (20.51)  (8.94)  (19.59)  (11.62)
i) Actuarial (gain)/loss on obligation  10.44  0.60  5.72  (4.20)
j) Present value of obligation as at the end of period  170.89  61.40  148.16  54.86

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2015
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Changes in the fair value of plan assets

S. No. Particulars Year Ended March 31, 2015 Year Ended March 31, 2014
Gratuity Compensated Gratuity  Compensated

Absences Absences
a) Fair value of plan assets at  the beginning of the period  56.65 -  48.64  -   
b) Acquisition adjustment                           -   -  -    -   
c) Expected return on plan assets                     5.10 -  4.26  -   
d) Employer Contributions  -   -  3.54  -   
e) Benefits paid  -   -  -    -   
f) Actuarial gain/(loss) on plan  assets  -   -  0.21  -   
g) Fair value of plan assets at the end of the period  61.75 -  56.65  -   

Net liability recognized in balance sheet                   170.89  61.40  148.16  54.86 

Expense recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss (Rs. in lacs)

Year Ended March 31, 2015 Year Ended March 31, 2014
Gratuity Compensated Gratuity  Compensated

Absences Absences
a) Current service cost                   20.21  10.22  18.70  10.10 
b) Past service cost                         -    -    -    -   
c) Interest cost                     12.59  4.66  10.62  4.49 
d) Expected return on plan assets  (5.10)  -    (4.26)  -   
e) Curtailment cost / (Credit)  -    -    -    -   
f) Settlement cost / (Credit)  -    -    -    -   
g) Net actuarial (gain)/ loss recognized in the period  10.44  0.60  5.50  (4.20)
h) Expenses recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss  38.14  15.48  30.56  10.39 

ii)     Actuarial Assumptions

  Gratuity     Compensated Gratuity Compensated
(Funded) Absences (Funded) Absences

a) Discounting Rate 7.75% 7.75% 8.50% 8.50%
b) Future salary Increase 5.25% 5.25% 6.00% 6.00%
c) Expected Rate of return on plan assets 9.00% 0.00% 8.75% 0.00%

27 Detail of loans given, Investment made and guarantee given covered U/s 186 (4) of the Companies Act, 2013
Investment made are given under respective head (Refer Note No. 11)

Loans given by the Company at March 31, 2015 (Rs. in lacs)
Name of the Co. 31-Mar-15 31-Mar-14 Max. Balance

during the year
AOL FZE (Dubai) 2,291.65 8,501.07 9,186.76

Corporate guarantee given by the Company in respect of Loans as at March 31, 2015 (Rs. in lacs)
Name of the Company 31-Mar-15 31-Mar-14
Apaksh Broadband Limited 582.03 582.03
AOL FZE (Dubai) 1,794.04 2,025.30

(Rs. in lacs)
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28 Related Party Disclosures
Related party disclosures as required under Accounting Standard - 18 on “Related Party Disclosures” issued by
The Institute of Chartered Accountants of India are as given below as on March 31, 2015:

a) Subsidiary Companies :
 - APAKSH Broadband Limited
 - AOL FZE (Dubai)
 - AOL PROJECTS DMCC (Fellow Subsidiary)

b) Individuals exercising significant influence and their relatives:
 -  Dr. Kailash S. Choudhari (Chairman)
 -  Dr. Rohan Choudhari

c) Key Management personnel and their relatives:
   - Mr. Chetan Choudhari (Managing Director)
   - Mr. Satyendra Gupta (Chief Financial Officer) ( related w.e.f. 2nd August, 2014)
   - Mr. Gaurav Mehta (Company Secretary)  ( related w.e.f. 2nd August, 2014)

d) Enterprise over which personnel referred in (b) and ( C) aforementioned exercise significant influence :-
   - Mangal Chand Tubes Private Limited
Related Party Transactions

(Rs. in lacs)
S.No. Nature of Transaction Subsidaries Key  Others Total

Management
Personnel

1 Re-imbursement of expenses  44.94  -    -    44.94 
 9.62  -    -    9.62 

2 Interest received on Loan  161.35  -    -    161.35 
 521.63  -    -    521.63 

3 Remuneration Paid*  -    275.40  5.08  280.48 
 -    112.40  -    112.40 

4  Purchase / Services Received  165.34  -    25.48  190.82 
 -    -    -    -   

5  Sale  31.65  -    -    31.65 
 -    -    -    -   

6  Advance Given  720.69  -    -    720.69 
 -    -    -    -   

7 Interest Expenses  -    -    -    -   
 -    -    5.50  5.50 

8 Loan Taken  -    -    15.00  15.00 
- - - -

9 Repayment of Loan  -    -    15.00  15.00 
 -    -    81.75  81.75 

10 Sitting Fees  -    -    0.95  0.95 
 -    -    0.60  0.60 

11 Rent Paid  -    -    -    -   
 -    -    16.52  16.52 
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(Rs. in lacs)
S.No. Nature of Transaction Subsidaries Key  Others Total

Management
Personnel

12 Conversion of Loan into Investments  7,133.37  -    -    7,133.37 
 7,354.81  -    -    7,354.81 

Balance due to / (from) as  at  March 31, 2015

1 Trade Receivables  (1,589.83) - -  (1,589.83)
 (1,565.21)  -    -    (1,565.21)

2 Loan and advances  2,291.65  -   -  2,291.65 
 (8,501.07)  -    -    (8,501.07)

3 Trade and other Payables  -    -    1.56  1.56 
 -    -    -    -   

  Figures in italic for previous year
*Not comparable with previous year

29 The Company has taken assets on cancellable operating lease, the future minimum lease payments in respect of 
which are as follows :-

(Rs. in lacs)
Particulars Minimum Lease Payments

31-Mar-15 31-Mar-14
Not later than 1 year  8.86  8.86
Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years  25.83  34.69 
Later than 5 years -  -  

The Lease agreements provide for an option to the Company to renew the lease period. There are no 
exceptional/restrictive covenants in the lease agreements.

Lease rental expense in respect of operating leases is Rs.8.86 lacs (31.03.2014 : Rs.0.74 lacs)
Contingent rent recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss is Rs. Nil (31.03.2014 : Rs. Nil)

30 Expenditure relating to corporate social responsibility as per section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with 
schedule VII

a) Gross amount required to be spent during the year : Rs. 40.17 lacs

b) Amount spent during the year on:
(Rs. in lacs)

S.No Particulars In cash Yet to be Total
paid in cash

i) Construction/Acquisition of any asset  -    -  -
ii) Purpose other than (i) above  33.80  -  33.80
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31 Exceptional items represents net foreign exchange gain on translation of Foreign Exchange assets and liabilities other 
than operational of Rs.104.68 lacs (31.03.2014: Rs.717.10 lacs), profit/(loss) on sale of fixed assets and Investments of 
Rs. 10.83 lacs {31.03.2014: (Rs.20.76) lacs}, liabilities written back of Rs. Nil lacs (31.03.2014: Rs.10.26 lacs).

32 Basic and diluted earnings per share

S. No. Particulars 31-Mar-15 31-Mar-14
a. Net Profit/(Loss) for the year (Rs. in lacs)  3,210.92  2,601.55 
b. Weighted Average No. of Equity Shares used in 150,685,485  148,564,989 

computing Basic-Earning per Share (Nos.)  
c. Impact of diluted instruments on Net Profit/(Loss) for the year  -    -   
d. Net Profit/(Loss) used for the computation of diluted earning per share (Rs. in lacs) 3,210.92  2,601.55 
e. Weighted average number of equity shares from dilutive instruments (Nos.)  11,125,384  14,100,086 
f. Weighted Average  No of Equity   Shares used 161,810,869  162,665,075 

in computing Diluted Earning per Share (Nos.)  
g. Nominal Value of Equity Shares (Rs.)  5.00  5.00 
h. Basic-Earning Per Shares (Rs.)  2.18  1.75 
i. Diluted -Earning Per Share (Rs.)  2.03  1.60 

33 The Company has an investment of Rs. 11,297.50 lacs in the equity shares and has outstanding dues of Rs. 
1,576.55 lacs (31.03.2014: Rs. 1,565.21 lacs) (net of advances) from APAKSH Broadband Limited (APAKSH), 
subsidiary acquired as a result of the amalgamation of erstwhile Aksh Broadband Limited with the Company. 
APAKSH's operations are presently suspended due to pending litigation by one of the shareholder of 
APAKSH.Considerinng creation of spreading OFC network by all orders in the country, the Management of the 
Company is in the process of discussions on the revival of the project and pending that no provision has been 
considered necessary in respect of the outstanding dues and investment at this stage.

34 Derivative Instruments

Forward contracts outstanding as at the reporting date:-
(Amount in lacs)

Particulars Currency 31-Mar-15 31-Mar-14
Forward contracts to sell USD  41.10  34.85 

EURO  2.50  1.25 

Amount receivable in foreign currency on account of the following 
(Amount in lacs)

S.No Particulars Currency 31-Mar-15 31-Mar-14
1 Export of goods USD  47.73  36.31 

EURO  5.35  4.01 
GBP  0.02  0.02 

RINGGIT  14.11  1.26 
2 Advance to Vendor USD  8.27  6.11 

EURO  0.30  0.01 
JPY  3.98  -   
GBP  0.01  -   

RINGGIT  0.20  -   
3 Advance to Other USD  11.25  119.07 
4 Interest receivable on advances USD  25.41  22.83 
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Amount payable in foreign currency on account of the following 

(Amount in lacs)
S.No Particulars Currency 31-Mar-15 31-Mar-14
1 Import of goods and services USD  25.18  18.96 

EURO  11.49  11.54 

JPY  -    17.57 

GBP  0.05  0.18 

2 Advance from customers USD  0.50  0.61 

3 Buyer's Credit USD  10.12  8.15 

4 Packing Credit Facility EURO  -    0.41 

5 External Commercial Borrowing USD  85.68  104.72 

6 Foreign currency convertible bonds USD  29.92  37.92 

35 There are no Micro and Small Enterprises, to whom the Company owes, which are outstanding for more than 45 
days as at March 31, 2015. This information as required to be disclosed under the Micro, Small and Medium 
Enterprises Development Act, 2006 has been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis 
of information available with the Company.

Less : Finance Cost 705.901,026.10
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31-Mar-15 31-Mar-14
Rs. in lacs % Rs. in lacs %

37 Value and percentage of Imported/Indigenous
Raw - Material Consumed
Imported  8,732.33 42%  6,067.57 46%
Indigenous  12,150.68 58%  7,193.64 54%

 20,883.01 100%  13,261.21 100%
38 Spare Parts and components Consumed

Imported  127.55 28%  139.50 39%
Indigenous  323.65 72%  219.21 61%

 451.20 100%  358.71 100%
39 Value of Imports on CIF Basis

Raw Material  9,144.23  6,676.33 
Spare Parts, Consumable and Packing Material  156.12  212.07 
Accessories  53.02  -   
Capital Goods  98.55  948.84 

40 Earning in foreign Exchange on FOB Basis
Export of Goods and Services  11,792.40  12,764.97 
Interest  161.35  521.63 

41 Expenditure in foreign currency
Travelling Expense  38.98  34.51 
Sales Commission  153.47  117.29 
Interest and Bank Charges  239.98  13.47 
FCCB issue Expenses  -    69.15 
Overseas Branch Office Expenses  139.98 
Other Expenses  58.22  40.41 

42 Previous year's figures have been regrouped, rearranged and reclassified to conform to those of current year's 
figures wherever necessary.
The accompanying notes (1-42) are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Partner
Membership No.: 088638

Place: New Delhi
Date: May 30, 2015

As per our report of even date
for P. C. Bindal & Co.
Firm Registration Number: 003824N
Chartered Accountants

Chetan Choudhari 
Managing Director

DIN. : 00872366
 

 Gaurav Mehta
Company Secretary 

for & on behalf of the Board of Directors 
Dr. Kailash S. Choudhari

Chairman
 DIN. : 00023824 

Satyendra Gupta 
Executive Director

(Finance) & CFO 

Pawan Kumar Gambhir
Process Leader ( F & A) 



Annual Report 2014-2015
89

Report on the Consolidated Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying Consolidated 
Financial Statements of AKSH OPTIFIBRE LIMITED 
(hereinafter referred to as “the Holding Company”) and its 
subsidiaries (the Holding Company and its subsidiaries 
together referred to as “the Aksh Group”) , comprising of 
the Consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2015, the 
Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss, the 
Consolidated Cash Flow Statement for the year then 
ended, and a summary of the significant accounting 
policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter 
referred to as “the Consolidated Financial Statements”).

Management's Responsibility for the Consolidated 
Financial Statements.

The Holding Company's Board of Directors is responsible 
for the preparation of these Consolidated Financial 
Statements in terms of the requirements of the Companies 
Act, 2013 (hereinafter referred to as “the Act”) that give a 
true and fair view of the Consolidated Financial Position, 
Consolidated Financial Performance and Consolidated 
Cash Flows of the Group in accordance with the 
accounting principles generally accepted in India, 
including the Accounting Standards specified under 
Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Company 
(Accounts) Rules, 2014.  The respective Board of 
Directors of the Company included in the Group are 
responsible for maintenance of adequate accounting 
records in accordance with the provisions of the Act, for 
safeguarding the assets of the Group and for preventing 
and detecting frauds and other irregularities; the selection 
and application of appropriate accounting policies; making 
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; 
and the design, implementation and maintenance of 
adequate internal financial controls, that were operating 
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of 
the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and 
presentation of the financial statements that give a true and 
fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether 
due to fraud or error, which have been used for the purpose 
of preparation of the Consolidated Financial Statements by 
the Directors of the Holding Company, as aforesaid.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these 
Consolidated Financial Statements based on our audit. 
While conducting the audit, we have taken into account the 
provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing 
standards and matters which are required to be included in 
the audit report under the provisions of the Act, and the 
Rules made there under. 

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards 
on Auditing specified under Section 143(10) of the Act. 
Those Standards require that we comply with ethical 
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether the Consolidated 
Financial Statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit 
evidence about the amounts and the disclosures in the 
Consolidated Financial Statements. The procedures 
selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the 
Consolidated Financial Statements, whether due to fraud 
or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor 
considers internal financial control relevant to the Holding 
Company's preparation of the Consolidated Financial 
Statements that give a true and fair view in order to design 
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances 
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on 
whether the Holding Company has an adequate internal 
financial controls system over financial reporting in place 
and the operating effectiveness of such controls.  An audit 
also includes evaluating the appropriateness of the 
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the 
accounting estimates made by the Holding Company's 
Board of Directors, as well as evaluating the overall 
presentation of the Consolidated Financial Statements.

We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us and the 
audit evidence obtained by the other auditors in terms of 
their reports referred to Other Matters paragraph below is 
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinion on the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and 
according to the explanations given to us and based on the 
consideration of reports of other auditors' on separate 
financial statement of the subsidiary, the aforesaid 
Consolidated Financial Statements give the information 
required by the Act in the manner so required and give a 
true and fair view in conformity with the accounting 
principles generally accepted in India

i. in the case of the Consolidated Balance Sheet, of the 
state of affairs of the Group as at March 31, 2015

ii. in the case of the Consolidated Profit and Loss, of the 
Profit of the Group for the year ended on that date.

iii. in the case of the Consolidated Cash Flow 
Statement, of the cash flow of the Group for the 
year ended on that date.

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF AKSH OPTIFIBRE LIMITED



Annual Report 2014-2015
90

Other Matters

We did not audit the financial statements of foreign 
subsidiary, whose financial statements reflect total assets 
of Rs. 19,510.95 lacs as at March 31, 2015, total revenues 
of Rs. 968.46 lacs and net cash inflows amounting to Rs. 
17.12 lacs for the year then ended, as considered in the 
Consolidated Financial Statements. These Financial 
Statements have been audited by other auditors' whose 
report has been furnished by the management and our 
opinion of Consolidated Financial Statements, in so far as 
it relates to the amounts and disclosure included in respect 
of subsidiary and our report in terms of sub-sections (3) 
and (11) of Section 143 of the Act, insofar as it relates to the 
aforesaid subsidiary Company, is based solely on the 
reports of the other auditor.

Our opinion on the Consolidated Financial Statements, and 
our report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 
below, is not modified in respect of the above matters with 
respect to our reliance on the work done and the reports of 
the other auditor and the financial statements / financial 
information certified by the Management.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 
2015 (“the Order”), issued by the Central Government of 
India in terms of sub-section (11) of Section 143 of the 
Act, based on the comments in the auditors' reports of 
the Holding Company, subsidiary Company 
incorporated in India, we give in the Annexure a 
statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 
4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report, to 
the extent applicable, that: 

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information 
and explanations which to the best of our 
knowledge and belief were necessary for the 
purposes of our audit of the aforesaid 
Consolidated Financial Statements.

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as 
required by law relating to preparation of the 
aforesaid Consolidated Financial Statements 
have been kept so far as it appears from our 
examination of those books and the reports of the 
other auditor.

(c) The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated 
Statement of Profit and Loss, and the Consolidated 
Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in 
agreement with the relevant books of account 
maintained for the purpose of preparation of the 
Consolidated Financial Statements.

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Consolidated 
Financial Statements comply with the Accounting 
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, 
read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) 
Rules, 2014.

(e) On the basis of the written representations 
received from the Directors of the Subsidiary 
Company as on March 31, 2015 taken on record 
by the Board of Directors of the Holding Company 
and the reports of the Statutory Auditor of its 
Subsidiary Company incorporated in India, none 
of the Directors of the Group Company 
incorporated in India is disqualified as on  March 
31, 2015 from being appointed as a Director in 
terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

(f)   With respect to the other matters to be included in 
the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of 
the Company(Audit and Auditor's) Rules, 2014, in 
our opinion and to the best of our information and 
according to the explanations given to us: 

i. The Consolidated Financial Statements 
disclose the impact of pending litigations on 
the Consolidated Financial position of the 
Group – Refer Note 37 to the Consolidated 
Financial Statements.

ii. The Holding Company and its Subsidiary 
Company did not have any long term 
contracts including derivative contracts for 
which there were any material foreseeable 
losses: and

iii. There has been no delay in transferring 
amounts, required to be transferred, to the 
Investor Education and Protection Fund by 
the Holding Company and its Subsidiary 
Company incorporated in India. 

for P.C. BINDAL & CO. 
        Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No. 003824 N

CA .K.C. GUPTA
Partner

Membership No: 088638
Place : New Delhi
Date : May 30, 2015



As stated in Para 1 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory 
Requirements' in Our Auditors' report on even date, the 
following statement is based on the comment in the Auditors 
report on financial statement of the Holding Company and its 
Subsidiary Company incorporated in India.

1. (a) The Holding Company has maintained proper 
records showing full particulars including 
quantitative details and situation of fixed assets. 
However its Subsidiary Company incorporated in 
India has not produced any proper records 
showing full particulars including quantitative 
details and situation of fixed assets.

The impact & quantum of this on Group 
Company’s assets cannot be qualified.

(b) According to the information and explanation 
given to us, Holding Company have a regular 
programme of physical verification of fixed 
assets by the management during the year 
except the assets installed at customer 
premises. No material discrepancies were 
noticed on such verification. In our opinion, 
frequency of physical verification of fixed assets 
is reasonable. However Subsidiary Company 
incorporated in India  has not produced any 
documents confirming that fixed assets have 
been physically verified by the management 
during the year

The impact and quantum of this on Group 
Company’s assets cannot be qualified.

2.  (a) During the year, the Inventory of holding 
Company has been physically verified during the 
year by the management. In our opinion, the 
frequency of verification is reasonable, However 
its subsidiary Company incorporated in India do 
not hold any inventories therefore paragraph 3 
(ii) of the order is not applicable to  subsidiary 
Company.

(b) In our opinion and according to the information 
and explanation given to us, the procedures of 
physical verification of inventories followed by 
the management are reasonable and adequate 
in relation to the size of the holding Company and 
the nature of its business.

(c ) In our opinion and according to the information 
and explanation given to us and on the basis of 
our examination of the records, we are of the 

ANNEXURE REFERRED TO IN OUR REPORT OF EVEN DATE

opinion that the holding Company is maintaining 
proper records of inventory. The discrepancies 
noticed on verification between the physical stocks 
and the book records were not material and have 
been properly dealt with in the book of accounts.

3. According to the information and explanation given to 
us, The Holding Company and its Subsidiary 
Company incorporated in India have not granted any 
loan, secured or unsecured to Companies, firm or 
other parties covered in the register maintained by it 
Section 189 of Company Act 2013. Accordingly 
paragraph 3(iii) of order is not applicable.

4. In our opinion and according to the information and 
explanation given to us, there are adequate internal 
control procedures commensurate with the size of the 
Holding Company and its Subsidiary Company 
incorporated in India and the nature of its business 
with regard to purchases of inventory, fixed assets and 
with regard to the sale of goods and services. During 
the course of our audit, we have not observed any 
major weakness in internal controls. 

5. In our opinion and according to the information and 
explanations given to us, the Holding Company and its 
Subsidiary Company incorporated in India have not 
accepted any deposits from public to which the 
directives issued by Reserve Bank of India and 
provisions of sections 73 to 76 of the Companies Act, 
2013, including rules framed there under, apply. 
Further, no order has been passed by the Company 
Law Board or National Company Law Tribunal or 
Reserve Bank of India or any other tribunal.

6. We have broadly reviewed the books of accounts of 
the Holding Company and its Subsidiary Company 
incorporated in India relating to materials, labour and 
other items of cost maintained by the Company 
pursuant to the Rules made by the Central 
Government for the maintenance of cost records 
under sub section (1) of section 148 the Companies, 
2013 and we are of the opinion that prima facie the 
prescribed accounts and records have been made 
and maintained. However subsidiary Company has 
not yet made or maintained such accounts and 
records.

7.  (a) According to the information and explanations 
given to us and according to the books and 
records produced before us, The Holding 
Company and its Subsidiary Company 
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Name of the Statute Nature of Dues Disputed
amount amount is pending

(Rs. In lacs) relates
SALES TAX
Sales Tax Act Sales Tax Demand 41.63 2000-01 & Hon'ble High Court

Jaipur

Sales Tax Act MVAT Demand 7.85 2007-08 Joint Commissioner of Sales
Tax (Appeals), Mumbai

Sales Tax Act Sale Tax Demand 258.15 2005-06 Hon'ble Supreme Court 

Sales Tax Act Sale Tax Demand 60.51 2006-07 Hon'ble Supreme Court

CUSTOM
Customs Act, 1962 Duty, Interest & 408.97 2005-06 & CESTAT

Penalty 2008-09

EXCISE
Central Excise Excise Duty, 84.38 2003-05 & CESTAT
Act, 1944 Interest & Penalty 2000-01

Central Excise Excise Duty 32.79 2011-12 Assistant Commissioner,
Act, 1944  Bhiwadi

Central Excise Excise Duty 22.35 2010-11 Commissioner (Appeals)
Act, 1944

SERVICE TAX
Finance Act, 1994 Service Tax 7.50 2004-05 Hon'ble High Court, Jaipur

Finance Act, 1994 Service Tax 0.54 2005-06 Commissioner of Central
Excise  (Appeals), Jaipur

Finance Act, 1994 Service Tax 0.42 2005-06 Deputy Commissioner

Finance Act, 1994 Service Tax 219.85 2004-06, 2009-10 CESTAT
& Interest   & 2011-12

Finance Act, 1994 Service Tax 0.91 2010-11 Assistant Commissioner,
Bhiwadi

Finance Act, 1994 Service Tax 1.94 2014-15 Commissioner (Appeals)

PROVIDENT FUND
Provident Fund Act Provident Fund 7.60 2004-05 Hon'ble High Court, Jaipur

Period to which Forum where dispute 

2001-02

incorporated in India is regular in depositing with 
appropriate authorities undisputed statutory dues 
including Provident Fund, Employees’ State 
Insurance, Income-Tax, Sales-Tax, Wealth Tax, 
Service Tax, Duty of Customs, Duty of Excise, Value 

Added Tax, Cess and any other Statutory dues with 
the Appropriate Authority, as applicable to it, except 
of the following arrears of outstanding statutory dues 
appearing as at year end for a period of more than six 
months from the date they became payable:-

Nature of 
Authority outstanding Authority exceeding six months
TDS Income Tax Department 9,170,632/-

Statutory for period Applicable recipient Arrears amount for period
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(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no dues of Income Tax or Sales Tax or 
Wealth Tax or Service Tax or Duty of Customs or Duty of Excise or Value Added Tax or Cess which have not been 
deposited on account of any dispute except of the following amounts:-



incorporated in India did not have any borrowings 
from any financial institution, bank or debenture 
holders.

10. According to the information and explanations 
given to us, the terms and condition on which 
holding Company and its Subsidiary Company 
incorporated in India have not given any 
guarantee for loans taken by other from banks 
and financial institutions.

11. In our opinion, and according to the information 
and explanations given to us, the term loans have 
been applied for the purposes for which they 
were raised in case of holding Company, 
however subsidiary Company has not availed 
any term loan during the year under audit. 

12. According to the information and explanations 
given to us, no fraud on or by  Holding Company 
and its Subsidiary Company incorporated in India  
has been noticed or reported during the course of 
our audit.

for P.C. BINDAL & CO. 
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No. 003824 N

CA .K.C. GUPTA
Partner

Membership No: 088638
Place : New Delhi
Date : May 30, 2015

(c) According to the informat ion and 
explanations provided to us, the  Holding 
Company and its Subsidiary Company 
incorporated in India has transferred to 
investor education and protection fund in 
accordance with the relevant provisions under  
Companies Act, 1956 (1 of 1956) and rules 
made there under within the stipulated time.

8. In our opinion, the accumulated losses of the 
Holding Company and its Subsidiary Company 
incorporated in India are not equal to or more than 
fifty percent of its net worth as at year end and also 
the Company has neither incurred cash losses 
during the financial year covered by our audit nor in 
the immediately preceding financial year.

9. In our opinion and according to the information 
and explanations given to us, the Holding 
company have not defaulted in repayment of 
dues to a financial institution, bank or debenture 
holders, however Subsidiary company 
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Notes 31-Mar-15 31-Mar-14
Rs. in lacs Rs. in lacs

Equity and liabilities
Shareholders' funds
Share capital 3 9,791.51 9,642.78
Reserves and surplus 4 31,062.32 27,889.42

40,853.83 37,532.20
Minority Interest 10.47 10.47

Non-current liabilities
Long-term borrowings 5 7,372.36 8,756.40
Trade payables 6 57.77 57.77
Long-term provisions 7 325.28 377.47

7,755.41 9,191.64
Current liabilities
Short-term borrowings 8 4,697.91 3,139.73
Trade payables 9 6,896.75 4,227.24
Other current liabilities 9 4,064.20 3,143.06
Short-term provisions 7 638.60 842.53

16,297.46 11,352.56
TOTAL 64,917.17 58,086.87
Assets
Non-current assets
Fixed assets
Tangible assets 10  11,546.93  9,040.43 
Intangible assets 11  747.77  765.38 
Capital work-in-progress  14,653.71  16,084.65 
Non-current investments 12  0.05  1.82 
Long-term loans and advances 13  94.10  1,501.84 
Other non-current assets 14.2  1,582.19  1,455.73 

 28,624.75  28,849.85 
Current assets
Inventories 15  2,905.76  2,489.19 
Trade receivables 14.1  14,951.68  9,146.99 
Cash and cash equivalents 16  435.27  77.46 
Short-term loans and advances 13  17,851.77  17,447.42 
Other current assets 14.2  147.94  75.96 

 36,292.42  29,237.02 
TOTAL  64,917.17  58,086.87
Summary of significant accounting policies      2.1
The accompanying notes (1-39) are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2015
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Satyendra Gupta 
Executive Director

(Finance) & CFO 

Pawan Kumar Gambhir
Process Leader ( F & A) 



Notes 31-Mar-15 31-Mar-14
Rs. in lacs Rs. in lacs

Income
Revenue from operations (gross) 17  38,167.06  24,750.22 
Less: excise duty  2,562.42  875.94 
Revenue from operations (net)  35,604.64  23,874.28 
Other income 18  422.18  220.42 
Total revenue (I)  36,026.82  24,094.70 

Expenses
Cost of raw material and components consumed 19  21,112.85  13,261.21 
Purchase of traded goods 20  658.41  493.10 
(Increase)/ decrease in inventories of finished 21  210.58  267.96 
goods, work-in-progress and traded goods
Employee benefits expense 22  2,344.73  1,956.71 
Other expense 23  6,368.57  4,443.82 
Total expense (II)  30,695.14  20,422.80 
Earnings before interest, tax depreciation and 5,331.68  3,671.90 
amortization and exceptional items 
(EBITDA) (I) – (II)  
Depreciation and amortization expense 24  1,721.14  1,502.40 
Finance costs 25  1,121.93  709.48 
Profit before exceptional items and tax  2,488.61  1,460.02 
Exceptional Items 32  115.51  706.60 
Profit before tax  2,604.12  2,166.62 
Tax expenses
Income Tax  687.95  520.51 
Earlier Year Taxes  71.18  -   
MAT Credit Entitlement  687.95  520.51 
Total tax expense  71.18  -   
Profit for the year  2,532.94  2,166.62 

Earnings per equity share 34
[nominal value of share Rs 5/- (March 31,2014: Rs 5/-)]
Basic  1.68  1.46 
Diluted  1.57  1.33 
Summary of significant accounting policies 2.1
The accompanying notes (1-39) are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2015
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31-Mar-15 31-Mar-14

Rs. In lacs Rs. In lacs

A. Cash flow from operating activities

Profit before tax 2,604.12 2,166.62
Profit before tax 2,604.12 2,166.62

Non-cash adjustment to reconcile profit before tax to net cash flows
Depreciation/ amortization on continuing operation 1,721.14 1,502.40
Loss/ (profit) on sale of investments (11.45) -
Loss/ (profit) on sale of fixed assets 0.62 20.76
Foreign Currency Translation Reserve 298.82 (125.20)
Finance costs 1,121.93 709.48
Interest (income) (242.85) (217.37)
Operating profit before working capital changes 5,492.33 4,056.69

Movements in working capital :
Increase/ (decrease) in trade and other payables 3,707.99 (380.70)
Decrease / (increase) in trade receivables (5,804.69) (827.96)
Decrease / (increase) in inventories (416.57) (27.70)
Decrease / (increase) in other receivables 804.96 (2,239.28)
Cash generated from /(used in) operations 3,784.02 581.06

Direct taxes paid (net of TDS) (531.52) (150.08)
Net cash flow from/ (used in) operating activities (A) 3,252.50 430.98

B. Cash flows from investing activities

Purchase of fixed assets, including CWIP (2,780.38) (1,867.61)
Proceeds from sale of fixed assets 0.66 18.26
Proceeds from sale of non current investments 13.22 -
Interest received 242.85 217.37
Net cash flow from/ (used in) investing activities (B) (2,523.65) (1,631.98)

C. Cash flows from financing activities

Expense on issue of FCCBs - (69.15)
Net Proceeds/(Repayment) of Long-term borrowings (364.06) 436.10
Net Proceeds/(Repayment) of Short-term borrowings 1,558.18 1,416.89
Dividend paid including tax (443.23) -
Finance costs (1,121.93) (709.48)
Net cash flow from/ (used in) in financing activities (C) (371.04) 1074.36

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A + B + C) 357.81 (126.64)

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 77.46 204.10
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 435.27 77.46

Components of cash and cash equivalents

Cash on hand 6.41 9.37
With banks- on current account 106.37 67.08
Deposits with original maturity of less than 12 months 320.00 -
Unpaid dividend accounts 2.49 1.01
Total cash and cash equivalents (note 16) 435.27 77.46

CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR 2014-15
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Summary of significant accounting policies 2.1
The accompanying notes (1-39) are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
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1 CORPORATE INFORMATION

Aksh Optifibre Limited is a public Company domiciled 
in India and incorporated under the provisions of the 
Companies Act, 2013. Its shares are listed at The 
Bombay Stock Exchange Limited, The National Stock 
Exchange Limited in India and GDRs are listed at 
Luxembourg Stock Exchange. The Company is 
engaged in the manufacturing and selling of Optical 
Fibre, Optical Fibre Cable, Fibre Reinforced Plastic 
Rods and Impregnated Glass Roving Reinforcement, 
The Company caters to both domestic and 
international markets. The Company also provides the 
E Governance services, FTTH and Internet Protocol 
Television (IPTV) services in North India.

2 STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 
POLICIES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS

The significant accounting policies adopted by Aksh 
Optifibre Limited (the Company) and its subsidiaries 
(hereinafter referred to as the “Group”) in respect of 
these Consolidated Financial Statements, are set out 
below.

2.1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

a) Basis of Preparation

These Consolidated Financial Statements have been 
prepared in accordance with the Generally Accepted 
Accounting Principles in India (Indian GAAP) to 
comply with the Accounting Standards notified under 
the Companies Act, 2013. Additional disclosures 
specified in the Accounting Standards shall be made 
in the notes to accounts or by way of additional 
statement unless required to be disclosed on the face 
of the Financial Statements. Similarly, all other 
disclosures as required by the Companies Act, 2013 
shall be made in the notes to accounts in addition to 
the requirements set out in this Schedule. These 
Consolidated Financial Statements are prepared under 
the historical cost convention on the accrual basis of 
accounting and in accordance with the reporting 
requirements of Accounting Standard - 21 
'Consolidated Financial Statements' issued by the ICAI.

b) Principles of Consolidation

These accounts represent consolidated accounts of 
the Group and its majority owned subsidiaries as 
follows :

  Entity Country of Shareholding as
Incorporation  at March 31, 2015

  APAKSH India 99.92%
  Broadband
  Limited (APAKSH)
  AOL (FZE- Dubai ) UAE 100%
  AOL Projects UAE 100%
  DMCC subsidiary
  of AOL ( FZE-Dubai )

c) Use of Estimates

The preparation of the financial statements in 
conformity with the generally accepted accounting 
principles requires management to make estimates 
and assumptions that affect the reported amount of 
assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent 
liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the 
reported amount of revenues and expenses during the 
reporting year. Difference between the actual result 
and estimates are recognized in the year in which the 
results are known/materialized.

d) Fixed Assets

i) Fixed Assets are stated at cost of acquisition 
less accumulated depreciation and 
impairment. Cost includes any borrowing 
costs directly attributable to the acquisition/ 
construction of fixed assets and bringing the 
assets to its working condition for its intended 
use.

ii) Exchange difference arising on account of 
liabilities incurred for acquisition or 
construction of Fixed Assets is adjusted in the 
carrying amount of related Fixed Assets.

e) Capital Work-in-Progress

Advances paid towards the acquisition of fixed assets, 
costs of assets not ready for use before the year-end 
and expenditure during construction period that is 
directly or indirectly related to construction, including 
borrowing costs are included under Capital Work-in-
Progress.

f) Depreciation

"Depreciable amount for assets is the cost of an asset, 
or other amount substituted for cost, less its estimated 
residual value. 

Depreciation on tangible fixed assets has been 
provided on the straight-line method as per the useful 
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life prescribed in Schedule II to the Companies Act, 
2013 except in respect of the following categories of 
assets, in whose case the life of the assets has been 
assessed as under based on technical advice, taking 
into account the nature of the asset, the estimated 
usage of the asset, the operating conditions of the 
asset, past history of replacement, anticipated 
technological changes, manufacturers warranties and 
maintenance support, etc.:"

  Particulars Useful life
in years

  Factory Buildings 28

20

  Furniture and Fixtures 15

  Data Processing System 5

Leasehold land is amortized over the duration of the 
lease.

Intangible assets are amortized over their estimated 
useful life on straight line method.

g) Impairment of Assets

i) The carrying amounts of assets are reviewed 
at each balance sheet date if there is any 
indication of impairment based on internal/ 
external factors. An impairment loss is 
recognized wherever the carrying amount of 
an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. 
The recoverable amount is the greater of the 
asset's net selling price and value in use. In 
assessing value in use, the estimated future 
cash flows are discounted at their present 
value at the weighted average cost of capital.

ii) After impairment, depreciation is provided on 
the revised carrying amount of the asset over 
its remaining useful life.

iii) A previously recognized impairment loss is 
increased or reversed depending on 
changes in circumstances. However, the 
carrying value after reversal is not increased 
beyond the carrying value that would have 
prevailed by charging usual depreciation if 
there was no impairment.

h) Investments

Investments that are readily realizable and 
intended to be held for not more than a year are 
classified as current investments. All other 
investments are classified as long-term 
investments. Long Term investments are stated 
at cost. Provision for diminution in the value of 
long- term investments is made only if such 
diminution is other than temporary. Current 
Investments are carried at the lower of cost and 
fair value and provisions are made to recognize 
the decline in the carrying value.

i) Inventories

i) Raw materials, work-in-progress, finished 
goods, trading stock, packing material and 
stores and spares parts are valued at the 
lower of cost and net realizable value except 
scrap which is valued at net realizable value.

ii) Cost of inventories of items that are not 
ordinarily interchangeable or are meant for 
specific projects is assigned by specific 
identification of their individual cost. Cost of 
other inventories is ascertained on the FIFO 
basis. In determining the cost of work-in-
progress and finished goods, fixed 
production overheads are allocated on the 
basis of normal capacity of production 
facilities.

iii) The comparison of cost and realizable value 
is made on an item-by-item basis.

iv) Net realizable value of work-in-progress is 
determined on the basis of selling prices of 
related finished products.

v) Raw Material and other supplies held for use 
in production of inventories are not written 
down below cost unless their prices have 
declined and it is estimated that cost of 
related finished goods will exceed their net 
realizable value.

j) Foreign Currency Transactions

i) Foreign currency transactions are recorded 
in the reporting currency, by applying to the 
foreign currency amount the exchange rate 
between the reporting currency and the 
foreign currency at the date of transaction.
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ii) Foreign currency monetary items are 
reported using the closing rate. Non-
monetary items which are carried in terms of 
historical cost denominated in a foreign 
currency are reported using the exchange 
rate at the date of the transaction; and non-
monetary items which are carried at fair value 
or other similar valuation denominated in a 
foreign currency are reported using the 
exchange rates that existed when the values 
were determined.

iii) Exchange differences arising on the 
settlement of monetary items or on reporting 
Company's monetary items at rates different 
from those at which they were initially 
recorded during the year, or reported in 
previous f inancial  statements,  are 
recognized as income or as expense in the 
year in which they arise.

iv) The premium or discount arising at the 
inception of forward exchange contracts is 
amortized as expense or income over the life 
of the contract. Exchange differences on 
such contracts are recognized in the 
Statement of Profit and Loss in the year in 
which exchange rate changes. Any profit or 
loss arising on cancellation or renewal of 
forward exchange contracts is recognized as 
income or expense for the year. None of the 
forward exchange contracts are taken for 
trading or speculation purpose.

k) Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the 
acquisition, construction or production of an 
asset that necessarily takes a substantial period 
of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are 
capitalized as part of the cost of the respective 
asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in 
the period they occur. Borrowing costs consist of 
interest and other costs that Company incurs in 
connection with the borrowing of funds.

l) Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is 
probable that the economic benefits will flow to 
the Company and the revenue can be readily 
measured.

Sale of Goods and Services

Revenue is recognized when the significant risks 
and rewards of ownership of the goods have 
been passed to the buyer (usually at the point of 
dispatch to customers). Sales include excise 
duty, sale of scrap and net of sale tax and quantity 
discount.

Income from services is recognized on the 
completion of services. Period based services 
are accounted for proportionately over the period 
of service.

Income from Interest

Revenue is recognized on a time proportion basis 
taking into account the amount outstanding and 
the rate applicable.

Other Incomes

Other Incomes are accrued as earned except 
where the receipt of income is uncertain.

m) Retirement and other Employee Benefits

i) Retirement benefits in the form of Provident 
Fund are a defined contribution scheme and 
the contributions are charged to the 
Statement of Profit and Loss  for the year 
when the contributions to the respective 
funds are due. The Company has no other 
obligation other than the contribution 
payable.

ii) Gratuity liability is a defined benefit obligation 
and is provided for on the basis of an actuarial 
valuation on Projected Unit Credit Method 
calculated at the end of each financial year.  
The liability with regard to gratuity in respect 
of any employee not covered under group 
gratuity scheme is provided on the basis of 
amount payable to such employees as if they 
were to retire on the last day of financial year.

iii) Compensated Abcenses is provided for 
based on actuarial valuation done as per 
Projected Unit Credit Method calculated at 
the end of each financial year.

iv) Actuarial gains/losses are immediately taken 
to the Statement of Profit and Loss and are 
not deferred.
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n) Export Incentives

Export Incentive in the form of advance licenses / 
credit earned under duty entitlement pass book 
scheme are treated as income in the year of 
export at the estimated realizable value / actual 
credit earned on exports made during the year.

o) Taxes on Income   

Income Taxes are computed using the tax effect 
accounting method where taxes are accrued in 
the same period, as the related revenue and 
expenses to which they relate. The differences 
that result between profit offered for Income Tax 
and the profit before tax as per financial 
statements are identified and Deferred Tax 
Assets or Deferred Tax Liabilities are recorded for 
timing differences, namely differences that 
originate in one accounting period and are 
capable of reversal in future. Deferred Tax Assets 
and Liabilities are measured using tax rates and 
tax laws enacted or substantively enacted by the 
balance sheet date.

Deferred Tax Assets are recognized only if there 
is reasonable certainty that they will be realized. 
However, where the Company has unabsorbed 
depreciation or carried forward losses under 
taxation laws, a much stricter test, viz, virtual 
certainty of realization, is applied for recognition 
of deferred tax assets. Deferred tax assets are 
reviewed for the continuing appropriateness of 
their respective carrying values at each balance 
sheet date and written down or written up to 
reflect the amount that is reasonably/ virtually 
certain (as the case may be) of realization.

Minimum Alternative Tax (MAT) credit is 
recognized as an asset only when and to the 
extent there is convincing evidence that the 
Company will pay Normal Income Tax during the 
specified period. In the year in which the MAT 
credit becomes eligible to be recognized as an 
asset in accordance with the recommendations 
contained in Guidance Note issued by the 
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India, the 
said asset is created by way of a credit to the 
Statement of Profit and Loss and shown as MAT 
Credit Entitlement. The Company reviews the 
same at each balance sheet date and writes 
down the carrying amount of MAT Credit 

Entitlement to the extent there is no longer 
convincing evidence to the effect that Company 
will pay normal Income Tax during the specified 
period.

p) Operating Leases

Assets given on operating leases are included in 
fixed assets. Lease income is recognized in the 
Statement of Profit and Loss on a straight-line 
basis over the lease term. Costs, including 
depreciation are recognized as an expense in the 
Statement of Profit and Loss. Initial direct costs 
such as legal costs, brokerage costs, etc. are 
recognized immediately in the Statement of Profit 
and Loss.

q) Earnings Per Share

The Group reports basic and diluted earnings per 
share in accordance with Notified AS 20 under 
the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 
2006 issued by The Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India on 'Earnings Per Share'. 
Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing 
the net profit or loss for the period attributable to 
equity shareholders after deducting attributable 
taxes by the weighted average number of equity 
shares outstanding during the period. Diluted 
earnings per share are computed by dividing the 
net profit or loss for the period by the weighted 
aver-age number of equity shares outstanding 
during the period. Both profit for the year and 
weighted average numbers of shares are 
adjusted for the effects of all diluted potential 
equity shares except where the results are anti-
dilutive.

r) Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and 
Contingent Assets

As per Notified AS 29 under the Companies 
(Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006, Provisions, 
Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets, 
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants 
of India, the Company recognizes provisions 
(without discounting to its present value) only 
when it has a present obligation as a result of a 
past event, it is probable that an outflow of 
resources embodying economic benefits will be 
required to settle the obligation as and when a 
reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation 
can be made.
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No provision is recognized for –

Any possible obligation that arises from past 
events and the existence of which will be 
confirmed only by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more uncertain future 
events not wholly within the control of the 
Company; or

Any present obligation that arises from past 
events but is not recognized because –

• It is not probable that an outflow of resources 
embodying economic benefits will be required to 
settle the obligation; or

• A reliable estimate of the amount of obligation 
cannot be made.

Such obligations are disclosed as Contingent 
Liabilities. These are assessed continually and 
only that part of the obligation for which an 
outflow of resources embodying economic 
benefits is probable, is provided for, except in the 
extremely rare circumstances where no reliable 
estimate can be made.

s) Project Development Expenditure

Expenses incurred relating to project prior to 
commencement of commercial production / start 
of the project is classified as Project 
Development Expenditure net of income earned 
during the project development stage.

t) Miscellaneous Expenditure

Expenditure on issue of shares / foreign currency 
convertible bonds (FCCBs) / Global Depository 

Receipts (GDRs) / shares under Qualified 
Institutional Placements (QIP) and premium on 
redemption of FCCBs are adjusted against 
Securities Premium Account.

u) Translation of Foreign Subsidiary

"In case of Foreign Subsidiary, the revenue and 
expense transactions at the year end reflected in 
the Statement of Profit and Loss have been 
translated at the average exchange rates for the 
period to which the financial statements relate.

The assets and liabilities, both monetary and 
non-monetary, have been translated at the 
closing exchange rate prevailing on the date of 
the Balance Sheet."

Exchange difference arising on the Company's 
net investment in foreign subsidiary are 
accumulated in a foreign currency translation 
reserve until the disposal of such investment, at 
which time they are recognized as income and 
expenses.

v) Measurement of EBITDA

As permitted by the Guidance Note on the 
Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013, the 
Company has elected to present earnings before 
interest, tax, depreciation and amortization 
(EBITDA) as a separate line item on the face of 
the Statement of Profit and Loss. The Company 
measures EBITDA on the basis of profit/ (loss) 
from continuing operations. In its measurement, 
the Company does not include depreciation and 
amortization expense, finance costs and tax 
expense.
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3. Share capital 

31-Mar-15 31-Mar-14
Rs. in lacs Rs. in lacs

Authorized share (No.)
170,100,000 (31st March 2014:  170,100,000) Equity
Shares of Rs. 5/- each  8,505.00  8,505.00 

Issued, subscribed and fully paid-up share (No.)
151,539,689 (31st March 2014:  148,564,989) Equity Shares 7,576.98  7,428.25 
of Rs. 5/- each fully paid up
Forfeited Shares in case of APAKSH Broadband Limited  2,214.53  2,214.53 

Total issued, subscribed and fully paid-up share capital  9,791.51  9,642.78 

(a) Reconciliation of the shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting year

Equity shares

31-Mar-15 31-Mar-14
No. Rs. in lacs No. Rs. in lacs

At the beginning of the period  148,564,989  7,428.25  148,564,989  7,428.25 
Add: 
 -Issued pursuant to conversion of FCCBs  2,974,700  148.73  -    -   
Outstanding at the end of the year  151,539,689  7,576.98  148,564,989  7,428.25 

Terms/ rights attached to equity shares
The Company has only one class of equity shares having par value of  Rs 5/- per share. Each holder of equity shares is 
entitled to one vote per share. The Company declares and pays dividends in Indian Rupees. The dividend proposed by the 
Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in ensuing Annual General Meeting.

In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the 
Company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares 
held by the shareholders.

(b) During the period of five years immediately preceeding to reporting date, the Company has not
           (i) issued any bonus shares
           (ii) issued shares for consideration other than cash
           (iii) Bought back any shares

(c) Details of shareholders (as per register of shareholders) holding more than 5% shares in the Company

Name of the shareholder 31-Mar-15 31-Mar-14
No. % holding No. % holding

Dr. Kailash S. Choudhari  25,842,700 17.05%  25,842,700 17.39%
Usha Jain  17,425,000 11.50%  -    -
Sunidhi Capital Private Limited  7,338,671 4.84%  9,005,250 6.06%
Seema Choudhari  7,000,000 4.62%  7,809,341 5.26%
The Bank of New York, Mellon  1,375,000 0.91%  9,065,850 6.10%
Religare Finvest Limited  69,000 0.05%  20,851,807 14.04%

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2015
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4.  Reserves and Surplus 

31-Mar-15 31-Mar-14
Rs. in lacs Rs. in lacs

Capital Reserve  15.00  15.00 
Securities Premium Account
Balance as per the last Financial Statements  31,405.95  33,830.69 
Add :
- Issue expenses on issue of FCCBs (USD 3.792 Million)  -    (69.15)
- Premium On Redemption on FCCBs  -    (2,355.59)
- Premium on conversion of FCCBs into Shares  349.82  -   
Closing Balance  31,755.77  31,405.95 

Foreign Currency Translation Reserve
Balance as per the last Financial Statements  (143.77)  (18.57)
Add: Created on translation and incorporation 298.84  (125.20)
of non integral foreign subsidiaries  
Closing Balance  155.07  (143.77)

Surplus/ (deficit) in the Statement of Profit and Loss
Balance as per last Financial Statements  (3,387.76)  (5,119.85)
Profit for the year  2,532.94  2,166.62 
Proposed Dividend  (7.44)  (371.41)
Tax on Dividend  (1.26)  (63.12)
Net Deficit in the Statement of Profit and Loss  (863.52)  (3,387.76)
Total reserves and surplus  31,062.32  27,889.42 

5. Long-term borrowings 

Non-current portion Current maturities
31-Mar-15 31-Mar-14 31-Mar-15 31-Mar-14
Rs. in lacs Rs. in lacs Rs. in lacs Rs. in lacs

Secured Loans
Term Loans
External Commercial Borrowings  3,868.12  5,133.95  1,487.74  1,140.88
USD 8.568 Million (31st March 2014 : USD 10.472 Million)

Term Loan from Bank
Punjab National Bank  166.67  333.34  166.67  166.67 
Bank of Baroda  1,363.01  964.98  423.25  305.67 
Term Loan from Others  9.66  51.96  8.25  25.47 
Car Loan from Banks  31.31  -    11.17  -
Unsecured Loans
Foreign Currency Convertible Bonds (FCCBs)
USD 3.792 Million (31st March 2014: USD 3.792 Million) 1,870.30  2,272.17  -    -
0% FCCBs due on Feb-2019 of  USD 1,000 each  

Term Loan from Others  63.29  -    63.08  -
 7,372.36  8,756.40  2,160.16  1,638.69 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2015
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The above amount includes
Secured borrowings  5,438.77  6,484.23  2,097.08  1,638.69 
Unsecured borrowings  1,933.59  2,272.17  63.08  -   
Amount disclosed under the head “other -    -    (2,160.16)  (1,638.69)
current liabilities” (note 9)  

Net Amount  7,372.36  8,756.40  -    -   

a. External Commercial Borrowings are secured by way of first pari- passu charge on fixed assets of the Company and 
personal guarantee of Dr. Kailash S. Choudhari.

b. Term Loan from Punjab National Bank are secured by way of exclusive charge on Plant and Machinery installed under 
the project and further secured by personal guarantee of Dr. Kailash S. Choudhari.

c. Term loan from Bank of Baroda are secured by way of charge on fixed assets of AOL (FZE), personal guarantee of Dr. 
Kailash S. Choudhari and Corporate guarantee of the Company.

d. Car loan from Banks are secured against the hypothecation of Car.
e. Term Loan from others are secured by way of exclusive charge on Fixed assets installed under the subject Project.
f. Issue of Foreign Currency Convertible Bonds (FCCBs) convertible into ordinary shares, the particulars, terms of issue 

and the status of conversion as at March 31, 2015 are given below :-
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Issue 0% FCCBs (due February 2019)
Issued on February 10,2014
Issue Amount USD 3.792 Mn
Face Value USD 1000
Fixed Exchange Rate for conversion USD 1= INR 62.32
Redeemable on February 10,2019
Redemption Percentage of the principal amount 120%
FCCBs converted USD 0.80 Mn
Shares issued on conversion of FCCBs 2,974,700 shares
FCCBs outstanding as on March 31, 2015 USD 2.992 Mn
Shares that could be issued on conversion of 11,125,384 shares 
outstanding FCCBs   

6. Other long-term liabilities 

31-Mar-15 31-Mar-14
Rs. in lacs Rs. in lacs

Trade payables (including acceptances)  57.77  57.77 
 57.77  57.77 

7. Provisions 

                                                      Long-term                  Short-term
31-Mar-15 31-Mar-14 31-Mar-15 31-Mar-14
Rs. in lacs Rs. in lacs Rs. in lacs Rs. in lacs

Provision for Gratuity and Compensated Absences  325.28  377.47  8.53  5.53 
Provision for Income Tax (net of Prepaid taxes)  -    -    630.07  402.47 
Proposed Dividend  -    -    -    371.41 
Provision for Tax on Dividend  -    -    -    63.12 

 325.28  377.47  638.60  842.53 
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8.Short-term borrowings 

31-Mar-15 31-Mar-14
Rs. in lacs Rs. in lacs

Secured Loans
Working Capital Facilities from Banks

- Working Capital Facilities  2,870.85  1,511.03
- Buyers Credit from Banks  632.81  488.58

Other Loans
- Cisco Systems Capital India Private Limited  497.93  497.93

Unsecured Loans
   Deposits (unsecured)

- 0% Inter Corporate Deposit repayable on demand   50.00  50.00
- 15% Inter Corporate Deposit from others repayable on demand   200.00  200.00
- 0% Security Deposits  446.32  392.19

 4,697.91  3,139.73
The above amount includes :
Secured borrowings  4,001.59  2,497.54
Unsecured borrowings  696.32  642.19

a. Working capital facilities from banks are  secured  by  way  of  first pari-passu charge on Current Assets both present 
and future and second pari-passu charge on the fixed assets of the Company. These facilities are further secured by 
way of first pari-passu charge on the immovable properties of the Company and personal guarantee of Dr. Kailash S. 
Choudhari. The cash credit is repayable on demand. The interest payable on cash credit is 14.00% p.a.

b. Non fund based limits are secured by first pari-passu charge on immovable properties of the Company and personal 
guarantee of Dr. Kailash S. Choudhari.

c. Loan from Cisco Systems Capital India Private Limited is secured against first and exclusive charge on plant and 
machinery of APAKSH Broadband Limited covered under loan agreement.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2015
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9.Other current liabilities 

31-Mar-15 31-Mar-14
Rs. in lacs Rs. in lacs

Trade payables (including acceptances) 6,896.75 4,227.24

Other liabilities
Current maturities of long term debt (Refer Note No 5) 2,160.16 1,638.69
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 112.45 125.71
Advance from Customers 70.20 93.40
Unearned revenue 6.64 6.06
Unclaimed Dividend #
Dividend 2013-14 1.48  -
Dividend 2006-07 1.01 1.01
Other current liabilities 1,712.26 1,278.19

4,064.20 3,143.06
 10,960.95 7,370.30

 # Unclaimed dividend will be deposited in Investor Education and Protection Fund as and when due.
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12.Non-current investments 

31-Mar-15 31-Mar-14
Rs. in lacs Rs. in lacs

Trade investments (valued at cost unless stated otherwise)

Non-trade investments (valued at cost unless stated otherwise)
Investment in equity instruments (quoted)
Nil (31st March 2014: 22,300) equity shares of  Rs. 5/- each fully paid-up in CMI Limited  -   0.45
*Investment in equity instruments (Unquoted)
1 (31st March 2014: Nil) equity shares of  AED 3.67 (rounded off to AED 4) each - -
fully paid-up in Eminent One Ventures Limited  
Government and trust securities (unquoted)
National Saving Certificates (Deposited with Government Department as Security) 0.05 0.87
Kisan Vikas Patra  -   0.50

0.05 1.82

Aggregate amount of quoted investments (Market value: Nil) - 0.45
(31.03.2014: Rs 3.04 lacs)   

Aggregate amount of unquoted investments  0.05  1.37 

* Investment made in Eminent One Ventures Limited by Rs.68 equivalent to 4 AED. (31.03.2014 : Rs. Nil)

13. Loans and advances  (Unsecured, considered good unless stated otherwise)

Non-current Current
31-Mar-15 31-Mar-14 31-Mar-15 31-Mar-14
Rs. in lacs Rs. in lacs Rs. in lacs Rs. in lacs

Capital advances  7.58     1,421.66  -    -   
Security deposit  86.52  80.18  63.47  67.96 
Advances recoverable in cash or kind  -    -    15,018.06  14,992.49 

Other loans and advances
Income Tax Refund  -    -    57.41  61.42 
MAT Credit Entitlement  -    -    1,468.75  756.02 
Prepaid expenses  -    -    215.04  228.70 
Balances with statutory / government authorities  -    -    1,029.04  1,340.83 

 -    -    2,770.24  2,386.97 
Total  94.10  1,501.84  17,851.77  17,447.42 

14.1.Trade receivables and other assets 

    Current
31-Mar-15 31-Mar-14
Rs. in lacs Rs. in lacs

Unsecured, considered good unless stated otherwise
Outstanding for a period exceeding six months from the date they are 4,061.72  4,228.80 
due for payment  
Other receivables  10,889.96  4,918.19 

 14,951.68  9,146.99
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14.2. Other assets

Non-current Current
31-Mar-15 31-Mar-14 31-Mar-15 31-Mar-14
Rs. in lacs Rs. in lacs Rs. in lacs Rs. in lacs

Unsecured, considered good unless stated
otherwise
Other bank balances (note16)  1,582.19  1,455.73  -    -

Interest accrued on fixed deposits  -    -    65.29  36.94 
Interest accrued on other deposits  -    -    82.65  39.02 

 -    -    147.94  75.96 
 1,582.19  1,455.73  147.94  75.96 

15.Inventories (valued at lower of cost and net realizable value) 

31-Mar-15 31-Mar-14
Rs. in lacs Rs. in lacs

       i) Finished goods and traded goods 22.54 409.12
      ii) Raw material 1,666.71 1,030.87
      iii) Semi finished goods 1,010.50 834.50
      iv) Stores, Spares and others 206.01 214.70

2,905.76 2,489.19

16.Cash and cash equivalents

Non-current Current
31-Mar-15 31-Mar-14 31-Mar-15 31-Mar-14
Rs. in lacs Rs. in lacs Rs. in lacs Rs. in lacs

Cash and cash equivalents
Balances with banks:
   – On current accounts  -   106.37 67.08
   – Deposits with original maturity of less than 12 -   320.00  -
      months  
   – On unpaid dividend account  -   2.49 1.01
Cash on hand  -   6.41 9.37

 -    -   435.27 77.46
Other bank balances
– Deposits with original maturity of more than 12  25.00  0.10 
   months  
– Margin money deposit #  1,557.19  1,455.63  -    -   

 1,582.19  1,455.73  -    -   
Amount disclosed under non-current assets (note 14.2)  (1,582.19)  (1,455.73)  -    -   

 -    -    435.27  77.46 

Cash and cash equivalents includes deposits maintained by the Company with banks, which can be withdrawn by the 
Company at any point of time without prior notice or penalty on the principal.
# Margin money deposits with a carrying amount of Rs. 1,557.19 lacs  (31.03.2014: Rs. 1,455.63 lacs) are pledged 
with Banks for various Facilities.
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17.Revenue from operations 

31-Mar-15 31-Mar-14
Rs. in lacs Rs. in lacs

Revenue from operations
Sale of products

- Finished goods  35,149.86  20,979.03 
- Traded goods  927.76  2,100.51 

Sale of services  1,501.96  882.05 
Other operating revenue

- Scrap sales  28.85  22.26 
- Export Incentives  382.60  696.87 
- Exchange Fluctuation  165.37  43.91 
- Other operating revenue  10.66  25.59 

Revenue from operations (gross)  38,167.06  24,750.22 
Less: Excise duty #  2,562.42  875.94 
Revenue from operations (net)  35,604.64  23,874.28 

# Excise duty on sales amounting to Rs. 2,562.42 lacs (31.03.2014 : Rs. 875.94 lacs)  has been reduced from Sales in 
Statement of Profit and Loss  and excise duty on increase/(decrease) in stock amounting to (Rs. 38.72) lacs (31.03.2014 : 
Rs. 25.65 lacs) has been considered as (income)/expense in note 23 of financial statements.

Detail of products sold 

31-Mar-15 31-Mar-14
Rs. in lacs Rs. in lacs

Finished goods sold
Optical Fibre and Optical Fibre Cables 23,358.96 11,639.49
Fibre Reinforced Plastic Rod and Impregnated Glass Roving Reinforcement 11,790.90 9,339.54

 35,149.86  20,979.03 
Traded goods sold
Telecom and electronic items 927.76 2,100.51

927.76 2,100.51
Detail of services rendered

E-Governance activities 1,227.17 447.11
Consultancy Income 136.25 68.70
IPTV and VoIP 85.78 147.44
Network Erection, Installation and Commissioning 52.76 218.80

1,501.96 882.05

18.Other income

31-Mar-15 31-Mar-14
Rs. in lacs Rs. in lacs

Interest income
- on deposits  188.60  170.13 
- on other advances  54.25  47.24 

Other non-operating income  179.33  3.05 
 422.18  220.42 
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19. Cost of raw material and components consumed

31-Mar-15 31-Mar-14
Rs. in lacs Rs. in lacs

Inventory at the beginning of the year  1,030.87  742.16 
Add: Purchases  21,748.69  13,549.92 

 22,779.56  14,292.08 
Less: inventory at the end of the year  1,666.71  1,030.87 
Cost of raw material and components consumed  21,112.85  13,261.21 

Details of raw material and components consumed

31-Mar-15 31-Mar-14
Rs. in lacs Rs. in lacs

Glass Fibre and Glass Preforms 10,393.66 3,755.21
Resin such as (PVC, HDPE, Nylon, MB, LSZH, PBT, Nucrel, UV resin and Polyester) 7,740.96 4,577.70
Others 2,978.23 4,928.30

21,112.85 13,261.21
20. Details of purchase of traded goods

31-Mar-15 31-Mar-14
Rs. in lacs Rs. in lacs

Telecom and electronic items  658.41  493.10 
 658.41  493.10 

21.(Increase)/ decrease in inventories

(Increase)/ 31-Mar-15 31-Mar-14
Decrease

Rs. In lacs Rs. in lacs Rs. in lacs
Inventories at the end of the year 31-Mar-15
Finished/traded goods  386.58  22.54  409.12 
Semi finished goods  (176.00)  1,010.50  834.50 

 210.58  1,033.04  1,243.62 

Inventories at the beginning of the year 31-Mar-14
Finished/traded goods  711.65  409.12  1,120.77 
Semi finished goods  (443.69)  834.50  390.81 

 267.96  1,243.62  1,511.58 

22.Employee benefits expense

31-Mar-15 31-Mar-14
Rs. in lacs Rs. in lacs

Salaries, wages and bonus  1,942.94  1,593.86 
Contribution to provident and other funds  92.98  86.72 
Gratuity  40.36  75.14 
Staff welfare expenses  116.86  85.40 
Directors' Remuneration  151.59  115.59 

 2,344.73  1,956.71 
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23.Other expenses

31-Mar-15 31-Mar-14
Rs. in lacs Rs. in lacs

Consumption of stores and spares  474.58  358.71 
Sub-contracting expenses  802.37  508.14 
CSR Expenditure  33.80  -
Packing Material Consumed  1,958.51  1,058.97 
Increase/(Decrease) in Excise Duty Provision on Stock  (38.72)  25.65 
Power and Fuel  748.16  555.89 
Travelling and Conveyance  303.89  274.11 
Postage and Telephone  42.56  34.77 
Insurance  61.27  50.85 
Rent  136.00  108.21 
Professional and Legal Expenses  315.75  368.16 
Repair and Maintenance
  -  Plant and Machinery  53.93  56.82 
  -  Buildings  21.35  51.98 
  -  Others  79.11  71.95 
Marketing  and Service Charges  596.03  220.00 
Freight and Cartage (Outward)  237.67  267.66 
Auditors' Remuneration  39.21  31.51 
Other Expenses  512.65  419.04 

 6,378.12  4,462.42 
Less : Transfer to Capital Asset/ Capital Work in Progress  9.55  18.60 

 6,368.57  4,443.82 

Detail of payment to Auditor

31-Mar-15 31-Mar-14
Rs. in lacs Rs. in lacs

As Auditor:
- Audit fee  28.83  23.21
- Tax audit fees  4.00  4.00

In other capacity:
- Taxation matters  3.50  2.11
- Other services (certification fees)  1.20  1.20
- Reimbursement of expenses  1.68  0.99

 39.21  31.51
24.Depreciation and amortization expense

31-Mar-15 31-Mar-14
Rs. in lacs Rs. in lacs

Depreciation of tangible assets  1,534.73  1,319.54 
Amortization of intangible assets  186.41  182.86 

 1,721.14 1 ,502.40 

25.Finance costs
31-Mar-15 31-Mar-14
Rs. in lacs Rs. in lacs

Interest on Cash Credit  358.32  139.05 
Interest  435.43  268.44 
Bank Charges  328.18  301.99 

 1,121.93  709.48
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2015

26 Contingent Liabilities:
a) Claims not acknowledged as debts (Rs. in lacs)
S. No. Particulars 31-Mar-15 31-Mar-14
1 VAT/Sales Tax Matters  387.78  549.96 
2 Service Tax  231.17  304.76 
3 Excise / Custom Duty  559.63  552.18 
4 Stamp Duty  28.50  28.50 
5 Others  166.61  78.91 

b) Bank Guarantees, letters of credit  (Net of margin) issued by banks and outstanding as on the reporting date is Rs. 
1,940.99 lacs (31.03.2014 : Rs. 2,163.96 lacs).

c) The Company had imported plant and machinery in previous years under EPCG scheme. An export obligation ('EO') 
amounting to Rs.10,699.43 lacs  was placed on the Company which was to be fulfilled in a period of 8 years starting 
from August 2001. Subsequently, the said EO was refixed by DGFT vide its letter dated Jan 2011 upto August 2011 in 
terms of the Chapter VI of EXIM Policy and Procedure (Vol-1) 1997-2002. The Company has fulfilled the entire EO and 
final redumption is awaited.

d) Estimated amounts of contracts remaining to be executed on Capital Account (net of advances) is Rs.30,291.28 lacs 
(31.03.2014 : Rs.31,075.73 lacs).

27 With a view to have a global presence in telecom, the Company has incorporated a wholly owned subsidiary in Dubai, viz. 
“AOL (FZE)” for expansion of Companies businesses. The subsidiary Company has signed an agreement with Africa One, 
a Company which has been mandated to provide majority stake in Company, holding GSM licenses with spectrum in 
African contingent for Broadband, IPTV and FTTH projects. In Compliance of the terms of the agreement, the subsidiary 
Company has advanced towards part consideration an amount aggregating Rs 11,194.56 lacs (equivalent to AED 660.06 
lacs)  {31.03.2014 : Rs.10,782.68 lacs ( equivalent to AED 660.06 lacs}.

28 Detail of loans given, Investment made and guarantee given covered U/s 186 (4) of the companies Act, 2013.

Corporate guarantee given by the Company in respect of Loans as at March 31, 2015
(Rs. in lacs)

Name of the Co. 31-Mar-15 31-Mar-14
APAKSH Broadband Limited 582.03 582.03
AOL FZE (Dubai) 1794.04 2,025.30

29 Related Party Disclosures

Related party disclosures as required under Accounting Standard - 18 on “Related Party Disclosures” issued by The 
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India are as given below as on March 31, 2015:

a) Individuals exercising significant influence and their relatives:
  -  Dr. Kailash S. Choudhari (Chairman)
  -  Dr. Rohan Choudhari

b) Key Management Personnel:
   - Mr. Chetan Choudhari (Managing Director)
   - Mr. Satyendra Gupta (Chief Financial Officer) (related w.e.f. 2nd  August, 2014)
   - Mr. Gaurav Mehta (Company Secretary) (related w.e.f. 2nd August, 2014)

c) Enterprise over which personnel referred in (b) aforementioned exercise significant influence :-
   - Mangal Chand Tubes Private Limited
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Related Party Transactions

(Rs. in lacs)
S.No. Nature of Transaction Key Management Others Total

Personnel

1 Remuneration Paid*  275.40  435.43  710.83 
 112.40  422.86  535.26 

2 Purchase  -    25.48  25.48 
 -    -    -   

3 Interest Expenses  -    -    -   
 -    5.50  5.50 

4 Loan Taken -  15.00 15.00
- - -

5 Repayment of loan  -    15.00  15.00 
 -    81.75  81.75 

6 Sitting Fees  -    0.95  0.95 
 -    0.60  0.60 

7 Rent Paid  -    -    -   
 -    16.52  16.52 

Balance due to/(from) as at March 31, 2015

Trade and other Payables  -    1.56  1.56 
 -    10.70  10.70 

  Figures in italic for previous year
*Previous year figure are not comparable

30 The Company has taken assets on cancellable operating lease, the future minimum lease payments in respect of 
which are as follows :-

(Rs. in lacs)
Particulars Minimum Lease Payments

31-Mar-15 31-Mar-14
Not later than 1 year  8.86  8.86
Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years  25.83  34.69
Later than 5 years  -    -

The Lease agreements provide for an option to the Company to renew the lease period. There are no 
exceptional/restrictive covenants in the lease agreements.
Lease rental expense in respect of operating leases is Rs.8.86 lacs (31.03.2014 : Rs.0.74 lacs)
Contingent rent recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss is Rs. Nil (31.03.2014 : Rs. Nil)

31 Expenditure relating to Corporate Social Responsibility as per Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with 
Schedule VII:

(a)  Gross amount required to be spent during the year : Rs. 40.17 lacs
(b)  Amount spent during the year on :
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(Rs. in lacs)
S.No. Particulars In cash   Yet to be Total

(i)   Construction/Acquisition of any asset  -    -    -   
(ii)   Purpose other than (i) above 33.80  -    33.80 

32 Exceptional items represents net foreign exchange gain on translation of Foreign Exchange assets and liabilities 
other than operational of Rs.104.68 lacs (31.03.2014: Rs.717.10 lacs), profit/(loss) on sale of fixed assets and 
Investments of Rs. 10.83 lacs {31.03.2014: (Rs.20.76) lacs}, liabilities written back of Rs. Nil lacs (31.03.2014: 
Rs.10.26 lacs).
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33 Segmental Reporting
Based on the guiding principles given in Accounting Standard AS-17, "Segment Reporting" issued by the 
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India, the Company's business segments are Manufacturing 
Services and Trading of goods. The information about business segment are given below :



34 Basic and diluted earnings per share

S. No. Particulars 31-Mar-15 31-Mar-14
a. Net Profit for the year (Rs. in lacs)  2,532.94  2,166.62 
b. Weighted Average  No of Equity   Shares used in computing 150,658,485  148,564,989 

Basic-Earning per Share (Nos.)  
c. Impact of diluted instruments on Net Profit for the - -

year (Rs. in lacs)         
d. Net Profit used for the computation of diluted earning 2,532.94  2,166.62 

per share (Rs. in lacs)  
e. Weighted average number of equity shares from 11,125,384  14,100,086 

dilutive instruments (Nos.)  
f. Weighted Average  No of Equity   Shares used in 161,783,869  162,665,075 

computing Diluted Earning per Share (Nos.)  
g. Nominal Value of Equity Shares (Rs.)  5.00  5.00 
h. Basic-Earning Per Shares (Rs.)  1.68  1.46 
i. Diluted -Earning Per Share (Rs.)  1.57  1.33 

35 There are no Micro and Small Enterprises, to whom the Group owes any sum, which are outstanding for more than 
45 days as at March 31, 2015. This information as required to be disclosed under the Micro, Small and Medium 
Enterprises Development Act, 2006 has been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the 
basis of information received from vendors.

36 APAKSH is setting up a Broadband Project in the state of Andhra Pradesh. No Statement of Profit and Loss has been 
prepared in respect of the said project since the Company has not commenced revenue operations. The expenditure 
incurred during the period are classified as “Project Development Expenses” pending capitalization and will be 
apportioned to the assets on the completion of the project.

37 In the case of APAKSH, Bank Guarantee of Rs. 150.00 lacs (31.03.2014 : Rs.150.00 lacs) was invoked by M/s 
Andhra Pradesh Technology Services Limited due to failure of implementation of the project, shown in advance 
recoverable as Company is contesting. In the case of APAKSH, no provision has been made in respect of various 
expenses viz. rent, commission, bandwidth expenses as these are not quantifiable due to non availability of 
information and for interest of Rs. 209.97 lacs (31.03.2014 : Rs. 187.27 lacs) on secured loan taken from Cisco 
Systems Capital India Private Limited.

38 In case of APAKSH, the operations are suspended due to litigation filed by one of the shareholder of APAKSH, which 
was finally dismissed by the Hon'ble Supreme Court vide it's order dated 7th May 2010. The management of the 
Company is in discussion on the revival of the project.

39 Previous year's figures have been regrouped, rearranged and reclassified to conform to those of current year's 
figures wherever necessary. 

The accompanying notes (1-39) are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Members of 

AKSH OPTIFIBRE LIMITED

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of 
AKSH OPTIFIBRE LIMITED (“the Company”), which 

st
 comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31 March, 2014, and the 

Statement of Profit and Loss and Cash Flow Statement for the 
year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting 
policies and other explanatory information.

Management’s responsibility of financial statements

Management is responsible for the preparation of these 
financial statements that give a true and fair view of the 
financial position, financial performance and cash flows of the 
Company in accordance with the Accounting Standards 
notified under the companies Act 1956 (“the Act”) read with the 

thGeneral Circular 15/2013 dated 13  September, 2013 of the 
ministry of corporate affairs in respect of Section 133 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 and in accordance with the accounting 
principles generally accepted in India. This responsibility 
includes the design, implementation and maintenance of 
internal control relevant to the preparation and presentation of 
the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are 
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial 
statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in 
accordance with the Standards on Auditing issued by the 
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards 
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and 
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about 
whether the financial statements are free from material 
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit 
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial 
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s 
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material 
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud 
or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor 
considers internal control relevant to the Company’s 
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in 
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an 
opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control. 
An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of 
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the 
accounting estimates made by management, as well as 
evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is 
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according 
to the explanations given to us, the financial statements give 
the information required by the Act, in the manner so required 
and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting 
principles generally accepted in India:

a) in the case of the Balance Sheet, of the state of affairs of 
st

   the Company as at 31 March, 2014;

b) in the case of the Statement of Profit and Loss, of the profit 
for the year ended on that date; and

c) in the case of the Cash Flow Statement, of the cash flows 
for the year ended on that date.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 
2003 (“the Order”) issued by the Central Government of 
India in terms of sub-section (4A) of section 227 of the Act, 
we give in the Annexure a statement on the matters 
specified in paragraphs 4 and 5 of the Order.

2. As required by section 227(3) of the Act, we report that:

a) we have obtained all the information and 
explanations which to the best of our knowledge and 
belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit;

b) in our opinion proper books of account as required by 
law have been kept by the Company so far as 
appears from our examination of those books.

c) the Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss, and 
Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in 
agreement with the books of account.

d) in our opinion, the Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit 
and Loss, and Cash Flow Statement comply with the 
Accounting Standards notified under the Act read 

thwith the General Circular 15/2013 dated 13  
September, 2013 of the ministry of Corporate Affairs 
in respect of Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013;

e) on the basis of written representations received from 
st

 the directors as on 31 March, 2014, and taken on 
record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors 

st
 is disqualified as on 31 March, 2014, from being 

appointed as a director in terms of clause (g) of sub-
section (1) of section 274 of the Companies Act, 
1956.

For P. C. Bindal & Co.
Firm Registration No. : 003824

Chartered Accountants

CA. K. C. Gupta
Place of Signature: New Delhi Partner

th Date: 26 May, 2014 Membership No. 088638
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ANNEXURE REFERRED TO IN OUR REPORT OF EVEN 
DATE

(i) (a) The Company has maintained proper records 
showing full particulars including quantitative details 
and situation of fixed assets.

(b) As per information & explanation given to us fixed 
assets except the assets installed at customer 
premises have been physically verified by the 
management during the year. No material 
discrepancies were noticed on such verification. In 
our opinion, the frequency of physical verification of 
fixed assets is reasonable.

(c) During the year, the Company has not disposed off 
Substantial fixed assets. According to the information 
and explanation given to us, we are of the opinion that 
the going concern status of the Company is not 
affected.

(ii) (a) During the year, the inventory has been physically 
verified by the management. In our opinion, the 
frequency of verification is reasonable.

(b) In our opinion and according to the information and 
explanations given to us, the procedures of physical 
verification of inventories followed by the 
management are reasonable and adequate in 
relation to the size of the Company and the nature of 
its business.

(c ) In our opinion and according to the information and 
explanations given to us and on the basis of our 
examination of the records of inventory, the Company 
is maintaining proper records of inventory. The 
discrepancies noticed on verification between the 
physical stocks and the books records were not 
material and have been properly dealt with in the 
books of accounts.

(iii) (a) According to the information and explanations given 
to us, the Company has granted unsecured loan to 
one of its wholly owned subsidiary. The maximum 
amount involved during the year was Rs. 14,174.60 
lacs and the closing balance of loan given to such 
party was Rs. 8,501.07 lacs.

(b) According to the information and explanations given 
to us, in our opinion, the other terms and conditions 
on which loans have been granted to parties listed in 
the register maintained under section 301 of the 
Companies Act, 1956 are not, prima facie, prejudicial 
to the interest of the Company.

(c) As per the information made available to us, the 
aforesaid advance granted by the Company is 
repayable on demand.

(d) In respect of the aforesaid advances, there is not 
overdue amount as at year-end.

(e) According to the information and explanations given 
to us, the Company has taken unsecured loans from 
three parties covered in the register maintained under 
section 301 of the Companies Act, 1956. The 
maximum amount involved during the year was Rs.  
311.75 lacs and the closing balance of loan taken 
from such parties was Rs. 200 lacs.

(f) According to the information and explanations given 
to us, in our opinion, the rate of interest and other 
terms and conditions on which unsecured loans have 
been taken from Companies, firms or other parties 
listed in the register maintained under section 301 of 
the Companies Act, 1956 are not, prima facie, 
prejudicial to the interest of the Company.

(g) According to the information and explanations given 
to us, the payments of the principal amount and 
interest of the aforesaid loan are regular.

(iv) In our opinion and according to the information and 
explanation given to us, there is an adequate internal 
control system commensurate with the size of the 
Company and the nature of its business for the purchases 
of inventory, fixed assets, sale of goods and services. 
During the course of our audit, we have not observed any 
major weaknesses in internal control system.

(v) (a) According to the information and explanations given 
to us, we are of the opinion that the particulars of all 
contracts or arrangements need to entered into the 
register maintained under section 301 of the 
Companies Act, 1956 have been so entered.

(b) In our opinion and according to the information and 
explanations given to us, the transactions made in 
pursuance of contracts or arrangements referred to in 
section 301 of the Companies Act, 1956 have been 
made at prices which are reasonable having regard to 
prevailing market prices at the relevant time.

(vi) In our opinion and according to the information and 
explanations given to us, the Company has not  accepted 
any deposits from public to which provisions of sections 
58A and 58AA or any other relevant provisions of the 
Companies Act, 1956 and the Companies (Acceptance of 
Deposits) Rules, 1975 apply. No order has been passed 
by the Company Law Board or National Company Law 
Tribunal or Reserve Bank of India or any Court or any 
other Tribunal.

(vii) In our opinion, the Company has an internal audit system 
commensurate with the size and nature of its business.

(viii) We have broadly reviewed the books of account relating 
to materials, labour and other items of cost maintained by 

Aksh Optifibre Limited
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Members of 

AKSH OPTIFIBRE LIMITED

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of 
AKSH OPTIFIBRE LIMITED (“the Company”), which 

st
 comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31 March, 2014, and the 

Statement of Profit and Loss and Cash Flow Statement for the 
year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting 
policies and other explanatory information.

Management’s responsibility of financial statements

Management is responsible for the preparation of these 
financial statements that give a true and fair view of the 
financial position, financial performance and cash flows of the 
Company in accordance with the Accounting Standards 
notified under the companies Act 1956 (“the Act”) read with the 

thGeneral Circular 15/2013 dated 13  September, 2013 of the 
ministry of corporate affairs in respect of Section 133 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 and in accordance with the accounting 
principles generally accepted in India. This responsibility 
includes the design, implementation and maintenance of 
internal control relevant to the preparation and presentation of 
the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are 
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial 
statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in 
accordance with the Standards on Auditing issued by the 
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards 
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and 
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about 
whether the financial statements are free from material 
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit 
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial 
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s 
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material 
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud 
or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor 
considers internal control relevant to the Company’s 
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in 
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an 
opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control. 
An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of 
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the 
accounting estimates made by management, as well as 
evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is 
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according 
to the explanations given to us, the financial statements give 
the information required by the Act, in the manner so required 
and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting 
principles generally accepted in India:

a) in the case of the Balance Sheet, of the state of affairs of 
st

   the Company as at 31 March, 2014;

b) in the case of the Statement of Profit and Loss, of the profit 
for the year ended on that date; and

c) in the case of the Cash Flow Statement, of the cash flows 
for the year ended on that date.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 
2003 (“the Order”) issued by the Central Government of 
India in terms of sub-section (4A) of section 227 of the Act, 
we give in the Annexure a statement on the matters 
specified in paragraphs 4 and 5 of the Order.

2. As required by section 227(3) of the Act, we report that:

a) we have obtained all the information and 
explanations which to the best of our knowledge and 
belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit;

b) in our opinion proper books of account as required by 
law have been kept by the Company so far as 
appears from our examination of those books.

c) the Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss, and 
Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in 
agreement with the books of account.

d) in our opinion, the Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit 
and Loss, and Cash Flow Statement comply with the 
Accounting Standards notified under the Act read 

thwith the General Circular 15/2013 dated 13  
September, 2013 of the ministry of Corporate Affairs 
in respect of Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013;

e) on the basis of written representations received from 
st

 the directors as on 31 March, 2014, and taken on 
record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors 

st
 is disqualified as on 31 March, 2014, from being 

appointed as a director in terms of clause (g) of sub-
section (1) of section 274 of the Companies Act, 
1956.

For P. C. Bindal & Co.
Firm Registration No. : 003824

Chartered Accountants

CA. K. C. Gupta
Place of Signature: New Delhi Partner

th Date: 26 May, 2014 Membership No. 088638

Aksh Optifibre Limited
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ANNEXURE REFERRED TO IN OUR REPORT OF EVEN 
DATE

(i) (a) The Company has maintained proper records 
showing full particulars including quantitative details 
and situation of fixed assets.

(b) As per information & explanation given to us fixed 
assets except the assets installed at customer 
premises have been physically verified by the 
management during the year. No material 
discrepancies were noticed on such verification. In 
our opinion, the frequency of physical verification of 
fixed assets is reasonable.

(c) During the year, the Company has not disposed off 
Substantial fixed assets. According to the information 
and explanation given to us, we are of the opinion that 
the going concern status of the Company is not 
affected.

(ii) (a) During the year, the inventory has been physically 
verified by the management. In our opinion, the 
frequency of verification is reasonable.

(b) In our opinion and according to the information and 
explanations given to us, the procedures of physical 
verification of inventories followed by the 
management are reasonable and adequate in 
relation to the size of the Company and the nature of 
its business.

(c ) In our opinion and according to the information and 
explanations given to us and on the basis of our 
examination of the records of inventory, the Company 
is maintaining proper records of inventory. The 
discrepancies noticed on verification between the 
physical stocks and the books records were not 
material and have been properly dealt with in the 
books of accounts.

(iii) (a) According to the information and explanations given 
to us, the Company has granted unsecured loan to 
one of its wholly owned subsidiary. The maximum 
amount involved during the year was Rs. 14,174.60 
lacs and the closing balance of loan given to such 
party was Rs. 8,501.07 lacs.

(b) According to the information and explanations given 
to us, in our opinion, the other terms and conditions 
on which loans have been granted to parties listed in 
the register maintained under section 301 of the 
Companies Act, 1956 are not, prima facie, prejudicial 
to the interest of the Company.

(c) As per the information made available to us, the 
aforesaid advance granted by the Company is 
repayable on demand.

(d) In respect of the aforesaid advances, there is not 
overdue amount as at year-end.

(e) According to the information and explanations given 
to us, the Company has taken unsecured loans from 
three parties covered in the register maintained under 
section 301 of the Companies Act, 1956. The 
maximum amount involved during the year was Rs.  
311.75 lacs and the closing balance of loan taken 
from such parties was Rs. 200 lacs.

(f) According to the information and explanations given 
to us, in our opinion, the rate of interest and other 
terms and conditions on which unsecured loans have 
been taken from Companies, firms or other parties 
listed in the register maintained under section 301 of 
the Companies Act, 1956 are not, prima facie, 
prejudicial to the interest of the Company.

(g) According to the information and explanations given 
to us, the payments of the principal amount and 
interest of the aforesaid loan are regular.

(iv) In our opinion and according to the information and 
explanation given to us, there is an adequate internal 
control system commensurate with the size of the 
Company and the nature of its business for the purchases 
of inventory, fixed assets, sale of goods and services. 
During the course of our audit, we have not observed any 
major weaknesses in internal control system.

(v) (a) According to the information and explanations given 
to us, we are of the opinion that the particulars of all 
contracts or arrangements need to entered into the 
register maintained under section 301 of the 
Companies Act, 1956 have been so entered.

(b) In our opinion and according to the information and 
explanations given to us, the transactions made in 
pursuance of contracts or arrangements referred to in 
section 301 of the Companies Act, 1956 have been 
made at prices which are reasonable having regard to 
prevailing market prices at the relevant time.

(vi) In our opinion and according to the information and 
explanations given to us, the Company has not  accepted 
any deposits from public to which provisions of sections 
58A and 58AA or any other relevant provisions of the 
Companies Act, 1956 and the Companies (Acceptance of 
Deposits) Rules, 1975 apply. No order has been passed 
by the Company Law Board or National Company Law 
Tribunal or Reserve Bank of India or any Court or any 
other Tribunal.

(vii) In our opinion, the Company has an internal audit system 
commensurate with the size and nature of its business.

(viii) We have broadly reviewed the books of account relating 
to materials, labour and other items of cost maintained by 
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the Company pursuant to the Rules made by the Central 
Government for the maintenance of cost records under 
section 209 (1) (d) of the Companies Act,1956 and we are 
of the opinion that prima facie the prescribed accounts 
and records have been made and maintained.

(ix) (a) According to the information and explanations given 
to us and according to the books and records 
examined by us, the Company is generally regular in 
depositing undisputed statutory dues in respect of 
Provident Fund, Investor Education and Protection 
Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income Tax, 
Wealth Tax, Service Tax, Custom Duty, Excise Duty, 
Cess and other material statutory dues applicable to 
it.

(b) According to the information and explanations given 
to us, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of 
Provident Fund, Investor Education and Protection 
Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income Tax, 
Wealth Tax, Service Tax, Custom Duty, Excise Duty, 
Cess and other material statutory dues were in 

starrears, as at 31  March, 2014 for a period of more 
than six months from the date they become payable.

(c) According to the information and explanations given 
to us. and the records  of the Company   examined by 
us , dues of  Income Tax, Sales Tax , Wealth Tax, 
Service Tax, Custom Duty, Excise Duty  and Cess 
which have not been deposited on account of 
disputes and the  forum  where the dispute are 
pending  as under :

Name of the Dues /  Name Disputed Amount Period to Which Forum Where
of the Statute          (Rs. in lacs)  Amount Relates  Dispute is Pending

Sales Tax

Rajasthan Sales Tax 71.12 1996-97,1998-99, Hon’ble High Court Jaipur
Demand 2000-01 and 2001-02

MVAT Demand 7.85 2007-08 Joint Commissioner of Sales Tax
(Appeals), Mumbai

Customs/ Excise Duty

Customs Act, 1962 360.91 2005-06 CESTAT

Customs Act, 1962 48.06 2008-09 CESTAT

Central Excise Act, 1944 84.38 2003-05 CESTAT

Central Excise Act, 1944 3.37 2000-01 CESTAT

Central Excise Act, 1944 22.35 2010-11 Commissioner (Appeals)

Central Excise Act, 1944 0.31 2011-12 Commissioner (Appeals)

Service Tax

Finance Act, 1994 7.50 2004-05 Hon’ble High Court, Jaipur

Finance Act, 1994 0.54 2005-06 Commissioner of Central Excise  
(Appeals), Jaipur

Finance Act, 1994 0.64 2004-06 CESTAT

Finance Act, 1994 31.20 2009-10 CESTAT

Finance Act, 1994 188.01 2011-12 CESTAT

Finance Act, 1994 0.91 2010-11 Assistant Commissioner, Bhiwadi

Finance Act, 1994 0.42 2005-06 Deputy Commissioner

Provident Fund

Provident Fund Act 7.60 2004-05 Hon’ble High Court, Jaipur

(x) In our opinion, the accumulated losses of the Company are not more than fifty percent of its net worth. The Company has not 
incurred any cash losses during the current year and in the immediately preceding financial year.

th th(xi) Bonds of $ 13 Mn and $ 1Mn were due for redemption on 8  January, 2013 and 5  February, 2013 respectively having maturity 
th stvalue of equivalent to Rs. 7,603.40 lacs has been redeemed / paid on $1.50 Mn on 16  May, 2013, $2.50 mn on 21  May, 2013, 

rd th$ 0.50 Mn on 23  May, 2013 and $ 9.50 Mn on 27  June, 2013.

(xii) According to the information and explanations given to us, 
the Company has not granted loans and advances on the 
basis of security by way of pledge of shares, debentures 
and other securities.

(xiii) In our opinion, the provisions of any special statute 
applicable to Chit Fund, Nidhi or Mutual Benefit Fund / 
Society are not applicable to the Company.

(xiv) In our opinion and according to the information and 
explanations given to us, the Company is not dealing or 
trading in shares, securities, debentures and other 
investments, Accordingly, the provisions of clause 4(xiv) 
of the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2003 (as 
amended) are not applicable to the Company.

(xv) In our opinion, the terms and conditions on which the 
Company has given the guarantee for loans taken by 
subsidiary Company from banks or financial Institutions 
are not prejudicial to the interest of the Company.

(xvi) In our opinion, the term loans have been applied for the 
purpose for which they were raised.

(xvii) According to the information and explanations given to us 
and on an overall examination of the balance sheet of the 
Company, we report that no funds raised on short-term 
basis have been used for long-term investment.

(xviii) According to the information and explanations given to us, 
the Company has not made preferential allotment of 
share to parties covered in the register maintained under 
section 301 of the Act.

(xix)According to the information and explanations given to us, 
during the year the Company has issued 0% Unsecured 
Foreign Currency Convertible Bonds of US$ 1,000 each 
aggregating to US$ 3.792 Million equivalent to Rs. 
2,272.17 lacs and accordingly, the provisions of clause 
4(xiv) of the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2003 
(as amended) are not applicable to the Company.

(xx) According to the information and explanations given to us, 
the Company had not raised any money by way of public 
issue during the year.

(xxi) Based on the audit procedures performed and information 
and explanations given to us, no fraud on or by the 
Company has been noticed or reported during the course 
of our audit. 

For P. C. Bindal & Co.
Firm Registration No. : 003824N

Chartered Accountants

CA. K. C. Gupta
Place of Signature: New Delhi Partner

th Date: 26 May, 2014 Membership Number: 088638
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Cess and other material statutory dues were in 
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to us. and the records  of the Company   examined by 
us , dues of  Income Tax, Sales Tax , Wealth Tax, 
Service Tax, Custom Duty, Excise Duty  and Cess 
which have not been deposited on account of 
disputes and the  forum  where the dispute are 
pending  as under :

Name of the Dues /  Name Disputed Amount Period to Which Forum Where
of the Statute          (Rs. in lacs)  Amount Relates  Dispute is Pending
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Central Excise Act, 1944 3.37 2000-01 CESTAT

Central Excise Act, 1944 22.35 2010-11 Commissioner (Appeals)

Central Excise Act, 1944 0.31 2011-12 Commissioner (Appeals)

Service Tax

Finance Act, 1994 7.50 2004-05 Hon’ble High Court, Jaipur

Finance Act, 1994 0.54 2005-06 Commissioner of Central Excise  
(Appeals), Jaipur

Finance Act, 1994 0.64 2004-06 CESTAT

Finance Act, 1994 31.20 2009-10 CESTAT

Finance Act, 1994 188.01 2011-12 CESTAT

Finance Act, 1994 0.91 2010-11 Assistant Commissioner, Bhiwadi

Finance Act, 1994 0.42 2005-06 Deputy Commissioner

Provident Fund

Provident Fund Act 7.60 2004-05 Hon’ble High Court, Jaipur

(x) In our opinion, the accumulated losses of the Company are not more than fifty percent of its net worth. The Company has not 
incurred any cash losses during the current year and in the immediately preceding financial year.

th th(xi) Bonds of $ 13 Mn and $ 1Mn were due for redemption on 8  January, 2013 and 5  February, 2013 respectively having maturity 
th stvalue of equivalent to Rs. 7,603.40 lacs has been redeemed / paid on $1.50 Mn on 16  May, 2013, $2.50 mn on 21  May, 2013, 

rd th$ 0.50 Mn on 23  May, 2013 and $ 9.50 Mn on 27  June, 2013.

(xii) According to the information and explanations given to us, 
the Company has not granted loans and advances on the 
basis of security by way of pledge of shares, debentures 
and other securities.

(xiii) In our opinion, the provisions of any special statute 
applicable to Chit Fund, Nidhi or Mutual Benefit Fund / 
Society are not applicable to the Company.

(xiv) In our opinion and according to the information and 
explanations given to us, the Company is not dealing or 
trading in shares, securities, debentures and other 
investments, Accordingly, the provisions of clause 4(xiv) 
of the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2003 (as 
amended) are not applicable to the Company.

(xv) In our opinion, the terms and conditions on which the 
Company has given the guarantee for loans taken by 
subsidiary Company from banks or financial Institutions 
are not prejudicial to the interest of the Company.

(xvi) In our opinion, the term loans have been applied for the 
purpose for which they were raised.

(xvii) According to the information and explanations given to us 
and on an overall examination of the balance sheet of the 
Company, we report that no funds raised on short-term 
basis have been used for long-term investment.

(xviii) According to the information and explanations given to us, 
the Company has not made preferential allotment of 
share to parties covered in the register maintained under 
section 301 of the Act.

(xix)According to the information and explanations given to us, 
during the year the Company has issued 0% Unsecured 
Foreign Currency Convertible Bonds of US$ 1,000 each 
aggregating to US$ 3.792 Million equivalent to Rs. 
2,272.17 lacs and accordingly, the provisions of clause 
4(xiv) of the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2003 
(as amended) are not applicable to the Company.

(xx) According to the information and explanations given to us, 
the Company had not raised any money by way of public 
issue during the year.

(xxi) Based on the audit procedures performed and information 
and explanations given to us, no fraud on or by the 
Company has been noticed or reported during the course 
of our audit. 

For P. C. Bindal & Co.
Firm Registration No. : 003824N

Chartered Accountants

CA. K. C. Gupta
Place of Signature: New Delhi Partner

th Date: 26 May, 2014 Membership Number: 088638
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st BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31 MARCH, 2014

Notes 31-Mar-14 31-Mar-13
Rs. in lacs Rs. in lacs

Equity and liabilities
Shareholders’ funds
Share capital 3 7,428.25 7,428.25
Reserves and surplus 4 28,221.61 28,479.33

35,649.86 35,907.58
Non-current liabilities
Long-term borrowings 5 7,791.41 -
Trade payables - -
Long-term provisions 6 197.49 183.44

7,988.90 183.44
Current liabilities
Short-term borrowings 7 2,591.80 1,174.91
Trade payables 8 3,740.53 3,811.04
Other current liabilities 8 2,796.64 9,192.83
Short-term provisions 6 842.53 37.41

9,971.50 14,216.19
TOTAL 53,610.26 50,307.21
Assets
Non-current assets
Fixed assets
Tangible assets 9 8,668.86 9,744.97
Intangible assets 10 765.39 948.25
Capital work-in-progress 1,549.77 331.43
Non-current investments 11 18,672.33 11,317.52
Long-term loans and advances 12 80.18 90.19
Trade receivables 13.1 - 47.41
Other non-current assets 13.2 1,455.73 1,206.32

31,192.26 23,686.09
Current assets
Inventories 14 2,456.26 1,507.87
Trade receivables 13.1 6,785.54 6,153.15
Cash and Cash equivalents 15 54.18 193.06
Short-term loans and advances 12 13,046.06 18,682.37
Other current assets 13.2 75.96 84.67

22,418.00 26,621.12
TOTAL 53,610.26 50,307.21
Summary of significant accounting policies 2.1
The accompanying notes (1-41) are an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our report of even date For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

For P. C. Bindal & Co. Dr. KAILASH S. CHOUDHARI
Firm Registration No : 003824N Chairman
Chartered Accountants DIN No. 00023824

CA K. C. Gupta CHETAN CHOUDHARI B.R. RAKHECHA
Partner Managing Director Director
Membership No.: 088638 DIN No. 00872366 DIN No. 00026729

Place: New Delhi SATYENDRA GUPTA GAURAV MEHTA
thDate : 26  May, 2014 Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

As per our report of even date For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

For P. C. Bindal & Co. Dr. KAILASH S. CHOUDHARI
Firm Registration No : 003824N Chairman
Chartered Accountants DIN No. 00023824

CA K. C. Gupta CHETAN CHOUDHARI B.R. RAKHECHA
Partner Managing Director Director
Membership No.: 088638 DIN No. 00872366 DIN No. 00026729

Place: New Delhi SATYENDRA GUPTA GAURAV MEHTA
thDate : 26  May, 2014 Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
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STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED st 31 MARCH, 2014
Notes 31-Mar-14 31-Mar-13

Rs. in lacs Rs. in lacs

Income

Revenue from operations (gross) 16 22,882.34 23,925.53

Less: excise duty 875.94 625.04

Revenue from operations (net) 22,006.40 23,300.49

Other income 17 742.06 720.34

Total revenue (I) 22,748.46 24,020.83

Expenses

Cost of raw material and components consumed 18 13,261.21 13,744.11

Purchase of traded goods 19 213.60 395.82

(Increase)/ decrease in inventories of finished goods, 20 (652.73) (2.34) 
work-in-progress and traded goods

Employee benefits expense 21 1,519.47 1,386.03

Other expense 22 4,306.68 4,485.91

Total expense (II) 18,648.23 20,009.53

Earnings before interest, tax, depreciation, exceptional items  
and amortization, (EBITDA), (I) – (II) 4,100.23 4,011.30

Depreciation and amortization expense 23 1,499.38 1,663.21

Finance cost 24 705.90 373.38

Profit before exceptional items and tax 1,894.95 1,974.71

Exceptional Items 30 706.60 619.02

Profit before tax 2,601.55 2,593.73

Tax expenses

Income Tax 520.51 64.54

MAT Credit Entitlement 520.51 64.54

Total tax expense - -

Profit for the year 2,601.55 2,593.73

Earnings per equity share [nominal value of share 
stRs 5/- (31  March 2013: Rs 5/-)]

Basic 1.75 1.77

Diluted 1.60 1.77

Summary of significant accounting policies 2.1

The accompanying notes (1-41) are an integral part of the financial statements.
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED st 31 MARCH, 2014

31-Mar-14 31-Mar-13
Rs. in lacs Rs. in lacs

A. Cash flow from operating activities
Profit before tax 2,601.55 2,593.73
Profit before tax 2,601.55 2,593.73
Non-cash adjustment to reconcile profit before tax to net cash flows

Depreciation / amortization on continuing operation 1,499.38 1,663.21
Loss / (profit) on sale of fixed assets 20.76 (915.14)

Finance cost 705.90 373.38
Interest (income) (739.00) (615.36)
Operating profit before working capital changes 4,088.59 3,099.82
Movements in working capital :

Increase / (decrease) in trade and other payables 2,476.38 (622.43)
Decrease / (increase) in trade receivables (584.99) (204.52)
Decrease / (increase) in inventories (948.39) (308.54)
Decrease / (increase) in other receivables (2,990.19) (3,104.14)

Cash generated from / (used in) operations 2,041.40 (1,139.81)
Direct taxes paid (net of refunds) 520.51 64.54
Net cash flow from / (used in) operating activities (A) 2,561.91 (1,075.27)

B. Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of fixed assets, including CWIP (1,497.78) (343.59)
Proceeds from sale of fixed assets 18.26 1,685.37
Interest received 739.00 615.36
Net cash flow from / (used in) investing activities (B) (740.52) 1,957.14

C. Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from issuance of equity share capital - 1,131.41
Expense on issue of FCCBs (69.15) -
Proceeds / (Repayment) of Long-term borrowings (2,167.58) -
Proceeds / (Repayment) of Short-term borrowings 1,416.89 (1,522.31)
Proposed Dividend (371.41) -
Tax on Dividend (63.12) -
Finance cost (705.90) (373.38)

Net cash flow from / (used in) in financing activities (C) (1,960.27) (764.28)
Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalent (A+B+C) (138.88) 117.59
Cash and cash equivalent at the beginning of the year 193.06 75.47
Cash and cash equivalent at the end of the year 54.18 193.06
Components of cash and cash equivalent
Cash on hand 5.38 4.50
With banks- on current account 47.79 184.50
Deposits with original maturity of less than three months - -
Unpaid dividend 1.01 4.06
Total cash and cash equivalents (note 15) 54.18 193.06
Summary of significant accounting policies 2.1
The accompanying notes (1-41) are an integral part of the financial statements.
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st NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2014
1 CORPORATE INFORMATION

Aksh Optifibre Limited is a public Company domiciled in India and incorporated under the provisions of the Companies Act, 
1956. Its shares are listed at The Bombay Stock Exchange Limited, The National Stock Exchange Limited in India and GDRs 
are listed at Luxembourg Stock Exchange. The Company is engaged in the manufacturing and selling of Optical Fibre, 
Optical Fibre Cable, Fibre Reinforced Plastic Rods and Impregnated Glass Roving Reinforcement, The Company caters to 
both domestic and international markets. The Company also provides the Internet Protocol Television (IPTV) services in 
association with BSNL in 20 cities of North India. The Company is the pioneer in the FTTH (Fibre to the Home) space and has 
further consolidated its place by starting FTTH services in Delhi, Jaipur, Ajmer & Faridabad.

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with the Generally Accepted Accounting 
Principles in India (Indian GAAP) to comply with the Accounting Standards notified under Section 211(3C) of the Companies 
Act, 1956 (“the 1956 Act”) (which continue to be applicable in respect of Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the 2013 

thAct”) in terms of  General Circular 15/2013 dated 13  September, 2013 of the Ministry of Corporate Affairs and the relevant 
provisions of the 1956 Act/ 2013 Companies Act, as applicable 1956.

2.1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

a) Use of Estimates

The preparation of the financial statements is in conformity with the generally accepted accounting principles requires 
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amount of assets and liabilities and 
disclosure of contingent liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amount of revenues and 
expenses during the reporting year. Difference between the actual result and estimates are recognized in the year in 
which the results are known / materialized.

b) Fixed Assets

i) Fixed Assets are stated at cost of acquisition less accumulated depreciation and impairment. Cost includes any 
borrowing cost directly attributable to the acquisition / construction of fixed assets and bringing the assets to its 
working condition for its intended use.

ii) Exchange difference arising on account of liabilities incurred for acquisition or construction of Fixed Assets is 
adjusted in the carrying amount of related Fixed Assets.

c) Capital Work-in-Progress

Cost of assets not ready for use before the year-end and expenditure during construction period that is directly or 
indirectly related to construction, including borrowing cost are included under Capital Work-in-Progress.

d) Depreciation

i) Depreciation on Fixed Assets is provided on straight-line method at the rates specified in Schedule XIV of the 
Companies Act, 1956 and based on the estimated useful life of assets. Depreciation is charged on pro-rata basis 
for assets purchased / sold during the year. Individual assets costing up to Rs. 5,000/- are depreciated in full in the 
year of purchase.

Depreciation on equipments installed at customer premises is being provided at 20% on useful life estimated by 
the management.

License fee is amortized over the licensed period.

ii) Cost of leasehold land is amortized over lease period on a straight-line basis.

iii) Cost of software is amortized over its useful life on a straight-line basis.

iv) Extra shift depreciation is charged on the basis of actual extra shifts worked as required by Schedule XIV to the 
Companies Act, 1956.

e) Impairment of Assets

i) The carrying amounts of assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date if there is any indication of impairment 
based on internal / external factors. An impairment loss is recognized wherever the carrying amount of an asset 

As per our report of even date For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

For P. C. Bindal & Co. Dr. KAILASH S. CHOUDHARI
Firm Registration No : 003824N Chairman
Chartered Accountants DIN No. 00023824

CA K. C. Gupta CHETAN CHOUDHARI B.R. RAKHECHA
Partner Managing Director Director
Membership No.: 088638 DIN No. 00872366 DIN No. 00026729

Place: New Delhi SATYENDRA GUPTA GAURAV MEHTA
thDate : 26  May, 2014 Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED st 31 MARCH, 2014

31-Mar-14 31-Mar-13
Rs. in lacs Rs. in lacs

A. Cash flow from operating activities
Profit before tax 2,601.55 2,593.73
Profit before tax 2,601.55 2,593.73
Non-cash adjustment to reconcile profit before tax to net cash flows

Depreciation / amortization on continuing operation 1,499.38 1,663.21
Loss / (profit) on sale of fixed assets 20.76 (915.14)

Finance cost 705.90 373.38
Interest (income) (739.00) (615.36)
Operating profit before working capital changes 4,088.59 3,099.82
Movements in working capital :

Increase / (decrease) in trade and other payables 2,476.38 (622.43)
Decrease / (increase) in trade receivables (584.99) (204.52)
Decrease / (increase) in inventories (948.39) (308.54)
Decrease / (increase) in other receivables (2,990.19) (3,104.14)

Cash generated from / (used in) operations 2,041.40 (1,139.81)
Direct taxes paid (net of refunds) 520.51 64.54
Net cash flow from / (used in) operating activities (A) 2,561.91 (1,075.27)

B. Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of fixed assets, including CWIP (1,497.78) (343.59)
Proceeds from sale of fixed assets 18.26 1,685.37
Interest received 739.00 615.36
Net cash flow from / (used in) investing activities (B) (740.52) 1,957.14

C. Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from issuance of equity share capital - 1,131.41
Expense on issue of FCCBs (69.15) -
Proceeds / (Repayment) of Long-term borrowings (2,167.58) -
Proceeds / (Repayment) of Short-term borrowings 1,416.89 (1,522.31)
Proposed Dividend (371.41) -
Tax on Dividend (63.12) -
Finance cost (705.90) (373.38)

Net cash flow from / (used in) in financing activities (C) (1,960.27) (764.28)
Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalent (A+B+C) (138.88) 117.59
Cash and cash equivalent at the beginning of the year 193.06 75.47
Cash and cash equivalent at the end of the year 54.18 193.06
Components of cash and cash equivalent
Cash on hand 5.38 4.50
With banks- on current account 47.79 184.50
Deposits with original maturity of less than three months - -
Unpaid dividend 1.01 4.06
Total cash and cash equivalents (note 15) 54.18 193.06
Summary of significant accounting policies 2.1
The accompanying notes (1-41) are an integral part of the financial statements.
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st NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2014
1 CORPORATE INFORMATION

Aksh Optifibre Limited is a public Company domiciled in India and incorporated under the provisions of the Companies Act, 
1956. Its shares are listed at The Bombay Stock Exchange Limited, The National Stock Exchange Limited in India and GDRs 
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thAct”) in terms of  General Circular 15/2013 dated 13  September, 2013 of the Ministry of Corporate Affairs and the relevant 
provisions of the 1956 Act/ 2013 Companies Act, as applicable 1956.
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expenses during the reporting year. Difference between the actual result and estimates are recognized in the year in 
which the results are known / materialized.

b) Fixed Assets

i) Fixed Assets are stated at cost of acquisition less accumulated depreciation and impairment. Cost includes any 
borrowing cost directly attributable to the acquisition / construction of fixed assets and bringing the assets to its 
working condition for its intended use.

ii) Exchange difference arising on account of liabilities incurred for acquisition or construction of Fixed Assets is 
adjusted in the carrying amount of related Fixed Assets.

c) Capital Work-in-Progress

Cost of assets not ready for use before the year-end and expenditure during construction period that is directly or 
indirectly related to construction, including borrowing cost are included under Capital Work-in-Progress.

d) Depreciation

i) Depreciation on Fixed Assets is provided on straight-line method at the rates specified in Schedule XIV of the 
Companies Act, 1956 and based on the estimated useful life of assets. Depreciation is charged on pro-rata basis 
for assets purchased / sold during the year. Individual assets costing up to Rs. 5,000/- are depreciated in full in the 
year of purchase.

Depreciation on equipments installed at customer premises is being provided at 20% on useful life estimated by 
the management.

License fee is amortized over the licensed period.

ii) Cost of leasehold land is amortized over lease period on a straight-line basis.

iii) Cost of software is amortized over its useful life on a straight-line basis.

iv) Extra shift depreciation is charged on the basis of actual extra shifts worked as required by Schedule XIV to the 
Companies Act, 1956.

e) Impairment of Assets

i) The carrying amounts of assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date if there is any indication of impairment 
based on internal / external factors. An impairment loss is recognized wherever the carrying amount of an asset 

As per our report of even date For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
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Firm Registration No : 003824N Chairman
Chartered Accountants DIN No. 00023824

CA K. C. Gupta CHETAN CHOUDHARI B.R. RAKHECHA
Partner Managing Director Director
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exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the greater of the asset’s net selling price and value 
in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted at their present value at the 
weighted average cost of capital.

ii) After impairment, depreciation is provided on the revised carrying amount of the asset over its remaining useful 
life.

iii) A previously recognized impairment loss is increased or reversed depending on changes in circumstances. 
However, the carrying value after reversal is not increased beyond the carrying value that would have prevailed 
by charging usual depreciation if there was no impairment.

f) Investments

Investments that are readily realizable and intended to be held for not more than a year are classified as current 
investments. All other investments are classified as long-term investments. Long Term investments are stated at cost. 
Provision for diminution in the value of long- term investments is made only if such diminution is other than temporary. 
Current Investments are carried at the lower of cost and fair value and provisions are made to recognize the decline in 
the carrying value.

g) Inventories

i) Raw materials, work-in-process, finished goods, trading stock, packing material and stores and spares parts are 
valued at the lower of cost and net realizable value except scrap which is valued at net realizable value.

ii) Cost of inventories of items that are not ordinarily interchangeable or are meant for specific projects is assigned 
by specific identification of their individual cost. Cost of other inventories is ascertained on the FIFO basis. In 
determining the cost of work-in-process and finished goods, fixed production overheads are allocated on the 
basis of normal capacity of production facilities.

iii) The comparison of cost and realizable value is made on an item-by-item basis.

iv) Net realizable value of work-in- process is determined on the basis of selling prices of related finished products.

v) Raw Material and other supplies held for use in production of inventories are not written down below cost unless 
their prices have declined and it is estimated that the cost of related finished goods will exceed their net realizable 
value.

h) Foreign Currency Transactions

i) Foreign currency transactions are recorded in the reporting currency, by applying to the foreign currency amount 
the exchange rate between the reporting currency and the foreign currency at the date of transaction.

ii) Foreign currency monetary items are reported using the closing rate. Non-monetary items which are carried in 
terms of historical cost denominated in a foreign currency are reported using the exchange rate at the date of the 
transaction; and non-monetary items which are carried at fair value or other similar valuation denominated in a 
foreign currency are reported using the exchange rates that existed when the values were determined.

iii) Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items or on reporting Company’s monetary items at 
rates different from those at which they were initially recorded during the year, or reported in previous financial 
statements, are recognized as income or as expense in the year in which they arise.

iv) The premium or discount arising at the inception of forward exchange contracts is amortized as expense or 
income over the life of the contract. Exchange differences on such contracts are recognized in the statement of 
profit and loss in the year in which exchange rate changes. Any profit or loss arising on cancellation or renewal of 
forward exchange contracts is recognized as income or expense for the year. None of the forward exchange 
contracts are taken for trading or speculation purpose.

i) Borrowing Cost

Borrowing cost directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that necessarily takes a 
substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalized as part of the cost of the respective 
asset. All other borrowing cost are expensed in the period they occur. Borrowing cost consist of interest and other cost 
that Company incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds.
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j) Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the 
revenue can be readily measured.

Sales of Goods and Services

Revenue is recognized when the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods have been passed to the 
buyer (usually at the point of dispatch to customers). Sales include excise duty, sale of scrap and net of sale tax and 
quantity discount.

Income from services is recognized on the completion of services. Period based services are accounted for 
proportionately over the period of service.

Income from Interest

Revenue is recognized on a time proportion basis taking into account the amount outstanding and the rate applicable.

Other Incomes

Other Incomes are accrued as earned except where the receipt of income is uncertain.

k) Retirement and other Employee Benefits

i) Retirement benefits in the form of Provident Fund are a defined contribution scheme and the contributions are 
charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss for the year when the contributions to the respective funds are due. 
The Company has no other obligation other than the contribution payable.

ii) Gratuity liability is a defined benefit obligation and is provided for on the basis of an actuarial valuation on 
Projected Unit Credit Method calculated at the end of each financial year. The liability with regard to gratuity in 
respect of any employee not covered under group gratuity scheme is provided on the basis of amount payable to 
such employees as if they were to retire on the last day of financial year.

iii) Compensated Absences liability is provided for based on actuarial valuation done as per Projected Unit Credit 
Method calculated at the end of each financial year.

iv) Actuarial gains / losses are immediately taken to Statement of  Profit and Loss and are not deferred.

l) Export Incentives

Export Incentive in the form of advance licenses / credit earned under duty entitlement pass book scheme are treated 
as income in the year of export at the estimated realizable value / actual credit earned on exports made during the year.

m) Taxes on Income

Tax expense comprises of current and deferred tax. Current income tax is determined as the amount of tax payable in 
respect of taxable income for the year based on provisions of Income Tax Act, 1961. Deferred income tax reflects the 
impact of current year timing differences between taxable income and accounting income for the year and reversal of 
timing differences of earlier years.

Deferred tax is measured based on the tax rates and the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet 
date. Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset, if legally and enforceable right exist to set off current tax 
asset against current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to the taxes on income 
levied by same governing taxation laws. Deferred tax assets are recognized only to the extent that there is reasonable 
certainty that sufficient future taxable income will be available against which such deferred tax assets can be realized. 
In case of unabsorbed depreciation and carry forward tax losses, all deferred tax assets are recognized only if there is 
virtual certainty supported by convincing evidence that they can be realized against future taxable profits.

At each balance sheet date the Company re-assesses unrecognized deferred tax assets. It recognizes unrecognized 
deferred tax assets to the extent that it has become reasonably certain or virtually certain, as the case may be that 
sufficient future taxable income will be available against which such deferred tax assets can be realized.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date. The Company writes-down the 
carrying amount of a deferred tax asset to the extent that it is no longer reasonably certain or virtually certain, as the 
case may be, that sufficient future taxable income will be available against which deferred tax asset can be realized. 
Any such write-down is reversed to the extent that it becomes reasonably certain or virtually certain, as the case may 
be, that sufficient future taxable income will be available.
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exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the greater of the asset’s net selling price and value 
in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted at their present value at the 
weighted average cost of capital.

ii) After impairment, depreciation is provided on the revised carrying amount of the asset over its remaining useful 
life.

iii) A previously recognized impairment loss is increased or reversed depending on changes in circumstances. 
However, the carrying value after reversal is not increased beyond the carrying value that would have prevailed 
by charging usual depreciation if there was no impairment.

f) Investments

Investments that are readily realizable and intended to be held for not more than a year are classified as current 
investments. All other investments are classified as long-term investments. Long Term investments are stated at cost. 
Provision for diminution in the value of long- term investments is made only if such diminution is other than temporary. 
Current Investments are carried at the lower of cost and fair value and provisions are made to recognize the decline in 
the carrying value.

g) Inventories

i) Raw materials, work-in-process, finished goods, trading stock, packing material and stores and spares parts are 
valued at the lower of cost and net realizable value except scrap which is valued at net realizable value.

ii) Cost of inventories of items that are not ordinarily interchangeable or are meant for specific projects is assigned 
by specific identification of their individual cost. Cost of other inventories is ascertained on the FIFO basis. In 
determining the cost of work-in-process and finished goods, fixed production overheads are allocated on the 
basis of normal capacity of production facilities.

iii) The comparison of cost and realizable value is made on an item-by-item basis.

iv) Net realizable value of work-in- process is determined on the basis of selling prices of related finished products.

v) Raw Material and other supplies held for use in production of inventories are not written down below cost unless 
their prices have declined and it is estimated that the cost of related finished goods will exceed their net realizable 
value.
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i) Foreign currency transactions are recorded in the reporting currency, by applying to the foreign currency amount 
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transaction; and non-monetary items which are carried at fair value or other similar valuation denominated in a 
foreign currency are reported using the exchange rates that existed when the values were determined.

iii) Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items or on reporting Company’s monetary items at 
rates different from those at which they were initially recorded during the year, or reported in previous financial 
statements, are recognized as income or as expense in the year in which they arise.

iv) The premium or discount arising at the inception of forward exchange contracts is amortized as expense or 
income over the life of the contract. Exchange differences on such contracts are recognized in the statement of 
profit and loss in the year in which exchange rate changes. Any profit or loss arising on cancellation or renewal of 
forward exchange contracts is recognized as income or expense for the year. None of the forward exchange 
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Borrowing cost directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that necessarily takes a 
substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalized as part of the cost of the respective 
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3. Share capital

31-Mar-14 31-Mar-13
Rs. in lacs Rs.in lacs

Authorized share (No.)
st  170,100,000 (31 March, 2013: 170,100,000) Equity 8,505.00 8,505.00 

Shares of Rs. 5/- each

Issued, subscribed and fully paid-up share (No.)
st  148,564,989 (31 March, 2013: 148,564,989 ) 7,428.25 7,428.25 

Equity Shares of Rs. 5/- each fully paid up

Total issued, subscribed and fully paid-up share capital 7,428.25 7,428.25 

(a) Reconciliation of the shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting year
Equity shares

31-Mar-14                  31-Mar-13

No. Rs. In lacs No. Rs. In lacs

At the beginning of the year 148,564,989 7,428.25 142,924,871 7,146.24

Add:

- Issued pursuant to conversion of FCCBs - - 5,640,118 282.01

Outstanding at the end of the year 148,564,989 7,428.25 148,564,989 7,428.25

Terms / rights attached to equity shares

The Company has only one class of equity shares having par value of  Rs. 5/- per share. Each holder of equity shares is 
entitled to one vote per share. The Company declares and pays dividends in Indian Rupees. The dividend proposed by 
the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in ensuing  Annual General Meeting.

In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the 
Company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity 
shares held by the shareholders.

(b)  Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company

Name of the shareholder 31-Mar-14 31-Mar-13

No. % holding No. % holding

Dr. Kailash S. Choudhari 25,842,700 17.39% 25,842,700 17.39%

Religare Finvest Limited 20,851,807 14.04% 14,816,807 9.97%

Sunidhi Capital Private Limited 9,005,250 6.06% - 0.00%

Davinder Kumar Jain - 0.00% 15,356,251 10.34%

The Bank of New York, Mellon 9,065,850 6.10% 9,065,850 6.10%

Seema Choudhari 7,809,341 5.26% 7,809,341 5.26%

Minimum Alternative Tax (MAT) credit is recognized as an asset only when and to the extent there is convincing 
evidence that the Company will pay normal income tax during the specified period. In the year in which the MAT credit 
becomes eligible to be recognized as an asset in accordance with the recommendations contained in Guidance Note 
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India, the said asset is created by way of a credit to the Statement of   
Profit and Loss and shown as MAT Credit Entitlement. The Company reviews the same at each balance sheet date and 
writes down the carrying amount of MAT Credit Entitlement to the extent there is no longer convincing evidence to the 
effect that Company will pay normal Income Tax during the specified period.

n) Operating Leases

Assets given on operating leases are included in fixed assets. Lease income is recognized in the Profit and Loss on a 
straight-line basis over the lease term. Cost, including depreciation are recognized as an expense in the Statement of 
Profit and Loss. Initial direct costs such as legal cost, brokerage costs, etc. are recognized immediately in the 
Statement of  Profit and Loss.

o) Earnings Per Share

The Company reports basic and diluted earnings per share in accordance with Notified AS 20 under the Companies 
(Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006 issued by The Institute of Chartered Accountants of India on ‘Earnings Per Share’. 
Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders 
after deducting attributable taxes by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period. 
Diluted earnings per share are computed by dividing the net profit or loss for the period by the weighted average 
number of equity shares outstanding during the period. Both profit for the year and weighted average numbers of 
shares are adjusted for the effects of all diluted potential equity shares except where the results are anti-dilutive.

p) Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

As per Notified AS 29 under the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006, Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and 
Contingent Assets, issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India, the Company recognizes provisions 
(without discounting to its present value) only when it has a present obligation as a result of a past event, it is probable 
that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation as and when a 
reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation can be made.

No provision is recognized for –

Any possible obligation that arises from past events and the existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence 
or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company; or

Any present obligation that arises from past events but is not recognized because –

• It is not probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the 
obligation; or

• A reliable estimate of the amount of obligation cannot be made.

Such obligations are disclosed as Contingent Liabilities. These are assessed continually and only that part of the 
obligation for which an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is probable, is provided for, except in 
the extremely rare circumstances where no reliable estimate can be made.

q) Miscellaneous Expenditure

Expenditure on issue of shares / foreign currency convertible bonds (FCCBs) / Global Depository Receipts (GDRs) / 
shares under Qualified Institutional Placements (QIP) and premium on redemption of FCCBs are adjusted against 
Securities Premium account.

r) Measurement of EBITDA

As permitted by the Guidance Note on the Revised Schedule VI to the Companies Act, 1956, the Company has elected 
to present earnings before interest, tax, depreciation, exceptional items and amortization (EBITDA) as a separate line 
item on the face of the statement of profit and loss. The Company measures EBITDA on the basis of profit / (loss) from 
continuing operations. In its measurement, the Company does not include depreciation and amortization expense, 
finance cost and tax expense.
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3. Share capital

31-Mar-14 31-Mar-13
Rs. in lacs Rs.in lacs

Authorized share (No.)
st  170,100,000 (31 March, 2013: 170,100,000) Equity 8,505.00 8,505.00 

Shares of Rs. 5/- each

Issued, subscribed and fully paid-up share (No.)
st  148,564,989 (31 March, 2013: 148,564,989 ) 7,428.25 7,428.25 

Equity Shares of Rs. 5/- each fully paid up

Total issued, subscribed and fully paid-up share capital 7,428.25 7,428.25 

(a) Reconciliation of the shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting year
Equity shares

31-Mar-14                  31-Mar-13

No. Rs. In lacs No. Rs. In lacs

At the beginning of the year 148,564,989 7,428.25 142,924,871 7,146.24

Add:

- Issued pursuant to conversion of FCCBs - - 5,640,118 282.01

Outstanding at the end of the year 148,564,989 7,428.25 148,564,989 7,428.25

Terms / rights attached to equity shares

The Company has only one class of equity shares having par value of  Rs. 5/- per share. Each holder of equity shares is 
entitled to one vote per share. The Company declares and pays dividends in Indian Rupees. The dividend proposed by 
the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in ensuing  Annual General Meeting.

In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the 
Company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity 
shares held by the shareholders.

(b)  Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company

Name of the shareholder 31-Mar-14 31-Mar-13

No. % holding No. % holding

Dr. Kailash S. Choudhari 25,842,700 17.39% 25,842,700 17.39%

Religare Finvest Limited 20,851,807 14.04% 14,816,807 9.97%

Sunidhi Capital Private Limited 9,005,250 6.06% - 0.00%

Davinder Kumar Jain - 0.00% 15,356,251 10.34%

The Bank of New York, Mellon 9,065,850 6.10% 9,065,850 6.10%

Seema Choudhari 7,809,341 5.26% 7,809,341 5.26%

Minimum Alternative Tax (MAT) credit is recognized as an asset only when and to the extent there is convincing 
evidence that the Company will pay normal income tax during the specified period. In the year in which the MAT credit 
becomes eligible to be recognized as an asset in accordance with the recommendations contained in Guidance Note 
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India, the said asset is created by way of a credit to the Statement of   
Profit and Loss and shown as MAT Credit Entitlement. The Company reviews the same at each balance sheet date and 
writes down the carrying amount of MAT Credit Entitlement to the extent there is no longer convincing evidence to the 
effect that Company will pay normal Income Tax during the specified period.

n) Operating Leases

Assets given on operating leases are included in fixed assets. Lease income is recognized in the Profit and Loss on a 
straight-line basis over the lease term. Cost, including depreciation are recognized as an expense in the Statement of 
Profit and Loss. Initial direct costs such as legal cost, brokerage costs, etc. are recognized immediately in the 
Statement of  Profit and Loss.

o) Earnings Per Share

The Company reports basic and diluted earnings per share in accordance with Notified AS 20 under the Companies 
(Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006 issued by The Institute of Chartered Accountants of India on ‘Earnings Per Share’. 
Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders 
after deducting attributable taxes by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period. 
Diluted earnings per share are computed by dividing the net profit or loss for the period by the weighted average 
number of equity shares outstanding during the period. Both profit for the year and weighted average numbers of 
shares are adjusted for the effects of all diluted potential equity shares except where the results are anti-dilutive.

p) Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

As per Notified AS 29 under the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006, Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and 
Contingent Assets, issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India, the Company recognizes provisions 
(without discounting to its present value) only when it has a present obligation as a result of a past event, it is probable 
that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation as and when a 
reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation can be made.

No provision is recognized for –

Any possible obligation that arises from past events and the existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence 
or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company; or

Any present obligation that arises from past events but is not recognized because –

• It is not probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the 
obligation; or

• A reliable estimate of the amount of obligation cannot be made.

Such obligations are disclosed as Contingent Liabilities. These are assessed continually and only that part of the 
obligation for which an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is probable, is provided for, except in 
the extremely rare circumstances where no reliable estimate can be made.

q) Miscellaneous Expenditure

Expenditure on issue of shares / foreign currency convertible bonds (FCCBs) / Global Depository Receipts (GDRs) / 
shares under Qualified Institutional Placements (QIP) and premium on redemption of FCCBs are adjusted against 
Securities Premium account.

r) Measurement of EBITDA

As permitted by the Guidance Note on the Revised Schedule VI to the Companies Act, 1956, the Company has elected 
to present earnings before interest, tax, depreciation, exceptional items and amortization (EBITDA) as a separate line 
item on the face of the statement of profit and loss. The Company measures EBITDA on the basis of profit / (loss) from 
continuing operations. In its measurement, the Company does not include depreciation and amortization expense, 
finance cost and tax expense.
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4.  Reserves and surplus 

31-Mar-14 31-Mar-13
Rs. in lacs Rs. in lacs

Securities premium account

Balance as per the last financial statements 33,830.69 32,981.29

Add / (Less) :

- Issue expenses on issue of FCCBs (USD 3,792 Million) (69.15) -

- Premium On Redemption of FCCBs (2,355.59) -

- Issue of 5,640,118 equity shares upon conversion of FCCBs - 849.40

Closing Balance 31,405.95 33,830.69

Surplus / (deficit) in the statement of profit and loss

Balance as per last financial statements (5,366.36) (7,960.09)

Profit for the year 2,601.55 2,593.73

Proposed Dividend (371.41) -

Tax on Dividend (63.12) -

Net Deficit in the statement of profit and loss (3,199.34) (5,366.36)

Total reserves and surplus 28,221.61 28,479.33 

5. Long-term borrowings

Non-current portion Current maturities
31-Mar-14 31-Mar-13 31-Mar-14 31-Mar-13
Rs. in lacs Rs. in lacs Rs. in lacs Rs. in lacs

Term Loans

Secured Loans

External Commercial Borrowings 5,133.95 - 1,140.88 -
st 10.472 Mn USD (31 March, 2013 : Nil)

Term Loan from Bank 333.33 - 166.67 -

Term Loan from Others 51.96 - 25.47 -

Unsecured Loans

Foreign Currency Convertible Bonds (FCCBs) - -
st 3.792 Mn USD (31 March, 2013: Nil)  0% FCCBs 2,272.17 - - - 

due on Feb-2019 of  $ 1,000 each (unsecured)

7,791.41 - 1,333.02 -

The above amount includes

Secured borrowings 5,519.24 - 1,333.02 -

Unsecured borrowings 2,272.17 - - -

Amount disclosed under the head “other current  - - (1,333.02) -
liabilities” (note 8)

7,791.41 - - -   

Capital reserve 15.00 15.00

Aksh Optifibre Limited

Annual Report 2013-2014
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1. External Commercial Borrowings are secured by way of first pari- passu charge on the fixed assets of the Company and 
personal guarantee of Dr. Kailash S. Choudhari.

2 Term Loan from Bank are secured by way of exclusive charge on Plant and Machinery installed under the project and 
further secured by personal guarantee of Dr. Kailash S. Choudhari.

3. Term Loan from others are secured by way of exclusive charge on Fixed assets installed under the subject project.

4. Issue of Foreign Currency Convertible Bonds (FCCBs) convertible into ordinary shares, the particulars, terms of issue 
st and the status of conversion as at 31 March, 2014 are given below :-

Issue 0% FCCBs (due February 2019)
thIssued on 10  February, 2014

Issue Amount USD 3.792 Million

Face Value USD 1000

Fixed Exchange Rate for conversion USD 1= Rs. 62.32
thRedeemable on 10  February, 2019

Redemption Percentage of the principal amount 120%

FCCBs converted Nil

Shares issued on conversion of FCCBs Nil
stFCCBs outstanding as on 31  March, 2014 USD 3.792 Million

Shares that could be issued on conversion of 14,100,086 shares
outstanding FCCBs   

6. Provisions

Long-term Short-term
31-Mar-14 31-Mar-13 31-Mar-14 31-Mar-13
Rs. in lacs Rs. in lacs Rs. in lacs Rs. in lacs

Provision for Gratuity and Compensated Absences 197.49 183.44 5.53 5.37

Provision for Income Tax (net of Prepaid Taxes) - - 402.47 32.04

Proposed Dividend - - 371.41 -

Provision for Tax on Dividend - - 63.12 -

197.49 183.44 842.53 37.41 
 

7. Short-term borrowings 

31-Mar-14 31-Mar-13
Rs. in lacs Rs. in lacs

Secured Loans
-Working Capital Facilities 1,511.03 147.38
-Buyers Credit from Banks 488.58 290.16

Unsecured Loans
   Deposits (unsecured)

0% loan from Chairman repayable on demand - 47.75
15% Inter Corporate Deposit from related parties repayable on demand - 34.00
15% Inter Corporate Deposit from others repayable on demand 200.00 230.00
9% Security Deposits - 9.92
0% Security Deposits 392.19 415.70

2,591.80 1,174.91
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1. External Commercial Borrowings are secured by way of first pari- passu charge on the fixed assets of the Company and 
personal guarantee of Dr. Kailash S. Choudhari.

2 Term Loan from Bank are secured by way of exclusive charge on Plant and Machinery installed under the project and 
further secured by personal guarantee of Dr. Kailash S. Choudhari.
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The above amount includes
Secured borrowings 1,999.61 437.54
Unsecured borrowings 592.19 737.37

1. Working capital facilities from banks are  secured  by  way  of  first pari-passu charge on Current Assets both present 
and future and second pari-passu charge on the fixed assets of the Company. These facilities are further secured by 
way of first pari-passu charge on the immovable properties of the Company and personal guarantee of Dr. Kailash S. 
Choudhari. The cash credit is repayable on demand. The interest payable on cash credit ranges between 14.00% to 
14.50% and on packing credit 6.15%.

2. Non fund based limits are secured by first pari-passu charge on immovable properties of the Company and personal 
guarantee of Dr. Kailash S. Choudhari.

8. Other current liabilities

31-Mar-14 31-Mar-13
Rs. in lacs Rs. in lacs

Trade payables (including acceptances) 3,740.53 3,811.04

Other liabilities

Current maturities of long term debt (Refer Note No 5) 1,333.02 -

Foreign currency convertible bonds - 7,603.40

Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 120.03 12.19

Advance from Customers 93.40 168.14

Unearned revenue 6.06 6.08

Unclaimed Dividend #

Dividend 2005-06 - 3.05

Dividend 2006-07 1.01 1.01

Retention Money & Security Deposit 2.30 1.80

Other current liabilities 1,240.82 1,397.16

2,796.64 9,192.83

6,537.17 13,003.87

# Unclaimed dividend will be deposited in Investor Education and Protection Fund as and when due.
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The above amount includes
Secured borrowings 1,999.61 437.54
Unsecured borrowings 592.19 737.37

1. Working capital facilities from banks are  secured  by  way  of  first pari-passu charge on Current Assets both present 
and future and second pari-passu charge on the fixed assets of the Company. These facilities are further secured by 
way of first pari-passu charge on the immovable properties of the Company and personal guarantee of Dr. Kailash S. 
Choudhari. The cash credit is repayable on demand. The interest payable on cash credit ranges between 14.00% to 
14.50% and on packing credit 6.15%.

2. Non fund based limits are secured by first pari-passu charge on immovable properties of the Company and personal 
guarantee of Dr. Kailash S. Choudhari.

8. Other current liabilities

31-Mar-14 31-Mar-13
Rs. in lacs Rs. in lacs

Trade payables (including acceptances) 3,740.53 3,811.04

Other liabilities

Current maturities of long term debt (Refer Note No 5) 1,333.02 -

Foreign currency convertible bonds - 7,603.40

Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 120.03 12.19

Advance from Customers 93.40 168.14

Unearned revenue 6.06 6.08

Unclaimed Dividend #

Dividend 2005-06 - 3.05

Dividend 2006-07 1.01 1.01

Retention Money & Security Deposit 2.30 1.80

Other current liabilities 1,240.82 1,397.16

2,796.64 9,192.83

6,537.17 13,003.87

# Unclaimed dividend will be deposited in Investor Education and Protection Fund as and when due.
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11. Non-current investments 

31-Mar-14 31-Mar-13
Rs. in lacs Rs. in lacs

Trade investments (valued at cost unless stated otherwise)

Investment in subsidiaries

Unquoted equity instruments
st295 (31  March, 2013: 1) equity share of Arab Emirates Dhiram (AED) 150,000/- each 7,373.01 18.20 

fully paid-up in AOL (FZE)
st 225,950,000 (31 March, 2013: 225,950,000) Equity Shares of Rs. 5/- each 11,297.50 11,297.50 

in APAKSH Broadband Limited

18,670.51 11,315.70

Non-trade investments (valued at cost unless stated otherwise)

Investment in equity instruments (quoted)
st22,300 (31  March, 2013: 22,300) equity shares of  Rs.10/- each fully paid-up 0.45 0.45 

in CMI Limited

Government and trust securities (unquoted)

National Saving Certificates (Deposited with Government Department as Security) 0.87 0.87

Kisan Vikas Patra 0.50 0.50

1.82 1.82

18,672.33 11,317.52

Aggregate amount of quoted investments (Market value: Rs 3.04 lacs 0.45 0.45 
(31.03.2013: Rs 1.58 lacs)

Aggregate amount of unquoted investments 18,671.88 11,317.07

12. Loans and advances (Unsecured, considered Good unless stated otherwise)

Non-current Current
31-Mar-14 31-Mar-13 31-Mar-14 31-Mar-13
Rs. in lacs Rs. in lacs Rs. in lacs Rs. in lacs

Capital advances - 6.98 - -

Security deposit 80.18 83.21 44.32 30.37

Loan and advances to related parties - - 8,501.07 13,758.89

Advances recoverable in cash or kind - - 2,175.62 3,286.73

Other loans and advances

Income Tax Refund Due - - 57.64 43.46

MAT Credit Entitlement - - 756.02 235.51

Prepaid expenses - - 222.29 174.06

Balances with statutory / government authorities - - 1,289.10 1,153.35

- - 2,325.05 1,606.38

Total 80.18 90.19 13,046.06 18,682.37 

13. Trade receivables and other assets

13.1 Trade receivables 

Non-current Current
31-Mar-14 31-Mar-13 31-Mar-14 31-Mar-13
Rs. in lacs Rs. in lacs Rs. in lacs Rs. in lacs

Unsecured, considered good unless stated otherwise

Outstanding for a period exceeding six months from the - - 1,867.35 1,854.69
date they are due for payment

Other receivables - 47.41 4,918.19 4,298.46

- 47.41 6,785.54 6,153.15  

13.2. Other assets

Non-current Current
31-Mar-14 31-Mar-13 31-Mar-14 31-Mar-13
Rs. in lacs Rs. in lacs Rs. in lacs Rs. in lacs

Unsecured, considered good unless stated otherwise

Non-current bank balances (note15) 1,455.73             1,206.32 - -

Interest accrued on fixed deposits - - 36.94 84.67

Interest accrued on other deposits - - 39.02 -

- - 75.96 84.67

1,455.73 1,206.32 75.96 84.67

14. Inventories (valued at lower of cost and net realizable value) 

31-Mar-14 31-Mar-13
Rs. in lacs Rs. in lacs

i) Finished Goods and Traded Goods 376.19 167.15

ii) Raw Material 1,030.87 742.16

iii) Semi Finished Goods 834.50 390.81

iv) Stores, Spares and others 214.70 207.75

2,456.26 1,507.87

15. Cash and cash equivalents

Non-current Current
31-Mar-14 31-Mar-13 31-Mar-14 31-Mar-13
Rs. in lacs Rs. in lacs Rs. in lacs Rs. in lacs

Cash and cash equivalents
Balances with banks:

– On current accounts - - 47.79 184.50

– Deposits with original maturity of - - - -
   less than three months

– On unpaid dividend account - - 1.01 4.06

Cash on hand -                          -                    5.38                 4.50

- - 54.18 193.06 
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11. Non-current investments 

31-Mar-14 31-Mar-13
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Trade investments (valued at cost unless stated otherwise)

Investment in subsidiaries

Unquoted equity instruments
st295 (31  March, 2013: 1) equity share of Arab Emirates Dhiram (AED) 150,000/- each 7,373.01 18.20 

fully paid-up in AOL (FZE)
st 225,950,000 (31 March, 2013: 225,950,000) Equity Shares of Rs. 5/- each 11,297.50 11,297.50 

in APAKSH Broadband Limited

18,670.51 11,315.70

Non-trade investments (valued at cost unless stated otherwise)

Investment in equity instruments (quoted)
st22,300 (31  March, 2013: 22,300) equity shares of  Rs.10/- each fully paid-up 0.45 0.45 

in CMI Limited

Government and trust securities (unquoted)

National Saving Certificates (Deposited with Government Department as Security) 0.87 0.87

Kisan Vikas Patra 0.50 0.50

1.82 1.82

18,672.33 11,317.52

Aggregate amount of quoted investments (Market value: Rs 3.04 lacs 0.45 0.45 
(31.03.2013: Rs 1.58 lacs)

Aggregate amount of unquoted investments 18,671.88 11,317.07

12. Loans and advances (Unsecured, considered Good unless stated otherwise)

Non-current Current
31-Mar-14 31-Mar-13 31-Mar-14 31-Mar-13
Rs. in lacs Rs. in lacs Rs. in lacs Rs. in lacs

Capital advances - 6.98 - -

Security deposit 80.18 83.21 44.32 30.37

Loan and advances to related parties - - 8,501.07 13,758.89

Advances recoverable in cash or kind - - 2,175.62 3,286.73

Other loans and advances

Income Tax Refund Due - - 57.64 43.46

MAT Credit Entitlement - - 756.02 235.51

Prepaid expenses - - 222.29 174.06

Balances with statutory / government authorities - - 1,289.10 1,153.35

- - 2,325.05 1,606.38

Total 80.18 90.19 13,046.06 18,682.37 

13. Trade receivables and other assets

13.1 Trade receivables 

Non-current Current
31-Mar-14 31-Mar-13 31-Mar-14 31-Mar-13
Rs. in lacs Rs. in lacs Rs. in lacs Rs. in lacs

Unsecured, considered good unless stated otherwise

Outstanding for a period exceeding six months from the - - 1,867.35 1,854.69
date they are due for payment

Other receivables - 47.41 4,918.19 4,298.46
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Non-current Current
31-Mar-14 31-Mar-13 31-Mar-14 31-Mar-13
Rs. in lacs Rs. in lacs Rs. in lacs Rs. in lacs
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Other bank balances

– Deposits with original maturity for 0.10 0.10 - - 
   more than 12 months

– Margin money deposit 1,455.63 1,206.22 - -

1,455.73 1,206.32 - -

Amount disclosed under non-current assets (note 13.2) (1,455.73) (1,206.32) - -

- - 54.18 193.06
Margin money deposits given as security
Margin money deposits with a carrying amount of Rs.1,455.63 lacs (31.03.2013: Rs.1,206.22 lacs) are pledged with
Banks for various Facilities.

16. Revenue from operations

31-Mar-14 31-Mar-13
Rs. in lacs Rs. in lacs

Revenue from operations

Sale of products

- Finished goods 20,979.03 21,038.30

- Traded goods 301.32 593.14

Sale of services 813.35 1,099.35

Other operating revenue

-Scrap sales 22.26 14.59

-Export Incentives 696.88 657.32

-Exchange Fluctuation 43.91 401.96

-Other operating revenue 25.59 120.87

Revenue from operations (gross) 22,882.34 23,925.53

Less: Excise duty # 875.94 625.04

Revenue from operations (net) 22,006.40 23,300.49

# Excise duty on sales amounting to Rs. 875.94 lacs (31.03.2013 : Rs. 625.04 lacs)  has been reduced from sales in 
statement of profit and loss  and excise duty on increase / (decrease) in stock amounting to Rs. 25.65 lacs (31.03.2013 : Rs. 
1.40 lacs) has been considered as (income) / expense in note 22 of financial statements.

Detail of products sold

31-Mar-14 31-Mar-13
Rs. In lacs Rs. In lacs

Finished goods sold
Optical Fibre and Optical Fibre Cables 11,639.49 14,327.22

Fibre Reinforced Plastic Rod and Impregnated Glass Roving Reinforcement 9,339.54 6,711.08

20,979.03 21,038.30
Traded goods sold
Telecom and electronic items 301.32 593.14

301.32 593.14
Detail of services rendered
IPTV and VoIP 147.44 305.07

Network Erection, Installation and Commissioning 218.80 333.28

Others 447.11 461.00

813.35 1,099.35

17. Other income

31-Mar-14 31-Mar-13
Rs. in lacs Rs. in lacs

Interest income
-on deposits 170.13 119.73
-on advances to Related parties 521.63 491.10
-on other advances 47.24 4.53

Other non-operating income 3.06 104.98
742.06 720.34   

18. Cost of raw material and components consumed

31-Mar-14 31-Mar-13
Rs. in lacs Rs. in lacs

 Inventory at the beginning of the year 742.16 456.10
Add: Purchases 13,549.92 14,030.17

14,292.08 14,486.27
Less: inventory at the end of the year 1,030.87 742.16
Cost of raw material and components consumed 13,261.21 13,744.11 

Details of raw material and components consumed

31-Mar-14 31-Mar-13

Rs. In lacs Rs. In lacs

Glass Fibre and Glass Performs 3,755.21 6,139.02
Resin such as (PVC, HDPE, Nylon, MB, LSZH, PBT, Nucrel, UV resin and Polyester) 4,577.70 2,944.05
Others 4,928.30 4,661.04

13,261.21 13,744.11 

19. Details of purchase of traded goods

31-Mar-14 31-Mar-13
Rs. in lacs Rs. in lacs

Telecom and electronic items 213.60 395.82

213.60 395.82

20. (Increase) / decrease in inventories

(Increase) / 31-Mar-14 31-Mar-13
 decrease
Rs. in lacs Rs. in lacs Rs. in lacs

Inventories at the end of the year 31-Mar-14

Finished / Traded goods (209.04) 376.19 167.15

Semi Finished goods (443.69) 834.50 390.81

(652.73) 1,210.69 557.96

Inventories at the beginning of the year 31-Mar-13

Finished / Traded goods (28.75) 167.15 138.40

Semi Finished goods 26.41 390.81 417.22

(2.34) 557.96 555.62 
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Other bank balances

– Deposits with original maturity for 0.10 0.10 - - 
   more than 12 months

– Margin money deposit 1,455.63 1,206.22 - -

1,455.73 1,206.32 - -

Amount disclosed under non-current assets (note 13.2) (1,455.73) (1,206.32) - -

- - 54.18 193.06
Margin money deposits given as security
Margin money deposits with a carrying amount of Rs.1,455.63 lacs (31.03.2013: Rs.1,206.22 lacs) are pledged with
Banks for various Facilities.

16. Revenue from operations

31-Mar-14 31-Mar-13
Rs. in lacs Rs. in lacs

Revenue from operations

Sale of products

- Finished goods 20,979.03 21,038.30

- Traded goods 301.32 593.14

Sale of services 813.35 1,099.35

Other operating revenue

-Scrap sales 22.26 14.59

-Export Incentives 696.88 657.32

-Exchange Fluctuation 43.91 401.96

-Other operating revenue 25.59 120.87

Revenue from operations (gross) 22,882.34 23,925.53

Less: Excise duty # 875.94 625.04

Revenue from operations (net) 22,006.40 23,300.49

# Excise duty on sales amounting to Rs. 875.94 lacs (31.03.2013 : Rs. 625.04 lacs)  has been reduced from sales in 
statement of profit and loss  and excise duty on increase / (decrease) in stock amounting to Rs. 25.65 lacs (31.03.2013 : Rs. 
1.40 lacs) has been considered as (income) / expense in note 22 of financial statements.

Detail of products sold

31-Mar-14 31-Mar-13
Rs. In lacs Rs. In lacs

Finished goods sold
Optical Fibre and Optical Fibre Cables 11,639.49 14,327.22

Fibre Reinforced Plastic Rod and Impregnated Glass Roving Reinforcement 9,339.54 6,711.08

20,979.03 21,038.30
Traded goods sold
Telecom and electronic items 301.32 593.14

301.32 593.14
Detail of services rendered
IPTV and VoIP 147.44 305.07

Network Erection, Installation and Commissioning 218.80 333.28

Others 447.11 461.00

813.35 1,099.35

17. Other income

31-Mar-14 31-Mar-13
Rs. in lacs Rs. in lacs

Interest income
-on deposits 170.13 119.73
-on advances to Related parties 521.63 491.10
-on other advances 47.24 4.53

Other non-operating income 3.06 104.98
742.06 720.34   

18. Cost of raw material and components consumed

31-Mar-14 31-Mar-13
Rs. in lacs Rs. in lacs

 Inventory at the beginning of the year 742.16 456.10
Add: Purchases 13,549.92 14,030.17

14,292.08 14,486.27
Less: inventory at the end of the year 1,030.87 742.16
Cost of raw material and components consumed 13,261.21 13,744.11 

Details of raw material and components consumed

31-Mar-14 31-Mar-13

Rs. In lacs Rs. In lacs

Glass Fibre and Glass Performs 3,755.21 6,139.02
Resin such as (PVC, HDPE, Nylon, MB, LSZH, PBT, Nucrel, UV resin and Polyester) 4,577.70 2,944.05
Others 4,928.30 4,661.04

13,261.21 13,744.11 

19. Details of purchase of traded goods

31-Mar-14 31-Mar-13
Rs. in lacs Rs. in lacs

Telecom and electronic items 213.60 395.82

213.60 395.82

20. (Increase) / decrease in inventories

(Increase) / 31-Mar-14 31-Mar-13
 decrease
Rs. in lacs Rs. in lacs Rs. in lacs

Inventories at the end of the year 31-Mar-14

Finished / Traded goods (209.04) 376.19 167.15

Semi Finished goods (443.69) 834.50 390.81

(652.73) 1,210.69 557.96

Inventories at the beginning of the year 31-Mar-13

Finished / Traded goods (28.75) 167.15 138.40

Semi Finished goods 26.41 390.81 417.22

(2.34) 557.96 555.62 
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21. Employee benefits expense

31-Mar-14 31-Mar-13
Rs. in lacs Rs. in lacs

Salaries, wages and bonus 1,202.40 1,126.26
Contribution to provident and other funds 86.72 88.86
Gratuity 30.56 9.79
Staff welfare expenses 84.20 61.08
Directors’ Remuneration 115.59 100.04

1,519.47 1,386.03   
22. Other expenses

31-Mar-14 31-Mar-13
Rs. in lacs Rs. in lacs

Consumption of stores and spares 358.71 250.31
Sub-contracting expenses 508.14 644.60
Subscription Charges 76.39 205.79
Packing Material Consumed 1,058.97 814.95
Increase / (Decrease) in Excise Duty Provision on Stock 25.65 1.40
Project Execution Expenses 3.91 133.97
Power and Fuel 555.89 576.18
Travelling and Conveyance 239.92 195.28
Postage and Telephone 34.30 46.74
Insurance 50.50 42.85
Rent 99.13 134.91
Rates and taxes 4.97 95.08
Professional and Legal Expenses 304.76 180.71
Repair and Maintenance

-  Plant and Machinery 56.82 35.82
-  Buildings 51.98 33.23
-  Others 71.95 77.70

Marketing and Service Charges 220.00 304.05
Freight and Cartage (Outward) 267.66 243.34
Auditors’ Remuneration 28.30 23.51
Bad Debts - 176.75
Other Expenses 307.33 294.39

4,325.28 4,511.56
Less : Transfer to Capital Asset / Capital Work in Progress 18.60 25.65

4,306.68 4,485.91 
Detail of payment to Auditor

31-Mar-14 31-Mar-13
Rs. In lacs Rs. In lacs

As Auditor:
-Audit fee 20.00 18.00
-Tax audit fee 4.00 1.00

In other capacity:
-Taxation matters 2.11 -
-Other services (certification fees) 1.20 3.70
-Reimbursement of expenses 0.99 0.81

28.30 23.51  

23. Depreciation and amortization expense

31-Mar-14 31-Mar-13
Rs. in lacs Rs. in lacs

Amortization of intangible assets 182.86 181.31

1,499.38           1,663.21

24. Finance cost

31-Mar-14 31-Mar-13
Rs. in lacs Rs. in lacs

Interest on Cash Credit 139.05 82.06 

Interest 268.44              103.92 

Bank Charges 298.41 187.40 

705.90              373.38

25 Contingent Liabilities:

a) Claims not acknowledged as debts (Rs. in lacs)

S. No. Particulars 31-Mar-14 31-Mar-13

1 Sales Tax Matters 185.77 328.87
2 Service Tax 304.76 318.08
3 Excise / Custom Duty 552.18 559.93
4 Stamp Duty 28.50 28.50
5 Others 78.91 78.91

b) Corporate Guarantee given by erstwhile Aksh Broadband Limited aggregating to Rs. 582.03 lacs (31.03.2013 : Rs. 
582.03 lacs) in favor of Cisco Systems Capital India Private Limited for loan taken by APAKSH Broadband Limited, 
subsidiary of erstwhile  Aksh Broadband Limited.

c) Corporate Guarantee given by the Company aggregating to USD 3.38 Mn equivalent to Rs. 2,025.30 lacs (31.03.2013 : 
Rs. Nil) in favor of Bank of Baroda, Dubai for loan taken by AOL (FZE).

d) Bank Guarantees, letters of credit  (Net of margin) issued by banks and outstanding as on the reporting date is Rs. 
2,163.96 lacs (31.03.2013 : Rs. 1070.89 lacs)

e) The Company had imported Plant and Machinery in previous years under EPCG scheme. An export obligation (‘EO’) 
amounting to Rs.10,699.43 lacs  was placed on the Company which was to be fulfilled in a period of 8 years starting 
from August 2001. Subsequently, the said EO was refixed by DGFT vide its letter dated Jan 2011 up to August 2011 in 
terms of the Chapter VI of EXIM Policy and Procedure (Vol-1) 1997-2002. The Company has fulfilled the entire EO. The 
application for redemption of EPCG license was filed on March 2013 and final redemption is awaited.

f) Estimated amounts of contracts remaining to be executed on Capital Account (net of advances) is Rs.18.03 lacs 
(31.03.2013 : Rs. 106.79 lacs)

26 Employee Benefits:
The disclosures as per the Notified AS 15 (Revised), under the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006 on 
“Employee Benefits”, are as follows:
a) The Company has classified various benefits provided to employees as under :

Defined Contribution Plans and amount recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.
(Rs. in lacs)

Particulars 31-Mar-14 31-Mar-13

Employer’s Contribution to Provident Fund 81.67 82.52
Employer’s Contribution to ESI 5.03 6.28

86.70 88.80

Depreciation of tangible assets 1,316.52 1,481.90 
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21. Employee benefits expense

31-Mar-14 31-Mar-13
Rs. in lacs Rs. in lacs

Salaries, wages and bonus 1,202.40 1,126.26
Contribution to provident and other funds 86.72 88.86
Gratuity 30.56 9.79
Staff welfare expenses 84.20 61.08
Directors’ Remuneration 115.59 100.04

1,519.47 1,386.03   
22. Other expenses

31-Mar-14 31-Mar-13
Rs. in lacs Rs. in lacs

Consumption of stores and spares 358.71 250.31
Sub-contracting expenses 508.14 644.60
Subscription Charges 76.39 205.79
Packing Material Consumed 1,058.97 814.95
Increase / (Decrease) in Excise Duty Provision on Stock 25.65 1.40
Project Execution Expenses 3.91 133.97
Power and Fuel 555.89 576.18
Travelling and Conveyance 239.92 195.28
Postage and Telephone 34.30 46.74
Insurance 50.50 42.85
Rent 99.13 134.91
Rates and taxes 4.97 95.08
Professional and Legal Expenses 304.76 180.71
Repair and Maintenance

-  Plant and Machinery 56.82 35.82
-  Buildings 51.98 33.23
-  Others 71.95 77.70

Marketing and Service Charges 220.00 304.05
Freight and Cartage (Outward) 267.66 243.34
Auditors’ Remuneration 28.30 23.51
Bad Debts - 176.75
Other Expenses 307.33 294.39

4,325.28 4,511.56
Less : Transfer to Capital Asset / Capital Work in Progress 18.60 25.65

4,306.68 4,485.91 
Detail of payment to Auditor

31-Mar-14 31-Mar-13
Rs. In lacs Rs. In lacs

As Auditor:
-Audit fee 20.00 18.00
-Tax audit fee 4.00 1.00

In other capacity:
-Taxation matters 2.11 -
-Other services (certification fees) 1.20 3.70
-Reimbursement of expenses 0.99 0.81

28.30 23.51  

23. Depreciation and amortization expense

31-Mar-14 31-Mar-13
Rs. in lacs Rs. in lacs

Amortization of intangible assets 182.86 181.31

1,499.38           1,663.21

24. Finance cost

31-Mar-14 31-Mar-13
Rs. in lacs Rs. in lacs

Interest on Cash Credit 139.05 82.06 

Interest 268.44              103.92 

Bank Charges 298.41 187.40 

705.90              373.38

25 Contingent Liabilities:

a) Claims not acknowledged as debts (Rs. in lacs)

S. No. Particulars 31-Mar-14 31-Mar-13

1 Sales Tax Matters 185.77 328.87
2 Service Tax 304.76 318.08
3 Excise / Custom Duty 552.18 559.93
4 Stamp Duty 28.50 28.50
5 Others 78.91 78.91

b) Corporate Guarantee given by erstwhile Aksh Broadband Limited aggregating to Rs. 582.03 lacs (31.03.2013 : Rs. 
582.03 lacs) in favor of Cisco Systems Capital India Private Limited for loan taken by APAKSH Broadband Limited, 
subsidiary of erstwhile  Aksh Broadband Limited.

c) Corporate Guarantee given by the Company aggregating to USD 3.38 Mn equivalent to Rs. 2,025.30 lacs (31.03.2013 : 
Rs. Nil) in favor of Bank of Baroda, Dubai for loan taken by AOL (FZE).

d) Bank Guarantees, letters of credit  (Net of margin) issued by banks and outstanding as on the reporting date is Rs. 
2,163.96 lacs (31.03.2013 : Rs. 1070.89 lacs)

e) The Company had imported Plant and Machinery in previous years under EPCG scheme. An export obligation (‘EO’) 
amounting to Rs.10,699.43 lacs  was placed on the Company which was to be fulfilled in a period of 8 years starting 
from August 2001. Subsequently, the said EO was refixed by DGFT vide its letter dated Jan 2011 up to August 2011 in 
terms of the Chapter VI of EXIM Policy and Procedure (Vol-1) 1997-2002. The Company has fulfilled the entire EO. The 
application for redemption of EPCG license was filed on March 2013 and final redemption is awaited.

f) Estimated amounts of contracts remaining to be executed on Capital Account (net of advances) is Rs.18.03 lacs 
(31.03.2013 : Rs. 106.79 lacs)

26 Employee Benefits:
The disclosures as per the Notified AS 15 (Revised), under the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006 on 
“Employee Benefits”, are as follows:
a) The Company has classified various benefits provided to employees as under :

Defined Contribution Plans and amount recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.
(Rs. in lacs)

Particulars 31-Mar-14 31-Mar-13

Employer’s Contribution to Provident Fund 81.67 82.52
Employer’s Contribution to ESI 5.03 6.28

86.70 88.80

Depreciation of tangible assets 1,316.52 1,481.90 
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b) Defined Benefit Plans:
Gratuity and Compensated Absences – actuarial valuation done in accordance with the Accounting Standard -15 
(Revised), details of the same are given :
i) Summary of results

Change in present value of obligation (Rs. in lacs)
st st S. No. Particulars Year Ended 31 March, 2014 Year Ended 31 March, 2013

Gratuity Compensated Gratuity Compensated
Absences Absences

a) Present value of obligation as 132.71 56.09 106.13 48.79  
at the beginning of the year

b) Acquisition adjustment - - - -
c) Interest cost 10.62 4.49 8.49 3.90
d) Past service cost - - - -
e) Current service cost 18.70 10.10 18.90 11.79
f) Curtailment cost / (Credit) - - - -
g) Settlement cost / (Credit) - - - -
h) Benefits paid (19.59) (11.62) (4.39) (11.93)
i) Actuarial (gain) / loss on obligation 5.72 (4.20) 3.58 3.54
j) Present value of obligation as at 148.16 54.86 132.71 56.09  

the end of year

         Change in the fair value of plan assets
Gratuity Compensated Gratuity Compensated

Absences Absences
a) Fair value of plan assets at 48.64 - 43.49 -  

the beginning of the year

b) Acquisition adjustment - - - -

c) Expected return on plan assets 4.26 - 4.11 -

d) Employer Contributions 3.54 - 1.19 -

e) Benefits paid - - (0.15) -

f) Actuarial gain / ( loss) on plan assets 0.21 - - -

g) Fair value of plan assets at 56.65 - 48.64 -
the end of the year

Net liability recognized in balance sheet 148.16 54.86 132.71 56.09 

           Expense recognized in the statement of profit and loss

Gratuity Compensated Gratuity Compensated
Absences Absences

a) Current service cost 18.70 10.10 18.90 11.79

b) Past service cost - - - -

c) Interest cost 10.62 4.49 8.49 3.90

d) Expected return on plan assets (4.26) - (4.11) -

e) Curtailment cost / (Credit) - - - -

f) Settlement cost / (credit) - - - -

g) Net actuarial (gain) / loss 5.50 (4.20) 3.58 3.54 
recognized in the period

h) Expenses recognized in the statement 30.56 10.39 26.86 19.23
of profit and loss

ii) Actuarial Assumptions

S. No. Particulars Gratuity Compensated Gratuity Compensated
(Funded) Absences (Funded) Absences

a) Discounting Rate 8.50% 8.50% 8.00% 8.00%

b) Future salary Increase 6.00% 6.00% 5.50% 5.50%

c) Expected Rate of return on plan assets 8.75% 0.00% 9.15% 0.00%

27 Loans and Advances in the nature of Loans given to subsidiaries :

      (Rs. in lacs)

Name of the Company 31-Mar-14 31-Mar-13 Max. Balance
 during the year

AOL (FZE) 8,501.07 13,758.89 14,174.60

28 Related Party Disclosures

Related party disclosures as required under Accounting Standard - 18 on “Related Party Disclosures” issued by The Institute 
st  of Chartered Accountants of India are as given below as on 31 March, 2014:

a) Subsidiary Companies :

- APAKSH Broadband Limited

- AOL (FZE)

- AOL PROJECTS JLT (Fellow Subsidiary)

b) Individuals exercising significant influence and their relatives:

-  Dr. Kailash S. Choudhari (Chairman)
th-  Mr. P. F. Sundesha (Related up to 20  September, 2013)

th-  Mr. Shailesh Popat Lal (Relative of Mr. P. F. Sundesha) (Related up to 20  September, 2013)

c) Key Management personnel and their relatives:

- Mr. Chetan Choudhari (Managing Director)

d) Enterprises over which personnel referred in (b) and (c) aforementioned exercise significant influence:
th-  Fulchand Finance Private Limited (Relates to Mr. P. F. Sundesha) (Related up to 20  September, 2013)

Related Party Transactions
(Rs. in lacs)

S.No. Nature of Transaction Subsidiaries Key Others Total
Management 

Personnel

1 Re-imbursement of expenses 9.62 - - 9.62
15.33 - - 15.33

2 Interest received on Loan 521.63 - - 521.63
491.10 - - 491.10

3 Remuneration Paid - 112.40 - 112.40
- 95.54 - 95.54

4 Interest Expenses - - 5.50 5.50
- - 37.10 37.10

5 Repayment of Loan - - 81.75 81.75
- - 477.00 477.00

6 Sitting Fees - - 0.60 0.60
- - 0.95 0.95

7 Rent Paid - - 16.52 16.52
- - 29.40 29.40

8 Conversion of Loan and advances into 7,354.81 - - 7,354.81 
Investment

- - - -
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b) Defined Benefit Plans:
Gratuity and Compensated Absences – actuarial valuation done in accordance with the Accounting Standard -15 
(Revised), details of the same are given :
i) Summary of results

Change in present value of obligation (Rs. in lacs)
st st S. No. Particulars Year Ended 31 March, 2014 Year Ended 31 March, 2013

Gratuity Compensated Gratuity Compensated
Absences Absences

a) Present value of obligation as 132.71 56.09 106.13 48.79  
at the beginning of the year

b) Acquisition adjustment - - - -
c) Interest cost 10.62 4.49 8.49 3.90
d) Past service cost - - - -
e) Current service cost 18.70 10.10 18.90 11.79
f) Curtailment cost / (Credit) - - - -
g) Settlement cost / (Credit) - - - -
h) Benefits paid (19.59) (11.62) (4.39) (11.93)
i) Actuarial (gain) / loss on obligation 5.72 (4.20) 3.58 3.54
j) Present value of obligation as at 148.16 54.86 132.71 56.09  

the end of year

         Change in the fair value of plan assets
Gratuity Compensated Gratuity Compensated

Absences Absences
a) Fair value of plan assets at 48.64 - 43.49 -  

the beginning of the year

b) Acquisition adjustment - - - -

c) Expected return on plan assets 4.26 - 4.11 -

d) Employer Contributions 3.54 - 1.19 -

e) Benefits paid - - (0.15) -

f) Actuarial gain / ( loss) on plan assets 0.21 - - -

g) Fair value of plan assets at 56.65 - 48.64 -
the end of the year

Net liability recognized in balance sheet 148.16 54.86 132.71 56.09 

           Expense recognized in the statement of profit and loss

Gratuity Compensated Gratuity Compensated
Absences Absences

a) Current service cost 18.70 10.10 18.90 11.79

b) Past service cost - - - -

c) Interest cost 10.62 4.49 8.49 3.90

d) Expected return on plan assets (4.26) - (4.11) -

e) Curtailment cost / (Credit) - - - -

f) Settlement cost / (credit) - - - -

g) Net actuarial (gain) / loss 5.50 (4.20) 3.58 3.54 
recognized in the period

h) Expenses recognized in the statement 30.56 10.39 26.86 19.23
of profit and loss

ii) Actuarial Assumptions

S. No. Particulars Gratuity Compensated Gratuity Compensated
(Funded) Absences (Funded) Absences

a) Discounting Rate 8.50% 8.50% 8.00% 8.00%

b) Future salary Increase 6.00% 6.00% 5.50% 5.50%

c) Expected Rate of return on plan assets 8.75% 0.00% 9.15% 0.00%

27 Loans and Advances in the nature of Loans given to subsidiaries :

      (Rs. in lacs)

Name of the Company 31-Mar-14 31-Mar-13 Max. Balance
 during the year

AOL (FZE) 8,501.07 13,758.89 14,174.60

28 Related Party Disclosures

Related party disclosures as required under Accounting Standard - 18 on “Related Party Disclosures” issued by The Institute 
st  of Chartered Accountants of India are as given below as on 31 March, 2014:

a) Subsidiary Companies :

- APAKSH Broadband Limited

- AOL (FZE)

- AOL PROJECTS JLT (Fellow Subsidiary)

b) Individuals exercising significant influence and their relatives:

-  Dr. Kailash S. Choudhari (Chairman)
th-  Mr. P. F. Sundesha (Related up to 20  September, 2013)

th-  Mr. Shailesh Popat Lal (Relative of Mr. P. F. Sundesha) (Related up to 20  September, 2013)

c) Key Management personnel and their relatives:

- Mr. Chetan Choudhari (Managing Director)

d) Enterprises over which personnel referred in (b) and (c) aforementioned exercise significant influence:
th-  Fulchand Finance Private Limited (Relates to Mr. P. F. Sundesha) (Related up to 20  September, 2013)

Related Party Transactions
(Rs. in lacs)

S.No. Nature of Transaction Subsidiaries Key Others Total
Management 

Personnel

1 Re-imbursement of expenses 9.62 - - 9.62
15.33 - - 15.33

2 Interest received on Loan 521.63 - - 521.63
491.10 - - 491.10

3 Remuneration Paid - 112.40 - 112.40
- 95.54 - 95.54

4 Interest Expenses - - 5.50 5.50
- - 37.10 37.10

5 Repayment of Loan - - 81.75 81.75
- - 477.00 477.00

6 Sitting Fees - - 0.60 0.60
- - 0.95 0.95

7 Rent Paid - - 16.52 16.52
- - 29.40 29.40

8 Conversion of Loan and advances into 7,354.81 - - 7,354.81 
Investment

- - - -
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stBalance due to / (from) as at 31  March, 2014

1 Trade Receivables (1,565.21) - - (1,565.21)
(1,754.83) - - (1,754.83)

2 Loan and advances (8,501.07) - - (8,501.07)
(13,758.89) - - (13,758.89)

3 Trade and other Payables - - - -
- - 84.26 84.26

Note :-  Figures in italic represents Previous Year
29. The Company has taken assets on cancellable operating lease, the future minimum lease payments in respect of 

which are as follows :-
(Rs. in lacs)

Particulars        Minimum Lease Payments
31-Mar-14 31-Mar-13

Not later than 1 year 8.86 -

Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years 34.69 -

Later than 5 years - -

The Lease agreements provide for an option to the Company to renew the lease period. There are no exceptional / restrictive 
covenants in the lease agreements.

Lease rental expense in respect of operating leases is Rs.0.74 lacs (31.03.2013 : Rs. Nil)

Contingent rent recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss is Rs. Nil (31.03.2013 : Rs. Nil)

30 Exceptional items represents net foreign exchange gain on translation of foreign exchange assets and liabilities other than 
operational of Rs.717.10 lacs (31.03.2013: Rs.345.98 lacs), profit / (loss) on sale of fixed assets of (Rs. 20.76) lacs 
(31.03.2013: Rs. 915.14 lacs), liabilities written back of Rs.10.26 lacs (31.03.2013: Rs. 28.10 lacs), advances written off of 
Rs.Nil (31.03.2013: Rs.670.20 lacs).

31 Basic and diluted earnings per share

S. No Particulars 31-Mar-14 31-Mar-13

a. Net Profit for the year (Rs. in lacs) 2,601.55 2,593.73
b. Weighted Average No of Equity Shares used in 148,564,989 146,518,185 

computing Basic-Earning per Share (Nos.)
c. Impact of diluted instruments on Net Profit for the year (Rs. in lacs) - -
d. Net Profit used for the computation of diluted earning per share (Rs. in lacs) 2,601.55 2,593.73
e. Weighted average number of equity shares from dilutive instruments (Nos.) 14,100,086 -
f. Weighted Average  No of Equity   Shares used in computing 162,665,075 146,518,185  

Diluted Earning per Share (Nos.)
g. Nominal Value of Equity Shares (Rs.) 5.00 5.00
h. Basic-Earning Per Shares (Rs.) 1.75 1.77
i. Diluted -Earning Per Share (Rs.) 1.60 1.77

32 The Company has an investment of Rs. 11,297.50 lacs in the equity shares and has outstanding dues of Rs. 1,565.21 lacs 
(31.03.2013: Rs. 1,754.83 lacs), (net of advances) from APAKSH Broadband Limited (APAKSH), subsidiary acquired as a 
result of the amalgamation of erstwhile Aksh Broadband Limited with the Company. APAKSH’s operations are presently 
suspended due to pending litigation by one of the shareholder of APAKSH. The Management of the Company is in the 
process of discussions on the revival of the project and pending that no provision has been considered necessary in respect 
of the outstanding dues and investment at this stage.

33 Derivative Instruments
Forward contracts outstanding as at the reporting date:-                           (Amount in lacs)

Particulars Currency 31-Mar-14 31-Mar-13
Forward contracts to sell USD 34.85 46.05

EURO 1.25 0.75

Amount receivable in foreign currency on account of the following:-                           (Amount in lacs)

S.No Particulars Currency 31-Mar-14 31-Mar-13
1 Export of goods USD 36.31 49.58

EURO 4.01 1.94
GBP 0.02 -
RINGGIT 1.26 5.71

2 Advance to Supplier USD 6.11 8.47
EURO 0.01 0.13
JPY - 4.47

3 Advance to Other USD 119.07 239.26
4 Interest receivable on advances USD 22.83 14.12

Amount payable in foreign currency on account of the following:-                          

S.No Particulars Currency 31-Mar-14 31-Mar-13
1 Import of goods and services USD 18.96 20.90

EURO 11.54 11.44
JPY 17.57 -
GBP 0.18 0.26

2 Advance from customers USD 0.61 0.88
3 Buyer’s Credit USD 8.15 5.34
4 Packing Credit Facility EURO 0.41 1.70
5 External Commercial Borrowing USD 104.72 -
6 Foreign currency convertible bonds USD 37.92 140.00

34 There are no Micro and Small Enterprises, to whom the Company owes, which are outstanding for more than 45 days as at 
st 31 March, 2014. This information as required to be disclosed under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development 

Act, 2006 has been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of information available with the 
Company.

st35 Segmental Reporting for the year ended 31  March, 2014

Based on the guiding principles given in Accounting Standard AS-17, “Segment Reporting” issued by the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of India, the Company’s business segments are Manufacturing, Services and Trading of goods. 
The information about business segments are given below:

( Rs. in lacs)

Particulars                                        Manufacturing                Services                            Trading                                  Total
2013-2014 2012-2013 2013-2014 2012-2013 2013-2014 2012-2013 2013-2014 2012-2013

1 Segment Revenue
External Turnover 20,879.48 21,584.32 825.60 1,123.03 301.32 593.14 22,006.40 23,300.49
Inter Segment Turnover 20.39 31.18 - - - 0.35 - -
Total Revenue 20,899.87 21,615.50 825.60 1,123.03 301.32 593.49 22,006.40 23,300.49

2 Segment Results before 3,904.15 3,648.81 (1,204.55) (1,742.46) 85.97 185.93 2,785.57 2,092.28
Interest and Taxes
Less : Finance Cost 705.90 373.38
Add : Interest Income 739.00 615.36
Add : Exceptional Items 706.60 619.02
Add / (Less): Unallocated (923.72) (359.55)
(Expenses) / Income
Profit before Tax 2,601.55 2,593.73

3 Other Information
Segment Assets 12,970.33 11,051.65 13,468.33 14,180.96 - - 26,438.66 25,232.61
Unallocated Assets 27,171.60 25,074.60
Total Assets 12,970.33 11,051.65 13,468.33 14,180.96 - - 53,610.26 50,307.21
Segment Liabilities 7,023.40 4,697.22 10,937.00 9,702.41 - - 17,960.40 14,399.63
Share Capital and reserves 35,649.86 35,907.58
Total Liabilities 7,023.40 4,697.22 10,937.00 9,702.41 - - 53,610.26 50,307.21
Capital Expenditure 232.63 265.85 46.81 158.54 - - 279.44 424.39
Depreciation and Amortization 371.36 521.00 1,128.02 1,142.21 - - 1,499.38 1,663.21

Note :- Total Revenue is after elimination of inter segment turnover of Rs. 20.39 lacs  (31.03.2013 : Rs. 31.53 lacs)

The year-end foreign currency exposures that have not been hedged by a derivative instrument or otherwise are given below :
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st NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2014
stBalance due to / (from) as at 31  March, 2014

1 Trade Receivables (1,565.21) - - (1,565.21)
(1,754.83) - - (1,754.83)

2 Loan and advances (8,501.07) - - (8,501.07)
(13,758.89) - - (13,758.89)

3 Trade and other Payables - - - -
- - 84.26 84.26

Note :-  Figures in italic represents Previous Year
29. The Company has taken assets on cancellable operating lease, the future minimum lease payments in respect of 

which are as follows :-
(Rs. in lacs)

Particulars        Minimum Lease Payments
31-Mar-14 31-Mar-13

Not later than 1 year 8.86 -

Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years 34.69 -

Later than 5 years - -

The Lease agreements provide for an option to the Company to renew the lease period. There are no exceptional / restrictive 
covenants in the lease agreements.

Lease rental expense in respect of operating leases is Rs.0.74 lacs (31.03.2013 : Rs. Nil)

Contingent rent recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss is Rs. Nil (31.03.2013 : Rs. Nil)

30 Exceptional items represents net foreign exchange gain on translation of foreign exchange assets and liabilities other than 
operational of Rs.717.10 lacs (31.03.2013: Rs.345.98 lacs), profit / (loss) on sale of fixed assets of (Rs. 20.76) lacs 
(31.03.2013: Rs. 915.14 lacs), liabilities written back of Rs.10.26 lacs (31.03.2013: Rs. 28.10 lacs), advances written off of 
Rs.Nil (31.03.2013: Rs.670.20 lacs).

31 Basic and diluted earnings per share

S. No Particulars 31-Mar-14 31-Mar-13

a. Net Profit for the year (Rs. in lacs) 2,601.55 2,593.73
b. Weighted Average No of Equity Shares used in 148,564,989 146,518,185 

computing Basic-Earning per Share (Nos.)
c. Impact of diluted instruments on Net Profit for the year (Rs. in lacs) - -
d. Net Profit used for the computation of diluted earning per share (Rs. in lacs) 2,601.55 2,593.73
e. Weighted average number of equity shares from dilutive instruments (Nos.) 14,100,086 -
f. Weighted Average  No of Equity   Shares used in computing 162,665,075 146,518,185  

Diluted Earning per Share (Nos.)
g. Nominal Value of Equity Shares (Rs.) 5.00 5.00
h. Basic-Earning Per Shares (Rs.) 1.75 1.77
i. Diluted -Earning Per Share (Rs.) 1.60 1.77

32 The Company has an investment of Rs. 11,297.50 lacs in the equity shares and has outstanding dues of Rs. 1,565.21 lacs 
(31.03.2013: Rs. 1,754.83 lacs), (net of advances) from APAKSH Broadband Limited (APAKSH), subsidiary acquired as a 
result of the amalgamation of erstwhile Aksh Broadband Limited with the Company. APAKSH’s operations are presently 
suspended due to pending litigation by one of the shareholder of APAKSH. The Management of the Company is in the 
process of discussions on the revival of the project and pending that no provision has been considered necessary in respect 
of the outstanding dues and investment at this stage.

33 Derivative Instruments
Forward contracts outstanding as at the reporting date:-                           (Amount in lacs)

Particulars Currency 31-Mar-14 31-Mar-13
Forward contracts to sell USD 34.85 46.05

EURO 1.25 0.75

Amount receivable in foreign currency on account of the following:-                           (Amount in lacs)

S.No Particulars Currency 31-Mar-14 31-Mar-13
1 Export of goods USD 36.31 49.58

EURO 4.01 1.94
GBP 0.02 -
RINGGIT 1.26 5.71

2 Advance to Supplier USD 6.11 8.47
EURO 0.01 0.13
JPY - 4.47

3 Advance to Other USD 119.07 239.26
4 Interest receivable on advances USD 22.83 14.12

Amount payable in foreign currency on account of the following:-                          

S.No Particulars Currency 31-Mar-14 31-Mar-13
1 Import of goods and services USD 18.96 20.90

EURO 11.54 11.44
JPY 17.57 -
GBP 0.18 0.26

2 Advance from customers USD 0.61 0.88
3 Buyer’s Credit USD 8.15 5.34
4 Packing Credit Facility EURO 0.41 1.70
5 External Commercial Borrowing USD 104.72 -
6 Foreign currency convertible bonds USD 37.92 140.00

34 There are no Micro and Small Enterprises, to whom the Company owes, which are outstanding for more than 45 days as at 
st 31 March, 2014. This information as required to be disclosed under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development 

Act, 2006 has been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of information available with the 
Company.

st35 Segmental Reporting for the year ended 31  March, 2014

Based on the guiding principles given in Accounting Standard AS-17, “Segment Reporting” issued by the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of India, the Company’s business segments are Manufacturing, Services and Trading of goods. 
The information about business segments are given below:

( Rs. in lacs)

Particulars                                        Manufacturing                Services                            Trading                                  Total
2013-2014 2012-2013 2013-2014 2012-2013 2013-2014 2012-2013 2013-2014 2012-2013

1 Segment Revenue
External Turnover 20,879.48 21,584.32 825.60 1,123.03 301.32 593.14 22,006.40 23,300.49
Inter Segment Turnover 20.39 31.18 - - - 0.35 - -
Total Revenue 20,899.87 21,615.50 825.60 1,123.03 301.32 593.49 22,006.40 23,300.49

2 Segment Results before 3,904.15 3,648.81 (1,204.55) (1,742.46) 85.97 185.93 2,785.57 2,092.28
Interest and Taxes
Less : Finance Cost 705.90 373.38
Add : Interest Income 739.00 615.36
Add : Exceptional Items 706.60 619.02
Add / (Less): Unallocated (923.72) (359.55)
(Expenses) / Income
Profit before Tax 2,601.55 2,593.73

3 Other Information
Segment Assets 12,970.33 11,051.65 13,468.33 14,180.96 - - 26,438.66 25,232.61
Unallocated Assets 27,171.60 25,074.60
Total Assets 12,970.33 11,051.65 13,468.33 14,180.96 - - 53,610.26 50,307.21
Segment Liabilities 7,023.40 4,697.22 10,937.00 9,702.41 - - 17,960.40 14,399.63
Share Capital and reserves 35,649.86 35,907.58
Total Liabilities 7,023.40 4,697.22 10,937.00 9,702.41 - - 53,610.26 50,307.21
Capital Expenditure 232.63 265.85 46.81 158.54 - - 279.44 424.39
Depreciation and Amortization 371.36 521.00 1,128.02 1,142.21 - - 1,499.38 1,663.21

Note :- Total Revenue is after elimination of inter segment turnover of Rs. 20.39 lacs  (31.03.2013 : Rs. 31.53 lacs)

The year-end foreign currency exposures that have not been hedged by a derivative instrument or otherwise are given below :
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March 31, 2014 March 31, 2013
Rs. in lacs % Rs. in lacs %

36 Value and percentage of Imported / Indigenous

Raw - Material Consumed

Imported 6,067.57 46% 7,431.54 54%

Indigenous 7,193.64 54% 6,312.57 46%

13,261.21 100% 13,744.11 100%

37 Spare Parts and components Consumed

Imported 139.50 39% 194.15 78%

Indigenous 219.21 61% 56.16 22%

358.71 100% 250.31 100%

38 Value of Imports on CIF Basis

Raw Material 6,676.33 7,542.30

Consumable 139.69 141.77

Accessories - 111.86

Capital Goods 948.84 87.02

Others 72.38 107.40

39 Earning in foreign Exchange on FOB Basis

Export of Goods and Services 12,764.97 15,962.83

Interest 521.63 491.10

40 Expenditure in foreign currency

Travelling 34.51 30.12

Commission on Sales 117.29 78.73

Interest and Bank Charges 13.47 9.39

FCCBs Issue Expense 69.15 -

Other Expenses 40.41 31.38

41 Previous year’s figures have been reworked, regrouped, rearranged and reclassified to conform to those of current year’s 
figures wherever necessary.

The accompanying notes (1-41) are an integral part of the financial statements.
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STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 212 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 1956
th Relating to Subsidiary Companies in accordance with General Circular No. : 02/2011 dated 8 February, 2011 from the Ministry 

of Corporate Affairs
(Rs. in lacs)

Name of Subsidiary AOL (FZE)  AOL PROJECTS JLT
Broadband Limited 

1 Country of Incorporation India UAE UAE

2 Reporting Currency INR AED AED
st3 Exchange Rate as at 31  March, 2014 (Rs.) - 16.34 16.34

4 Capital 13,522.50 7,228.68 49.01

5 Reserves - (467.81) 1,063.30

6 Total Assets 15,701.61 17,253.52 1,139.59

7 Total Liabilities 15,701.61 17,253.52 1,139.59

8 Investments (except in case of investment in subsidiaries) - - -

9 Turnover / Total Income - 1,835.25 32.63

10 Profit / (loss) before Taxation - (373.45) (65.23)

11 Provision for Taxation - - -

12 Profit / (loss) after Taxation - (373.45) (65.23)

13 Proposed Dividend - - -

Statement pursuant to Section 212 of the Companies Act, 1956

Relating to Subsidiary Companies 

Name of Subsidiary APAKSH AOL (FZE) AOL PROJECTS JLT
Broadband Limited 

1 The Financial Year of the  subsidiaries Company ended on 31-Mar-14 31-Mar-14 31-Mar-14

2 Share of Subsidiary Company held on that date 
and extent of holding

a) Equity Share of Rs. 5/- each 225,950,000 - -

b) Equity Share of AED 150,000/- each - 295 -

c) Equity Share of AED 1,000/- each - - 300

Extent of holding 99.92% 100.00% 100.00%

3 The net aggregate  amount of Subsidiary’s profit / (Loss) so 
far as it is concerned with the members of Aksh Optifibre Limited

i) Not dealt with the holding Company’s accounts (Rs. in lacs)

a) For Subsidiary’s financial year - (373.45) (65.23)

b) For subsidiary’s previous financial year since it - 100.96 955.74 
became subsidiary

ii) Dealt with the holding Company’s accounts (Rs. in lacs)

a) For Subsidiary’s financial year - - -

b) For subsidiary’s previous financial year since - - -
it became subsidiary

4 Material changes, if any, between the end of the Financial  -                            -                             -   
Year of the Subsidiary Company and holding Company                         

APAKSH 

As per our report of even date For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

For P. C. Bindal & Co. Dr. KAILASH S. CHOUDHARI
Firm Registration No : 003824N Chairman
Chartered Accountants DIN No. 00023824

CA K. C. Gupta CHETAN CHOUDHARI B.R. RAKHECHA
Partner Managing Director Director
Membership No.: 088638 DIN No. 00872366 DIN No. 00026729

Place: New Delhi SATYENDRA GUPTA GAURAV MEHTA
thDate : 26  May, 2014 Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
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March 31, 2014 March 31, 2013
Rs. in lacs % Rs. in lacs %

36 Value and percentage of Imported / Indigenous

Raw - Material Consumed

Imported 6,067.57 46% 7,431.54 54%

Indigenous 7,193.64 54% 6,312.57 46%

13,261.21 100% 13,744.11 100%

37 Spare Parts and components Consumed

Imported 139.50 39% 194.15 78%

Indigenous 219.21 61% 56.16 22%

358.71 100% 250.31 100%

38 Value of Imports on CIF Basis

Raw Material 6,676.33 7,542.30

Consumable 139.69 141.77

Accessories - 111.86

Capital Goods 948.84 87.02

Others 72.38 107.40

39 Earning in foreign Exchange on FOB Basis

Export of Goods and Services 12,764.97 15,962.83

Interest 521.63 491.10

40 Expenditure in foreign currency

Travelling 34.51 30.12

Commission on Sales 117.29 78.73

Interest and Bank Charges 13.47 9.39

FCCBs Issue Expense 69.15 -

Other Expenses 40.41 31.38

41 Previous year’s figures have been reworked, regrouped, rearranged and reclassified to conform to those of current year’s 
figures wherever necessary.

The accompanying notes (1-41) are an integral part of the financial statements.
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STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 212 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 1956
th Relating to Subsidiary Companies in accordance with General Circular No. : 02/2011 dated 8 February, 2011 from the Ministry 

of Corporate Affairs
(Rs. in lacs)

Name of Subsidiary AOL (FZE)  AOL PROJECTS JLT
Broadband Limited 

1 Country of Incorporation India UAE UAE

2 Reporting Currency INR AED AED
st3 Exchange Rate as at 31  March, 2014 (Rs.) - 16.34 16.34

4 Capital 13,522.50 7,228.68 49.01

5 Reserves - (467.81) 1,063.30

6 Total Assets 15,701.61 17,253.52 1,139.59

7 Total Liabilities 15,701.61 17,253.52 1,139.59

8 Investments (except in case of investment in subsidiaries) - - -

9 Turnover / Total Income - 1,835.25 32.63

10 Profit / (loss) before Taxation - (373.45) (65.23)

11 Provision for Taxation - - -

12 Profit / (loss) after Taxation - (373.45) (65.23)

13 Proposed Dividend - - -

Statement pursuant to Section 212 of the Companies Act, 1956

Relating to Subsidiary Companies 

Name of Subsidiary APAKSH AOL (FZE) AOL PROJECTS JLT
Broadband Limited 

1 The Financial Year of the  subsidiaries Company ended on 31-Mar-14 31-Mar-14 31-Mar-14

2 Share of Subsidiary Company held on that date 
and extent of holding

a) Equity Share of Rs. 5/- each 225,950,000 - -

b) Equity Share of AED 150,000/- each - 295 -

c) Equity Share of AED 1,000/- each - - 300

Extent of holding 99.92% 100.00% 100.00%

3 The net aggregate  amount of Subsidiary’s profit / (Loss) so 
far as it is concerned with the members of Aksh Optifibre Limited

i) Not dealt with the holding Company’s accounts (Rs. in lacs)

a) For Subsidiary’s financial year - (373.45) (65.23)

b) For subsidiary’s previous financial year since it - 100.96 955.74 
became subsidiary

ii) Dealt with the holding Company’s accounts (Rs. in lacs)

a) For Subsidiary’s financial year - - -

b) For subsidiary’s previous financial year since - - -
it became subsidiary

4 Material changes, if any, between the end of the Financial  -                            -                             -   
Year of the Subsidiary Company and holding Company                         

APAKSH 

As per our report of even date For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

For P. C. Bindal & Co. Dr. KAILASH S. CHOUDHARI
Firm Registration No : 003824N Chairman
Chartered Accountants DIN No. 00023824

CA K. C. Gupta CHETAN CHOUDHARI B.R. RAKHECHA
Partner Managing Director Director
Membership No.: 088638 DIN No. 00872366 DIN No. 00026729

Place: New Delhi SATYENDRA GUPTA GAURAV MEHTA
thDate : 26  May, 2014 Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
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To The Board of Directors of

 AKSH OPTIFIBRE LIMITED

Report on the Consolidated Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of  AKSH OPTIFIBRE LIMITED (“the Company”) and its subsidiaries 
st (collectively referred to as “Aksh Group”), which comprise the Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31 March, 2014, the 

Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss and the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended and a summary of 
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Management’s Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation of these Consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view of the 
Consolidated financial position, Consolidated financial performance and Consolidated Cash Flows of the group in accordance with 
the Accounting Standards notified under the Companies Act, 1956 (“the Act”) (which continue to be applicable in respect of Section 

th 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 in terms of General Circular 15/2013 dated 13 September, 2013 of the Ministry of Corporate 
Affairs). This responsibility includes the design, implementation and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and 
presentation of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, 
whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit 
in accordance with the Standards on Auditing issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards require 
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the 
consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial 
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material 
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor 
considers internal control relevant to the Group’s preparation and presentation of the consolidated financial statements that gives a 
true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances but not for the purpose of expressing 
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of 
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the 
overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and 
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the financial statements give the 
information required by the Act in the manner so required and give true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles 
generally accepted in India:

st  a) in the case of the Consolidated Balance Sheet, of the state of affairs of the Group as at 31 March, 2014;

b) in the case of the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss, of the profit of the Group for the year ended on that date
and

c) in the case of the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement, of the cash flow of the Group for the year ended on that date.

Other Matters

We have not conducted audit of foreign subsidiary, whose financial statements reflect total assets (net) of Rs. 18,299.84 lacs as at 
st31  March, 2014, total revenue of Rs. 1,867.89 lacs and net cash inflow amounting to Rs. 9,096.92 lacs for the year then ended. 

These financial statements have been audited by other auditor whose reports have been furnished to us by the Management, and 
our opinion, is based solely on the report of other auditor. Our opinion is not qualified in respect of this matter.

For  P. C. Bindal & Co.
Firm Registration No:- 003824N

Chartered Accountants

(CA. K. C. Gupta)
Place of Signature: New  Delhi Partner

th Dated:- 26 May, 2014 Membership No. 088638
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st CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31 MARCH, 2014

Notes 31-Mar-14 31-Mar-13
Rs. in lacs Rs. in lacs

Equity and liabilities
Shareholders’ funds
Share capital 3 9,642.78 9,642.78
Reserves and surplus 4 27,889.42 28,707.27

37,532.20 38,350.05
Minority Interest 10.47 10.47

Non-current liabilities
Long-term borrowings 5 8,756.40 -   
Trade payables 6 57.77 57.77
Long-term provisions 7 377.47 183.44

9,191.64 241.21
Current liabilities
Short-term borrowings 8 3,139.73 1,722.85
Trade payables 9 4,227.24 4,982.84
Other current liabilities 9 3,143.06 9,324.79
Short-term provisions 7 842.53 160.19

11,352.56 16,190.67
TOTAL 58,086.87 54,792.40

Assets
Non-current assets
Fixed assets
Tangible assets 10 9,040.43 9,762.07 
Intangible assets 11 765.38 948.24 
Capital work-in-progress            16,084.65              14,853.97 
Non-current investments 12                    1.82                      1.82 
Long-term loans and advances 13              1,501.84                    90.19 
Trade receivables 14.1                        -                      47.41 
Other non-current assets 14.2              1,455.73                1,206.32 

28,849.85 26,910.02 
Current assets
Inventories 15 2,489.19 2,461.49 
Trade receivables 14.1 9,146.99 8,271.63
Cash and cash equivalents 16 77.46 204.10
Short-term loans and advances 13 17,447.42 16,860.49 
Other current assets 14.2 75.96 84.67

29,237.02            27,882.38 
TOTAL 58,086.87            54,792.40

Summary of significant accounting policies 2.1
The accompanying notes (1-37) are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
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As per our report of even date For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

For P. C. Bindal & Co. Dr. KAILASH S. CHOUDHARI
Firm Registration No : 003824N Chairman
Chartered Accountants DIN No. 00023824

CA K. C. Gupta CHETAN CHOUDHARI B.R. RAKHECHA
Partner Managing Director Director
Membership No.: 088638 DIN No. 00872366 DIN No. 00026729

Place: New Delhi SATYENDRA GUPTA GAURAV MEHTA
thDate : 26  May, 2014 Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
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stCONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31  MARCH, 2014

Notes 31-Mar-14 31-Mar-13
Rs. in lacs Rs. in lacs

Income

Revenue from operations (gross) 17 24,750.22 26,302.34

Less: excise duty 875.94 625.04

Revenue from operations (net) 23,874.28 25,677.30

Other income 18 220.42 229.24

Total revenue (I) 24,094.70 25,906.54

Expenses

Cost of raw material and components consumed 19 13,261.21 13,744.11

Purchase of traded goods 20 493.10 519.38

(Increase) / decrease in inventories of finished goods, 21 267.96 1,338.70
work-in-progress and traded goods

Employee benefits expense 22 1,956.71 1,764.39

Other expense 23 4,443.82 4,541.32

Total expense (II) 20,422.80 21,907.90

Earnings before interest, tax, depreciation, exceptional items    
and amortization (EBITDA) (I) – (II) 3,671.90 3,998.64

Depreciation and amortization expense 24 1,502.40 1,663.21

Finance cost 25 709.48 376.25

Profit before exceptional items and tax 1,460.02 1,959.18

Exceptional Items 30 706.60 619.03

Profit before tax 2,166.62 2,578.21

Tax expenses

Income Tax 520.51 64.54

MAT Credit Entitlement 520.51 64.54

Total tax expense - -

Profit for the year 2,166.62 2,578.21

Earnings per equity share [nominal value of share 
st Rs. 5/- (31 March, 2013: Rs. 5/-)]

Basic 1.46 1.76

Diluted 1.33 1.76

Summary of significant accounting policies 2.1

The accompanying notes (1-37) are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.

As per our report of even date For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

For P. C. Bindal & Co. Dr. KAILASH S. CHOUDHARI
Firm Registration No : 003824N Chairman
Chartered Accountants DIN No. 00023824

CA K. C. Gupta CHETAN CHOUDHARI B.R. RAKHECHA
Partner Managing Director Director
Membership No.: 088638 DIN No. 00872366 DIN No. 00026729

Place: New Delhi SATYENDRA GUPTA GAURAV MEHTA
thDate : 26  May, 2014 Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
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st CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31 MARCH, 2014

Notes 31-Mar-14 31-Mar-13
Rs. in lacs Rs. in lacs

Equity and liabilities
Shareholders’ funds
Share capital 3 9,642.78 9,642.78
Reserves and surplus 4 27,889.42 28,707.27

37,532.20 38,350.05
Minority Interest 10.47 10.47

Non-current liabilities
Long-term borrowings 5 8,756.40 -   
Trade payables 6 57.77 57.77
Long-term provisions 7 377.47 183.44

9,191.64 241.21
Current liabilities
Short-term borrowings 8 3,139.73 1,722.85
Trade payables 9 4,227.24 4,982.84
Other current liabilities 9 3,143.06 9,324.79
Short-term provisions 7 842.53 160.19

11,352.56 16,190.67
TOTAL 58,086.87 54,792.40

Assets
Non-current assets
Fixed assets
Tangible assets 10 9,040.43 9,762.07 
Intangible assets 11 765.38 948.24 
Capital work-in-progress            16,084.65              14,853.97 
Non-current investments 12                    1.82                      1.82 
Long-term loans and advances 13              1,501.84                    90.19 
Trade receivables 14.1                        -                      47.41 
Other non-current assets 14.2              1,455.73                1,206.32 

28,849.85 26,910.02 
Current assets
Inventories 15 2,489.19 2,461.49 
Trade receivables 14.1 9,146.99 8,271.63
Cash and cash equivalents 16 77.46 204.10
Short-term loans and advances 13 17,447.42 16,860.49 
Other current assets 14.2 75.96 84.67

29,237.02            27,882.38 
TOTAL 58,086.87            54,792.40

Summary of significant accounting policies 2.1
The accompanying notes (1-37) are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED st31  MARCH, 2014

31-Mar-14 31-Mar-13
Rs. in lacs Rs. in lacs

A. Cash flow from operating activities
Profit before tax 2,166.62 2,578.21
Profit before tax 2,166.62 2,578.21
Non-cash adjustment to reconcile profit before tax to net cash flows

Depreciation / amortization on continuing operation 1,502.40 1,663.21
Loss / (profit) on sale of fixed assets 20.76 (915.14)

Foreign Currency Translation Reserve (125.20) (82.31)
Finance cost 709.48 376.25
Interest (income) (217.37) (124.26)
Operating profit before working capital changes 4,056.69 3,495.96
Movements in working capital :

Increase / (decrease) in trade and other payables 2,062.96 (345.87)
Decrease / (increase) in trade receivables (827.96) (2,025.11)
Decrease / (increase) in inventories (27.70) 1,032.50
Decrease / (increase) in other receivables (3,280.29) (2,790.63)

Cash generated from / (used in) operations 1,983.70 (633.15)
Direct taxes paid (net of refunds) 520.51 64.54
Net cash flow from / (used in) operating activities (A) 2,504.21 (568.61)

B. Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of fixed assets, including CWIP (1,867.61) (356.51)
Proceeds from sale of fixed assets 18.26 1,685.33
Interest received 217.37 124.26
Net cash flow from / (used in) investing activities (B) (1,631.98) 1,453.08

C. Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from issuance of equity share capital - 1,131.41
Expense on issue of FCCBs (69.15) -
Repayment of Long-term borrowings (1,202.60) -
Proceeds / (Repayment) of Short-term borrowings 1,416.89 (1,522.30)
Proposed Dividend (371.41) -
Tax on Dividend (63.12) -
Finance cost (709.48) (376.25)
Net cash flow from / (used in) in financing activities (C) (998.87) (767.14)
Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A + B + C) (126.64) 117.33
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 204.10 86.77
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 77.46 204.10
Components of cash and cash equivalents
Cash on hand 9.37 11.02
With banks- on current account 67.08 189.02
Deposits with original maturity of less than three months - -
Unpaid dividend 1.01 4.06
Total cash and cash equivalents (note 16) 77.46 204.10
Summary of significant accounting policies 2.1
The accompanying notes (1-37) are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.

As per our report of even date For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

For P. C. Bindal & Co. Dr. KAILASH S. CHOUDHARI
Firm Registration No : 003824N Chairman
Chartered Accountants DIN No. 00023824

CA K. C. Gupta CHETAN CHOUDHARI B.R. RAKHECHA
Partner Managing Director Director
Membership No.: 088638 DIN No. 00872366 DIN No. 00026729

Place: New Delhi SATYENDRA GUPTA GAURAV MEHTA
thDate : 26  May, 2014 Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
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stNOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31  MARCH, 2014
1. CORPORATE INFORMATION

Aksh Optifibre Limited is a public Company domiciled in India and incorporated under the provisions of the Companies Act, 
1956. Its shares are listed at The Bombay Stock Exchange Limited, The National Stock Exchange Limited. in India and GDRs 
are listed at Luxembourg Stock Exchange. The Company is engaged in the manufacturing and selling of Optical Fibre, 
Optical Fibre Cable, Fibre Reinforced Plastic Rods and Impregnated Glass Roving Reinforcement, The Company caters to 
both domestic and international markets. The Company also provides the Internet Protocol Television (IPTV) services in 
association with  BSNL in 20 cities of North India. The Company is the pioneer in the FTTH (Fibre to the Home) space and has 
further consolidated its place by starting FTTH services in Delhi, Jaipur, Ajmer and Faridabad.

2. STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The significant accounting policies adopted by Aksh Optifibre Limited (the Company) and its subsidiaries (hereinafter 
referred to as the “Group”) in respect of these Consolidated Financial Statements, are set out below.

2.1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

a) Basis Of Preparation

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Generally Accepted Accounting 
Principles in India (Indian GAAP) to comply with the Accounting Standards notified under Section 211(3C) of the 
Companies Act, 1956 (“the 1956 Act”) (which continue to be applicable in respect of Section 133 of the Companies Act, 

th2013 (“the 2013 Act”) in terms of  General Circular 15/2013 dated 13  September, 2013 of the Ministry of Corporate 
Affairs and the relevant provisions of the 1956 Act / 2013 Companies Act, as applicable 1956  to reflect the financial 
position and the results of operations of the Group. These consolidated financial statements are prepared under the 
historical cost convention on the accrual basis of accounting and in accordance with the reporting requirements of 
Accounting Standard - 21 ‘Consolidated Financial Statements’ issued by the ICAI.

b) Principles of Consolidation

These accounts represent consolidated accounts of the Group and its majority owned subsidiaries as follows:

Entity Country of Shareholding as at 
Incorporation March 31, 2014 

APAKSH Broadband Limited (APAKSH) India 99.92%

AOL (FZE) UAE 100%

AOL PROJECTS JLT subsidiary of AOL (FZE) UAE 100% 

c) Use of Estimates
The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with the generally accepted accounting principles requires 
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amount of assets and liabilities and 
disclosure of contingent liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amount of revenues and 
expenses during the reporting year. Difference between the actual result and estimates are recognized in the year in 
which the results are known / materialized.

d) Fixed Assets
i) Fixed Assets are stated at cost of acquisition less accumulated depreciation and impairment. Cost includes any 

borrowing cost directly attributable to the acquisition / construction of fixed assets and bringing the assets to its 
working condition for its intended use.

ii) Exchange difference arising on account of liabilities incurred for acquisition or construction of Fixed Assets is 
adjusted in the carrying amount of related Fixed Assets.

e) Capital Work-in-Progress
Advances paid towards the acquisition of fixed assets, cost of assets not ready for use before the year-end and 
expenditure during construction period that is directly or indirectly related to construction, including borrowing cost are 
included under Capital Work-in-Progress.

f) Depreciation
i) Depreciation on Fixed Assets is provided on straight-line method at the rates specified in Schedule XIV of the 

Companies Act, 1956 and based on the estimated useful life of assets. Depreciation is charged on pro-rata basis 
for assets purchased / sold during the year. Individual assets costing up to Rs. 5,000/- are depreciated in full in the 
year of purchase.
Depreciation on equipments installed at customer premises is being provided at 20% on useful life estimated by 
the management.
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED st31  MARCH, 2014

31-Mar-14 31-Mar-13
Rs. in lacs Rs. in lacs
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Summary of significant accounting policies 2.1
The accompanying notes (1-37) are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.

As per our report of even date For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

For P. C. Bindal & Co. Dr. KAILASH S. CHOUDHARI
Firm Registration No : 003824N Chairman
Chartered Accountants DIN No. 00023824

CA K. C. Gupta CHETAN CHOUDHARI B.R. RAKHECHA
Partner Managing Director Director
Membership No.: 088638 DIN No. 00872366 DIN No. 00026729

Place: New Delhi SATYENDRA GUPTA GAURAV MEHTA
thDate : 26  May, 2014 Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
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stNOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31  MARCH, 2014
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d) Fixed Assets
i) Fixed Assets are stated at cost of acquisition less accumulated depreciation and impairment. Cost includes any 

borrowing cost directly attributable to the acquisition / construction of fixed assets and bringing the assets to its 
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ii) Exchange difference arising on account of liabilities incurred for acquisition or construction of Fixed Assets is 
adjusted in the carrying amount of related Fixed Assets.

e) Capital Work-in-Progress
Advances paid towards the acquisition of fixed assets, cost of assets not ready for use before the year-end and 
expenditure during construction period that is directly or indirectly related to construction, including borrowing cost are 
included under Capital Work-in-Progress.

f) Depreciation
i) Depreciation on Fixed Assets is provided on straight-line method at the rates specified in Schedule XIV of the 

Companies Act, 1956 and based on the estimated useful life of assets. Depreciation is charged on pro-rata basis 
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year of purchase.
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License fee is amortised over the licensed period.

ii) Cost of leasehold land is amortized over lease period on a straight-line basis.

iii) Cost of software is amortised over its useful life on a straight-line basis.

iv) Extra shift depreciation is charged on the basis of actual extra shifts worked as required by Schedule XIV  to     
the Companies Act, 1956.

g) Impairment of Assets

i) The carrying amounts of assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date if there is any indication of impairment 
based on internal / external factors. An impairment loss is recognized wherever the carrying amount of an asset 
exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the greater of the asset’s net selling price and value 
in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted at their present value at the 
weighted average cost of capital.

ii) After impairment, depreciation is provided on the revised carrying amount of the asset over its remaining useful 
life.

iii) A previously recognized impairment loss is increased or reversed depending on changes in circumstances. 
However, the carrying value after reversal is not increased beyond the carrying value that would have prevailed 
by charging usual depreciation if there was no impairment.

h) Investments

Investments that are readily realizable and intended to be held for not more than a year are classified as current 
investments. All other investments are classified as long-term investments. Long Term investments are stated at cost. 
Provision for diminution in the value of long- term investments is made only if such diminution is other than temporary. 
Current Investments are carried at the lower of cost and fair value and provisions are made to recognize the decline in 
the carrying value.

i) Inventories

i) Raw materials, work-in-process, finished goods, trading stock, packing material and stores and spares parts are 
valued at the lower of cost and net realizable value except scrap which is valued at net realizable value.

ii) Cost of inventories of items that are not ordinarily interchangeable or are meant for specific projects is assigned 
by specific identification of their individual cost. Cost of other inventories is ascertained on the FIFO basis. In 
determining the cost of work-in-process and finished goods, fixed production overheads are allocated on the 
basis of normal capacity of production facilities.

iii) The comparison of cost and realizable value is made on an item-by-item basis.

iv) Net realizable value of work-in- process is determined on the basis of selling prices of related finished products.

v) Raw Material and other supplies held for use in production of inventories are not written down below cost unless 
their prices have declined and it is estimated that cost of related finished goods will exceed their net realizable 
value.

j) Foreign Currency Transactions

i) Foreign currency transactions are recorded in the reporting currency, by applying to the foreign currency amount 
the exchange rate between the reporting currency and the foreign currency at the date of transaction.

ii) Foreign currency monetary items are reported using the closing rate. Non-monetary items which are carried in 
terms of historical cost denominated in a foreign currency are reported using the exchange rate at the date of the 
transaction; and non-monetary items which are carried at fair value or other similar valuation denominated in a 
foreign currency are reported using the exchange rates that existed when the values were determined.

iii) Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items or on reporting Company’s monetary items at 
rates different from those at which they were initially recorded during the year, or reported in previous financial 
statements, are recognized as income or as expense in the year in which they arise.

iv) The premium or discount arising at the inception of forward exchange contracts is amortized as expense or 
income over the life of the contract. Exchange differences on such contracts are recognized in the statement of 
profit and loss in the year in which exchange rate changes. Any profit or loss arising on cancellation or renewal of 
forward exchange contracts is recognized as income or expense for the year. None of the forward exchange 
contracts are taken for trading or speculation purpose.

k) Borrowing Cost

Borrowing cost directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that necessarily takes a 
substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalized as part of the cost of the respective 
asset. All other borrowing cost are expensed in the period they occur. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other cost 
that Company incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds.
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l) Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the 
revenue can be readily measured.

Sales of Goods and Services

Revenue is recognized when the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods have been passed to the 
buyer (usually at the point of dispatch to customers).  Sales include excise duty, sale of scrap and net of sale tax and 
quantity discount.

Income from services is recognized on the completion of services. Period based services are accounted for 
proportionately over the period of service.

Income from Interest

Revenue is recognized on a time proportion basis taking into account the amount outstanding and the rate applicable.

Other Incomes

Other Incomes are accrued as earned except where the receipt of income is uncertain.

m) Retirement and other Employee Benefits

i) Retirement benefits in the form of Provident Fund are a defined contribution scheme and the contributions are 
charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss for the year when the contributions to the respective funds are due. 
The Company has no other obligation other than the contribution payable.

ii) Gratuity liability is a defined benefit obligation and is provided for on the basis of an actuarial valuation on 
Projected Unit Credit Method calculated at the end of each financial year.  The liability with regard to gratuity in 
respect of any employee not covered under group gratuity scheme is provided on the basis of amount payable to 
such employees as if they were to retire on the last day of financial year.

iii) Compensated Absences liability is provided for based on actuarial valuation done as per Projected Unit Credit 
Method calculated at the end of each financial year.

iv) Actuarial gains / losses are immediately taken to the statement of profit and loss and are not deferred.

n) Export Incentives

Export Incentive in the form of advance licenses / credit earned under duty entitlement pass book scheme are treated 
as income in the year of export at the estimated realisable value / actual credit earned on exports made during the year.

o) Taxes on Income

Income taxes are computed using the tax effect accounting method where taxes are accrued in the same period, as the 
related revenue and expenses to which they relate. The differences that result between profit offered for income tax and 
the profit before tax as per financial statements are identified and deferred tax assets or deferred tax liabilities are 
recorded for timing differences, namely differences that originate in one accounting period and are capable of reversal 
in future. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using tax rates and tax laws enacted or substantively enacted 
by the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax assets are recognized only if there is reasonable certainty that they will be realized. However, where the 
Company has unabsorbed depreciation or carried forward losses under taxation laws, a much stricter test, viz, virtual 
certainty of realization, is applied for recognition of deferred tax assets. Deferred tax assets are reviewed for the 
continuing appropriateness of their respective carrying values at each balance sheet date and written down or written 
up to reflect the amout  that is reasonably/ virtually certain (as the case may be) of realisation.

Minimum Alternative Tax (MAT) credit is recognized as an asset only when and to the extent there is convincing 
evidence that the Company will pay normal income tax during the specified period. In the year in which the MAT credit 
becomes eligible to be recognized as an asset in accordance with the recommendations contained in Guidance Note 
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India, the said asset is created by way of a credit to the statement of 
profit and loss and shown as MAT Credit Entitlement. The Company reviews the same at each balance sheet date and 
writes down the carrying amount of MAT Credit Entitlement to the extent there is no longer convincing evidence to the 
effect that Company will pay normal Income Tax during the specified period.

p) Operating Leases

Assets given on operating leases are included in fixed assets. Lease income is recognised in the Statement of Profit 
and Loss  on a straight-line basis over the lease term. Cost, including depreciation are recognised as an expense in the 
statement of Profit and Loss. Initial direct costs such as legal cost, brokerage cost, etc. are recognised immediately in 
the Statement of Profit and Loss. 
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License fee is amortised over the licensed period.

ii) Cost of leasehold land is amortized over lease period on a straight-line basis.

iii) Cost of software is amortised over its useful life on a straight-line basis.

iv) Extra shift depreciation is charged on the basis of actual extra shifts worked as required by Schedule XIV  to     
the Companies Act, 1956.

g) Impairment of Assets

i) The carrying amounts of assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date if there is any indication of impairment 
based on internal / external factors. An impairment loss is recognized wherever the carrying amount of an asset 
exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the greater of the asset’s net selling price and value 
in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted at their present value at the 
weighted average cost of capital.

ii) After impairment, depreciation is provided on the revised carrying amount of the asset over its remaining useful 
life.

iii) A previously recognized impairment loss is increased or reversed depending on changes in circumstances. 
However, the carrying value after reversal is not increased beyond the carrying value that would have prevailed 
by charging usual depreciation if there was no impairment.

h) Investments

Investments that are readily realizable and intended to be held for not more than a year are classified as current 
investments. All other investments are classified as long-term investments. Long Term investments are stated at cost. 
Provision for diminution in the value of long- term investments is made only if such diminution is other than temporary. 
Current Investments are carried at the lower of cost and fair value and provisions are made to recognize the decline in 
the carrying value.

i) Inventories

i) Raw materials, work-in-process, finished goods, trading stock, packing material and stores and spares parts are 
valued at the lower of cost and net realizable value except scrap which is valued at net realizable value.

ii) Cost of inventories of items that are not ordinarily interchangeable or are meant for specific projects is assigned 
by specific identification of their individual cost. Cost of other inventories is ascertained on the FIFO basis. In 
determining the cost of work-in-process and finished goods, fixed production overheads are allocated on the 
basis of normal capacity of production facilities.

iii) The comparison of cost and realizable value is made on an item-by-item basis.

iv) Net realizable value of work-in- process is determined on the basis of selling prices of related finished products.

v) Raw Material and other supplies held for use in production of inventories are not written down below cost unless 
their prices have declined and it is estimated that cost of related finished goods will exceed their net realizable 
value.

j) Foreign Currency Transactions

i) Foreign currency transactions are recorded in the reporting currency, by applying to the foreign currency amount 
the exchange rate between the reporting currency and the foreign currency at the date of transaction.

ii) Foreign currency monetary items are reported using the closing rate. Non-monetary items which are carried in 
terms of historical cost denominated in a foreign currency are reported using the exchange rate at the date of the 
transaction; and non-monetary items which are carried at fair value or other similar valuation denominated in a 
foreign currency are reported using the exchange rates that existed when the values were determined.

iii) Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items or on reporting Company’s monetary items at 
rates different from those at which they were initially recorded during the year, or reported in previous financial 
statements, are recognized as income or as expense in the year in which they arise.

iv) The premium or discount arising at the inception of forward exchange contracts is amortized as expense or 
income over the life of the contract. Exchange differences on such contracts are recognized in the statement of 
profit and loss in the year in which exchange rate changes. Any profit or loss arising on cancellation or renewal of 
forward exchange contracts is recognized as income or expense for the year. None of the forward exchange 
contracts are taken for trading or speculation purpose.

k) Borrowing Cost

Borrowing cost directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that necessarily takes a 
substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalized as part of the cost of the respective 
asset. All other borrowing cost are expensed in the period they occur. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other cost 
that Company incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds.
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l) Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the 
revenue can be readily measured.

Sales of Goods and Services

Revenue is recognized when the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods have been passed to the 
buyer (usually at the point of dispatch to customers).  Sales include excise duty, sale of scrap and net of sale tax and 
quantity discount.

Income from services is recognized on the completion of services. Period based services are accounted for 
proportionately over the period of service.

Income from Interest

Revenue is recognized on a time proportion basis taking into account the amount outstanding and the rate applicable.

Other Incomes

Other Incomes are accrued as earned except where the receipt of income is uncertain.

m) Retirement and other Employee Benefits

i) Retirement benefits in the form of Provident Fund are a defined contribution scheme and the contributions are 
charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss for the year when the contributions to the respective funds are due. 
The Company has no other obligation other than the contribution payable.
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Projected Unit Credit Method calculated at the end of each financial year.  The liability with regard to gratuity in 
respect of any employee not covered under group gratuity scheme is provided on the basis of amount payable to 
such employees as if they were to retire on the last day of financial year.

iii) Compensated Absences liability is provided for based on actuarial valuation done as per Projected Unit Credit 
Method calculated at the end of each financial year.

iv) Actuarial gains / losses are immediately taken to the statement of profit and loss and are not deferred.

n) Export Incentives
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as income in the year of export at the estimated realisable value / actual credit earned on exports made during the year.

o) Taxes on Income
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the profit before tax as per financial statements are identified and deferred tax assets or deferred tax liabilities are 
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up to reflect the amout  that is reasonably/ virtually certain (as the case may be) of realisation.
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evidence that the Company will pay normal income tax during the specified period. In the year in which the MAT credit 
becomes eligible to be recognized as an asset in accordance with the recommendations contained in Guidance Note 
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India, the said asset is created by way of a credit to the statement of 
profit and loss and shown as MAT Credit Entitlement. The Company reviews the same at each balance sheet date and 
writes down the carrying amount of MAT Credit Entitlement to the extent there is no longer convincing evidence to the 
effect that Company will pay normal Income Tax during the specified period.

p) Operating Leases

Assets given on operating leases are included in fixed assets. Lease income is recognised in the Statement of Profit 
and Loss  on a straight-line basis over the lease term. Cost, including depreciation are recognised as an expense in the 
statement of Profit and Loss. Initial direct costs such as legal cost, brokerage cost, etc. are recognised immediately in 
the Statement of Profit and Loss. 
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q) Earnings Per Share

The Group reports basic and diluted earnings per share in accordance with Notified AS 20 under the Companies 
(Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006 issued by The Institute of Chartered Accountants of India on ‘Earnings Per Share’. 
Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders 
after deducting attributable taxes by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period. 
Diluted earnings per share are computed by dividing the net profit or loss for the period by the weighted aver-age 
number of equity shares outstanding during the period. Both profit for the year and weighted average numbers of 
shares are adjusted for the effects of all diluted potential equity shares except where the results are anti-dilutive.

r) Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

As per Notified AS 29 under the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006, Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and 
Contingent Assets, issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India, the Company recognizes provisions 
(without discounting to its present value) only when it has a present obligation as a result of a past event, it is probable 
that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation as and when a 
reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation can be made.

No provision is recognized for –

Any possible obligation that arises from past events and the existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence 
or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company; or

Any present obligation that arises from past events but is not recognized because –

• It is not probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the 
obligation; or

• A reliable estimate of the amount of obligation cannot be made.

Such obligations are disclosed as Contingent Liabilities. These are assessed continually and only that part of the 
obligation for which an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is probable, is provided for, except in 
the extremely rare circumstances where no reliable estimate can be made.

s) Project Development Expenditure

Expenses incurred relating to project prior to commencement of commercial production / start of the project is classified 
as Project Development Expenditure net of income earned during the project development stage.

t) Miscellaneous Expenditure

Expenditure on issue of shares / foreign currency convertible bonds (FCCBs) / Global Depository Receipts (GDRs) / 
shares under Qualified Institutional Placements (QIP) and premium on redemption of FCCBs are adjusted against 
Securities Premium account.

u) Translation of Foreign Subsidiary

In case of foreign subsidiary, the revenue and expense transactions at the year end reflected in the Statement of Profit 
and Loss have been translated at the average exchange rates for the period to which the financial statements relate.

The assets and liabilities, both monetary and non-monetary, have been translated at the closing exchange rate 
prevailing on the date of the Balance Sheet.

Exchange difference arising on the Company’s net investment in foreign subsidiary are accumulated in a foreign 
currency translation reserve until the disposal of such investment, at which time they are recognized as income and 
expense.

v) Measurement of EBITDA

As permitted by the Guidance Note on the Revised Schedule VI to the Companies Act, 1956, the Company has elected 
to present earnings before interest, tax, depreciation, exceptional items and amortization (EBITDA) as a separate line 
item on the face of the statement of profit and loss. The Company measures EBITDA on the basis of profit / (loss) from 
continuing operations. In its measurement, the Company does not include depreciation and amortization expense, 
finance cost and tax expense.
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3. Share capital

31-Mar-14 31-Mar-13
Rs. in lacs Rs.in lacs

Authorized share (No.)
st170,100,000 (31  March, 2013: 170,100,000) Equity  

Shares of Rs. 5/- each

Issued, subscribed and fully paid-up share (No.)
st148,564,989 (31  March, 2013: 148,564,989) 7,428.25 7,428.25

Equity Shares of Rs. 5/- each fully paid up

Forfeited Shares in case of APAKSH Broadband Limited 2,214.53 2,214.53

Total issued, subscribed and fully paid-up share capital 9,642.78 9,642.78

(a) Reconciliation of the shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting year

Equity shares

31-Mar-14                  31-Mar-13

No. Rs. In lacs No. Rs. In lacs

At the beginning of the year 148,564,989 7,428.25 142,924,871 7,146.24

Add:

- Issued pursuant to conversion of FCCBs - - 5,640,118 282.01

Outstanding at the end of the year 148,564,989 7,428.25 148,564,989 7,428.25

Terms/ rights attached to equity shares

The Company has only one class of equity shares having par value of  Rs. 5/-  per share. Each holder of equity shares is 
entitled to one vote per share. The Company declares and pays dividends in Indian Rupees. The dividend proposed by 
the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in ensuing  Annual General Meeting.

In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the 
Company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity 
shares held by the shareholders.

(b) Details of shareholders (as per register of shareholders) holding more than 5% shares in the Company

Name of the shareholder 31-Mar-14 31-Mar-13

No. % holding No. % holding

Dr. Kailash S. Choudhari 25,842,700 17.39% 25,842,700 17.39%

Religare Finvest Limited 20,851,807 14.04% 14,816,807 9.97%

Sunidhi Capital Private Limited 9,005,250 6.06% - 0.00%

Davinder Kumar Jain - 0.00% 15,356,251 10.34%

The Bank of New York, Mellon 9,065,850 6.10% 9,065,850 6.10%

Seema Choudhari 7,809,341 5.26% 7,809,341 5.26%

8,505.00 8,505.00
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q) Earnings Per Share
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In case of foreign subsidiary, the revenue and expense transactions at the year end reflected in the Statement of Profit 
and Loss have been translated at the average exchange rates for the period to which the financial statements relate.

The assets and liabilities, both monetary and non-monetary, have been translated at the closing exchange rate 
prevailing on the date of the Balance Sheet.

Exchange difference arising on the Company’s net investment in foreign subsidiary are accumulated in a foreign 
currency translation reserve until the disposal of such investment, at which time they are recognized as income and 
expense.

v) Measurement of EBITDA

As permitted by the Guidance Note on the Revised Schedule VI to the Companies Act, 1956, the Company has elected 
to present earnings before interest, tax, depreciation, exceptional items and amortization (EBITDA) as a separate line 
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3. Share capital
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4.  Reserves and surplus 

31-Mar-14 31-Mar-13
Rs. in lacs Rs. in lacs

Securities premium account

Balance as per the last financial statements 33,830.69 32,981.29 

Add :

- Issue expenses on issue of FCCBs (USD 3,792 Million) (69.15) -   

- Premium on Redemption on FCCBs (2,355.59) -

-Issue of 5,640,118 equity shares upon conversion of FCCBs - 849.40

Closing Balance 31,405.95 33,830.69

Foreign Currency Translation Reserve

Balance as per the last financial statements (18.57) 63.74

Add: Created on translation and incorporation of non integral foreign subsidiaries (125.20) (82.31)

Closing Balance (143.77) (18.57)

Surplus/ (deficit) in the statement of profit and loss

Balance as per last financial statements (5,119.85) (7,698.06)

Profit for the year 2,166.62 2,578.21

Proposed Dividend (371.41) -

Tax on Dividend (63.12) -

Net Deficit in the statement of profit and loss (3,387.76) (5,119.85)

Total reserves and surplus 27,889.42 28,707.27

5. Long-term borrowings

Non-current portion Current maturities
31-Mar-14 31-Mar-13 31-Mar-14 31-Mar-13
Rs. in lacs Rs. in lacs Rs. in lacs Rs. in lacs

Secured Loans

Term Loans

External Commercial Borrowings 5,133.95 - 1,140.88 -
st10.472 Mn USD (31  March, 2013 : Nil)

Term Loan from Bank 1,298.32 - 472.34 -

Term Loan from Others 51.96 - 25.47 -

Unsecured Loans

Foreign Currency Convertible Bonds (FCCBs)
st3.792 Mn USD ((31  March, 2013: Nil)  0% FCCBs 2,272.17 - - - 

due on Feb-2019 of  $ 1,000 each (unsecured)

8,756.40 - 1,638.69 -

The above amount includes

Secured borrowings 6,484.23 - 1,638.69 -

Unsecured borrowings 2,272.17 - - -

Amount disclosed under the head “other current - - (1,638.69) - 
liabilities” (note 9)

Net amount 8,756.40 - - -

Capital reserve 15.00 15.00 
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1. External Commercial Borrowings are secured by way of first pari- passu charge on fixed assets of the Company 
and personal guarantee of Dr. Kailash S. Choudhari.

2 Term Loan from Bank are secured by way of exclusive charge on Plant and Machinery installed under the project 
and further secured by personal guarantee of Dr. Kailash S. Choudhari.

3 In case of AOL (FZE), Term loan from Bank of Baroda are secured by way of charge on fixed assets of AOL (FZE), 
personal guarantee of Dr. Kailash S. Choudhari and Corporate guarantee of the Company.

4. Term Loan from others are secured by way of exclusive charge on Fixed aseets installed under the subject Project.
5. Issue of Foreign Currency Convertible Bonds (FCCBs) convertible into ordinary shares, the particulars, terms of 

st issue and the status of conversion as at 31 March, 2014 are given below :-
Issue 0% FCCBs (due February 2019)

thIssued on 10  February, 2014

Issue Amount USD 3.792 Million

Face Value USD 1000

Fixed Exchange Rate for conversion USD 1=Rs. 62.32
thRedeemable on 10  February, 2019

Redemption Percentage of the principal amount 120%

FCCBs converted Nil

Shares issued on conversion of FCCBs Nil
stFCCBs outstanding as on 31  March, 2014 USD 3.792 Million

Shares that could be issued on conversion of 14,100,086 shares 
outstanding FCCBs   

6. Other long-term liabilities 

31-Mar-14 31-Mar-13

Rs. in lacs Rs. in lacs

Trade payables (including acceptances) 57.77 57.77

57.77 57.77

7. Provisions
Long-term Short-term

31-Mar-14 31-Mar-13 31-Mar-14 31-Mar-13
Rs. in lacs Rs. in lacs Rs. in lacs Rs. in lacs

Provision for Gratuity and Compensated Absences 377.47 183.44 5.53 128.15

Provision for Income Tax (net of Prepaid Taxes) - - 402.47 32.04

Proposed Dividend - - 371.41 -

Provision for Tax on Dividend - - 63.12 -

377.47 183.44 842.53 160.19 

8. Short-term borrowings 

31-Mar-14 31-Mar-13
Rs. in lacs Rs. in lacs

Secured Loans
Working Capital Facilities from Banks

-Working Capital Facilities 1,511.03 147.38
-Buyers Credit from Banks 488.58 290.16

Other Loans
-Cisco Systems Capital India Private Limited 497.93 497.93
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Fixed Exchange Rate for conversion USD 1=Rs. 62.32
thRedeemable on 10  February, 2019

Redemption Percentage of the principal amount 120%

FCCBs converted Nil

Shares issued on conversion of FCCBs Nil
stFCCBs outstanding as on 31  March, 2014 USD 3.792 Million

Shares that could be issued on conversion of 14,100,086 shares 
outstanding FCCBs   

6. Other long-term liabilities 

31-Mar-14 31-Mar-13

Rs. in lacs Rs. in lacs

Trade payables (including acceptances) 57.77 57.77

57.77 57.77

7. Provisions
Long-term Short-term

31-Mar-14 31-Mar-13 31-Mar-14 31-Mar-13
Rs. in lacs Rs. in lacs Rs. in lacs Rs. in lacs

Provision for Gratuity and Compensated Absences 377.47 183.44 5.53 128.15

Provision for Income Tax (net of Prepaid Taxes) - - 402.47 32.04

Proposed Dividend - - 371.41 -

Provision for Tax on Dividend - - 63.12 -

377.47 183.44 842.53 160.19 

8. Short-term borrowings 

31-Mar-14 31-Mar-13
Rs. in lacs Rs. in lacs

Secured Loans
Working Capital Facilities from Banks

-Working Capital Facilities 1,511.03 147.38
-Buyers Credit from Banks 488.58 290.16

Other Loans
-Cisco Systems Capital India Private Limited 497.93 497.93
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stNOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31  MARCH, 2014
Unsecured Loans

Deposits (unsecured)

0% loan from Chairman repayable on demand - 47.75

0% Inter Corporate Deposit from related parties repayable on demand 50.00 50.00

15% Inter Corporate Deposit from related parties repayable on demand - 34.00

15% Inter Corporate Deposit from others repayable on demand 200.00 230.00

9% Security Deposits - 9.92

0% Security Deposits 392.19 415.71

3,139.73 1,722.85

The above amount includes :

Secured borrowings 2,497.54 935.47

Unsecured borrowings 642.19 787.38

1. Working Capital Facilities from banks are  secured  by  way  of  first pari-passu charge on Current Assets both 
present and future and second pari-passu charge on the fixed assets of the Company. These facilities are further 
secured by way of first pari-passu charge on the immovable properties of the Company and personal guarantee 
of Dr. Kailash S. Choudhari. The cash credit is repayable on demand. The interest payable on cash credit ranges 
between 14.00%  to 14.50% and on packing credit 6.15%.

2. Non fund based limits are secured by first pari-passu charge on immovable properties of the Company and 
personal guarantee of Dr. Kailash S. Choudhari.

3. Loan from Cisco Systems Capital India Private Limited is secured by way of first charge on Fixed Assets of 
APAKSH Broadband Limited.

9. Other current liabilities

31-Mar-14 31-Mar-13
Rs. in lacs Rs. in lacs

Trade payables (including acceptances) 4,227.24 4,982.84

Other liabilities

Current maturities of long term debt (Refer Note No 5) 1,638.69 -

Foreign currency convertible bonds - 7,603.40

Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 125.71 17.87

Advance from Customers 93.40 168.14

Unearned revenue 6.06 6.08

Unclaimed Dividend #

Dividend 2005-06 0.00 3.05

Dividend 2006-07 1.01 1.01

Other current liabilities 1,278.19 1,525.24

3,143.06 9,324.79

7,370.30 14,307.63

# Unclaimed dividend will be deposited in Investor Education and Protection Fund as and when due.

Aksh Optifibre Limited

Annual Report 2013-2014

Aksh Optifibre Limited

Annual Report 2013-2014
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stNOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31  MARCH, 2014
Unsecured Loans

Deposits (unsecured)

0% loan from Chairman repayable on demand - 47.75

0% Inter Corporate Deposit from related parties repayable on demand 50.00 50.00

15% Inter Corporate Deposit from related parties repayable on demand - 34.00

15% Inter Corporate Deposit from others repayable on demand 200.00 230.00

9% Security Deposits - 9.92

0% Security Deposits 392.19 415.71

3,139.73 1,722.85

The above amount includes :

Secured borrowings 2,497.54 935.47

Unsecured borrowings 642.19 787.38

1. Working Capital Facilities from banks are  secured  by  way  of  first pari-passu charge on Current Assets both 
present and future and second pari-passu charge on the fixed assets of the Company. These facilities are further 
secured by way of first pari-passu charge on the immovable properties of the Company and personal guarantee 
of Dr. Kailash S. Choudhari. The cash credit is repayable on demand. The interest payable on cash credit ranges 
between 14.00%  to 14.50% and on packing credit 6.15%.

2. Non fund based limits are secured by first pari-passu charge on immovable properties of the Company and 
personal guarantee of Dr. Kailash S. Choudhari.

3. Loan from Cisco Systems Capital India Private Limited is secured by way of first charge on Fixed Assets of 
APAKSH Broadband Limited.

9. Other current liabilities

31-Mar-14 31-Mar-13
Rs. in lacs Rs. in lacs

Trade payables (including acceptances) 4,227.24 4,982.84

Other liabilities

Current maturities of long term debt (Refer Note No 5) 1,638.69 -

Foreign currency convertible bonds - 7,603.40

Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 125.71 17.87

Advance from Customers 93.40 168.14

Unearned revenue 6.06 6.08

Unclaimed Dividend #

Dividend 2005-06 0.00 3.05

Dividend 2006-07 1.01 1.01

Other current liabilities 1,278.19 1,525.24

3,143.06 9,324.79

7,370.30 14,307.63

# Unclaimed dividend will be deposited in Investor Education and Protection Fund as and when due.

Aksh Optifibre Limited

Annual Report 2013-2014

Aksh Optifibre Limited

Annual Report 2013-2014
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stNOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31  MARCH, 2014
12. Non-current investments 

31-Mar-14 31-Mar-13
Rs. in lacs Rs. in lacs

Trade investments (valued at cost unless stated otherwise)

Non-trade investments (valued at cost unless stated otherwise)

Investment in equity instruments (quoted)
st22,300 (31  March, 2013: 22,300) equity shares of 0.45 0.45 

Rs. 5/- each fully paid-up in CMI Limited

Government and trust securities (unquoted)

National Saving Certificates (Deposited with 0.87 0.87 
Government Department as Security)

Kisan Vikas Patra 0.50 0.50

1.82 1.82

Aggregate amount of quoted investments (Market value: Rs 3.04 lacs 0.45 0.45
(31.03.2013: Rs. 1.58 lacs)

Aggregate amount of unquoted investments 1.37 1.37  

13. Loans and advances (Unsecured, considered Good unless stated otherwise)

Non-current Current
31-Mar-14 31-Mar-13 31-Mar-14 31-Mar-13
Rs. in lacs Rs. in lacs Rs. in lacs Rs. in lacs

Capital advances 1,421.66 6.98 - -

Security deposit 80.18 83.21 67.96 52.96

Advances recoverable in cash or kind - - 14,992.49 14,944.34

Other loans and advances

Income Tax Refund - - 61.42 47.24

MAT Credit Entitlement - - 756.02 235.51

Prepaid expenses - - 228.70 176.71

Balances with statutory / government authorities - - 1,340.83 1,403.73

- - 2,386.97 1,863.19

Total 1,501.84 90.19 17,447.42 16,860.49 

14. Trade receivables and other assets

14.1. Trade receivables 

Non-current Current
31-Mar-14 31-Mar-13 31-Mar-14 31-Mar-13
Rs. in lacs Rs. in lacs Rs. in lacs Rs. in lacs

Unsecured, considered good unless stated 
otherwise

Outstanding for a period exceeding six months - - 4,228.80 2,033.93
from the date they are due for payment

Other receivables - 47.41 4,918.19 6,237.70

- 47.41 9,146.99 8,271.63 
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stNOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31  MARCH, 2014
14.2. Other assets

Non-current Current
31-Mar-14 31-Mar-13 31-Mar-14 31-Mar-13
Rs. in lacs Rs. in lacs Rs. in lacs Rs. in lacs

Unsecured, considered good unless stated 
otherwise

Non-current bank balances (note16) 1,455.73 1,206.32 - -
Interest accrued on fixed deposits - - 36.94 84.67
Interest accrued on other deposits - - 39.02 -

- - 75.96 84.67
1,455.73 1,206.32 75.96 84.67  

15. Inventories (valued at lower of cost and net realizable value)

31-Mar-14 31-Mar-13
Rs. in lacs Rs. in lacs

 i) Finished Goods and Traded Goods 409.12 1,120.77

ii) Raw Material 1,030.87 742.16

iii) Semi Finished Goods 834.50 390.81

iv)  Stores, Spares and others 214.70 207.75

2,489.19 2,461.49

16. Cash and cash equivalents

Non-current Current
31-Mar-14 31-Mar-13 31-Mar-14 31-Mar-13
Rs. in lacs Rs. in lacs Rs. in lacs Rs. in lacs

Cash and cash equivalents

Balances with banks:

– On current accounts - 67.08 189.02

– Deposits with original maturity of - - -
   less than three months

– On unpaid dividend account - 1.01 4.06

Cash on hand - 9.37 11.02

- - 77.46 204.10

Other bank balances

– Deposits with original maturity for 0.10 0.10
   more than 12 months

– Margin money deposit 1,455.63 1,206.22 - -

1,455.73 1,206.32 - -

Amount disclosed under non-current assets (note 14.2) (1,455.73) (1,206.32) - -

- - 77.46 204.10

Margin money deposits given as security

Margin money deposits with a carrying amount of Rs. 1,455.63 lacs  (31.03. 2013: Rs. 1,206.22 lacs) are pledged with Banks
for various Facilities.
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stNOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31  MARCH, 2014
17. Revenue from operations

31-Mar-14 31-Mar-13
Rs. in lacs Rs. in lacs

Revenue from operations

Sale of products

- Finished goods 20,979.03 21,038.30

- Traded goods 2,100.51 2,542.22

Sale of services 882.05 1,527.08 

Other operating revenue

-Scrap sales 22.26 14.59

-Export Incentives 696.87 657.32

-Exchange Fluctuation 43.91 401.96

-Other operating revenue 25.59 120.87

Revenue from operations (gross) 24,750.22 26,302.34

Less: Excise duty # 875.94 625.04

Revenue from operations (net) 23,874.28 25,677.30

# Excise duty on sales amounting to Rs. 875.94 lacs (31.03.2013 : Rs. 625.04 lacs)  has been reduced from sales in 
statement of profit and loss  and excise duty on increase / (decrease) in stock amounting to Rs. 25.65 lacs (31.03.2013 : Rs. 
1.40 lacs) has been considered as (income) / expense in note 23 of financial statements.

Detail of products sold

31-Mar-14 31-Mar-13
Rs. In lacs Rs. In lacs

Finished goods sold

Optical Fibre and Optical Fibre Cables 11,639.49 14,327.22

Fibre Reinforced Plastic Rod and Impregnated Glass Roving Reinforcement 9,339.54 6,711.08

20,979.03 21,038.30

Traded goods sold

Telecom and electronic items 2,100.51 2,542.22

2,100.51 2,542.22

Detail of services rendered

IPTV and VoIP 147.44 305.07

Network Erection, Installation and Commissioning 218.80 333.28

Consultancy Income 68.70 427.73

Others 447.11 461.00

882.05 1,527.08

18. Other income

31-Mar-14 31-Mar-13
Rs. in lacs Rs. in lacs

Interest income
-on deposits 170.13 119.73
-on other advances 47.24 4.53

Other non-operating income 3.05 104.98

220.42 229.24  
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stNOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31  MARCH, 2014
19. Cost of raw material and components consumed

31-Mar-14 31-Mar-13
Rs. in lacs Rs. in lacs

 
Add: Purchases 13,549.92 14,030.17

14,292.08 14,486.27

Less: inventory at the end of the year 1,030.87 742.16

Cost of raw material and components consumed 13,261.21 13,744.11

Details of raw material and components consumed

31-Mar-14 31-Mar-13

Rs. In lacs Rs. In lacs

Glass Fibre and Glass Preforms 3,755.21 6,139.02

Resin such as (PVC, HDPE, Nylon, MB, LSZH, PBT, Nucrel, UV resin and Polyster) 4,577.70 2,944.05

Others 4,928.30 4,661.04

13,261.21 13,744.11

20. Details of purchase of traded goods

31-Mar-14 31-Mar-13
Rs. in lacs Rs. in lacs

Telecom and electronic items 493.10 519.38

493.10 519.38

21. (Increase)  / decrease in inventories

(Increase) / 31-Mar-14 31-Mar-13
 decrease
Rs. in lacs Rs. in lacs Rs. in lacs

Inventories at the end of the year 31-Mar-14

Finished / Traded goods 711.65 409.12 1,120.77

Semi Finished goods (443.69) 834.50 390.81

267.96 1,243.62 1,511.58

Inventories at the beginning of the year 31-Mar-13

Finished / Traded goods 1,312.29 1,120.77 2,433.06

Semi Finished goods 26.41 390.81 417.22

1,338.70 1,511.58 2,850.28 

22. Employee benefits expense

31-Mar-14 31-Mar-13
Rs. in lacs Rs. in lacs

Salaries, wages and bonus 1,593.86 1,431.87
Contribution to provident and other funds 86.72 88.86
Gratuity 75.14 81.51
Staff welfare expenses 85.40 62.11
Directors’ Remuneration 115.59 100.04

1,956.71 1,764.39  

Inventory at the beginning of the year 742.16 456.10
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23. Other expenses

31-Mar-14 31-Mar-13
Rs. in lacs Rs. in lacs

Consumption of stores and spares 358.71 250.31
Sub-contracting expenses 508.14 644.60
Subscription Charges 76.39 205.79
Packing Material Consumed 1,058.97 814.95
Increase / (Decrease) in Excise Duty Provision on Stock 25.65 1.40
Project Execution Expenses 3.91 133.97
Power and Fuel 555.89 576.18
Travelling and Conveyance 274.11 220.10
Postage and Telephone 34.77 47.28
Insurance 50.85 43.06
Rent 108.21 138.43
Rates and taxes 4.97 95.08
Professional and Legal Expenses 368.16 199.87
Repair and Maintenance
-  Plant and Machinery 56.82 35.82
-  Buildings 51.98 33.23
-  Others 71.95 77.70
Marketing and Service Charges 220.00 304.05
Freight and Cartage (Outward) 267.66 243.34
Auditors’ Remuneration 31.51 26.40
Bad Debts - 176.75
Other Expenses 333.77 298.66

4,462.42 4,566.97
Less : Transfer to Capital Asset / Capital Work in Progress 18.60 25.65

4,443.82 4,541.32
Detail of payment to Auditor

31-Mar-14 31-Mar-13
Rs. In lacs Rs. In lacs

As Auditor:
-Audit fee 23.21 20.89
-Tax audit fee 4.00 1.00

In other capacity:
-Taxation matters 2.11 -
-Other services (certification fees) 1.20 3.70
-Reimbursement of expenses 0.99 0.81

31.51 26.40 
24. Depreciation and amortization expense

31-Mar-14 31-Mar-13
Rs. in lacs Rs. in lacs

Depreciation of tangible assets 1,319.54 1,481.90 

Amortization of intangible assets 182.86 181.31

1,502.40           1,663.21
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stNOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31  MARCH, 2014
25. Finance cost

31-Mar-14 31-Mar-13
Rs. in lacs Rs. in lacs

Interest 268.44              103.92 

Bank Charges 301.99 190.27 

709.48              376.25

26 Contingent Liabilities:

a) Claims not acknowledged as debts (Rs. in lacs)

S. No Particulars 31-Mar-14 31-Mar-13

1 VAT/Sales Tax Matters 549.96 693.06

2 Service Tax 304.76 318.08

3 Excise / Custom Duty 552.18 559.93

4 Stamp Duty 28.50 28.50

5 Others 78.91 78.91

b) Corporate Guarantee given by erstwhile Aksh Broadband Limited aggregating to Rs. 582.03 lacs (31.03.2013 : Rs. 
582.03 lacs) in favour of Cisco Systems Capital India Private Limited for loan taken by APAKSH Broadband Limited, 
subsidiary of erstwhile  Aksh Broadband Limited.

c) Corporate Guarantee given by the Company aggregating to USD 3.38 Mn equivalent to Rs. 2,025.30 lacs (31.03.2013 : 
Rs. Nil) in favour of Bank of Baroda, Dubai for loan taken by AOL (FZE).

d) Bank Guarantees, letters of credit  (Net of margin) issued by banks and outstanding as on the reporting date is Rs. 
2,163.96 lacs (31.03.2013 : Rs. 1070.89 lacs)

e) The Company had imported plant and machinery in previous years under EPCG scheme. An export obligation (‘EO’) 
amounting to Rs.10,699 lacs  was placed on the Company which was to be fulfilled in a period of 8 years starting from 
August 2001. Subsequently, the said EO was refixed by DGFT vide its letter dated Jan 2011 upto August 2011 in terms 
of the Chapter VI of EXIM Policy and Procedure (Vol-1) 1997-2002. The Company has fulfilled the entire EO. The 
application for redemption of EPCG license was filed on March 2013 and final redemption is awaited.

f) Estimated amounts of contracts remaining to be executed on Capital Account (net of advances) is Rs. 31,075.73 lacs 
(31.03.2013 : Rs. 30,370.17 lacs)

27 With a view to have a global presence in telecom, the Company has incorporated a wholly owned subsidiary in Dubai, viz. 
“AOL (FZE)” for expansion of Companies businesses. The subsidiary Company has signed an agreement with Africa One, a 
Company which has been mandated to provide majority stake in Company, holding GSM licenses with spectrum in African 
contingent for Broadband, IPTV and FTTH projects. In Compliance of the terms of the agreement, the subsidiary Company 
has advanced towards part consideration an amount aggregating Rs 10,782.68 lacs ( equivalent to AED 660.06 lacs)  
(31.03.2013 : Rs 9,755.64 ( equivalent to AED 660.06 lacs)

28 Related Party Disclosures

Related party disclosures as required under Accounting Standard - 18 on “Related Party Disclosures” issued by The Institute 
st of Chartered Accountants of India are as given below as on 31 March, 2014:

a) Individuals exercising significant influence and their relatives:

-  Dr. Kailash S. Choudhari (Chairman)
th -  Mr.P. F. Sundesha (Related upto 20 September, 2013)

th-  Mr.Shailesh Popat Lal (Relative of Mr. P. F. Sundesha) (Related upto 20  September, 2013)

Interest on Cash Credit 139.05 82.06 
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Rates and taxes 4.97 95.08
Professional and Legal Expenses 368.16 199.87
Repair and Maintenance
-  Plant and Machinery 56.82 35.82
-  Buildings 51.98 33.23
-  Others 71.95 77.70
Marketing and Service Charges 220.00 304.05
Freight and Cartage (Outward) 267.66 243.34
Auditors’ Remuneration 31.51 26.40
Bad Debts - 176.75
Other Expenses 333.77 298.66

4,462.42 4,566.97
Less : Transfer to Capital Asset / Capital Work in Progress 18.60 25.65

4,443.82 4,541.32
Detail of payment to Auditor

31-Mar-14 31-Mar-13
Rs. In lacs Rs. In lacs

As Auditor:
-Audit fee 23.21 20.89
-Tax audit fee 4.00 1.00

In other capacity:
-Taxation matters 2.11 -
-Other services (certification fees) 1.20 3.70
-Reimbursement of expenses 0.99 0.81

31.51 26.40 
24. Depreciation and amortization expense

31-Mar-14 31-Mar-13
Rs. in lacs Rs. in lacs

Depreciation of tangible assets 1,319.54 1,481.90 

Amortization of intangible assets 182.86 181.31

1,502.40           1,663.21
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25. Finance cost

31-Mar-14 31-Mar-13
Rs. in lacs Rs. in lacs

Interest 268.44              103.92 

Bank Charges 301.99 190.27 

709.48              376.25

26 Contingent Liabilities:

a) Claims not acknowledged as debts (Rs. in lacs)

S. No Particulars 31-Mar-14 31-Mar-13

1 VAT/Sales Tax Matters 549.96 693.06

2 Service Tax 304.76 318.08

3 Excise / Custom Duty 552.18 559.93

4 Stamp Duty 28.50 28.50

5 Others 78.91 78.91

b) Corporate Guarantee given by erstwhile Aksh Broadband Limited aggregating to Rs. 582.03 lacs (31.03.2013 : Rs. 
582.03 lacs) in favour of Cisco Systems Capital India Private Limited for loan taken by APAKSH Broadband Limited, 
subsidiary of erstwhile  Aksh Broadband Limited.

c) Corporate Guarantee given by the Company aggregating to USD 3.38 Mn equivalent to Rs. 2,025.30 lacs (31.03.2013 : 
Rs. Nil) in favour of Bank of Baroda, Dubai for loan taken by AOL (FZE).

d) Bank Guarantees, letters of credit  (Net of margin) issued by banks and outstanding as on the reporting date is Rs. 
2,163.96 lacs (31.03.2013 : Rs. 1070.89 lacs)

e) The Company had imported plant and machinery in previous years under EPCG scheme. An export obligation (‘EO’) 
amounting to Rs.10,699 lacs  was placed on the Company which was to be fulfilled in a period of 8 years starting from 
August 2001. Subsequently, the said EO was refixed by DGFT vide its letter dated Jan 2011 upto August 2011 in terms 
of the Chapter VI of EXIM Policy and Procedure (Vol-1) 1997-2002. The Company has fulfilled the entire EO. The 
application for redemption of EPCG license was filed on March 2013 and final redemption is awaited.

f) Estimated amounts of contracts remaining to be executed on Capital Account (net of advances) is Rs. 31,075.73 lacs 
(31.03.2013 : Rs. 30,370.17 lacs)

27 With a view to have a global presence in telecom, the Company has incorporated a wholly owned subsidiary in Dubai, viz. 
“AOL (FZE)” for expansion of Companies businesses. The subsidiary Company has signed an agreement with Africa One, a 
Company which has been mandated to provide majority stake in Company, holding GSM licenses with spectrum in African 
contingent for Broadband, IPTV and FTTH projects. In Compliance of the terms of the agreement, the subsidiary Company 
has advanced towards part consideration an amount aggregating Rs 10,782.68 lacs ( equivalent to AED 660.06 lacs)  
(31.03.2013 : Rs 9,755.64 ( equivalent to AED 660.06 lacs)

28 Related Party Disclosures

Related party disclosures as required under Accounting Standard - 18 on “Related Party Disclosures” issued by The Institute 
st of Chartered Accountants of India are as given below as on 31 March, 2014:

a) Individuals exercising significant influence and their relatives:

-  Dr. Kailash S. Choudhari (Chairman)
th -  Mr.P. F. Sundesha (Related upto 20 September, 2013)

th-  Mr.Shailesh Popat Lal (Relative of Mr. P. F. Sundesha) (Related upto 20  September, 2013)

Interest on Cash Credit 139.05 82.06 
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b) Key Management personnel:

- Mr. Chetan Choudhari (Managing Director)

c) Enterprises over which personnel referred in (a) and (b) aforementioned exercise significant influence:

th -  Fulchand Finance Private Limited (Relates to Mr. P .F . Sundesha) (Related upto 20 September,  2013)

Related Party Transactions

(Rs. in lacs)

S.No. Nature of Transaction Key Others Total
Management 

Personnel

1 Remuneration Paid 112.40 422.86 535.26
95.54 369.20 464.74

2 Interest Expenses - 5.50 5.50
- 37.10 37.10

3 Repayment of loan - 81.75 81.75
- 477.00 477.00

4 Sitting Fees - 0.60 0.60
- 0.95 0.95

5 Rent Paid 16.52 16.52
- 29.40 29.40

st Balance due to/(from) as at31  March, 2014
Trade and other Payables - 10.70 10.70

- 123.59 123.59
Note :- Figures in italic represents Previous Year

29. The Company has taken assets on cancellable operating lease, the future minimum lease payments in respect of 
which are as follows :-

(Rs. in lacs)

Particulars        Minimum Lease Payments
31-Mar-14 31-Mar-13

Not later than 1 year 8.86 -

Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years 34.69 -

Later than 5 years - -

The Lease agreements provide for an option to the Company to renew the lease period. There are no exceptional/restrictive 
covenants in the lease agreements.

Lease rental expense in respect of operating leases is Rs.0.74 lacs (31.03.2013 : Rs. Nil)

Contingent rent recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss is Rs. Nil (31.03.2013 : Rs. Nil)

30 Exceptional items represents net foreign exchange gain on translation of foreign exchange assets and liabilities other than 
operational of Rs. 717.10 lacs (31.03.2013: Rs. 345.98 lacs), profit / (loss) on sale of fixed assets of Rs. (20.76) lacs 
(31.03.2013: Rs. 915.14 lacs), liabilities written back of Rs.10.26 lacs (31.03.2013: Rs. 28.10 lacs), advances written off of 
Rs.Nil (31.03.2013: Rs. 670.20 lacs).
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31 Segmental Reporting

Based on the guiding principles given in Accounting Standard AS-17, "Segment Reporting" issued by the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of India, the Company's business segments are Manufacturing, Services and Trading of goods. The 
information about business segments are given below: 

( Rs. in lacs)

Particulars                                        Manufacturing                Services                            Trading                                  Total

2013-2014 2012-2013 2013-2014 2012-2013 2013-2014 2012-2013 2013-2014 2012-2013

1 Segment Revenue
External Turnover 20,879.48 21,584.32 894.29 1,550.76 2,100.51 2,542.22 23,874.28 25,677.30
Inter Segment Turnover 20.39 31.18 - - - 0.35 - -
Total Revenue 20,899.87 21,615.50 894.29 1,550.76 2,100.51 2,542.57 23,874.28 25,677.30

2 Segment Results before 3,904.15 3,648.82 (1,232.82) (1,364.28) 204.55 286.18 2,875.88 2,570.72
Interest and Taxes
Less : Finance Cost 709.48 376.25
Add : Interest Income 217.37 124.26
Add : Exceptional Items 706.60 619.03
Add/(Less): Unallocated (923.75)         (359.55)
(Expenses)/Income
Profit before Tax 2,166.62 2,578.21

3 Other Information
Segment Assets 14,748.38 11,051.65 27,286.23 27,926.28 4,599.53 5,388.82 46,634.14 44,366.75
Unallocated Assets - - - - - - 11,452.73 10,425.65
Total Assets 14,748.38 11,051.65 27,286.23 27,926.28 4,599.53 5,388.82 58,086.87 54,792.40
Segment Liabilities 8,294.06 4,697.21 11,577.27 10,376.63 672.87 1,358.04 20,544.20 16,431.88
Share Capital and reserves - - - - - - 37,542.67 38,360.52
Total Liabilities 8,294.06 4,697.21 11,577.27 10,376.63 672.87 1,358.04 58,086.87 54,792.40
Capital Expenditure 592.54 265.85 46.80 158.54 - - 639.34 424.39
Depreciation and Amortization 374.38 521.00 1,128.02 1,142.21 - - 1,502.40 1,663.21

Note :-  Total Revenue is after elimination of inter segment turnover of Rs. 20.39 lacs (31.03.2013 : Rs. 31.53 lacs)

32 Basic and diluted earnings per share

S. No. Particulars 31-Mar-14 31-Mar-13

a. Net Profit for the year (Rs. in lacs) 2,166.62 2,578.21

b. Weighted Average No of Equity Shares used in computing 148,564,989 146,499,744
Basic-Earning per Share (Nos.)

c. Impact of diluted instruments on Net Profit for the year (Rs. in lacs) - -

d. Net Profit used for the computation of diluted earning per share (Rs. in lacs) 2,166.62 2,578.21

e. Weighted average number of equity shares from dilutive instruments (Nos.) 14,100,086 -

f. Weighted Average  No of Equity   Shares used in computing 162,665,075 146,499,744
Diluted Earning per Share (Nos.)

g. Nominal Value of Equity Shares (Rs.) 5.00 5.00

h. Basic-Earning Per Shares (Rs.) 1.46 1.76

i. Diluted -Earning Per Share (Rs.) 1.33 1.76

33 There are no Micro and Small Enterprises, to whom the Group owes any sum, which are outstanding for more than 45 days as 
st at 31 March, 2014. This information as required to be disclosed under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises 

Development Act, 2006 has been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of information 
received from vendors.

34 APAKSH is setting up a Broadband Project in the state of Andhra Pradesh. No Statement of Profit and Loss has been 
prepared in respect of the said project since the Company has not commenced revenue operations. The expenditure 
incurred during the period are classified as “Project Development Expenses” pending capitalization and will be apportioned 
to the assets on the completion of the project.
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b) Key Management personnel:
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st at 31 March, 2014. This information as required to be disclosed under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises 

Development Act, 2006 has been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of information 
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BALLOT FORM
1. Name(s) & Registered Address

of the Sole/First Named Member :

2. Name(s) of the Joint Holders(s), :

If Any

3. Registered Folio Number/

DP ID No./Client ID No*

(* Applicable To investors holding

shares in demat form) :

4. Number of Ordinary Share(s) held :
th5. I/We hereby exercise my/our vote(s) in respect of the Resolutions set out in the Notice of the 27  Annual General Meeting 

th(AGM) of the Company to be held on Saturday, 27  September, 2014 by sending my/our assent or dissent to the said 
Resolutions by placing the tick (ü) mark at the appropriate box below:

Item Description of Resolution No. of Ordinary (FOR) (AGAINST) 
No. Shares for which I/We assent I/We dissent   

votes cast to the to the  
Resolutions Resolutions

1. To Consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements 
stas at 31  March, 2014 and the Report of the Auditors’ and 

Board of Director’s thereon.

2. To declare dividend on equity shares.
3. To appoint a Director in place of Mr. B. R. Rakhecha, who 

retires by rotation and being eligible offers himself for 
re-appointment.

4. Appointment of Auditors for a term of three years 
(subject to ratification of their appointment at every AGM) 
and fixing their remuneration.

5. Appointment of Cost Auditors
6. Appointment of  Mr.  Amri t  Nath as an Independent 

Director for a term of 5 consecutive years
7. Appointment of Mr. Narendra Kumbhat as an Independent 

Director for a term of 5 consecutive years
8. Appointment of Mr. Dinesh Kumar Mathur as an Independent 

Director for a term of 5 consecutive years
9. Appointment of Mr. B.R. Rakhecha as a Professional 

Consultant of the Company
10. Conferring the powers to the Board of Directors to borrow 

upto Rs. 500 Crores.
11. Conferring the powers to the Board of Directors to create  

mortgage etc, on the properties of the Company to secure 
borrowing etc upto Rs. 500 Crores.

12. Adoption of New Articles of Association (AOA) of the Company.

Signed this..................... day of..................2014
                         ...........................................

                           Signature of shareholder
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35 In the case of APAKSH, Bank Guarantee of Rs. 150.00 lacs (31.03.2013 Rs. 150.00 lacs) was invoked by Andhra Pradesh 

Technology Services Limited due to failure of implementation of the project, shown in advance recoverable as Company is 
contesting. In the case of APAKSH, no provision has been made in respect of various expenses viz. rent, commission, 
bandwidth expenses as these are not quantifiable due to non availability of information and for interest of Rs. 187.27 lacs 
(31.03.2013 Rs. 164.57 lacs) on secured loan taken from Cisco Systems Capital India Private Limited.

36 In case of APAKSH, The operations are suspended due to litigation filed by one of the shareholder APAKSH which finally 
thdismissed by the Hon’ble Supreme Court vide it’s order dated 7  May, 2010. The management of the Company is in 

discussion on the revival of the project.

37 Previous year’s figures have been reworked, regrouped, rearranged and reclassified to conform to those of current year’s 
figures wherever necessary. 

The accompanying notes (1-37) are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.

As per our report of even date For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

For P. C. Bindal & Co. Dr. KAILASH S. CHOUDHARI
Firm Registration No : 003824N Chairman
Chartered Accountants DIN No. 00023824

CA K. C. Gupta CHETAN CHOUDHARI B.R. RAKHECHA
Partner Managing Director Director
Membership No.: 088638 DIN No. 00872366 DIN No. 00026729

Place: New Delhi SATYENDRA GUPTA GAURAV MEHTA
thDate : 26  May, 2014 Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
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P.c. BINDAL & co. 101, Sita Ram Mansion, 718121, Joshi Road, 
Chartered Accountants Karol Bagh, New Delhi-I 10 00.5 

til' 23549822 I 23 Fax: 23623829 
e-mail: pcbindalco@gmail.com 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 
I 

TO THE MEMBERS OF APAKSH BROADBAND LIMI~ED 

Report on the Financial Statements 
I 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements ofiAPAKSH BROADBAND LIMITED (lithe company"), 

which comprises the Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2016, ieash Flow Statement for the year ended, and a 
summary of significant accounting policies and other explan~tory information. 

I 


I 

Management's Responsibility for the FinaJ,cial Statements 

I 
The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the ~atters in section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 
2013 (lithe Act") with respect to the preparation of these fi?anCial statements that give a true and fair view 
of the financial position, financial performance and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the 
accounting principles generally accepted in India, including t~e Accounting Standards specified under Section 

133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accoun~s) Rules, 2014. This responsibility also includes 

the maintenance of adequate accounting records in ~ccordance with the provision of the Act 

for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for pr~venting and detecting the frauds and other 

irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accoumting policies; making judgments and estimates 

that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementatiorn and maintenance of internal financial control, 

that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy ~nd completeness of the accounting records, 
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial'l statements that give a true and fair view and 
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud orlerror. 

I 

Auditor's Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial ~tatements based on our audit. We have taken 
into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards and matter's which are 
required to be included in the audit report under the provisio~~ of the Act and the Rules made there under. 

I • 

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on 1uditing specified under section 143(10) of the 
Act. Those Standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to 
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial state~ents are free from material misstatement. 

I 
, 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evide~ce about the amounts and disclosures in the 
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment 

of the risks of material misstatement of the financial stateme~ts, whether due to fraud or error. In making 
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal firlancial control relevant to the Company's 

preparation of the financial statements that give true and fair ~Iew in order to design audit procedures that 
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpo e of expressing an opinion on whether the 

Company has in place an adequate internal financial contr .Is system over financial reporting and the 

operating effectiveness of such controls. An audit also includes Fvaluating the appropriateness of accounting 

policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimafes mad~ t;y Company's Directors, as well as 
evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements .. 

I 

I 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficiert and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
audit opinion on the financial statements. 

mailto:pcbindalco@gmail.com


\ 

II 

Opinion 	 \ 

In 	our opinion and to the best of our information an6 according to the explanations given to us, the 
aforesaid financial statements, give the information req~ired by the Act in the manner so required and give 

a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting pri (iples generally accepted in India; 
a) 	 in the case of the Balance Sheet, of the state of affairs of the CompanY,as at 31·t March, 2016; and 

b) 	 in the case of the Cash Flow Statement, of the cash fl ws for the year ended on that date. 

Report on other Legal and Regulatory Re uirements 
1. 	 As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) 0 der, 2016 (tithe Order"), as amended, issued by 

the Central Government of India in terms of sub-se ion (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in 
the "Annexure A" a statement on the matters spec fied in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order. 

2. 	 As required by section 143(3) of the Act, we report ~hat: 

a} We have sought and obtained all the infOrma~jon and explanations which to the best of our 
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit. 

b) In our opinion proper books of account as req~ired by law have been kept by the Company so 
far as appears from our examination of those bobks 

I 

c) 	 The Balance Sheet, and Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the 
books of account. II . 

d) 	 In our opinion, the aforesaid financial stateients comply with the Accounting Standards 

specified under Section 133 of the Act, read W~h Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 
2014. 

e) 	 On the basis of written representations receiv d from the directors as on 31st March, 2016, 
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none f the directors is disqualified as on 31st March, 

2016, from being appointed as a director in termsi10f Section 164(2) of the Act. 

f} 	 With respect to the adequacy of the internal fih~ncial controls over financial reporting of the 

Company and the operating effectiveness of su~\h controls, refer to our separate Report in 

"Annexure 8". I 
g) With respect to the other matters to be included io the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 

I 

11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules,l,2014, in our opinion and to the best of our 

information and according to the explanations giv~ln to us: 
i. 	 The Company has disclosed the impact of pefing litigations on its financial pOSition in its 

financial statements - Refer Note 10 to the fin ncial statements 
ii 	 The Company did not have any long term cont acts including derivative contracts for which 

there were any material foreseeable losses; an 
iii. There were no amounts which required to b~ transferred to the Investor Education and 

Protection Fund by the Company. II 

I 

I 
I 	 For P .C. Bindal & Co. 
I 
I 
I 
I 

Place: New Delhi 

Date: 2. 	8 [VlAY 2016 

Firm Registration NoA>i~ti 
(1." 



i 
I 
I 

"Annexure A" to the Independent AUdiJrs' Report 
\ 

Referred to in paragraph 1 under the heading 'Report on Other Legal & Regulatory Requirement' of our 
I 

report of even date to the financial statements of APAKS1 BROADBAND LIMITED ("the Company") for the 

year ended March 31, 2016: \ 


I 

i. 	 (a) The company has not produced any prc~per records showing full particulars including 
quantitative details and situation offixed ass~. 
The impact & quantum of this on the compan~'s assets cannot be quantified. 

I 
(b) 	 The Company has not produced any documenn; confirming that fixed assets have been physically 

verified by the management during the year. \ 
The impact & quantum of this on company's a$ets cannot be quantified. 

\ 

(c) 	 Since the company does not have any immo~able properties during the financial year, hence 

this clause of the order is not applicable. 1\ 

\ 

I 

ii. 	 The Company does not have any Inventory,ccordingly this clause of companies (Auditor's 

Report) Order 2016 is not applicable to the com any for the current year. 

iii. 	 According to the Information and explanation iven to us, the Company has not granted any 

loans, secured or unsecured to companies, rms or other parties covered in the register 

maintained under section 189 Companies Act 2p13. Accordingly, Clauses (a), (b) and (c) of sub 

Para iii of paragraph 3 of the order are not apPliiable. 

iv. 	 According to the information & Explanation giv~n to us, the company has not given any loans 

and guarantees, to partiers covered under sect~on 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013. 

Accordingly the provisions of clause 3 (vi) of the Tder are not applicable to the Company. 

v. 	 In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the company has 
not accepted any deposits from public to which the directives issued by Reserve Bank of India 
and provisions of sections 73 to 76 of the comp~nies Act, 2013, including rules framed there 
under, apply. Further, no order has been passrd by the Company law Board or National 
Company Law Tribunal or Reserve Bank of India or\ any other tribunal. 

\ 

vi. 	 To the best of our knowledge and as explain~d to us, the Central Government has not 
prescribed maintenance of cost records under cl~use of sub section (1) of section 148 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 for the company. \ 

vii. 	 (a) According to the records of the company the co~pany Is generally regular in deposttlng with 

appropriate authorities undisputed statutory dues lincluding provident fund, investor education 
protection fund, employees' state insurance, incqme tax, sales tax, wealth tax, service tax, 
custom duty, excise duty, Cess and other material s~atutory dues applicable to it. 

According to the information and explanations givJn to us, no undisputed amounts payable in 
I 

respect of income tax, wealth tax, Service Tax, sales tax, custom duty, excise duty and Cess were 

in arrears, as at 31-Mar-2016 for a period of more han six months from the date they became 

payable. 

(b) 	 According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no dues of income tax or 
sales tax or wealth tax or service tax or duty of custo s or duty of excise or value added tax or 
cess which have not been deposited on account of a y dispute 



i 
I 
I 

viii. Based on our audit procedures and on the b~SiS of the Information and explanations given to us, 

company did not have any borrowing from alny financial institutions or banks or government or 

ix. 

x. 

xi. 

xii. 

xiii. 

xiv. 

xv. 

xvi. 

debenture holders during the year. II 

\ 

Based upon the audit procedures performed nd the information and explanations given by the 
management, the company has not raised m neys by way of initial public offer or further public 
offer including debt instruments and the te m loans have been applied for the purposes for 
which they were raised. 

Based upon the audit procedures performed nd the information and explanations given by the 
management, we report that no fraud by th+ Company or on the company by its officers or 
employees has been noticed or reported duringthe year. 

According to the books of accounts and recor~s of the company, No Managerial remuneration 
I 

has been paid or provided. II 

I 
I 

In our opinion, the Company is not a Nidhi Comfany. Therefore, the provisions of clause 4 (xii) 

of the Order are not applicable to the companY1 

Based on our audit procedure and according to ~he information and explanation given to us , all 

transaction with the related parties are in c~mpliance with section 177 & section 188 of 

Companies Act-2013 and details of the same is ~isclosed in the financial statement as required 

by the applicable accounting standards. \ 
I 
I 
I 

Based upon the audit procedures performed an9 the information and explanations given by the 
management, the company has not made any ~referential allotment or private placement of 

shares or fully or partly convertible debentures ~uring the year under review. Accordingly, the 
provisions of clause 3 (xiv) of the Order are n~t applicable to the Company and hence not 

commented upon. II 

According to the information and explanation givJn to us, the company has not entered into any 

non-cash transactions with directors or persons c~nnected with him. 

The company is not required to be registered un~er section 4S-IA of the Reserve Bank of India 

Act, 1934. 

For P.C. Bindal &Co. 
Chartered Accountants 

Place: New Delhi 

Date: 

Firm Registration No. ~~~~ 
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I 
"Annexure B" to the Independent Audit~r's Report 

I 
I 

Report on the Internal Fi.nancial COlltrols\ under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of 
Section 143 ofthe Companies Act, 2013 (Ilthle Act")

I 
I 
I 

We have audited the internal financial controls over fin~ncial reporting of APAKSH BROADBAND LIMITED 

(tithe Company") as of March 31, 2016 in conjunction ~ith our audit of the financial statements of the 
Company for the year ended on that date. \ 

Management's Responsibility for Internal Filancial Controls 

The Company's management is responsible for establishin~land maintaining internal financial controls based 
on the internal control over financial reporting criteria esta~lished by the Company considering the essential 
components of internal control stated in the Guidance N· te on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over 

Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered A countants of India ('ICAI').These responsibilities 
include the design, implementation and maintenance of dequate internal financial controls that were 
operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient onduct of its business, including adherence to 

company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the pre ntion and detection of frauds and errors, the 

accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, a d the timely preparation of reliable financial 

information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013. I 
I 
I 

Auditors' Responsibility \

I 
I 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Compapy's internal financial controls over financial 

reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in ac~ordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of 
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the "Gu dance Note") and the Standards on Auditing, 

issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143 10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent 

applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both apPIi~able to an audit of Internal Financial Controls 
and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Irdia. Those Standards and the Guidance Note 

require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan ~nd perform the audit to obtain reasonable 

assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls Ilover financial reporting was established and 

maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all mate~ial respects. 
Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit e idence about the adequacy of the internal 
financial controls system over financial reporting and their a erating effectiveness. Our audit of internal 
financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining a understanding of internal financial controls 
over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weaness exists, and testing and evaluating the 
design and operating effectiveness of internal control based 0 the assessed risk. The procedures selected 
depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment ~f the risks of material misstatement of the 

financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. \ 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficienf and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls system over financial reporting. 

I 

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Flna~cial Reporting 

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting iSla process designed to provide reasonable 
I 

assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for 

external purposes in accordance with generally accepted acc~unting principles. A company's internal 
I 

financial control over financial reporting includes those poliCieS and procedures that (1) pertain to the 
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately II and fairly reflect the transactions and 
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonablellassurance that transactions are recorded 

as necessary to permit preparation of financial statemen. ts in accor~a.nce with generally accepted accounting 
prinCiples, and that receipts and expenditures of the company re being made only in accordance with 
authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance 

~ I 

~,f II 
~~ I!!d AcCO I 

I 
I 



I 

i 

regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorizlacquls~lon, use, or disposition of the company's 

assets that could have a material effect on the flnanctal1tements. 

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial c!ntrOIS Over Financial Reporting 

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financia controls over financial reporting, including the 
possibility of collusion or improper management overrid of controls, material misstatements due to error 

or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls 

over financial reporting to future periods are subject tol the risk that the internal financial control over 
financial reporting may become inadequate because o~ changes in conditions, or that the degree of 
compliance with the poliCies or procedures may deteriorat~. 

Qualified Opinion 
\ 

I 
I 
I 

According to the information and explanations given to us fnd based on our audit, a material weakness has 
been identified that the company did not have an approp~iate inter control system regarding quantitative 

details, situation of fixed assets and physical verification sJtem of fixed assets. The impact & quantum of 
this on company's assets cannot be quantified. 

A 'material weakness' is a deficiency, or a combination 0 \ deficiencies, in internal financial control over 
financial reporting, such that there is a reasonable possibilit¥ that a material misstatement of the company's 

I 

annual or interim financial statements will not be prevented ~r detected on a timely basis. 

In our opinion, except for the effects of the material weaknts described above on the achievement of the 
objectives of the control criteria, the Company has maintai ed, in all material respects, adequate internal 

financial controls over financial reporting and such internal nancial controls over financial reporting were 
operating effectively as of March 31, 2016, based on the in~ernal control over financial reporting criteria 
established by the Company considering the essential c mponents of internal control stated i.n the 
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over inancial Reporting issued by the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of India. 

For P.C. Bindal & Co. 

Place: New Delhi artner 

Membership No: 088638 
Date: 2 8 ~< t.Y 2016 



31 March 2015 
An1~unt in ~_ 

TOTAL ...._- .. - ..._- __.__....__......_... _~ __-l:::=:==i1=,5=6=:1=,6=1=:9:!::!,9=9=:6=:===1=,5=7=1=,2=:0=5=,8=:0=::6 

Summary of siqnificant accountinq policies 2.1 

The accompanying notes (1-20) are an integral part of the financial statements. 


As per our report of even date ached 
For and on behalf of the Board of DirectorsFor P.C. Binda. & Co_--f--...., 

Place : New Delhi 
Dated: 28th May 2016 

Dr. Kailash S. Choudhari Chetan Choudhari 
Director M~naging Director 

DIN 00023824 DIN 00872366 
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APAKSH BROADBAND LIMITED 
CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2016 

A) Cash flow from operating activities 

31 March 2016 
Amount in Rs. 

31 March 2015 
Amount in Rs. 

Net cash flow from! (used in) operating activities (A) 

B) Cash flows from investing activities 
Adjustment for change in current assets & Pre-operative Expenditure 
Adiustment for chanqe in current liablities 
Adiustment for chanqe in Non current liablities 
Net cash flow from! (used in) investing activities (B) 

9,626,048 
(9,175,618) 

(410,192) 
40,238 

(1,013,532) 
(88,216) 

1,133,399 
31,651 

C) Cash flows from financing activities 

Net'cash flow from! (used in) in financing activities (C) 

Net increase/Cdecrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A + B + C) 
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 

40,238 
50,687 

90,925 

31,651 
19,036 
50,687 

Components of cash and cash equivalents 
With banks- on current account 
- on deposit account 

Total cash and cash equivalents (note 8) 
Summary of significant accounting policies 2,1 
The accompanying notes (1-20) are an integral part of the financial statements, 

90,925 

90,925 

50,687 

50,687 

As per our report of even date a~ched 
For P.C. Bindal &. Co For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 
Chartered Aceo ..-:=--c-...... 

Dr. Kailash S. Choudhari Chetan Choudhari 
Director Managing Director 

DIN 00023824 DIN 00872366 

~Place: New Delhi 
Dated: 28th May 2016 
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APAKSH BROADBAND LIMITED 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2016 

CORPORATE INFORMATION 1 
APAksh Broadband Limited (the company) is a public Company domiciled in India and incorporated under the 
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. The Company is a subsidiary of Aksh Optifibre Limited (AOL). 

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION 
The financial statements have been prepared to comply in all material respects with the notified Accounting 
Standards by Companies Accounting Standard (as amended) Rules 2006 and the relevant requirements of the 
Companies Act, 2013. The financial statements have been prepared under historical cost convention on an accrual 
basis of accounting except in case of assets for which impairment is carried out. The acc:;ounting policies have been 

aaalied bv the Comoanv. 
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

a) 	 Fixed Assets 
Fixed Assets are stated at cost of acquisition less accumulated depreciation. Cost includes any borrowing costs 
directly attributable to the acquisition! construction of fixed assets and bringing the assets to its working condition for 
its' use. 

b) 	Capital Work·in·Progress 
costs of assets not ready for use before the year-end and expenditure during construction period that is directly or 
indirectly related to construction, including borrowing costs are included under capital Work-in-Progress. 

c) 	Depreciation 
Depreciable amount for assets is the cost of an asset, or other amount substituted for cost, less its estimated 
residual value. 
Depreciation on tangible fixed assets has been provided on the straight-line method as per the useful life prescribed 
in Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013 except in respect of the following categories of assets, in whose case the 
life of the assets has been assessed as under based on technical advice, taking into account the nature of the asset, 
the estimated usage of the asset, the operating conditions of the asset, past history of replacement, anticipated 
technological changes manufacturers warranties and maintenance support etc.: 

2.1 

Useful life in 
years 

Particulars 

20 
Furniture and fixtures 
Office eauioment 

15 
Data Processino Svstem 5 

Intangible assets are amortized over their estimated useful life on straight line method. 
d) Project Development Expenditure 

Expenses incurred relating to project prior to commencement of commercial production! start of the project is 
classified as Project Development Expenditure net of income earned during the project development stage. 

e) Revenue Recognition 

i 

I Expenses incurred relating to project prior to commencement of commercial production ! start of the project is 
classified as Project Development Expenditure net of income earned during the project development stage. 

! 

r) Foreign Currency transactions 
Transactions in foreign currency are recorded at the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions. In 
case of liabilities incurred for the acquisition of fixed assets, the loss or gain on restatement of liabilities (at the rates 
prevailing at the year end) is included in the carrying amount of the related fixed assets. In the case of other foreign 
currency denominated monetary assets and liabilities, the loss or gain arising as above is charged or credited to 
profit and loss account of the year of restatement I settlement. 

g) Gratuity and other retirement benefits are added to Project Development Expenditure through a provision for 
accruing liability based on assumption that such benefits are payable to the eligible employees at the time of 
retirement. 

I 



APAKSH BROADBAND LIMITED 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2016 
3. Share capital 

31 March 2016 31 March 2015 
Amount in Rs. AmQ!,I.nt i!1~ 

Al,lj!lorized shar:~!S~No.) 
350,000,000 (31 March 2015:350,000,000) 1,750,000,000 1,750,000,000 
EQuitv$bi'!res of 8$,5/- eac;h___~_ 

, , 
1lil!lll,led and subscribfHiIN-o.-)--·····--·~·--- ..... ----- ....... --.~.~:-- ........-~=.---t;-----

300,000,000(31 March 2015:300,000,000) equity 	 1,500,000,000 I 1,500,000,000 
shares of &s•...5/- each I i 
Iotal issued IIl1d su~ribed share c!p~ita=I_~ , 1,500'000'0001 1,500,000,000 
Paid-up shares (No.) .__~_________ 	----,.,-----il.....---~ 
226,125,000(31 March 2015: .226,125,000) equity shares of &S. 5/-	 1,130,625,000: 1,130,625,000 
Jl.a.ch fully oard UD • 

Forfeited Shares- equity shares forfeited, paid up &s. 3/­
each (31 March 2015: - 73,875,000 equity shares forfeited, paid 

(a) Reconciliation of the shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period 
Equity shares 

- No. 'Amount in Rs.~ 
31 March 2016 

At the b<!ginniflQ of the vear* ..._ ..... _____: 300.000.000: ....... 1.352250000 
Issued during the year 
Outstanding at!IJ?end of the year* . 
* including Forfeited Shares 

-: 

300000000' 1 352 250,000 

31 March 2015 
No. iAmo!lnt in Rs. 

300.000.000.:.--1.352.250.000 
-: -

300 000 000: 1,352. 250 000 

(b) Terms! rights attached to equity shares 

The Company has only one class of equity shares having par value of &S. 5/- per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to 

one vote per share. The Company declares and pays dividends in Indian rupees. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors 

is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting. 

In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the 
company, after distribution of all prefere'htial amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held 

by the shareholders. 

(c) Shares held by holding! ultimate holding Company and! or their subsidiaries! associates 

Out of equity shares issued by the Company, shares held by its holding Company, ultimate holding Company and their 
subsidiaries/ aSSOCiates are as below: 

Name of the shareholder 31 March 2016 . 31 March 2015 
Amount in Rs. • Amount in Rs. 

Aksh c:>ptifibre Limited, th!!holdin~ Company 	 1 J 
225,950,000 (31 March 2015: 225,950,000) 	 .......--..-~-- 1-1,129,750,060 •......_..... 1,129,750,000 


~qlJity share~f &S. 51:each fultr~________________ .. ..............L~ __ ........__._.~.__._........ ~_ 


(d) Details of shareholders holding more than 50/0 shares in the Company 

Name of the shareholder 
........_- Ofo holding in the 

1,129,75 1,129,750,000, 99.92 
Optifibre Limited, holding Company 

As at 31 March 2016 As at 31 March 2.Q15__ _ 
. Amount in Rs. Ofo holding in the 

Equity shares of &S. 5/- each fully paid Aksh 

____....L 
: 

..... ____ 

As per records of the Company, including its register of shareholders! members and other declarations received from 

shareholders regarding beneficial interest, the above shareholding represents both legal and beneficial ownerships of shares. 

4. 	Non current liabilities 
31 March 2016 31 March 2015 
Amou,!! in Rs. .... Amoun~ir1. Rs~ 

Trade payables (including acceptances) (refer Note 15 for details of 153,909,957 154,320,149 
dues to micro and small enterprises) I 

___........_~_____..... _~~-=11115:,3!1.Ii:909.::·~!"'9~57bll~_1=:5;;;:4:Q,3~2:.110ilol!1=-:4~9 
.....--....-~-- -----­

I 
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APAKSH BROADBAND LIMITED 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2016 
S. Short-term borrowings 

I ~~~:~hi~~~~~~:~~~~~ 
..~c:ured From:­ I , .. ---- ­
.~Banks 
.-Others 49.792,559 49.792,559 
Un~c:ured From::_ 

-,-Ba~n=ks,---_......._______

-Others ________ ----.~.~---~..--...~ _---+-_mmm 5.000.0001 5,000,000 

____ _.........__~ ___ _ J....__541lC11.,7~9i1.12I1&,5~5'-i9Li.,~__s~4I&,7~9~2!;!;,s!S5~9 


Secured against first and exclusive charge on Plant and Machinery of the Company covered under loan agreement. Further, this 

loan secured by Corporate Guarantee of Aksh Optifibre limited and personal guarantee of Dr Kailash S. Choudhari. 

5.1. Short-term liabilities 
i 31 March 2016 i 31 March 2015 
!Amount in Rs.+Amcnmti~ 

Other Current liabilities .........-r--m ••••• 

Expense Payable 667.4801 9.843,098 
667A80i 9,843,098 

\ '. 

1 
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APAKSH BROADBAND LIMITED 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2016 
6. Property, Plant and Equipment (Amount in Rs.) 

Vehicles TotalOffice Data I FurnitureI 

I, equipment ,processing and fixtures 
Cost or valuation --!~------- --,-~-------+-------+--------+------
At 1 ADrii 2014 1.329,193 ! 4883,771 ' 1.156584 1108,627 8.478,175 
Additions---==="-------------+-------+-------+----------t-----+------­
Dis osals 
At 31 March 2015 1329193 4883771 1156 584: 1 108 627 8 478 175 
Additions 
Disposals 
At 31 March 2016 1329193( ( 4883771( ( 1156 5~4 i( ( 1108627 I 8478175( ( ( ( 

i 
I 

, 
I 

-,-------
DeDreciation 
At 1 A~ril 2014 

i 
I 

590361 
~~ , 

4883,771 
I 

i 643193 894770 
I 

7012095 
Charqe for the year 63,137 i - I 73,212 105,320 241,669 
Disposals - i - i - I - -
At 31 March 2015 653498 I 4,883,771 716,405 : 1,000,090 ' 7,253,764 
Charqe for the year 63310 ! - 73412 105608 i 242330 
Disposals - I I -
At 31 March 2016 , 716,808 4,883,771 i 789,817 1,105,698 7,496094 
Net Block , 

I I 

At 31 March 2015 675(695 440(179 108(537 1(224All 
At 31 March 2016 612(385 366(767 ' 2(929 982(081I 

7. Intangible assets 
. Computer Total 

software 
Gross block 
At 1 A~ril 2014 I 6,420,562 6,420,562 
Additions I 

Internal develoj:>ment 
i 
, 

At 31 March 2015 6,420,562 6,420,562 
Additions 

At 31 March 2016 6,420,5621 6,420,562 

Amortization 
At 1 A~ril 2014 6,420,562 6,420,562 
Charqe for the year 
At 31 March 2015 6,420,562 i 6,420,562 
Charqe for the year 
At 31 March 2016 6,420,562l __ ,6,420,562 
Net block 
At 31 March 2015 
At 31 March 2016 



APAKSH BROADBAND LIMITED 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2016 
7.1. Capital Work in progress 

:L:. 31 March 2016 I 31 March 2015 
Amount in Rs. . Amount in Rs . ...__.... -+----------_.. ­

Accessories- Aerial & Undergr()uI"lL_~ • 32,346,923 . 32,346,923 
_cable TV Eguip~ment ...____...___...__ ~---+-~_ J1,845,719 i __ ~1,845,71~ 
Duct, cables & Others 1,074,747,242 1,074,747,242i I 

50 i<VA Di~sel Gel1erator__._____~ ___ i-- 520,000 I" ____?20t OOQ_ 
Other Eguipment _________. . 36,194,218 , 36,1941218 
cables La1'Ln~_~.___.1---~4,6?0,474 1~~E)50,4Z1_ 
Surv~ & ()ther~or~_~ ____...__...__...._i_ ...__1~1,724,~ ___131,724,619 _ 
Jiwitches__...__...__...___...._ ~ 601 162,130 i 60,162,130 
.;c------.-----___.... _._~.______! 1,462,191,325 I 1,462,191,325 

7.2. Project Development Expenditure 

Less Miscellaneous Income 
98 259 987 71135 1 ,\>-v-SH litro 

~1' 

~, 
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APAKSH BROADBAND LIMITED 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2016 

10 	 Contingent Liabilities: 

a) 	 Rs. 3,50,00,000 were demanded by Mis. Andhra Pradesh Technology Services Ltd towards liquidated 
damages, not acknowledged as debt. 

b) 	 Sales Tax demands Rs Nil (P.Y. Rs.25,815,217) and Rs Nil (P.Y. Rs.6,051,473/-) for the year 2005-06 and 
2006-07 has been decided in favour of the Company. 

c) 	 Rs 23,75,000 claimed by MIS Broadband Net Inc towards supply of equipments, which were not approved: 
and returned to the supplier. case is under sub judice. 

11 	 The Company is setting up a Broadband Project in the state of Andhra Pradesh. No Statement of Profit 
and Loss has been prepaned since the Company has not commenced revenue operations. The expenditure 
incurred during the period are classified as "Project Development Expenses" pending capitalization and 
will be apportioned to the assets on the completion of the Project. 

12 	 Related Party Disclosures 

Related party disclosures as required under Notified Accounting Standard (as amended) 18 on "Related 
Party Disclosures" issued by The Institute of Chartered Accountants of India are as given below as on 31 
March, 2016: 

a) Holding Company: 
- Aksh Optifibre Limited 

b) Key Management Personnel & their relatives 

Dr. Kailash S. Choudhari 
Mr. Chetan Choudhari 

Related Party Transactions 

13 Expenditure! Income in Foreign Currency 
Rs.NIL (Previous Year Rs. NIL) 

14 	 Segment Reporting 
The company's activities during the year revolve around setting up of the Broadband Project. Considering 
the nature of company's business and operations, there are no separate reportable segments In 
accordance with the requirements of Accounting Standards 17-'Segment Reporting notified in the 
companies (Accounting standards) rules 2006. 

15 	 There are no Micro and Small Enterprises, to whom the Group owes, which are outstanding for more than 
45 days as at 31st March, 2016. This Information as required to be disclosed under the Micro, Small and 
Medium EnterpriSes Development Act, 2006 has been determined to the extent such parties have been. 
identified on the basis of information available with the Group. 

17 The Company operations are suspended due to litigation filed by one of the sharehOlder which finally 
dismissed by the Hon'ble Supreme Court vide it's order dated 7th May 2010. Considering creation of: 
spreading OFC network by all the orders in the county, the Management of the Company is in discussions 
on the revival of the project . 

18 The board of director has approved the merger of Company with its holding Aksh optifibre limited subject 
to necessary statutory approvals and process to be finalised in due course with requisite agencies. 

19 The company does not have any deferned tax assets or deferred tax liabilities. 

20 Previous year's figures have been reworked, regrouped, rearranged and reclassified to conform to th 
of current year's figures wherever nece 

As per our report of even date attach 

Place: New Delhi 
Dated: 28th May 2016 

For and on behalf of the board of directors 

Dr. Kailash S. Choudhari 
Director 

DINt23824 
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AUDiTORS' REPORT 

TO THE MEMBERS OF APAKSH BROADBAND LIMITED 

on Statements 
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of APAKSH BROADBAND LIMITED ("the company"), 

which comprises the Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2015, Cash Flow Statement for the year ended, and a 

summary of significant accounting poliCies and other explanatory information. 

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters in section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 

2013 ("the Act") with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view 

of the financial position, financial performance and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the 

accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards speCified under Section 

133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. This responsibility also includes 

the maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provision of the Act 

for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting the frauds and other 

irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates 

that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of internal financial control, 

that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, 
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and 

are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We have taken 

into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards and matter's which are 

required to be included in the audit report under the proVisions of the Act and the Rules made there under. 

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under section 143(10) of the 

Act. Those Standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to 
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the 

financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment 

of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making 

those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal financial control relevant to the Company's 

preparation of the financial statements that give true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that 

are appropriate in the Circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on whether the 

Company has in place an adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting and the 

operating effectiveness of such controls. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting 

poliCies used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by Company's Directors, as well as 

evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. 
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 

audit opinion on the financial statements. 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the 

aforesaid financial statements, give the information required by the Act in the manner so required and give 
a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India; 

a) in the case of the Balance Sheet, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31st March, 2015; and 
b) in the case of the Cash Flow Statement, of the cash flows for the year ended on that date. 

and Regulatory 
1. 	 As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2015 (lithe Order") issued by the Central 

Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the Annexure a 
statement on the matters specified in the paragraph 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable. 

2. 	 As required by section 143(3) of the Act, we report that: 

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our 
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit. 

b) In our opinion proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so 

far as appears from our examination of those books 

c) The Balance Sheet, and Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the 

books of account. 
d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards 

specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 

2014. 

e) On the basis of written representations received from the directors as on 31st March, 2015, taken 

on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31st March, 2015, 

from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act. 
f) 	 with respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 

11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our 
information and according to the explanations given to us: 

i. 	 The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its 
financial statements Refer Note 10 to the financial statements 

ii 	 The Company did not have any long term contracts including derivative contracts for which 

there were any material foreseeable losses; and 

iii. 	There were no amounts which required to be transferred to the Investor Education and 

Protection Fund by the Company. 

For p.e. BINDAL & CO. 

Place: New Delhi 

Membership No: 088638 Date: 2 8 i.1A Y ZUiS 



IN OUR REPORT 

As stated in Para 1 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements' in Our Auditors' report on even 

date, the following statement is based on the comment in the Auditors report on financial statement. 

1. 	 (a) The company has not produced any proper records showing full particulars including 
quantitative details and situation offixed assets. 

The impact & quantum of this on the company's assets cannot be qualified. 

(b) 	 The Company has not produced any documents confirming that fixed assets have been 
physicaJJy verified by the management during the year. 

The impact & quantum of this on company's assets cannot be quantified. 

2. 	 The Company does not have any Inventory, Accordingly clause ii (a) to ii (c) of companies 

(Auditor's Report) Order 2015 is not applicable to the company for the current year. 


3. 	 The company has not granted any loans secured or unsecured to company covered in the 

register maintained under Section 189 of Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly clause iii (a) 

and iii (b) of Companies (Auditor's Report) Order 2015 is not applicable to the company 
for the current year. 

4. 	 In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, there are 
adequate internal control procedures commensurate with the size of the company and 
the nature of its business with regard to purchases of inventory, fixed assets and with 
regard to the sale of goods. During the course of our audit, we have not observed any 
major weakness in internal controls. 

5. 	 In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the 
company has not accepted any deposits from public to which the directives issued by 
Reserve Bank of India and provisions of sections 73 to 76 of the Companies Act, 2013, 
including rules framed there under, apply. Further, no order has been passed by the 
Company Law Board or National Company Law Tribunal or Reserve Bank of India or any 
other tribunal. 

6. 	 As per the information and explanations given to us, the Central Government has 
specified maintenance of cost records on the products of the company under sub-section 
(1) of Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the company has not yet made or 
maintained such accounts and records. 

7. 	 (a) According to the information and explanations given to us and according to the books 

and records produced before us, the company is regular in depositing with appropriate 

authorities undisputed statutory dues including provident fund, employees' state 

insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, wealth tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, 

value added tax, cess and any other statutory dues with the appropriate authority, as 

applicable to it except of the following arrears of outstanding statutory dues appearing 

as at year end for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable:­

Arrears amount for period 
outstanding Authority 
Nature of Statutory Dues IApplicable recipient 

exceeding six months 
I 

i 

irDS i Income Tax dept. 
 9,170,632/­



(b) 	 According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no dues of income 
tax or sales tax or wealth tax or service tax or duty of customs or duty of excise or value 
added tax or cess which have not been deposited on account of any dispute except of 
the following amounts:­

Name of the 
Statute 

Sales Tax Act 

Nature of Dues 

Sales Tax 

Demand 

Amount (Rs.) 

25,815,217/­

Period to 
which 

Amount 
relates 
2005-06 

Forum where 
dispute is pending 

Hon'ble Supreme 

Court of India 

Sales Tax Act Sales Tax 

Demand 

6,051,473/­

I 

2006-07 Hon'ble Supreme 

Court of India 

(c) 	 According to the information and explanations provided to us, there were no amounts 
which required to be transferred under investor education and protection fund in 
accordance with the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 (1 of 1956) and rules 
made there under within the stipulated time. 

8. 	 Since the Company has not commenced revenue operation. So clause Viii of para 3 of 
Companies (Auditor's Report) order 2015 is not applicable to the company for the 
current year. 

9. 	 In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, during the 
year under audit, the company did not have any borrowings from any financial 
institution, bank or debenture holders. 

10. 	 According to the information and explanations given to us, the company has not given 
any guarantee for loans taken by others from banks and financial institutions. 

11. 	 According to the information and explanations given to us, the company has not availed 
any term loan during the year under audit. 

12. 	 According to the information and explanations given to us, no fraud on or by the 
company has been noticed or reported during the course of our audit. 

For P.C. BINDAL & CO. 

Place: New Delhi 

Date: 	2 8 r·ih'f 2015 



APAKSH BROADBAND LIMITED 
BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2015 

Notes 31-Mar-15 31-Mar-14 
Rs. Rs. 

Equity and liabilities 

Shareholders' funds 
- Share capital 3 1,352,250,000 1,352,250,000 

1,352,250,000 1,352,250,000 
Non-current liabilities 
Trade payables 4 154,320,149 153.186,750 

154,320,149 153,186,750 
Current liabilities 
Short-term borrowings 5 54,792,559 54,792,559 
Other Short-term liabilities 5.1 9,843[098 9,931[314 

64[635l 657 64l 723l873 
TOTAL 1,571,205,806 1,570,160,623 

Assets 
Non-current assets 
Fixed assets 
Tanqible assets 6 1,224,411 1,466,080 
Intanqible assets 7 
capital work-in-proqress 7.1 1,462,191,325 1,462,191,325 
Project Development Expenditure 7.2 71[135[159 70[016[054 

1,534,550,895 1,533,673,459 
Current assets 
cash and cash equivalents 8 50,687 19,036 
Short-term loans and advances 9 36,604,224 36,468,128 

36£654,911 36(487t I64 
TOTAL 1,571,2Q5.SQ§ 1,570,160,623 

Summary of siQnificant accountinq policies 2.1 

The accompan~ing notes {1-221 are an integral ~art of the financial statements. 


ed 
For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

As per our report of even date a 
For P.C. Binda. & Co 

Director Director .. 
Pt 

http:1,571,2Q5.SQ


APAKSH BROADBAND LIMITED 
CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2015 

31-Mar-15 31-Mar-14 
Rs. Rs. 

A Cash flow from operating activities -
Net cash flow from/ (used in) operating activities (A) 

B Cash flows from investing activities 
Adiustment for chanqe in current assets (136,096) 19,953,997 
Adiustment for chanqe in current liablities (88,216) (97,936) 
Adiustment for chanqe in Non current liablities 1,133,399 (18,901,873) 
Pre-operative Expenditure Pending allocation (877!436) (990!621) 
Net cash flow from/ (used in) investing activities (B) 31,651 (36,433) 

Cash flows from financing activities 

Net cash flow from/ (used in) in financing activities (C) 

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A + B + C) 31,651 (36,433) 
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 19,036 55,469 
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 50,687 19,036 

Components of cash and cash equivalents 
With banks- on current account 50,687 19,036 
- on deposit account 

Total cash and cash equivalents (note 8) 50.687 111036 

Summary of siqnificant accountinq policies 2.1 
The accompanying note~ (1-22) are an integral part of the financial statements. 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

Place: 
Dated: 3. a MI~ y zGt~ 

Director Director 
Ole 
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APAKSH BROADBAND UMITED 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2015 

1 CORPORATE INFORMATION 
APAksh Broadband Limited (the company) is a public Company domiciled in India and incorporated 
under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. The Company is a subsidiary of Aksh Optifibre 
Limited (AOL). 

2 BASIS OF PREPARAnON 
The financial statements have been prepared to comply in all material respects with the notified 
Accounting Standards by Companies Accounting Standard (as amended) Rules 2006 and the relevant 
requirements of the Companies Act, 2013. The financial statements have been prepared under 
historical cost convention on an accrual basiS of accounting except in case of assets for which 
impairment is carried out. The accounting policies have been conSistently applied by the Company. 

2.1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNnNG POLICIES 
a) Fixed Assets 

Fixed Assets are stated at cost of acquisition less accumulated depreciation. Cost includes any 
borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition/ construction of fixed assets and bringing the 
assets to its working condition for its intended use. 

b) Capital Work-in-progress 

costs of assets not ready for use before the year-end and expenditure during construction period that 
is directly or indirectly related to construction, including borrowing costs are included under capital 
Work-in-Progress. 

c) Depreciation 

Depreciable amount for assets is the cost of an asset, or other amount substituted for cost, less its 
estimated residual value. 

Depreciation on tangible fixed assets has been provided on the straight-line method as per the useful 
life prescribed in Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013 except in respect of the following categories 
of assets, in whose case the life of the assets has been assessed as under based on technical advice, 
taking into account the nature of the asset, the estimated usage of the asset, the operating 
conditions of the asset, past history of replacement, anticipated technological changes, manufacturers 
warranties and maintenance support, etc.: 

Particulars Useful life in 
years 

Office equipment 20 
Furniture and fixtures 15 
Data Processinq System 5 

Intangible assets are amortized over their estimated useful life on straight line method. 

d) Project Development Expenditure 
Expenses incurred relating to project prior to commencement of commercial production / start of the 
project is classified as Project Development Expenditure net of income earned during the project 
development stage. 

e) Revenue Recognition 
Expenses incurred relating to project prior to commencement of commercial production / start of the 
project is classified as Project Development Expenditure net of income earned during the project 
development stage. 



APAKSH BROADBAND LIMITED 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2015 

f) Foreign Currency transactions 

Transactions in foreign currency are recorded at the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the 
transactions. In case of liabilities incurred for the acquisition of fixed assets, the loss or gain on 
restatement of liabilities (at the rates prevailing at the year end) is included in the carrying amount of 
the related fixed assets. In the case of other foreign currency denominated monetary assets and 
liabilities, the loss or gain arising as above is charged or credited to profit and loss account of the 
year of restatement I settlement. 

g) Gratuity and other retirement benefits are added to Project Development Expenditure through a 
provision for accruing liability based on assumption that such benefits are payable to the eligible 
employees at the time of retirement. 

, 
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APAKSH BROADBAND LIMITED 
NOTES TO FINANCAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2015 
3. Share capital 

31-Mar-15 31-Mar-14 
Rs. Rs. 

Authorized shares (No.) 
350,000,000 (31 March 2014:350,000,000) Equity Shares 1,750,000,000 1,750,000,000 
of Rs. 5/- each 

Issued and subscribed (No.) 
300,000,000(31 March 2014:300,000,000) equity shares 

1,500,000,000 1,500,000,000
of Rs. 5/- each 
Total issued and subscribed share capital 1,500.000.000 1.500.000,000 
Paid-up shares CNo.) 
226,125,000(31 March 2014:.226,125,000) equity shares 1,130,625,000 1,130,625,000
of Rs. 5/- each fully paid UP • 

Forfeited Shares- 73,875,000 equity shares forfeited, paid up Rs. 3/- each (31 
March 2014: - 73,875,000 equity shares forfeited, paid up Rs 3/- each) 221,625,000 

Total paid-up share capital 1,352.250.000 1,352.250,000 

Ca) Reconciliation of the shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period 

Equity shares 
31-Mar-15 31-Mar-14 

No. Rs. No. Rs. 
At the beqinninQ of the year* 300,000,000 1,352,250,000 300,000,000 1,352,250,000 
Issued durinQ the year 
Outstanding at the end of the year* 300,000,000 1,352,250,000 300,000,000 1,352,250,000 

* including Forfeited Shares 

Cb) Terms/ rights attached to equity shares 

The Company has only one class of equity shares having par value of Rs. 5/- per share. Each holder of equity 
shares is entitled to one vote per share. The Company declares and pays dividends in Indian rupees. The dividend 
proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General -
Meeting. 

In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets 

of the company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of 

equity shares held by the shareholders. 


Cc) Shares held by holding/ ultimate holding Company and/ or their subsidiaries/ associates 
Out of equity shares issued by the Company, shares held by its holding Company, ultimate holding Company and 
their subsidiaries/ aSSOCiates are as below: 

31-Mar-15 31-Mar-14 
All nos. Rs. Rs. 
Aksh Optifibre Limited, the holding Company 
225,950,000 (31 March 2014: 225,950,000) equity shares 
of Rs. 5/- each fully paid 

(d) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company 

Name of the shareholder As at 31st March 2015 As at 31st March 2014 
Rs. % holding in Rs. % holding in 

the class the class 
Equity shares of Rs. 5/- each fully oaid 1,129,750,000 99.92 1,129,750,000 99.92 
Aksh Optifibre Limited, holdinQ 

As per records of the Company, including its register of shareholders/ members and other declarations received 
from shareholders regarding benefiCial interest, the above shareholding represents both legal and beneficial 
ownerships of shares. 



APAKSH BROADBAND LIMITED 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2015 
4. Non current liabilities 

Trade payables (including acceptances) (refer Note 18 for 
details of dues to micro and small enterprises) 

5. Short-term borrowings 

Secured From:­
-Banks 
-others 
Unsecured From:­
-Banks 
-others 

31-Mar-15 31-Mar-14 
Rs. Rs. 

154,320,149 153,186,750 

154.320.149 

31-Mar-15 
Rs. 

49,792,559 

5,000,000 
54,792,559 

153.186,750 

31-Mar-14 
Rs. 

49,792,559 

5,000,000 
54,792,559 

Secured against first & exclusive charge on Plant and Machinery of the Company covered under loan agreement. 

5.1. Short-term liabilities 

Other liabilities 
TDS payable 
Interest accrued and due on borrowings 
Others 

-

31-Mar-15 31-Mar-14 
Rs. Rs. 

9,180,632 9,180,632 
567,480 567,480 
94,986 183,202 

9,843.098 9,931,314 



APAKSH BROADBAND UMITED 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2015 
6. Tangible assets 

Office Data Furniture and Vehides Total 
equipment processing fixtures 

Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. 
Cost or valuation 
At 1 April 2013 1,329,193 4,883,771 1,156,584 1,108,627 8,478,175 
Additions 
Disposals 
At 31 March 2014 1,329,193 4,883,771 1,156,584 1,108,627 8,478,175 
Additions 
Disposals 
At 31 March 2015 1,329,193 4,883,771 1,156,584 1,108,627 8,478,175 

Depreciation 
At 1 April 2013 527,224 4,883,771 569,981 789,450 6,770,426 
Charge for the year 63,137 73,212 105,320 241,669 
Disposals 
At 31 March 2014 590,361 4,883,771 643,193 894,770 7,012,095 
Charge for the year 63,137 73,212 105,320 241,669 
Disposals 
At 31 March 2015 653,498 4,883,771 716,405 1,000,090 7,253,764 
Net Block 
At 31 March 2014 738,832 513,391 213,857 1,466,080 
At 31 March 2015 675,695 440,179 108,537 1,224,411 

7. Intangible assets 
Computer Total 
software 

Rs. Rs. 
Gross block 
At 1 April 2013 6,420,562 6,420,562 
Additions 
Internal develo~ment 
At 31 March 2014 6,420,562 6,420,562 
Additions 

At 31 March 2015 6,420,562 6,420,562 

Amortization 
At 1 April 2013 
Charge for the year 

6,420,562 6,420,562 

At 31 March 2014 61420,562 6,420,562 
Cha!:ge for the :r:ear 
At 31 March 2015 6,420,562 6,420,562 
Net block 
At 31 March 2014 
At 31 March 2015 

.,..~' 
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APAKSH BROADBAND UMITED 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2015 
7.1. capital Work in progress 

Accessories- aerial & underground 
cable TV equipment 
Duct, cables & others 
50 KVA diesel generator 
Other equipment 
cables laying 
Survey & other works 
Switches 

7.2. Project Development Expenditure 

Preliminary expense 
Advertising expense 
Appraisal charges 
Audit fees 
Bandwidth expense 
Books & periodicals 
Business promotion charges 
Certification fees 
Commission 
Consultation charges 
Consumables (Comp & Elect) 
Courier & xerox charges 
Depreciation On fixed assets 
Donations 
Electricity charges 
Filing fees 
Financial charges 
Fuel expense 
Insurance 
Legal & professional charges 
Miscellaneous expense 
Network maintenance charges 
Office maintenance 
Printing & stationary 
Rates & taxes 
Rent 
Sitting fees 
Staff salary & other expo 
Telephone charges 
Travelling expense 
Vehicle maintenance 
Fringe benefit tax 

Less Foreign exchange rate difference 
Less Insurance claim received 
Less Interest on fixed deposits 
Less Miscellaneous income 
Less Trial sales 

As at 
31-Mar-15 

Rs. 
32,346,923 
31,845,719 

1,074,747,242 
520,000 

36,194,218 
94,650,474 

131,724,619 
60,162,130 

As at 
31-Mar-14 

Rs. 
32,346,923 
31,845,719 

1,074,747,242 
520,000 

36,194,218 
94,650,474 

131,724,619 
60,162,130 

1,462,191,325 1,462,191,325 


As at 
31-Mar-15 

Rs. 
26,800 

1,228,246 
3,080,431 
1,193,730 

21,431,912 
20,934 

533,032 
25,000 

361,419 
1,919,055 

91,796 
16,900 

13,674,325 
70,000 

1,057,494 
8,923,177 
1,242,275 

247,798 
4,004,633 
2,625,176 

30,167 
102,145 

1,245,176 
196,262 
66,283 

7,362,935 
200,000 

15,213,738 
1,103,386 
2,603,219 

20,010 
115,550 

As at 
31-Mar-14 

Rs. 
26,800 

1,228,246 
3,080,431 
1,081,370 

21,431,912 
20,934 

533,032 
25,000 

361,419 
1,919,055 

91,796 
16,900 

13,432,656 
70,000 

1,057,494 
8,896,473 
1,241,426 

247,798 
3,771,242 
2,625,176 

30,167 
102,145 

1,245,176 
195,762 
66,283 

6,941,585 
200,000 

15,213,738 
1,103,386 
2,520,937 

20,010 
115,550 

90,033,004 

217,746 
900,000 

3,875,424 
244,481 

13,660,194 

217,746 
900,000 

3,875,424 
244,481 

13,660,194 
71,135,159 70,016,054 

71,135,159 70,016,054 



APAKSH BROADBAND UMITED 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2015 
8. cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents 
Balances with banks: 
- On current accounts 

9. Loans and advances 

Security deposit 
Secured, considered Qood 

Unsecured, considered QOod 


Advances recoverable in cash or kind 
Secured considered Qood 

Unsecured conSidered Qood 


Provision for doubtful advances 

Other loans and advances 
Income-Tax refund due 
Prepaid expenses 
Balances with statutory I government authorities 

Current 
31-Mar-15 31-Mar-14 

RI. RI. 

50,687 19,036 
50,687 19,036 

Current 
31-Mar-15 31-Mar-14 

RI. Rs. 

2,047,202 2,044,952 

28,668,875 28,668,875 

28,668,875 28,668,875 

28,668,875 28,668,875 

378,096 378,096 
208,659 202,862 

5,301,392 5,173,343 
5,888,147 5,754,301 

36,604,224 36.468.128 



APAKSH BROADBAND LIMITED 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31 2015 

10 

a) 

b) 

c) 

Contingent Liabilities: 

Rs. 3,50,00,000 were demanded by MIs. Andhra Pradesh Technology Services Ltd towards liquidated 
damages, not acknowledged as debt. 

Sales Tax demands Rs 25,815,217 (P.Y. Rs.29,503,105) and Rs 6,051,473 (P.Y. Rs.6,915,969/-) for 
the year 2005-06 and 2006-07 is under consideration by Hon'ble Supreme Court of India. 

Rs 23,75,000 claimed by MIs Broadband Net Inc towards supply of equipments, which were not 
approved and returned to the supplier. case is under sub judice. 

11 The Company is setting up a Broadband Project in the state of Andhra Pradesh. No Statement of 
Profit and Loss has been prepared since the Company has not commenced revenue operations. The 

, expenditure incurred during the period are classified as "Project Development Expenses" pending 
capitalization and will be apportioned to the assets on the completion of the Project. 

12 

a) 

b) 

Related Party Disclosures 

Related party disclosures as required under Notified Accounting Standard (as amended) - 18 on 
"Related Party Disclosures" issued by The Institute of Chartered Accountants of India are as given 
below as on 31 March, 2015: 

Holding Company: 
- Aksh Optifibre Umited 

Key IYlanagement Personnel & their relatives 
- Dr. Kai/ash S. Choudhari 
- Mr. Chetan Choudhari 

Related Party Transactions 

Optifibre Limited 
bursement of Expenses paid 

Outstanding balance due to I (from) 
5,544,275 

156,611,112 

13 Estimated amount of Contracts remaining to be Executed on capital Account and not provided for­
Rs. 3,02,63,38,000 ( Previous Year Rs. 3,02,63,38,000 ) 

14 Expenditurel Income in Foreign Currency 
Rs.NIL (Previous Year Rs. NIL) 
Income-Nil 

15 Bank Guarantee of Rs 15,000,000 (Previous Year Rs 15,000,000) was invoked by M/s.Andhra Pradesh 
'Technology Services Ltd due to failure of implementation of project, debited to advance account and 
matter is being contested. 



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2015 


16 	 Segment Reporting 
The company's activities during the year revolve around setting up of the Broadband Project. 
Considering the nature of company's business and operations, there are no separate reportable 
segments in accordance with the requirements of Accounting Standards 17-'Segment Reporting 
notified in the companies (Accounting standards) rules 2006. 

17 	 Following provision of expenses were not accounted for in the books of account:­
a) 	 Interest payable of Rs. 20,996,760 (Previous Year- Rs. 18,726,840) on secured loan taken from 

Cisco Systems capital India Private Limited was not provided in the books of accounts. 

b) 	 Various provisions of expense e.g. rent, commission, bandwidth expenses etc. are not accounted 
for in the books of account, due to non- availability of information. 

18 	 There are no Micro and Small Enterprises, to whom the Group owes, which are outstanding for 
more than 45 days as at 31st March, 2015. This information as required to be disclosed under 
the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 has been determined to the 
extent such parties have been identified on the basis of information available with the Group. 

19 Amount Paid I payable to auditors 
Particulars Current Year Previous Year 
Audit Fees 	 112,360 112,360 

20 	 The Company operations are suspended due to litigation filed by one of the shareholder which 
finally dismissed by the Hon'ble Supreme Court vide it's order dated 7th May 2010. Considering 
creation of spreading OFC network by all the orders in the county, the Management of the 
Company is in discussions on the revival of the project. 

21 	 The company does not have any deferred tax assets or deferred tax liabilities. 

22 	 Previous year's figures have been reworked, regrouped, rearranged and reclassified to conform 
to those of current year's figures wherever necessary. 

As per our report of even date attached 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

Place : Ne"X D~~i v .:; lb. 
Dated: 1 tt Mf\ l LV I;}-
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